Vanderburgh County
Board of Commissioners
January 7, 2002

The Vanderburgh County Commissioners met in session this 7" day of January ,
2002, at 6:04 p.m. in Room 307 of the Civic Center Complex.

Call to Order

Commissioner Mosby: | would like to call to order Board of Commissioners meeting
of Vanderburgh County for January 7, 2002.

Introductions and Pledge of Allegiance

Commissioner Mosby: With us tonight we have Superintendent of Buildings, Tammy
McKinney; Counselor, Phil Hayes; Commissioner Fanello; myself; Commissioner
Mourdock; Auditor, Suzanne Crouch; and Recording Secretary, Madelyn Grayson.
Please stand and say the Pledge.

(The Pledge was given.)

Approval of Minutes

Commissioner Mosby: Motion to approve the minutes of the December 26" meeting.
Commissioner Fanello: So moved.
Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

Commissioner Mosby: | have a motion and a second. So ordered.

Nominations for Officers of Board of Commissioners

Commissioner Mosby: | guess, at this time we will take nominations for President
and Vice President for next year.

Commissioner Fanello: For this year.

Commissioner Mosby: Or for this year. Excuse me. I'll make the motion to nominate
Catherine Fanello as President of the Commissioners for the year 2002.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

Commissioner Mosby: | have a motion and a second, any other nominations?
Seeing none. Allin favor say aye. Aye.

Commissioner Mourdock: Aye.
President Fanello: We need a nomination for Vice President.
Commissioner Mourdock: I'll nominate Dave Mosby.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.
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President Fanello: So ordered.

Commissioner Mosby: Am | supposed to second there?
President Fanello: | guess so.

Commissioner Mosby: That was really kind of dumb. No.

President Fanello: Alright. Thank you.

Permission to Advertise and Approval of Final Copy
of Resolution of Board of Commissioner Meeting Dates for 2002

President Fanello: Next item is Auditor, permission to advertise—
Commissioner Mosby: Thank you.
President Fanello: —the Resolution for Board of Commissioner meeting dates.

Suzanne Crouch: We just need you all to clarify whether you want Rezoning at 6:30
or 7:00, and we can go with the appropriate advertising.

Commissioner Mourdock: To offer the historical context, even when we were
meeting at 5:30 previously, we did do Rezonings at 7:00. There were occasions
when we did finish our Commission meeting early, and we twiddled our thumbs until
7:00, but there were also a few times when we had to delay. So, | don’t know that
it matters much.

Commissioner Mosby: I'll go with 7:00. That’s okay with me.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay. If that was a motion, I'll second.

Commissioner Mosby: I'll make a motion, yes. Regular meetings at5:30, Rezonings
at 7:00.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.
President Fanello: So ordered.
Madelyn Grayson: We’ll need permission to advertise that.

Commissioner Mosby: Yes, and | make a motion to give the Auditor permission to
advertise.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Board Appointments

President Fanello: Board appointments.
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Commissioner Mosby: Yes, I"'ve got several board appointments that | would like to
make for next year. Alcoholic Beverage Commission, | would like to reappoint Rick
Riney. Burdette Park Advisory Board, | would like to reappoint Charlie Guetling and
Rob Kerney. Commissioner, was you gonna?

Commissioner Mourdock: Yes, | know, Catherine, | got your e-mail today. Jerry
Schmits has asked notto be reappointed. However, | do have someone in mind, but
| tried to call her today, and was not able to do that, so | will delay the Republican
appointment for the board for Burdette.

President Fanello: Central Dispatch Board has to be a Commissioner, so.
Commissioner Mosby: I'll stay on it.

President Fanello: Okay.

Commissioner Mosby: Unless somebody else wants it. Convention and Visitors
Bureau, | would like to reappoint John, or Joe Vezzoso and Sandie Aaron. Data
Processing, reappoint Larry Chapman. EARC Board?

President Fanello: That has to be a Commissioner appointment. You have to have
a Commissioner appointment on Data Processing also. | would like to take the Data
Processing.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay.

President Fanello: | served on the EARC Board last year, if you would like to serve
on it—

Commissioner Mosby: Do you want to continue?
President Fanello: —or Richard?
Commissioner Mourdock: When do they meet, Catherine?

President Fanello: They meet on Wednesdays, is it the third Wednesday, Tammy?
At noon. They usually serve lunch also, well, they always serve lunch also.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll go ahead and do that one. [I'll try that one.

President Fanello: Okay.

Commissioner Mosby: | will appoint Commissioner Mourdock to EARC. Electrical
Board, | would like to reappoint Bill Ball, Gary Stute and Tom Guth. EMA Advisory,
| would like to reappoint John Buckman, David Alexander and Sheriff Ellsworth. Are
you staying on EUTS?

President Fanello: | would like to.

Commissioner Mosby: Reappoint Catherine Fanello to EUTS. Home Inspectors
Licensing Board, Ron Dauby and Rob Cahill, | would like to reappointthem. License

and Disciplinary Board, does this have to be a Commissioner?

President Fanello: Uh-huh. You were on it last year.
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Commissioner Mosby: I'll stay on.

President Fanello: Okay.

Commissioner Mosby: Also appointed John Peninger, Brent St. Clair and George
Hoffman are reappointed, and appoint John to the License Examining Board.
Redevelopment Commission, reappoint Mark Owen, Jerry Richey, Richard
Redmond, James Schenk, Jim Schenk, and Steve Folz. The Southwest Indiana
Regional Strategy Commission, | would like to appoint Jonathon Weinzapfel, as one
of our elected officials, and we will still have to come up with two others there.

President Fanello: We need a Commissioner appointment. | know you expressed
interest in serving on that.

Commissioner Mosby: Right.

Commissioner Mourdock: So did I.

Commissioner Mosby: We can go ahead and do that. I'll appoint Commissioner
Mourdock as our other, we’ll have one more coming forth. Vision 2000, I'll stay on
if there is not a problem.

President Fanello: | don’t have a problem with that.

Commissioner Mosby: And—

Commissioner Mourdock: It doesn’t matter to me on that one, but | think, you might
want to check, I think on the Vision Board that is specifically set up for the President
of this Commission. | mean, | don’t care, but I'm just...you might want to check with

them and see.

Commissioner Mosby: I'll ask them then, because they just asked me other day if |
was going to stay on it, and | said it didn’t matter to me.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.
Commissioner Mosby: So, but | will ask them.
President Fanello: Okay, we’ll check on it.

Commissioner Mosby: If that has to be stipulated. Veterans Service Officer,
reappoint Mark Acker. Southwestern Mental Health—

President Fanello: You were on that before, Richard, and | know we had discussion
about, but did we ever decide if you were gonna go back on there, or?

Commissioner Mourdock: No.

President Fanello: It came across in the minutes in September, and | don’t think we
ever followed up with—

Commissioner Mourdock: Right. We had the question because | had been on it the
previous year, and | didn’t realize | was on it last year.
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President Fanello: Uh-huh.

Commissioner Mourdock: Tell you what, | can do either that one orthe EARC Board,
but | don’t know about-

President Fanello: Probably not both.
Commissioner Mourdock: Yes.

President Fanello: Okay. So, we need a Commissioner for Southwestern Mental
Health.

Commissioner Mosby: I'll appoint Catherine Fanello.

President Fanello: And | think you have to tell them if you want one, two or three
years, so we’ll say one year and Patty has had discussion with John Browning, so
she can follow up with that.

Commissioner Mosby: And | will put all them in the form of a motion.

Commissioner Mourdock: With all of them put together, | will second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Safe House Lease

President Fanello: Sheriff, Safe House Lease. Is there any discussion?
Commissioner Mosby: | don’t have anything.

Commissioner Mourdock: | don’t have any discussion. It came back, basically, as
we requested of Marco, and | don’t know if he’s here tonight, but we had raised the
issue about rather than paying the CPI index, just considering the improvements
we’ve putin the building and holding the fee at the regular rate, or the past rate. So,
it’s fine with me. I'll go ahead and move that we approve the two year extension of
the Safe House Lease.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

First Reading and Public Hearing of Ordinance Amending
Chapter 2.40.040 of the Vanderburgh County Code of Ordinances
(Health Department Fees)

President Fanello: County Attorney, first reading and public hearing of ordinance.

Philip Hayes: This was previously discussed on our request for permission to
advertise, and it is a matter of Health Department fees which have been, in some
instances, increased also as technical change, so that the Health Department does
not have the requirement of continuing to return on individual costs of some of the
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items for which fees are charged. This is permitted by statute to be handled by this
body, and for the department to change it’s fees under Title 16, with the approval of
the county or city executive, the Board of each local Health Department may
establish and collect fees for the specific services and records which are established
by local ordinance and by state law. They are not to exceed the cost of services
provided. To be accounted for, transferred to the Health Fund of the taxing
jurisdiction. That is what the proposed changes accomplish.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'llmove approval on firstreading the ordinance amending
the Vanderburgh County Code of Ordinances for the Health Department fees as
provided to us by the Health Department Board.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Maria Del Rio: Health Department Board

President Fanello: Dr. Del Rio.

Maria Del Rio: Thank you for allowing me to be here today. | would like to introduce
some board members that have not been here before. Dr. Bill Johnson, Dr. John
Pulcini is here, Dr. Ray Nicholson and Mr. Bob Stayman are all members of the
Vanderburgh County Board of Health, and they are all present today. As you know,
on your October 15" meeting, Commissioner Mourdock made a motion that you
would, you wanted until the first meeting of the new year to give us a summary or an
evaluation of a ten year plan for space allocation for the county departments. That
motion was passed and approved by all the Commissioners. Atthe December 13"
Board of Health meeting, the board requested a step further that we write a letter,
which was sent to Commissioner Mosby and copied to the other Commissioners,
that we requested and wrote a resolution that reads as follows;

Be it resolved that the Vanderburgh County Board of Health requests
the Vanderburgh County Commissioners, in the interest of the citizens
of Vanderburgh County, to provide a definitive response to the Board
of Health by January 7, 2002, regarding the Board’s proposal for
relocation of the Health Department.

This I'm reporting at the direction of the Board. So, I'm here to hopefully get an
answer from you as to where we are going to go.

President Fanello: And | know Commissioner Mourdock and | talked about a ten
year plan, and | know | haven’t come any further on it because of the jail issue, and
also not having a response from the Council, which we had just sent them a letter
a couple of weeks ago about funding for the Old Courthouse. | don’t know if you
would like to add anything to that, Commissioner.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, I'll add a couple of things. | have met a number of
times, as, and this is for your benefit, the other Commissioners are aware of this,
met with Steve Utley a number of times, and we’ve put together a bit of a survey to
try to find out throughout this entire building, city and county, who needs additional
space and what they need. | do believe though that given, as you just said,
Catherine, you know, yes, we are focused on the jail, but | think we need to focus on



Vanderburgh County Page 7 of 42
Board of Commissioners
January 7, 2002

the whole jail process as well. People in the courts are very much in need of space.
Eric informed me a few moments ago, you know, that we had 352 in jail this morning,
and it cries out for courtroom space. | think the Health Department moved forward
initially and subsequently, in good faith, trying to find space for themselves. | think
they’ve done that. To be honest with you, the site they picked wasn’t necessarily my
first choice, but as time goes by and | see the numbers that the jail consistently
climbing, it just emphasizes to me that | think we need to do something. | think
having the Health Department relocate as they requested and negotiated is the
worthwhile thing to do.

Unidentified: We're having a little trouble hearing back here.
Commissioner Mourdock: I’'m sorry. | hope you don’t want me to repeat all that.
Maria Del Rio: The last two sentences would be just fine.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, well, let me go to the last three. My first choice for
a new site for the Health Department would not have been the building that you all
selected, but | know you moved forward in good faith to do that, and | think it is a
reasonable site. The overcrowding in the jail is getting worse and worse. As of this
morning we had 352 people there. I’'m convinced additional courtroom space would
help to alleviate that, and | think moving the Health Department as one entity to
some other space could help solve our jail space. You’re right, Catherine, | agree
they are not separate issues. One does, or one clearly impacts the other. So, I think
at this time its, again, worth considering what the Health Department has brought
before us.

Commissioner Mosby: I'll repeat, basically, what I've said at the last meeting, and
probably my comments were in the newspaper. Until | look at all 12 pieces of the
puzzle, I’'m not willing to just take one piece and move it out and then come back and
try to haphazardly put together a plan that | think would serve this whole county. |
want to look at what the County Council sends us back on the Old Courthouse and
where they intend to go, and what their intentions are. | want to see what they send
us at the end of the month on the jail, on what type of project and who’s going to
move. Whether it's going to be just the jail, or it's going to be the administration.
Then | want to look at all pieces put together. | understand, you know, that you
people have been waiting for a year or two, but | also understand the courts have
been waiting six or seven years. So, I’'m not going to just haphazardly jump out here
and make a move today when | know three or four months from now | can make an
intelligent decision. That is what | intend to do.

President Fanello: And, | think, as you know, Dr. Del Rio, you assisted me with a tour
in the Health Department. There is no question that...you will all have to excuse me,
| can’t talk very well tonight. No question that you need space. That is not the
question at all, but as we all sit here, a lot of people in the building need to be
relocated, or reallocated space within the building. I'm still not comfortable with the
economics of the proposals. | went through every bit of information that you gave
me, and went through and made some notes myself, and I'm still not comfortable
that | could make an intelligent decision. | didn’t get a clear, clear picture from the
proposals that | have. | wasn’t comparing apples to apples. And am still not
comfortable that | would be satisfied with my decision. So, I'm just going to have to
say that | agree with Commissioner Mosby at this time, that we need to look at the
big picture of where we are.
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Maria Del Rio: | would like to clarify a few points and, perhaps, let some of the other
Board members speak. Number one, we’ve been doing this for nine years now. It’s
not been two years. This whole process started about nine years ago with the first
initial study. It’s getting worse. Our space attrition is getting worse. We have done
some fix up jobs in some of the areas of the Health Department that are going to
entail hundreds of thousands of dollars to correct, because building a new jail,
refurbishing this building to allow us to have more space is going to take a lot of
time, and | foresee that it is going to be years and years. Meanwhile, where do we
go and what do we do, and how do we fix our current situation is something that |
would like you all to take into consideration. Number three, we didn’t come to ask
you to find us a space. By Indiana Code, the Board of Health is supposed to find the
facility for the Health Department. We are doing it under the guidance of the Code
of Law of the State of Indiana. We came here with the proposal for relocation, after
the Board, after nine years, did extensive surveys and extensive evaluations,
including the help of the attorney on our Board, who is present here, could answer
any questions that you have, and has had a great deal of experience in looking at
some of this. He was a member of our committee, of our search committee. My
question is, you asked us for three months, we’re here, and now you want three
more months. Even if you do decide to move the jail, and you recommend that we
stay, that may not be the will of the Board. The Board may not recommend that.
The other question is, even if we say, fine, let’s stay, we still have a parking problem
and we still have a problem that is going to take years before we can expand, if we
were to stay in this building. What’s going to happen to our clients? What’s going
to happen to the people we serve? How much money are we going to waste, when
we have a building? Compared to the other numbers that you are looking, our
numbers are peanuts. We have a place, we’ll move out, and we’ll at least fix one
small area. I'm not saying that | want to be fixed and leave everybody stranded, |
understand you’re commitment, but you have to understand that if you are being
fiscally responsible, then you have to be responsible for the incredible amount of
burden and cost, financially as well as to the people that we serve right now.

President Fanello: | agree with what you say. I really feel your pain at this point. I've
been down there to see what conditions you are working with, but, you know, if you
are talking about being fiscally responsible, like | said, | went back over the
proposals, and this is just me personally, | don’t know what the other two feel about
the proposals, but, and | looked through what Ed Hafer had done as far as your
recommendations, and when you gave me the three proposals that you, | guess,
they were your final three—

Maria Del Rio: The final three.

President Fanello: —proposals. We weren’t comparing apples to apples there. It
was three different proposals, all over the board. | guess, my concern, if Ed Hafer
had told you how much square footage you need, needed, why wouldn’t a proposal
have been sent out that says we need this much square feet, we need these types
of things, please respond in this type of manner? So that they would kind of been
uniform proposals.

Maria Del Rio: We did that but ,unfortunately, existing buildings aren’t all exactly the
same. So what we were offered, and what our final proposals were was what we
had to work with. Not all buildings are, not all are going to be exactly 22,522 square
feet.

President Fanello: | understand. | understand that.
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Maria Del Rio: So, we’re going to have to compare. Each person that presents a
proposal to us is going to present a different cost and a different involvement, as far
as how much they are willing to pay for renovations etcetera. | have no control over
the people that have presented the proposals. Perhaps | can let Dr. Pulcini, or even
Mr. Stayman, who has more experience in this than me, let you—

President Fanello: That’s just, that’s just my thought. | had a hard time comparing
a 38,000 square foot space to an approximately, two proposals which had 23,000.
One of them wasn’t even a finished building. So, I, it was kind of hard to compare
them.

Maria Del Rio: But that’s all we’re ever going to have to work with.

President Fanello: Uh-huh.

Maria Del Rio: You are never going to get three exact buildings that are going to be
exactly the same, unless somebody builds you a building. Even if we were to
compare the Civic Center right now, that would be a completely different proposal,
with a completely different price range, because those buildings are all completely

different.

President Fanello: | mean, | wrote down 11 things that if | was going to send out a
proposal, these are the things that | would, | would put in the proposal.

Maria Del Rio: Well, maybe you have more experience than our committee, but I can
tell you that Indiana Code puts the responsibility on the Health Department for a
reason.

President Fanello: | understand that.

Maria Del Rio: And we have used attorneys, and we have used architects and we
have used knowledgeable people within the Health Department. We’ve been
working within the needs of the Health Department to bring this to you. It may not
be better, but | have a hard time understanding how you can come before me and
tell me that you know more about this than the people who have been working on
this for the past (Inaudible. Talking over each other.)

President Fanello: I’'m not saying that | know more than you at all.

Maria Del Rio: Or less.

President Fanello: | was just saying as |, as | went through and reviewed them and
reviewed what Ed Hafer, it was hard for me to compare the proposals, apples to
apples to make a fiscally responsible decision.

Maria Del Rio: Well, we would have been happy to meet with you—

President Fanello: That’s all I'm saying.

Maria Del Rio: —and explain it. In fact, Dr. Pulcini and | met with you—

President Fanello: You did.

Maria Del Rio: —and tried to answer all your questions.
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President Fanello: You did. You did.

Maria Del Rio: So, if there had been anymore, we would have been more than happy
to answer them.

President Fanello: | don’tthink you can, because | don’t think they can be answered.
We are to the point where, to me—

Maria Del Rio: | don’t think you are ever going to get anything better than that, even
in the future.

President Fanello: —those three proposals.

Maria Del Rio: That’s all 'm saying. We’ve been doing this for nine years. | can tell
you that | don’t think you are going to get a much different comparison unless you
build a building just to specify the needs. In Indianapolis, the Board of Health is not
in the Civic Center, itis downtown. It serves the people of Indianapolis in a separate
way. In another county, we've looked at this, they’ve built a whole new building to
meet the needs of the Civic Center and the other agencies and the Health
Department, but it was specified, it was remodeled, and relocated to meet the needs
of everybody. There is several issues here, it's not just the proposals. How long is
it going to take? Not only for us to get an answer from you, but for us to know when
we are going to move so that we can make a fiscal decision on the changes and the
fixing that we have to do in our local Health Department to make it safe for our
clients right now. And you are the one’s that set the date, we didn’t. You are the
one’s that were up here on October 15" and said we would like to have three months
to look at this and come back with a plan. | don’t think it’s fair to blame the jail on
this whole issue, because there is other agencies and other organizations in this
building. You set the date, notus. We are here to respond to that commitment and
that request that you all made to us.

President Fanello: And | understand that, and I’'ve had discussion with Steve Utley
also, but nothing has surfaced from Commissioner Mourdock or myself or
Commissioner Mosby, who stated that night that he wasn’t comfortable with that
date.

Maria Del Rio: | have the copies of the minutes, and Commissioner Mosby said that
he didn’t have a problem with it. | can read them to you. He may notremember, but
| have a copy-

President Fanello: That's not—

Commissioner Mosby: The next day in the paper is what I’'m going off of, because
| told the reporter after that meeting, | said | agreed with it because the motion was
made and seconded, but there is no way, shape or form that | thought we would be
ready.

Maria Del Rio: | would have appreciated a comment in—

Commissioner Mosby: And it’s in the paper.

Maria Del Rio: —during the meeting, instead of in the paper after the meeting. What

| have to go by is the legal copy of the minutes, and in the copy of the minutes,
Commissioner Fanello, Commissioner Mourdock and Commissioner Mosby both
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said | don’t have a problem with that. And you all agreed on the date and the
commitment.

President Fanello: That would have been our goal, but that goal did not surface.
Like | said, | haven’t seen anything from either one of us that could be put together
for a ten year plan.

Maria Del Rio: You're the one’s that set that date.

Commissioner Mourdock: Let me try to bring this back to focus for a minute,
because a ten year plan is something we still need to do.

President Fanello: Uh-huh.

Commissioner Mourdock: | don’t vary from that one bit, but the primary discussion
on, what was it Maria, October 15"?

Maria Del Rio: October 15",

Commissioner Mourdock: Whatever the date was. The primary discussion that night
was about the Health Department. To me thatis what the primary discussion needs
to be at this time. | understand, and you know, I’'m the guy that always uses the four
letter word plan around here. | understand we need a complete and comprehensive
plan, but | also understand, and | hear Phil Hayes tell us constantly about the
growing number at the jail, and the fact that that’s getting to be a more and more
troublesome situation. As other things with the Council have developed and slowed
down the process on the jail, it seems to me, we need an alternative to help us with
that problem, and we need one as quickly as we can. | think what the Health
Department’s brought forward, is a very solid alternative. | think in some way we are
going to end up moving the Health Department anyway, and if their move, which on
a dollar for dollar basis is cheaper space, that space would be cheaper than what
they have here in the building, then why would we not consider doing that? Because
it is going to help get us some courtroom space, and to increase that process of
moving people through the jail, which is otherwise going to buy us time with the
whole jail process.

Commissioner Mosby: I'll go back to my original comment. As soon as | see
something from the Council on where they intend to head with the Courthouse and
the jail, and | know how much space is going to be available, and if we are going to
move any county offices, or whatever, to the Courthouse, then I'll make a decision.
But I’'m not going to just jump out and make a decision. | would have loved to had
a decision by January, | would have loved to had a decision on the jail back in June
or July of last year, but I've not gotten anything from the County Council. You know,
it's not just one person can make all these decisions. So, the quicker | get the
Council to move to tell me where we’re going , and they are saying by January 30"
they are going to make a decision. You know, they need to send us something on
the Old Courthouse. I'll be glad to make a decision, but I’'m not going to jump out
and make one decision.

Maria Del Rio: | would like to remind you that the Council approved our budget. We
have money to move and money to pay the rent. So, on the one hand you have the
Council already approving where we are going and you don’t want to proceed. On
the other hand the Council doesn’t want to approve the jail and you don’t want to
proceed, and | feel like we are sort of in the middle. | think the jail is a whole
differentissue. It's not just the issue of the jail and the big picture, it’s that suppose
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you decide, yes, the jail moves, everybody is happy, and we expand here and the
Board at best that’s okay, it's okay to be here, which | doubt, because the main
reason that we wanted to move out of here is because we don’t think is the best
location. You know the parking issue we have, you allocated for our parking spaces,
we don’t have them yet. It's very cold out there when those women come in with
their babies. It is not the best location for the Health Department. At best, even if
we’re forced to stay, and I'm using the word forced, because it is not the will of the
Board to stay here, how long is it going to take us to remodel or fix it up so that it’s
even barely adequate. We are one of the largest cities in the state of Indiana, and
| think we are an embarrassment to have the Health Department under these
conditions. | understand that you’ve got your issues with the County Council, but |
don’t think we should be held accountable, or held responsible for all the other
issues. We are a very small group. We did our job long before the jail issue came,
and the jail issue will be resolved. We did our job and we are still sitting here
thinking, we’re waiting months for you to make a decision that then may take years
before a solution. From the decision to the solution and the final Health Department,
it could be years. Meanwhile, who'’s going to suffer? The people of this county. The
same people that vote for you. The same people that we take care of. You need to
remember that the only reason I'm here, is because I’'m trying to represent the
people of this county that need better and deserve better than what we are giving
them right now. |1 don’t know whether any of the other Board members would like to
say anything.

Commissioner Mourdock: On the parking issue, Maria, | spoke with the Mayor’s
office today, and they are working with Alberta Matlock to putthose spaces together.
You should have something by the end of the week.

Maria Del Rio: As soon as they are in place, we will have a little, like we talked
about, we will have a little slip to give to the people—

Commissioner Mourdock: Right.

Maria Del Rio: —so they have a receipt anyway.

Madelyn Grayson: Excuse me, may we make a tape change please?
(Tape Changed)

Dr. John Pulcini: Dr. John Pulcini, not unfamiliar to this fine commission. This is the
fifth occasion that we have been asked to be here and try to explain what we have
been appointed to do, and that is to serve the interest of the Board of Health, which
serves the interest of this county. We have, | think, presented things methodically,
fairly, several of the board members are here. Almost from the moment this started,
it seemed like we were in a, and | hate to use the word, a bit of an adversarial
situation. | want you to know that we did not come in here with that opinion, but |
am telling you that we as board members are receiving questions from the public.
Questions that | can’t answer, like what’s going? Why are you having such difficulty
communicating your needs? As far as | know, | don’t have a communication
problem, and | don’t think that the rest of you do. But, | think we need to better look
at things in the overall picture. You have a lot to deal with, we understand that. As
Dr. Del Rio has mentioned, our request is very simple. Itis a very limited, poignant,
proper request. We need to move from this facility. We need a more appropriate
facility to serve our patients and our public that we serve for other needs, non-
medical needs. We have found that site. We are a duly appointed Board, we have
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no vested interest. We found what we think is a very reasonable and fair price for
that property to rent it. We are not asking you to buy it. Itis close by, it serves the
county need, and we have been back here now for the fifth time and we still can’t
quite get the understanding. We know the public is beginning to wonder what is
going on here. | think if this is the way a democracy is supposed to work, they have
every reason to question. | think that we need to show them that we can look at
things logically and make the right decision. To hold10,000 square feet in this
building hostage to the jail is totally absurdity, and that is in essence what you are
doing. You are making our needs contingent on the jail needs, with all due respect,
the jail has, and we have community needs for the jail, but our health needs are also
very important. Even if you decide it tomorrow, to decide on building a jail, I'll bet
that it will take two years to get that thing built, minimally. If you are thinking of
consolidating and moving other people into that jail unit, you will have other lease
problems to be concerned about, Commissioners. Like that substation on North 41,
SO.

President Fanello: | am just going-

Dr. John Pulcini: So my point is, you need to give a better example of how public
servants can work with non-elected public servants and doing it for the community
interest. | think you can show that by listening to what we are trying to get across and
not confusing it with other things. That’s not fair, not fair to the community, not fair
to the Board.

President Fanello: You keep saying jail but remember we also are talking about the
Old Courthouse and moving government offices to the Old Courthouse, so it is not
just the jail, the jail is only a portion of it.

Dr. John Pulcini: | am very, a very pro-Old Courthouse and | think it should be
preserved. Itis a beautiful, historic building. Functionally, you don’t have to be an
architect to realize that it is a sink hole as far as trying to revamp it to make it really,
you know, a fine facility. You can’t expect shifting people back and forth as you
remodel that building section by section, | mean, we are not going to be pawns in a
chess game. We can’t afford to do that. Now, certain non-critical services that don’t
involve a lot of clientele services, that might work out alright, but the County Board
of Health can’t factor in on that. It is not reasonable, there is no parking for one
thing. So, you know, | can understand that you have other issues. We are trying to
simplify.

President Fanello: Did this building, on second and main, address all your parking
issues?

Dr. John Pulcini: Quite well.

President Fanello: | was told-

Dr. John Pulcini: Even a drive up window.

President Fanello: —yesterday. One more question. Did you have these proposals
back when you went to the Council for funding or the Council? | know there was

some.

Dr. John Pulcini: We had the proposals, we had one of our members of the search
committee, he is a County Councilman.
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President Fanello: Okay, | will go back to that, at that point in time the
Councilmembers should have communicated with whoever was on the Commission
at that time.

Dr. John Pulcini: Yes, are you saying that we missed some magical window of time?

President Fanello: | am not saying you missed, | am saying that it should have been
the responsibility of Councilman Hoy to get with the Commission.

Dr. John Pulcini: Okay, well, here is another thing that is puzzling to me, and | am
just a simple John Q. Public. The funds that fund the Board of Health are by tax
levy. We are not even spending money out of the General Fund, and yet you are
holding those funds hostage again to other issues. We are trying to communicate
to the Commissioners. We already have the approval of the Council, and because
you have the authority to sign or not sign the lease, where do you think the
obstruction might be, ifitis not signed? Itis not with the Council. | think that | speak
sort of plainly. | am a simple man, and | think it is time that we show a good example
for the community.

Commissioner Mosby: | would be curious to know if the Council has set funding in
place for that space down there if you do move? And that is a question that | have
not had answered.

Dr. Maria Del Rio: It is in the budget, and | will speak to that because | was
Chairman of the Board. It was my understanding that when we started this process
that we were to search and come up with a facility. We presented the exact same
thing. We have done nothing beyond what you have to the County Council. We
answered all of their questions about space allocation, parking, everything to them.
Our budgetin July or August was approved including the rent that we needed to pay
the rent for the new building, and we have the money that would cost us to move and
renovate. If you were to sign this contract today we could get started renovating
tomorrow.

Commissioner Mosby: You missed my point, you missed my point. If you move out,
the Commissioners are still responsible for that 10,000 somewhat plus square feet
that you are leasing down there. So, somebody has got to pay that lease.

Dr. Maria Del Rio: That’s right. Mr. Stayman can address that.

Mr. Stayman: | can respond to that, Councilman Mosby. | am the attorney member.
My name is Bob Stayman, | am the attorney member on this Board of Health. | was
also selected for this three man search committee because of what | think Maria
thought was my expertise in these areas. | am a lawyer. | have practiced for 28
years. | have handled real estate acquisitions that are ten times bigger than this, ten
times more complicated. So, my first requestis, in fact, and | read in the paper then
that my decision was made without the proper information and that we might be
getting the county a bad deal. | am mildly insulted by that, but | would like to ask
Madam Chairman that if you do have problems, would you communicate them with
me directly? | mean, you and | apparently can talk about financial issues, and |
would like to do that. The second thing is that | want to put my other hat on and tell
you that | served on a committee with Stan Levco to look into more space for the
court and the court system. | am here to tell you from personal experience it is not
just bad, it is intolerable. It is intolerable for a lawyer, and it’s intolerable for the
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clients that go over there. We have hearings in hallways. We have client interviews
in hallways. There is no dignity anymore. There is no privacy. It is terrible and
something has to be done. We are the only, if | understand things correctly, the only
city or county agency who is willing to leave this campus. We have no reason to be
here. On the other hand, the court system has a, believe me, a desperate,
desperate need for our 10,000 square feet. | hope that responds to your question,
and | hope itis the court system that ends up immediately using that space, if we are
allowed to vacate. Thank you.

Commissioner Mosby: And | understand what you are saying by the court system
comingin there, but my question was, has the County Council budgeted the money?
| mean, they are going to have to budget the money to pay for—

Bob Stayman: | don’t know.
Commissioner Mosby: —to pay for the space.
Bob Stayman: Councilman, | don’t know.

Commissioner Mosby: That is my contention in this whole thing. If the Health
Department moves out and there is 10,000 square feet, and we build another jail,
and we move the jail and the Sheriff’'s administration, there is 30 or 40,000 square
feet. As Dr. Pulcini would say, we have an obligation to the Community, and | really
do. | have an obligation, somebody has to pay for that. | mean, even though we
build a new jail and we buy you a new building, we still pay for all of this space
regardless if anybody sits in it. So, when | say, that | need to look at who goes
where, it's so that | can adequately use the space that | have here plus know that the
deal | went on the outside and got us was a good deal. So, it is not as easy as
pulling one piece of the puzzle and saying we will get out because we volunteer to
get out. You know, what if | have this whole jail complex over here, and | want to
move you into that 30,000 square feet, and | am going to let you park over there
where the Sheriff and his Chief Deputy and all the cars park so that you have
parking. It could be a reasonable answer at some point in time. How long thatll
take? | would have loved for the County Council to give me an answer last June on
where we are going, but they want to drag it and drag it and drag it. | have asked
for an answer by January 30", so that | can give you an answer. You know, it is not
my intent to keep you here forever or run around the block, and | know that you need
space. | mean, | can see that. | just have to make a decision that | think is in the
best interest of this Commission and every tax payer out there.

Commissioner Mourdock: At what time after January 30™, David, do you think we will
be able to give these folks an answer?

Commissioner Mosby: | am not hanging my hat on January 30" after what | saw last
year.

Commissioner Mourdock: Do you wish to establish some sort of target date that we
can give these folks an answer?

Commissioner Mosby: | will say as soon as, | guess to, bypass what we went
through in October, | would say as soon as we get some type of an answer from the
Council on what they want to do with the Courthouse, which we have sent them that
letter, and we get some kind of scope on where we are going with the jail and
whetherthe Sheriff's Departmentis included, the administration, the Command Post,
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whatever. You know, as soon as we get some of these answers, | would be glad to
come back in 60 to 90 days.

Commissioner Mourdock: Let me play what if for a minute, because | am not sure
if lunderstand the Courthouse comment. If on January 31°, what if, the Council said
yeah we are looking at to revitalize the Old Courthouse and we’ll somehow find $7.5
million dollars, how does that change the situation?

Commissioner Mosby: Because then you step back and decide what offices you are
going to put over there and if you are going to move offices from here or if you are
going to create bringing other offices from off the street, leases that we presently
have in the public. There could be a variety of things. If we decide to move the
Auditor, the Treasurer and all of the Assessors over there and clear out the second
floor, there is an abundance of things that could happen. | would take the
Commissioners office over there, it wouldn’t bother me in the least bit.

Commissioner Mourdock: Sure, that wouldn’t bother me either, | am certainly not
hesitant to do that. What | see, and Dr. Pulcini mentioned it a moment ago, what |
see that is unique about this particular group that is coming before us, they have a
lot of space in this building now and they are a unique entity under themselves not
dependent upon any other group within this building, within the Civic Center, and
also as stated, they are funded through a totally separate levy, it seems to me that
gives us some reason to deal with them somewhat uniquely.

Commissioner Mosby: | mean, at one time, Marsha Abell, said the Clerks, that we
could move the Election Office and Voters Registration out. At one point, the
Surveyor told me that he really doesn’t have a problem with moving over to be with
the Engineers office at the Courthouse. | mean these are offices that could become
available. If we put together a whole plan.

Commissioner Mourdock: So, you said a moment ago, 60 to 90 days. Do you think
90 days is the right time?

Commissioner Mosby: | can’t predict the County Council. | mean, if you look at the
contract that we originally wrote for the jail, | mean, it said that we would be on a land
site date of January and we are no where close. | mean, so | really don’t know.

Dr. Maria Del Rio: | just want to go on record as saying that even if you were to
recommend that we stay here and remodel you are talking years and years. And
during that time, the court system and the people that are served by the Health
Department are going to suffer, and | want to go on record that it is not just looking
at the big plan it is looking at how we are serving the people today. Not justin the
court system are we losing their dignity but women are being interviewed in the
Health Departmentin the hallways right now, and if you are talking about remodeling
and moving the jail and giving us more room here you are talking years and years
and years when we now have the space, we have the money, and we have even got
you a tenant. We have a tenant that wants our space so that, now itis true, itis very
selfish, | don’t know about the rest of the building, but at least for our little world, we
can move out and we have people that want to move in it, and you are going to
resolve or make the situation better for some of your constituents right now. It may
not solve the big picture, but two years from now is going to be a long time, and | will
not be responsible for what may happen if you force us to wait two years to get into
adequate space for the Health Department or the court system. Even though | can’t
really speak for the, but | know the conditions are deplorable also. | think itis not fair
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to hold us hostage based on that. We have the money, it has been approved. We
have the space, we've done the research and we did our job, and even if you say the
County Council should have notified you, it was my understanding that | can’t come
to you with a potential contract until | have the money in my budget. So, | waited to
get my budget approved to present it to you. What good would it do me to bring you
a proposed budget if the County Council had denied me the money. | have no
money to move then. So, this was my understanding, if it was wrong, then it is my
fault because that is the process and procedure that we followed. We did the
survey, we did the evaluation, we chose the site, we requested the money, the
minute that our budget was approved, we asked to be put on this agenda to come
before you and notify you and start the process of the contract. We didn’t have a
contract then, but we wanted to notify you and start the process. Please let me
remind you, we are not asking here for you to find us a space, that is not your job,
that is our job. The beauty of this government is that nobody has absolute power.
| don’t have absolute power over what the Health Department does, and neither do
you, and neither does the County Council. | just ask you to please consider to work
together for the good of the community. You have the opportunity to help the people
served by the Health Department and the people that are served by the Courts.
Don’t ignore this because it is going to come back to haunt all of us in the future,
and | wanted to go on record that it wasn’t because of the Board of the Health
Department.

Dr. John Pulcini: If | may just add a comment? The, you better start thinking now
what you are going to do with the substation because you are paying for a lease
there also and that is until 2008, so you have time to figure out how you are going
to handle that problem when you build a jail, you have plenty of time.

President Fanello: | don’t think we need sarcasm in here. | want to conduct our
meetings in a professional manner this year. They weren’t always conducted in a
professional manner last year, but we are going to do things differently so let’s keep
it professional.

Dr. John Pulcini: It would be nice if we could conduct some business as well. The
point is, no decision is a decision. It is a decision to stall, and that is a very
indefensible position at this time, folks. | strongly recommend that you pay attention
to the non-political recommendations of our Board. They do represent the needs of
the community and they elected you to make proper decisions.

President Fanello: | understand that and | just want to clarify what | said. | said
conducted in a professional manner, that was not directed at Commissioner Mosby,
that was justin general some of our meetings didn’t always go very well. | have one
more question about the parking because | know that you said this proposal
addressed the parking issue. Ed Hafer had said that this space that you are looking
at would provide 61 parking spaces.

Dr. Maria Del Rio: Correct.
President Fanello: Now, how many employees do you have?

Dr. Maria Del Rio: We have close to 70, Sam? 64, but not all of them work within the
confines of this building. Some of them are working in outlying areas.

President Fanello: So, how does that have, how does that address your parking
space with people that would be coming to the Health Department?
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Dr. Maria Del Rio: If you look at the proposal, we plan to rent 25 extra spaces from
the city, which would make it a total of a little over 80, which would meet all of our
parking needs, and thatis in the budget, and that was added to our total budget. We
felt that even though they only had 60 some odd parking spaces, the low rental of
the extra spaces foremployees allowing then our customers to have a parking space
nearby where they could come and use our services in a quick and efficient manner
was well worth the lease, and we presented that. That was a big issue with the
County Council. They wondered and asked about the issue of the parking, and we
explained it at length and felt that given all of the other possibilities that was still the
best way to go. We now have none because we don’t even have your five. So right
now and, again, | hate to say it, but it's virus season and | have to say it, we have a
baby that came to the emergency room not breathing and put on a breathing
machine because she has RSV. ltis the virus season right now, and these women
are having to park three, four blocks away to carry their babies in to get their
vouchers and to get checked for WIC. This is what is going on right now.

Commissioner Mourdock: | will go on record just to try to move the jail process
forward and move the court space forward. So, | will move that we direct our County
Attorney to review the lease for the proposed space with the Health Department
attorney with the purpose of negotiating a lease.

President Fanello: Can you repeat that?

Commissioner Mourdock: My motion is that we direct our County Attorney to meet
with the attorney for the County Health Department for the purpose of negotiating a
final lease for the property down at Second. Is that right, Second? Second and
Main?

President Fanello: Motion dies. | believe that we will come back after January 30
and see what the Council has to tell us.

Unidentified: We can’t hear you back here.

President Fanello: | just said come back after January 30™. Until | see what happens
this month on a lot of issues, I'll make an intelligent decision, | am going to make a
big picture decision, like even you have said Commissioner Mourdock before, once
one thing changes, it is a domino effect.

Commissioner Mourdock: Absolutely, and | still say that. | just see with the numbers
growing in the jail with the long term problem that we have there, that this is an easy
way for us to increase some court space. Several times the phrase was used that
the Health Department situation is being leveraged against the jail and | would
respectfully disagree with that term. | see it more like, | don’t know what you call it,
that little physics experiment where there are about eight steel balls hanging on a
string and you let one come out and it knocks out one and you pick two and it knocks
out two, thatis what we have here. We have about three that are swinging to get us
court room space, we could knock out three at the other end and | think that it would
be a very wise use of that space and we could do it very expeditiously, which | think
the ICLU would give us points for as far as trying to solve our other big problem.

Commissioner Mosby: | won’t give a date at this time, but | will just say in the area
of 90 days after we have decisions on the Courthouse and the Jail that | would be
glad to come back here and make a decision, but | am not going to put a date on it.
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Dr. Maria Del Rio: We can’t hear back here.

Commissioner Mosby: I'm sorry, | just said that | would be glad to, | don’t know if |
want to putitinto the form of a motion, but 90 days after we have a decision from the
Council, I would be willing to come back in here and make a determination.

Commissioner Mourdock: By definition, are we calling and maybe this is what we
need to request of the Council we will consider their action a decision if they send
us a letter saying this is how many dollars we foresee you having to spend for
various projects. Is that what you are looking for?

Commissioner Mosby: That is exactly what | am looking for. When they give us a
scope and a size on the jail, on what they want to do with the Courthouse and we
know where we are going with both, | would be glad to come in here and make a
decision.

Commissioner Mourdock: 90 after we would receive such a letter from the Council
you think would be appropriate to revisit this issue?

Commissioner Mosby: 907 Yeah after their answer. That would give us time to go
over all of the space allocation that we have been talking about. | would rather refer
to this as space allocation rather than Jail, Courthouse and Health Department.

President Fanello: Would it be appropriate to send a letter kind of summing up
tonight’s discussion to the Council? Would you be in favor of that?

Commissioner Mourdock: If that letter simply says for the various issues for space
and if you want to use that term, for space allocation, we desire to act within 90 days
of receipt of a letter from the Council stating their funding levels perceived for the Old
Courthouse. Ifthatis what you are saying by letter, Catherine, yeah | would support
that.

President Fanello: Would that be something?

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, | would be glad to send it out?

President Fanello: Should we take that in the form of a motion?

Commissioner Mourdock: | move that we send such a letter to the President of the
Council.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.
President Fanello: So ordered. | will have, if Patty could help us with that tomorrow?

Is there any discussion? Yes, she is in the back room. Thank you Board members.
Department Head reports

Any Group or Individual Wishing to Address the Board

President Fanello: Is there any other group or individual wishing to address the
Board?
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John Stoll: County Engineer

President Fanello: Department Head Reports.

John Stoll: First, | have a letter that was prepared by Bernardin, Lochmueller and
Associates in regards to Phase Ill of Lynch Road. This is the portion between the
Interchange at1-164 and the county line. They are in the process of redesigning that
portion of that road to go around the paving plan in Warrick County, and in doing so
they had to do an investigation to find out whether or not there were any historic
buildings located within the vicinity of the new project. There are none, and they just
need to have the Commissioners signature on this letter so that it can be submitted
to the Federal Highway.

Commissioner Mourdock: So moved.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: Second, | have a change order on the Burkhardt Road, Morgan Avenue
intersection project. This is for a netincrease of $3,342.74. This covers numerous
under runs and over runs of all of the items through out the entire project and we will
be responsible for 20% of the cost of this change order.

Commissioner Mosby: Motion to accept.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: Next, | have two counter offers that Bernardin Lochmueller forwarded me
on the University Parkway project. One is on the Al-Kamhawi parcel. This is parcel
number ten. Mr. Al-Kamhawi was offered $146,900, and counter offered with
$502,728. He provided no appraisal to justify the increase therefore, we are
requesting that the Commissioners vote to reject that counter offer.
Commissioner Mosby: Motion to reject.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: That’s the letter he sent. The second parcel was just a verbal counter
offer, this was on parcel number 31 and the property owners name is Ungetheim.
He was offered $14,100, and he provided a verbal counter offer of $25,000. Here
again, there was no documentation to justify his request, so we are asking that the
Commissioners reject that counter offer as well.

Commissioner Mourdock: Verbal counter offer?

Commissioner Mosby: Motion to-
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Commissioner Mourdock: If it's not in writing, | don’t know that it is a counter offer
but | will move that we reject.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.
President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: Okay, | will let Bernardin Lochmueller know and they will proceed to send
the property owners notification that these offers were rejected. | would guess that
both of them will end up in condemnation and just for your information, in my
discussion with Bernardin Lochmueller and e-mails back and forth with Phil,
Bernardin Lochmueller was estimating that we would probably need to get most of
our condemnations filed by the end of March in order to have the right-of-way
cleared by June, which would in turn allow us a fall letting. So those are some rough
target dates that we need to hit. That lastitem that | have is also on the University
Parkway project. This is a supplemental agreement for $28,500 for the design of a
sanitary sewer out there on that project. The need from this comes from the four
parcels where we would take the septic fields for the properties. In doing so, the
parcels are small enough that the septic tanks can not be relocated anywhere else
on the property, and that in turn would cause us to take the entire parcel. It is
cheaper to construct a sanitary sewer than it is to take the entire parcel. So, with
that, Bernardin Lochmueller prepared this supplemental for that design.

Commissioner Mourdock: So, we need to move approval of the supplemental
design?

John Stoll: Right. Accepting approval of the supplemental agreement so that they
can proceed with the design and then once that design is completed then we will
have a sanitary sewer available for those four properties to hook up to and then the
appraisals can be redone to say that the impacts are much less because we won't,
we will be taking a septic but we will provide a way for them to still get their sanitary
wastes taken care of.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, | move approval of the supplemental agreement.
Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: That is all that I've got unless you’ve got questions on anything.

Commissioner Mourdock: Stick around for one minute. | have one that you and
Ralph probably both need to.

John Stoll: | will give that to you, forwarded that one flyer to me about the IDEM
funding for the storm water and | have not gotten any specific information on that as
of yet. IDEM did recently come back as of last Wednesday with some new
regulations that are not posted on the Internet and they have a new comment period
so once | have a chance to look those over we may need to send another letter
again.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, good.
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Ralph Kissinger: County Highway

President Fanello: County Highway.

Ralph Kissinger: Ralph Kissinger, County Highway. The first thing that | would like
to do is introduce Reginald Haskins. He said that only his mother calls him
Reginald. So we call him Reggie. He is the new Assistant Superintendent at the
County Highway Department. He is here on demand tonight because | made him
come. You have my reports. | have one question about our diesel fuel contract. |
did not get copies of the contracts themselves. | just got confirmation of who the
contracts were with and what to order, and we started ordering diesel fuel last week.
We have no anti-gelling agent in the diesel fuel, and with the cold weather we are
having problems with it. When | called Gabe’s they said it was not in their contract
to winterize their fuel. So, | am trying to get some prices together to find out what
itis. When it comes in | will let you know what those prices are. | haven’t seen the
contract, so | am going to request that you give me permission to get the contracts
from Phil and see what actually is in those contracts for diesel. The Schissler Road
project, | know that it was brought up to you, you brought it up to Rick Dickinson.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, | broughtthem up to Rick. There were two of them,
there was Sensmeier Road and was it Schill-

Ralph Kissinger: Schissler, | think.
Commissioner Mourdock: Schillinger, | think?
Ralph Kissinger: Schilling, right.
Commissioner Mourdock: Schillinger.

Ralph Kissinger: Schillinger, that’s it. | went out there and talked to that farmer out
there—

Commissioner Mourdock: Kissel? Mr. Kissel?
Ralph Kissinger: Kissel, yes. | don’t know if you’ve seen the problem-
Commissioner Mourdock: | have seen both.

Ralph Kissinger: He’s got, he’s farming from ditch edge to ditch edge and the ditch
banks are really steep. We did replace a culvert there.

Commissioner Mourdock: Which one are you speaking of? The one east of 41, |
don’t recall which road is which. Is it east of St. Joe or west of St. Joe?

Ralph Kissinger: This would be east of St. Joe, right at the “s” curves there.
Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, gotcha.

Ralph Kissinger: The culvert was collapsing and had been grafted together in the
past as a makeshift repair. We wentback and put the same size culvert, actually put
it through the head wall on the other side of the road and brought itin and rip rapped
the head wall. He called me end and said that we had caused his erosion problem
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and said that we had redirected the water. The water hasn’t been redirected.

Myself, | looked at it, my assistant, John Stoll has looked at it with me. He wants us
to put rip rap on the back which is clearly 30' to 40' off of our right-of-way. John and
| agreed that if it were on the right-of-way, | would go out and do whatever | could for
him. But, | can’t go off of right-of-way without your permission. We could rip rap

that part of the bank but it is not going to solve his problem. There is no vegetation
to hold the ditch bank together, and we had some really strong rains in late
November and early December, and it caused, we think this is more the problem
than what we have done.

Commissioner Mourdock: As he made the point to me, it wasn’t a question of
redirecting the water, but basically of opening up the flow. Certainly you put the
culvert in to increase the flow. So, | am sure that you did.

Ralph Kissinger: And it was at his mother’s request that we replace the culvert.

Commissioner Mourdock: Well, that’s fair too. | know that we have had a similar
situation and | don’t know if it was this past year or the year before, where we had
done something similar and | think our recourse was that we provided some rip rap
to the landowner and let them place it and pretty well signed off on it that way. What
| was thinking with this one is, if we feel that by opening up that flow that we have in
fact impacted the grade of erosion of his property, and | suspect we have, to some
degree, that if we can get him to sign off on saying here’s five loads of rip rap, or
whatever you think is appropriate, put it at the edge of the field, he said he would
place it, and have him sign off. That frees us of any future liability. Then I think it
might be a cheap way of dealing with it.

Ralph Kissinger: If it's appropriate for me to ask you to give me permission and if
John Stoll thinks that would cure the problem , | have no problem hauling the rip rap
to them.

Commissioner Mourdock: John, do you have any comments? Are you familiar
enough with it to have a comment?

John Stoll: It may fix the one area that is eroded right now, but | agree with Ralph,
the bottom line is, he has an almost vertical ditch bank and his problem will probably
reoccur again whetherit’s anything to do with the county’s culvert or not. That would
put a band aid on the one area.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, but would you agree that by increasing the flow we
probably did cause that to get into his field a little bit more than what it was?

John Stoll: It is possible.
Commissioner Mourdock: That is the way that | look at it.

John Stoll: | don’t know that, | didn’t see the pipe before it was replaced, but from
what Mark was telling me, I'd say that it could have happened.

Commissioner Mourdock: Well, the two of you, would the two of you take a look at
it and get an estimate as to how many trucks, how many loads of rip rap it would take
and then-
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Ralph Kissinger: | would say that it is probably going to take maybe two trucks.
Maybe 40 tons-

Commissioner Mourdock: That’s what my guess would be, which would be a pretty
cheap fix. If, he will sign off and release us from anything further, and that is the key
thing. Okay, go onto the second one then with Schillinger Road. Are you familiar
with that one at all? Where the repair was made?

Ralph Kissinger: Which part of Schillinger Road are we talking about?

Commissioner Mourdock: Let me show you on the map. There is quite a steep slope
right along our road and it looks to me that it started to, the slope, started to fail a bit.
We went in and tried to do some things to stabilize that slope, which was certainly
well intentioned, but it looks like to me, and | don’t know where the right-of-way-lines
are, it looks to me like the way we fixed the slope was that we crossed over our right-
of-way into his field, into his property, and in so doing caused the ditch along the
right-of-way to be moved more out into his property. So, would you take a look at
that?

Ralph Kissinger: | certainly will.

Commissioner Mourdock: The (Inaudible) was sloped out and it does not look good.
It is not a good looking job.

Ralph Kissinger: | will do that tomorrow. | will get some pictures and present them
to you.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, the big question there is, where is the right-of-way
and what else can we do?

Ralph Kissinger: Some of those right-of-ways are questionable. We’ve got books
and-

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, | understand.

Ralph Kissinger: He had Tom go back through the records and a lot of times we will
either have more or less or a question mark.

John Stoll: It seems more often that not, it seems like these days on roads like that
we find zero documented right-of-way.

Commissioner Mourdock: Well, if that is the case there, come back and tell me what
we do, because clearly there has been a slope failure. | am not sure that what we did
as a repair is going to help prevent more slope failure. We need to find some better
solution on that one.

Ralph Kissinger: Certainly, we will take care of those tomorrow.

Commissioner Mourdock: Those are the only two that | had.

Ralph Kissinger: Okay, any other questions? Thank you.

Madelyn Grayson: May we make a tape change?
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(Tape Change)

Madelyn Grayson: Thank you.

County Attorney

President Fanello: County Attorney.

Commissioner Mosby: | have nothing.

President Fanello: You have nothing. Are you the County Attorney?
Commissioner Mosby: I've been over here conferring. Nothing.
President Fanello: Did you have anything, Phil?

Commissioner Mosby: Did you here me answer for you?

President Fanello: David answered for you.

Philip Hayes: | have a couple of matters that | wanted to report. One is that the
articles of amendment to, articles of incorporation that have been filed with the
Secretary of State, and new by-laws were approved by the OIld Courthouse
Foundation, Incorporated. The current president, Robert Woosley, has agreed to
remaininvolved and act as president of the foundation until appropriate organizations
or entities have made their appointments to the Board of Directors. Itis necessary
and imperative that the County Commissioners’ other organizations, along with the
Commissioners, make appointments to the Board of Directors, so the foundation can
begin the transition. The issues that the new board will need to address is; filing of
annual report, tax return for the tax year 2001, bank account signatories. The
foundations current lease with Mr. Anderson, of the old jail, that lease is about six
months in arrears, and it will be necessary, of course, to address that issue. | will
entertain any questions on it, as far as | can answer, but | have also documents of the
articles, that is to say copies of those documents, and certain resolutions that are in
my office, and | will provide those copies to Tammy tomorrow. At that point, | think,
you can go ahead and consider what appointments you wish to make, and when you
wish to make those.

President Fanello: | was going to say, | just got a copy this afternoon, and | think
Patty made a copy for David and Richard.

Philip Hayes: Good.

President Fanello: Of the information, so.

Philip Hayes: Okay, good. Well, then that’'s—

President Fanello: It probably might be in your box.

Philip Hayes: —current. That memorandum was prepared to my attention by
attorney, Jonathon Weinzapfel, atthe Bowers Harrison firm, who’s been handling this

matter for us, and getting it completed. The other matter that | wanted to address is
a set of quit claim deeds that are the result of the reported surplus property sale back
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in November. So, consistent with that, those deeds have all been prepared and are
provided tonight for your signatures. There are several. That's necessary to report
on, and I'll go ahead and start those down the line if you would like, Madelyn? Then
those will require notarization, as is usual.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, I'll move we add the quit claim deeds to the Consent
File.

Philip Hayes: Yes. Thank you, that's more appropriate.

Commissioner Mosby: If | don’t second that, does that mean | don’t have to sign all
these?

Commissioner Mourdock: Wait until you vote on the Consent File.
President Fanello: So moved.
Commissioner Mosby: If we don’t add it, | don’t have to sign them.
President Fanello: Burdette—

Philip Hayes: One other broad issue, and that is, that our record was informed last
year, and | think it was done by the Bar Association President, Jill Marcrum, also
magistrate Marcrum, concerning a case called Shoals vs. Shoals. A case involving
when appointed legal counsel must be compensated. | was provided with a copy of
the Supreme Court of Indiana decision that was rendered December 21, 2001. | feel
sure it's been reported in the legal press, if not the journal press, the general journal
press, that fundamentally finds that counties are going to have to, under certain
circumstances, pay for the civil indigent legal services, and that attorneys are not
going to be beyond certain pro bono organizations that are already set up required
to do services without a fee in those circumstances. So, the Supreme Court has sent
this case of Shoals vs. Shoals back to the trial level for appropriate appointment of
counsel and compensation, if it would be necessary in that case. The reason I'm
bringing the issue to you tonight is that we will probably, if the predictions of those
who’ve looked at the decision and commented on it, see counties required to pay
additional funds over and above what they do at this point, for civil representation by
attorneys for those who are indigent and wish to have an array of civil legal matters
attended to. No one has any estimates of what that fiscal impact might be, and I'm
informed the legislature will probably review the issues that are raised by the
decision.

Commissioner Mourdock: That’s huge.

Philip Hayes: Those that would like, | will provide a copy of this, and have it for your
review.

Commissioner Mourdock: That could have huge consequences. | mean, huge costly
consequences. Doing civil suits.

Philip Hayes: Yeah. There’s been discussion, there’s discussion here, it has to do
with Indiana Code, Title 34-10-1-2 for your reference, but, again, | don’t know what
the big impact could be. That’s all the matters, | believe, that | have tonight for your
report.
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President Fanello: Thank you, Phil.

Steve Craig: Burdette Park

President Fanello: Burdette Park.

Steve Craig: Steve Craig, Manager of Burdette. First thing, | guess, | have was the,
| had gave Tammy to give to you guys a Burdette Park concessions income expense.
This is a reflection over the last five years, which would be included in the RFP that
we are working on. It was just something for you guys to take a look at. To me, it's
a direct reflection of the weather, you know, if it's hot and sunny, we’re busy. Ifit’s
been cold and wet, like the last two winters, you can see a decline in the profits. That
would be included in the RFP for that. Then | was wanting to request from the
Commissioners to go before the Council and ask for the money to go ahead and get
the O’'Day Discovery Lodge started.

Commissioner Mosby: I'll make a motion that we go to the Council and ask for
whatever the amount is.

Steve Craig: When | got with Jim Morley last week, and he’s supposed to give me a
number, if it's anywhere near the same as what it was before they were making the
last revisions. We’ll add a contingency fee to it, and I'll report to you next week
before | go to Council, because they have to be there by the 15", which I think the
meeting next week is on the 14™.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll second the motion.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Steve Craig: The only other thing that, | guess, | have was my work reports.

SWCD & Ozone Officer Reports

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll move that we include the Soil and Water Conservation
District Reports and the Ozone Officer Reports to the file.

Commissioner Mosby: We skipped Tammy.
Commissioner Mourdock: Oh.

President Fanello: Sorry.

Tammy McKinney: Superintendent of Buildings

President Fanello: We did skip you. Sorry, Tammy.

Tammy McKinney: | don’t have anything to report. | can tell you that | am working on
the final numbers of the revenue and expense for the Old Courthouse.

President Fanello: Thank you.

Steve Craig: Sorry, Tammy.



Page 28 of 42 Vanderburgh County
Board of Commissioners
January 7, 2002

Tammy McKinney: To make it worth your while, | had to say something.
Steve Craig: Thank you.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, and, again, I'll move we include Soil and Water
Conservation District and the Ozone Officer Reports to the file.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Consent ltems

President Fanello: Consent Items.

Commissioner Mourdock: The Auditor wishes to include one—

Commissioner Mosby: That’s right.

Commissioner Mourdock: —item to the Consent File, which is a memo from NikKki
Kincaid, the Juvenile Division Director, and it’s, basically, informing us of some
additional monies the county will be receiving. So, I'd move we’d include that into the
file.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Commissioner Mourdock: In the Consent Items, there is also one other one that |
would request that we pull out of the transfer, or out of the file for a separate vote,
and that’s the request for transfer dated December 6™.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

Commissioner Mourdock: We’'ll vote on them separately.

President Fanello: Okay. So ordered.

Commissioner Mourdock: With that one excluded, | willmove approval of the Consent
ltems.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.
President Fanello: So ordered.
Commissioner Mosby: I’'m sitting here reading something. | lost my concentration.
President Fanello: That's okay.
Commissioner Mourdock: And on that separate request, and | know this will sound
like a vote against Barbara, and it is not that, it is a vote for policy. | just have a

problem with doing this. Our policy, | think, is clearly intended, and | have to use that
word rather than clearly stated, because | think there is a little bit of ambiguity in the
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policy that needs to be cleaned up, but it is not the intent, was not the intent of the
policy to buy the vacation time back. So, that is why | had asked to have this one
pulled out. | would call for that one on a roll call vote.

President Fanello: Okay. You ready?

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah.

President Fanello: Commissioner Mourdock?

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll vote no.

President Fanello: Commissioner Mosby?

Commissioner Mosby: Aye. I’'m voting yes. | didn’t want to get confused here.
President Fanello: Uh-huh, and I'll vote yes. So ordered.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay. Just one other comment about that, Barbara, you
heard me used the word consistent a whole lot over the last few years, and | do try
to be consistent with the policy. To me, this isn’t consistent. So, please, don’t take

it personally. It's not a vote against you individually.

President Fanello: Okay.’

Scheduled Meetings

President Fanello: Scheduled meetings.

Commissioner Mosby: | don’t have any.

President Fanello: Are we in need of an Executive Session?

Philip Hayes: So requested.

President Fanello: Okay.

Philip Hayes: We would like one.

President Fanello: Next week?

Philip Hayes: | think next week would be appropriate.

Commissioner Mourdock: What time?

Philip Hayes: If | have 30 minutes, | think | can cover everything. We would like to
have the Building Authority attorneys come by. | was talking to Mr. Bowers, and there
are issues with regard to outcome of an arbitration, that impact on our decision

making here. Also, | think, that there are a couple of points in terms of discussing
contract negotiations on the encroachment easement occasioned by the connection

'Consent Items listed on Page 42.
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between the Executive Inn and The Centre, that the county is more or less
coordinating. Mr. Bowers would like to, if necessary, discuss that. He is going to do
so with the City Attorneys, but he thought there might be some need to talk to us as
well.

Commissioner Mourdock: Is that an Executive Session item under the (Inaudible.
Talking over each other.)

Philip Hayes: In my opinion it is, yes. It would have to do with negotiating
responsibility for certain expenditures.

Commissioner Mourdock: We do have Solid Waste next week, right?
President Fanello: Yes.

Commissioner Mourdock: Are we doing, since we are doing the meeting now at 5:30,
is Solid Waste at—

President Fanello: 4:30.

Commissioner Mourdock: —4:307

President Fanello: Isn’t that correct? 4:307
Commissioner Mourdock: Is that right, Madelyn?
Suzanne Crouch: (Inaudible. Mike not on.)

President Fanello: | haven’t either. | don’t know if they, did they understand that we
were meeting at 5:307

Tammy McKinney: | don’t know.

President Fanello: | just got the agenda, it's back on my desk, if anybody wants to go
take a look at it.

Tammy McKinney: I'll go back there.

President Fanello: It's in an envelope from Joe Ballard.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay. Justto keep us moving along, I'll move then that we
have an Executive Session one half hour before the beginning of the Solid Waste
meeting.

Philip Hayes: Very good.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Suzanne Crouch: May I, Madelyn just pointed out that we did not get approval of the

Special Meeting, the minutes of that special meeting. It wasn’t on the agenda, and
we would like to ask approval, so if we could just.
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Commissioner Mourdock: It was the 19"?

Suzanne Crouch: Yes.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll move—

Suzanne Crouch: It was the meeting of December 19",

Commissioner Mosby: I'll make a motion that we approve the minutes of the
December 19" meeting between the Council and the Commissioners.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

Suzanne Crouch: Thank you.

President Fanello: So ordered. Any other scheduled meetings?
Tammy McKinney: Solid Waste is scheduled at 4:30.

President Fanello: Okay.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, so we’ll go at 4:00.

Philip Hayes: 4:00.

President Fanello: Thank you, Tammy.

Old Business

President Fanello: Old Business.

Commissioner Mourdock: My Old Business item is simply the jail. | guess, in light of
the sticker shock that we all still are suffering from, to some extent, and the actions
of the Council, the thought is going through my mind, should we look at this thing
from some other direction? More specifically, what are we going to do with the
current jail space? Can we somehow incorporate that, or those beds with whatever
new space we would have to get the numbers of beds that we need up to what we
feel is sufficient? | guess, it's pertinent to have a discussion, brief or otherwise, on
where we go with that, because | don’t think, at this point, that we’ve had any. It's my
understanding, from DLZ/United’s point of view, they’ve not taken any look at all as
far as using that space in conjunction with new jail space. It would seem to me, and
| realize there could be some operational costs inefficiencies there, but no one has
yet put a pencil to those that I'm aware of. | would like to see us try to develop, at
least as an alternative to study, using that for our maximum security space, and using
the other beds that we need, somehow here on the Building Authority property, for
whatever the opposite of maximum security is. | don’t want to say minimum security,
but maybe that is the right word. | mean, how do we, how do we break the circle at
this point? We’re being told that we don’t have enough money to do what itis we feel
we need to do, which is come up with 600 beds or something. | guess, the second
part of that is, are we at the point where we effectively cut Community Corrections
and cut the Juvenile thing out of this current project? That’s a mouthful alright.

Commissioner Mosby: That’'s more than one question.
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Commissioner Mourdock: It sure is.

Commissioner Mosby: I'm not ready to cut Community Corrections or Juvenile out of
the whole configuration, if you want to call it that. As far as having United/DLZ take
a look at the present space in the jail and what we can do with it, | am definitely not
opposed to that. For them to come up with some type, or | guess, give us what they
consider the best use. | mean, my understanding is if we start renovating that space,
| guess, we lose a lot of space, because you are going to have to meet modern day
laws. Once you start that, | mean, | think your 260 whatever is going to go down
quite dramatically.

Commissioner Mourdock: You’re going to lose some, no question.

Commissioner Mosby: Right. I mean, | am willing to look at, maybe sit down with the
Sheriff, maybe the Chief Deputy, maybe United, let them give us what they think is
the best use, best scenario. I've heard Juvenile Detention mentioned several times
for that space over there. I've heard Community Corrections mentioned, you know,
for that space over there, but if we went in and, | guess, took a lot of the interior out
that all we needed was beds and bunks. | mean, I’'m open to—

Commissioner Mourdock: It may be that that space would have some application for
Juvenile and Community Corrections. | guess, I’'m looking at it from the point of view,
again, and, Catherine, | heard you say at one pointin the first joint meeting, that if our
option were to only build a new jail, that only included 450 beds, you weren’t in favor
of doing that, because you didn’t think that would address the immediate problem.
If we’re going to build a 450 bed jail, and otherwise close down the currentjail, so that
we truly only have 450 beds, | think, | agree with you. It seems to me, we’ve got to
find some way to deal with the number of $35 million that we are working with. For
the life of me, | don’t see that given what United has presented to us at this point, that
that’s going to, in the end, be able to include Community Corrections and Juveniles.
You know, if we can pull a rabbit out of a hat and make it be so, then that’s fine, but
| think we’re kidding ourselves. | appreciate your willingness to look at using the jail
in some way, and | don’t know how we can do that and maybe send a letter on to
them that we have them take a look at it to see if they could provide something on
that space.

President Fanello: | was going to say, | am not opposed to them doing that either, but
we’re still having a problem getting them paid for what they have done. | have a real
problem asking them to do anymore.

Commissioner Mourdock: That’s a fair point too. That’s a fair point too.
President Fanello: | mean, it'’s just not good business.

Commissioner Mourdock: That’s well said. You’re exactly right. I'll withdraw until we
get that issue resolved. I'll withdraw.

Commissioner Mosby: And |, you probably know, or | don’t know if you knew | made
that comment in the Council meeting last week. They were talking about moving
forward on the site and a few other things, and | really told them until we clear that
problem up, that | think we need to pay United, because, | mean, a lot of this United
subs out. They don’t do a lot of the site visits and | said, you know, it's money out of
their pocket that they are paying, but we’re not in turn, you know, good faith wise
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paying them. You know, | would get the impression | was getting stiffed here before
long, and probably be hesitant on what | would do, so, but ’'m—

Commissioner Mourdock: Well, we—
Commissioner Mosby: The theory | still agree with.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay. | guess, the pointis, what | hear us agreeing to is
that once the issue, however it is going to be resolved, for the claim that United
presently has, they will then be directed to try to find some way to use the current jail
space as part of this plan.

President Fanello: Do we wait until the Council’s decision on the 30" to see if there
is anything different that they are wanting to add? | mean, they may very well just
come in and say we’re sticking with the $35 million.

Commissioner Mourdock: | think that’s what they are going to do. Either way, if they
suddenly say it's $50 million, which | don’t suspect-

President Fanello: | guess, either way we have to find a use for the other jail space.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, and | think either way it's a valid question, and it’s
something we need to look at. | think | said here a couple of weeks ago, or maybe
at the joint meeting, but when | saw the numbers that came through on their
proposals, to me the location question disappeared. Because those locations, those
dollars never did include property acquisition costs.

President Fanello: No, they would just have no way, you’re right.

Commissioner Mourdock: That says to me that it's going to be on the Building
Authority property. Because it takes that much more money away if it's not here, so.

Commissioner Mosby: Truthfully, | mean, | guess, we could probably get, probably
contact United, see what the total square footage over there is.

Commissioner Mourdock: Over where?
Commissioner Mosby: At the present jail.
Commissioner Mourdock: Oh.

Commissioner Mosby: Orwe probably have them figures in this total square footage.
| would want to compare, you know, what it cost per square foot to build a new jail,
as opposed to what it would cost to try and renovate that, and maybe not use that as
a jail, one way or the other, but some other type of use. Because | think you are
going to get into some heavy dollars, if you start renovating over there.

Commissioner Mourdock: Well, there will be some dollars there without question. |
think, the bigger question is, how can we find what we’ve agreed to, which is space
for 650 beds? As | say, I'm willing to agree with Catherine’s position here, that if we
are simply going to go out and build a new building somewhere with only 450 beds,
and do away with this jail-

President Fanello: Then we don’t have enough.
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Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, then we’re wasting time, and | think we’ve done a
poor job.

Commissioner Mosby: I've said that--

Commissioner Mourdock: But if we could somehow build 400 beds, perhaps, and still
maintain something like a couple hundred there, especially if that’'s the maximum
security, you know, the maximum security space, logic tells me, has to be the most
expensive space.

Commissioner Mosby: Uh-huh.

Commissioner Mourdock: If we take that component out of this stand alone building,
then we may, in fact, go from 400 to 500 beds there. We might end up gaining from
that.

Commissioner Mosby: | think that’s where I’'m saying | would like to see the cost.

Commissioner Mourdock: | agree.

Commissioner Mosby: What it would cost to build that new back there as opposed
to renovating that.

Commissioner Mourdock: But you have to have both to compare both.
Commissioner Mosby: 200 and...uh-huh. Of course, then | know that I've heard the
Sheriff say on numerous occasions say that it's harder to secure that than it will be
the new type, so. That's—

Commissioner Mourdock: Going back to Juvenile and Community Corrections, what’s
the trip wire that we can put in front of us to say those components are either in or
out? Because, again, in my mind, seeing the numbers that we’ve been given, | think
we’ve already tripped the wire, but ,obviously, David, you have some second thought
on that. | don’t where your position is, Catherine, what your thought is.

President Fanello: Well, if we only have $35 million, that's only going to build jail
beds.

Commissioner Mourdock: That’s right.

President Fanello: So, we really are left with no other option—

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

President Fanello: —but to cut the other two.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah.

President Fanello: | mean, we just don’t have any options.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah. Which means, well, we don’t have that option. The
other option we have is to scale down Community Corrections. Maybe from the

current level to something like 125. | mean, everything that we are hearing about the
Drug Court situation, we could certainly use some of the money that is otherwise
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being used in the numbers from 125 to up to 300 in Community Corrections, perhaps
to get better use out of the Drug Court, and | haven’t spoken with them since the last
day they were here before us, but | would guess the youth, or not Youth Resources,
the Rescue Mission might still be interested in doing something, if we go on and look
at it that way. Like | say, I've not spoken with them.

Commissioner Mosby: | really am totally against scaling back on Community
Corrections.

Commissioner Mourdock: Scaling back from 3007

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah. | mean, I'm just totally against that. Two reasons; one
being that | think if we scale back on Community Corrections, we’re going to see
more people in jail, which in turn could mean less space that we could rent out to the
State and Federal government, if that happens to be our intent and we go after
money there. Second thing, | still like the fact that these people go into work release.
That they go out and work everyday and then come back in. | would hate to see
them all just start ending up in jail.

Commissioner Mourdock: Understand when | say scale back from 300 to 125, my
point is not to say that those 175 end up in jail, but that we, basically, broaden what
we are doing now with home detention and the other types of programs that are more
received and better funded around the state. It's the overnight type, what do you call
it, | can’t think of the term, but the home detention-

Commissioner Mosby: House arrest?

Commissioner Mourdock: —yeah, the home detention with the bracelets and all that,
and yet still giving them the chance, Day Reporting, is what I'm trying to think of.

Commissioner Mosby: Day Reporting.

Commissioner Mourdock: Having the Day Reporting, having those people come
through Day Reporting even while they are staying at home, | think, is a cost effective
way. | think it would keep them out of jail, keep them out of Community Corrections.
They still work under the same type of thing, if they screw up, they still go back to
DOC.

Commissioner Mosby: | think that’s fine, but | mean, | hear some of these judges say,
you know, I'm not sending them back to the atmosphere they came from. You know,
| mean, I've had judges say, you know, | took them out of the house where all the
drugs were, why am | going to send them back and have them report into me every
morning. If | take them out of the alcohol environment, you know.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, and my response to that, and this comes from other
judges, obviously, is I'm okay in doing that as long as we have daily drug testing. You
know, the daily urinalysis and those kind of things that are out there, so that we’re
doing more tests. There’s more money there, butit’s still less than if you are keeping
those people in a facility.

Commissioner Mosby: Everything’s an auction.

Commissioner Mourdock: That’s true.
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President Fanello: Okay, Old, well that was Old Business. One thing that | brought
up at the Council meeting last week before | forget was that we have a weekly
progress meeting on the jail. The Council seemed to be receptive of that, and that
is in hopes of furthering the lines of communication.
Commissioner Mourdock: When is that going to be?
President Fanello: | would like for that to start, we would have to advertise it I'm sure.
Commissioner Mourdock: So it's going to be a joint—

President Fanello: | would, | would just like it to be an open meeting—

Commissioner Mourdock: —(Inaudible. Talking over each other.) where we meet
weekly?

President Fanello: —where we meetin aroom, and it's a weekly progress report with
the Sheriff and his Chief Deputy and whoever else wants to be there, but proper
advertising so that anytime there might be more than, obviously, one Commissioner
there or a majority of Councilmembers there. | think Wednesdays 2:30. The Sheriff
and | had talked about that earlier. Wednesday at 2:30 would be an appropriate time.
So, I'm going to entertain a motion on that, if anybody would like to make a motion
to advertise.

Suzanne Crouch: Commissioner?

Commissioner Mosby: So—

Suzanne Crouch: Excuse me, Commissioner Fanello, would that be advertising, or
would that be sending a notice to the media just informing that you are going to be
meeting?

President Fanello: Well, that | don’t know.

Suzanne Crouch: | believe the Council Attorney—

President Fanello: (Inaudible. Talking over each other.) notice to the media.
Suzanne Crouch: Yeah. | guess, that's more a question for the attorney.

Philip Hayes: If it's your intent, was to send a notice that there would be such a
meeting, and | saw the memorandum of it, it had to do that there might be some
chance of there being two or more Commissioners present.

Suzanne Crouch: Council would send out a notice.

Philip Hayes: Council has already, they had a precedent of having sent such notices
before?

Suzanne Crouch: They have, for this meeting.
Philip Hayes: Is what | understand. | don’t have any authority for you to tell you that

that's an appropriate Open Door Law notice. That there might under some
circumstance, | think the law anticipates that there might be under some
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circumstances two or more persons present, and there are rules gauging that. | just
don’t know of anyway to squeeze that out for you. | think I've previously commented
that | really didn’t know what the authority was for the County Council’s remedy for
that notice.

Commissioner Mourdock: Before we do, should we get those questions answered?
Philip Hayes: | think that—
Commissioner Mourdock: You can report back to us.

Philip Hayes: Yeah, in terms of, | can give you the answer right now. The answer is
that that is not an appropriate Open Door notice. That, in fact, what you are doing is
establishing, all you're establishing is some sort of pre-cut possible explanation for
attempting to comply. | would not suggest doing it. | think that the law is pretty clear
that if you intend to set up a meeting, then you can set up a notice of meeting and,
you know, it won’t, it will turn out not to be a meeting if not enough of you get there.

President Fanello: So, are you saying we advertise then in the usual way?

Philip Hayes: It would be, no, | think that, you know, it's not a regular meeting
anymore, it would be a special meeting. If you look at the manner in which you’ve
conducted, historically, over the last year or the year 2000, 1999, | mean, my review
of it, would show that, you know, you’ve gotten together on committee meetings that
kind of thing, but you have still run the gauntlet of the Open Door Law. If there’s two
or more of you there, and you’re considering things, it becomes a meeting. Itis a
meeting ,not sanctioned, if it doesn’t have notice on it.

Commissioner Mourdock: That’s implying also, it would seem to me, that if you set
it up as a special meeting, all three of us are pretty well required to be there.

Philip Hayes: Exactly.

President Fanello: So, we can’t just have a public meeting in the public with advance
notice?

Philip Hayes: You’re going to double up, you’re going to double up—
Commissioner Mourdock: Number of meetings.

Philip Hayes: —the work. You begin to talk about a progress meeting where all of you
are there, that there’s a chance that some of you are there. The statement that there
is a chance that two or more of us might be together, in my mind, all the County
Council has done by saying there may be a majority of us who show up, all they have
done is simply notified that there may be the consequences of establishing what
some might view as a meeting.

President Fanello: Well, how—
Philip Hayes: It won’t be a chance encounter, which is the ordinary exception to the

law, chance encounters are those kinds of meetings which are like conventions.
Bottom line, uh-uh, it’s not—
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President Fanello: Okay, then how about we do it this way. The Council designates
a person to come to the meeting, and we designate a person to come to the meeting.

Philip Hayes: You could do that, yeah.

President Fanello: And that Council person will be responsible for passing along
information to the other Councilmembers.

Philip Hayes: Because that’s just one a piece.
Commissioner Mourdock: That would not require any notice.

Philip Hayes: Then there’s no notice and you can just suggest that that happen, but
they can send three.

President Fanello: | still can’t understand why we can’t have a meeting in the public,
and you notice the media, and you notice the public.

Commissioner Mourdock: You can, but by doing that you are effectively saying it's a
regular meeting of the County Commission, and all three of us—

President Fanello: Would have to be there.

Commissioner Mourdock: —would be required to be there. Yeah, or should be there.
So, it sounds like what we are saying is, we may do a round robin among the three
of us as far as saying who’s going to go to that meeting in a given week, and the
Council will send up to three of their people at any one time at that same meeting.
Is that where we are?

Philip Hayes: Less than a, yes.

Commissioner Mourdock: That way we don’t have to advertise anything.

Philip Hayes: Less than a quorum. As long as there is less than a quorum. The
reason for no advertisement is because there will be no consideration—

Commissioner Mourdock: Right.

Philip Hayes: —no receiving of information.

Commissioner Mourdock: It will be informational.

Commissioner Mosby: If we do the meetings on Mondays, we just advertise our
meeting for a half hour or 45 minutes earlier and have them advertise if three or more
thinks they are going to be there, and we just have the meeting at 5:00 or 4:45.
Commissioner Mourdock: That would work fine for me.

President Fanello: That would.

Commissioner Mourdock: Then we could do it each week except for the Solid Waste
week.

Eric Williams: (Inaudible. Comments made away from the mike.) Have it on Council
night.
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President Fanello: Yeah.

Eric Williams: Since there is more of them, it’s easier to get them there if it's on their
meeting night.

Commissioner Mosby: (Inaudible. Talking over each other.)
President Fanello: Whoever wants it.
Philip Hayes: (Inaudible. Talking over each other.)

President Fanello: (Inaudible. Talking over each other.) the budget, that’'s a good
(Inaudible.)

Commissioner Mosby: Well, | mean—

President Fanello: Well, this has turned into a big ordeal to have progression
meetings. Well, | mean, it would be better to have it as Commissioner Mosby
proposed than not to have it at all, so. Or defeat the whole purpose of having it.

Commissioner Mourdock: You’re saying on a Monday.

President Fanello: Uh-huh. If the Commission wants, or the Council wants to
communicate bad enough and they want to be here, they will be here on Monday.

Commissioner Mourdock: Don’t you think it’s realistic they would say, especially since
they started this, that—

President Fanello: No, they didn’t start it.

Commissioner Mosby: What's the difference in what we’re doing right now—
President Fanello: | started it. Well, it was our decision.

Commissioner Mosby: There’s two of us going to a Council meeting—

Commissioner Mourdock: But it's a publicly, it's a public meeting and it's already
advertised.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay, but it’'s not advertised for us.

Philip Hayes: That’s right.

Commissioner Mosby: So, | mean, we’ve been going to these Council meetings all
year long and sitting there, | mean, what’s going to be the difference if we go next
week or the week after? Besides Susan can write bad about us, who cares?
President Fanello: The media is right there, they won’t care if they are there.
Commissioner Mosby: | mean, she’s going to be there. WIKY is there. The TV is

there. So we go in the meeting, if they want to ask a question, we go up and answer
them now.
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Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, so let me understand the genesis of all this again,
Eric, the way this plan started was the Council was saying that they wanted to have
this communication? Or did you guys start this or?

President Fanello: No, | proposed it last Wednesday, and then | discussed with them
about the—

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, fine.
President Fanello: —meeting time.

Brad Ellsworth: Like Commissioner Fanello said, we discussed this as a better way
to communicate with the Council-

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, right.

President Fanello: Yeah.

Brad Ellsworth: —after (Inaudible) and we thought what better way than to have it,
basically, an informal meeting of exchange of information. We said, okay, what’s a
good day and what’s convenient when you could get the most people there. We
thought an hour before the Council meeting would be the best way to go. That’s, you
know, we weren’t...and advertise it as every Wednesday at 2:30, come as you are,
come as you want. If seven show up or four or three of you and, you know, it's
advertised, it's on the books. Somebody will be there. Maybe one of you, maybe one
of us, maybe one of the Council or six.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah. The Auditor just said to me, the way the advertising
works, if they are going to go ahead and advertise their meeting, whichever one’s of
us show up, a little bit along the line of what David said a moment ago, whoever
shows up, shows up. We’'re there for information and that’s it. So, |-

President Fanello: Phil’s still not comfortable with that. If we notice the media that we
are going to be there, does that not suffice?

Philip Hayes: No.

Suzanne Crouch: | think you ought to have—

Commissioner Mosby: | make a motion we hold this until next week, and decide
between the attorneys, the advertisements and everything and see what’s happening
here.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll second.

Commissioner Mosby: Thank you.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Brad Ellsworth: (Inaudible) Wednesday night (Inaudible) quick one.

Commissioner Mourdock: | applaud the intent. | think it's a good one.

President Fanello: So when does the Council, they meet when?
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Suzanne Crouch: The 30",

President Fanello: Oh, that’s right, they’ve already had their first meeting. Well, okay,
so we’ll at least know something by next week. Okay.

Commissioner Mosby: Motion to adjourn, is that what you waiting on?

New Business

President Fanello: Uh-huh. Wait, we didn’t even do New Business, but | guess we
don’t have any.

Commissioner Mosby: Oh.

Commissioner Mourdock: Oh, the one bit of New Business, Patty, if you would, when
we made those board appointments earlier this evening, would you make sure that
one of, either you or Tammy, that a letter goes to each of those boards telling them
which of us is appointed, and who’s appointed, and then copy one set of those letters
to all of us? Motion to adjourn.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:45 p.m.

CONSENT ITEMS:

Employment Changes:

Circuit Court Treasurer Knight Assessor
VCCC County Assessor County Clerk
PTABOA Burdette Park County Council
Sheriff Department Area Plan

Travel Requests:
SWCD Health Department

Requests for Service:
County Clerk Pigeon Assessor

Commissioners/Area Plan
Barbara Cunningham’s vacation accrual payment request.

Substance Abuse Council: Safe Communities Grant Application.
Sheriff: Weekly jail information reports.

Auditor: Pass through of Juvenile Block Grant.

Those in attendance:

Catherine Fanello David W. Mosby Richard E. Mourdock
Philip Hayes Suzanne Crouch Tammy McKinney
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Vanderburgh County
Board of Commissioners
January 14, 2002

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session this 14" day of
January, 2002, at5:35 p.m. in Room 307 of the Civic Center Complex with President
Catherine Fanello presiding.

Call to Order

President Fanello: Call to order the Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners
meeting, January 14",

Introductions and Pledge of Allegiance

President Fanello: Introductions, Patty White from the Commissioner’s office;
Counselor, Phil Hayes; Commissioner Mosby; myself, Commissioner Fanello;
Commissioner Mourdock; County Auditor, Suzanne Crouch; and Recording
Secretary, Madelyn Grayson. Please join me in the Pledge of Allegiance.

(The Pledge was given.)

Approval of Minutes

President Fanello: Before we move forward, | would like to recognize two new
deputies in the Sheriff’'s Department. That’s William Gillenwater and John Snyder.

Commissioner Mourdock: Welcome.

President Fanello: They’ve been summoned to the meeting tonight by the Sheriff,
no.

Commissioner Mourdock: Is this going to be regular duty for you?

Brad Ellsworth: Discipline.

President Fanello: Do | have approval of the minutes from January 7"?
Commissioner Mosby: So ordered, or motion to approve the minutes.
Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Certification of January 14, 2002 Executive Session

President Fanello: Approval of the Executive Session summary minutes from today.
Commissioner Mourdock: I'll move approval of today’s summary Executive Session.
It started at 4:00, ended at 4:40. Present were the three Commissioners, Mr. Fluty
and County Counsel, and it dealt solely with pending litigation.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.
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President Fanello: So ordered.

Z Tuley: Earned Interest Report & Board of Finance

President Fanello: Z. Tuley.

Z. Tuley: Hi, I'm Z. Tuley, the Vanderburgh County Treasurer. It is my annual
obligation to bring to you all the for view and approval, well, not necessarily approval,
| don’t think that is probably the appropriate word, but for review of the last annual
financial report. So, I've got a copy for everyone. Indiana Code states that the
Board of Finance meets annually on the first Monday on or before the last day of
January. This is the time that we appoint a President and a Secretary for the Board
of Finance. In the past it has been made up of the Treasurer and the three
Commissioners. Generally speaking, in the past, as Secretary for the County
Commissioners, we have voted to have the Auditor be the Secretary for the Board
of Finance as well.

Commissioner Mourdock: | would move those appointments again for the year 2002.
Commissioner Mosby: Second.
President Fanello: So ordered.

Z. Tuley: Thank you.

Phil Lawrence: Permission to Award Cellular Paging Contract

President Fanello: Okay, Phil Lawrence. Is Phil around anywhere outside? Okay.
Commissioner Mourdock: We have in the packets the report from him. | have not
heard anything from him though. Patty, are we to go ahead and act on this, do you
know?

Patty White: Tammy didn’t say (Inaudible. Mike not on.)

President Fanello: Phil, have you reviewed those contracts?

Philip Hayes: Yes, | had. They appear to be standard.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll move then that we award the contract to Cater Cellular
and Paging for pager service for the city, or for the county.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Shirley James: Pigeon Greenway Funding

President Fanello: Shirley James, and | believe | just saw her in the hallway.

Commissioner Mosby: She was out in the hall.
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President Fanello: Patty, could you? Okay, we’ll come back to her.

Mayor Russell Lloyd: Downtown Master Plan

President Fanello: Mayor Lloyd, Downtown Master Plan.

Russell Lloyd: Good evening, President Fanello, fellow Commissioners. You were,
you should have received from Michael Osborne from the Department of
Metropolitan Development, a copy of the City of Evansville Downtown Master Plan.

| don’t know if you have that here tonight, but | was just going to give a couple of
brief observations for you. If you would like a more detailed proposal with graphics
and story boards, he can do that. Under Section 2.2 some of the principals for the
Downtown Master Plan, and there is ten, | will go through that and then briefly
comment on the summary. Some of the principals that were used in the Downtown
Master Plan; Strategic Development, tried to capitalize on the strengths of the district
and do it as a market-driven development. Number two, Traditional Main Street
Environment, offer shopping and entertainment, characterized by diverse
environment and celebrate the history of the downtown. Number three, Pedestrian
Friendly, safe and secure environment, day and night, and promote circulation.

Number four, a unique personality and sense of place. You've got a unique
collection of historic buildings and encourage and compliment new in-fill buildings.

Number five, Visually Exciting Environment, development of quality wayfinding and
public art. Number six, Encourage Mixed Use Development, look at upper story
housing, office and high-tech developments. Number seven, Linked Integrally to
Adjacent Neighborhoods and Business Districts. Number eight, Public/Private
Partnering, which we think is very important. In addition, look at real estate
development opportunities for private sector. Number nine, Carefully Crafted
Development Guidelines, based on a flexible plan. Number ten, Educate the
Region, which is Marketing. Working with the downtown organizations, develop
marketing programs for visitors, tenants, owners, stakeholders, and developers.

Finally, in the concluding section of this 70 page book, | just wanted to point out
some of the goals. We have to identify organizations that will (Inaudible) champions
of various goals. I'm on Section 5.3, which is towards the back, where it says
Implementation. I'm just going to briefly read off some of the goals; clean and safe
program, and that’'s something that government has to do working on the downtown
main street, the river, the Civic Center. Work with the Building Authority on that.

Look at the possibility of special improvement districts. Permit vehicular traffic on
Main Street, something that the city is committed to doing. Work on removing the
metal facades and restore the historic character of the buildings. Look at traffic
planning, converting one ways to two ways. Look at landscaping and signing, and
work on the gateways into the downtown with the Lloyd Expressway. Identify pilot
block for rehabilitation project. One of the things the consultants, Kinzelman Kline
and Gossman, suggested, the pilot block be the block bounded by Sixth Street, Main
Street, Martin Luther King and Locust. Finally, develop marketing campaign for the
downtown, and identify key projects, programs and events. Briefly, the medium term
goals; continuing development guidelines for redevelopment. Introduce state of the
art wayfinding. We see that in other cities. If you notice in Indianapolis, they’ve got
the signs with the quadrants of the downtown, so to make it easy for people to get
around in the downtown. New gateways into the downtown. Look to establish a
community based LLC as a for profit entity that could actually purchase buildings,
rehab them, sell them, and move on to the next project. Then their concept of the
Civic Center piazza would be traffic circulating all the way around the Civic Center.
Look for some in-fill housing opportunities, and implement a phase one public art
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campaign, and broaden some community interest in the downtown through a
downtown first campaign. Then, finally, the long term goals; the for profit LLC, build
capital reserves forlong term reinvestment potential. On the long term, look at North
Main Street reconfiguration. The, in the long term, look at the government campus.
Then the possibility of larger entertainment venues has been mentioned, the
ballpark, the possibility of another hotel or arena downtown. Then develop regional
marketing relationships. That’s going through this briefly, and | guess, one other
thought, just when you talk about it from a long term point of view, the foot of main
street down here by the Curtis Building, | certainly don’t wantto impede on your work
on the jail project, but | think one of the things that the Kinzelman Kline and
Gossman pointed out that we want to try to leave the possibility of reconnecting Main
at some point in the long term future. Once these buildings become, outlive their
useful life, and we see these buildings being in very good condition, so that may be
a long time, but, you know, scenarios where the possibility of a jail would be behind
us or on the back 40, we would just ask that not to block the foot of Main Street here
as it heads into the government building complex. So, | just wanted to mention that
to you. Get that on the record. Did you have any thoughts about that? Or
questions?

President Fanello: Does anybody have any questions?

Russell Lloyd: Okay.

President Fanello: So, oh, I've got one.

Russell Lloyd: Okay.

President Fanello: So, you're not opposed to the jail being in the back 407

Russell Lloyd: No, I’'m not opposed to that. That’s, you know, the county’s decision
on that, so.

Commissioner Mourdock: But you are saying, if it is in the back 40, just don’t block
what could one day reconnect Main?

Russell Lloyd: Right. Look at it from a long term point of view that the possibility of
someday Main being reconnected.

President Fanello: Is there any other questions?

Russell Lloyd: Okay. Thank you. Does anybody see Shirley James out in the hall?
Maybe you might want to check the break room or something. We will move on
to...I'm sorry.

Commissioner Mosby: He was talking about Les Shively. You took that off.

President Fanello: Yes. Les Shively will not be here tonight.

Phil Hayes: Second (Final) Reading of Ordinance
Amending Chapter 2.40.040 of the Vanderburgh County Code
(Health Department Fees)

President Fanello: Phil Hayes, second reading of ordinance.
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Philip Hayes: Yes, this is the second reading of the ordinance. If anyone has any
questions or would like an additional summary. This is the fee ordinance for the
Health Department. We were made a full record, | think, in last meeting.

Commissioner Mosby: Motion to approve the ordinance amending Chapter2.40.040
of the Vanderburgh County Code.

Commissioner Mourdock: Just before | second, | want to make sure there is no one
here to address this ordinance. Seeing none, | will second the motion.

President Fanello: Motion and second. So ordered.

Commissioner Mourdock: That’s an ordinance. We need to do a roll call vote.
President Fanello: I'm sorry. Roll call vote. Commissioner Mourdock?
Commissioner Mourdock: Yes.

President Fanello: Commissioner Mosby?

Commissioner Mosby: Aye.

President Fanello: And | vote yes. So ordered.

Any Other Group or Individual Wishing to Address the Board

President Fanello: Any other group or individual wishing to address the board?
Okay.

Commissioner Mosby: Mr. Johnson, ain’t you wanting to address the board?
Edward Johnson: Yes.

Commissioner Mosby: It's time.

Edward Johnson: (Inaudible. Not at mike.)

Commissioner Mosby: Well, we was getting ready to move forward. | thought I'd
better—

Mike Shopmeyer: Do you want me to go ahead then? We have been, over the last
few weeks, following up on a program the city and county worked on last Spring, in
April and May. If you'll recall, at this time last year the Executive Inn hotel, which is
our only convention hotel across from our beautiful, $30 to $40 million convention
center, was closing it's doors. In fact, the doors were closed. If you walk outside
today, it's unbelievable, as you look at the view, the lights. It's very much open. Last
week, | think, we as a community, this board, the Mayor’s office, City Council can be
very proud, that building was filled to the gills with conventioneers. As a resident of
a block away, my office, we saw people all week long. Today we are with you to
deliver the restrictive covenant that’s part of that deal. That deal provided for us
important conditions, which were signed off on by the city and county, and those are;
number one, that the block be consolidated. There was enormous title defect with
that property that made it unmarketable to continue as a hotel, for that matter, for
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any purpose, and that we have in our records has been fulfilled by the Bays Group.

The other was that the hotel meet certain standards, and those standards have
been achieved. The approval on those for AAA, three diamond status, will come this
Spring. They will not come to the city in the Winter. That has to be fulfilled, it’s
required under the provisions, and we understand has been as the hotel stands
there. Another of the conditions was that, | believe, it was $8 million, | forget the
exact amount, be invested. | have certification that over $10 million has been
invested in that property since both our bodies met last Spring. Another item that
was to be completed was the crosswalk, which all of us know has not been
completed. | understand, and we have included in the restrictive covenant a
proviso...Ed, refresh me, that's to be completed by? May 1. So, about three
months, because we are about mid June, three and a half months it's to be
completed. Our agreement provides teeth, we herefore had as a community
subsidized the prior Executive Inn owners, | would proudly say we had none of the
teeth that we have in this agreement. Not only are the level of the hotel, but it is to
be maintained as a hotel for a ten year period. Which keeps us from subsidizing
something that could turn into another housing complex, or something else, that
certainly doesn’t serve the enormous public investment we have across the street
in a convention center. What are the teeth? The teeth are that this is enforceable
and a $30,000 a month liquidated damage clause, up to the amount of the grant,
which combined is $3.3 million. $2.3 from the city and $1 million from the county.
The agreement we signed provided for the first installment of $1 million from the
county, $1 million from the city to be due and payable tomorrow. The city is
prepared to make the paymenttomorrow. We’ve met with Ed, | know that the copies
of this have been going to the County Attorney as well. There are a few items that
we marked up today, and they are pretty minor, | mean, | assume we are going to
get those done—

Edward Johnson: They’re done.

Mike Shopmeyer: —yeah, in the covenant, and with that, | guess, we’re ready to go.
We would like a restrictive covenant signed. We set it up to be a three party
agreement. | think you want the benefit of enforcing it. You're putting a lot of money
in. We certainly want the benefit. There has been a question raised, when Mr.
Hayes and | spoke this afternoon, about fulfillment of that crosswalk, which is the
most critical item left. | think we have that covered very well in the restriction,
because the penalty is applicable, if it's not built, at $30,000 a month. There’s a 30
day care period, so technically that would be June 1. If they didn’t have it on May
1,  assume Mr. Hayes, or we could notice them, but really it's more a matter that
concerns the county than the city. We do hold $1.3 million, the Mayor is here, | can
tell you it would be our firm advice that if that was not built, that we would not write,
would not recommend our client write that check for $1.3 million. Mayor, | think you
would agree, we wouldn’t give them that check if that crosswalk weren’t completed.
That check is not due until June—

Edward Johnson: First of June.

Mike Shopmeyer: June 1? June 1, so you see we have enough time there where we
could hold that payment to secure that last item. | think Mr. Bays has more than
fulfilled, his company that is, has more than fulfilled the commitments they made to
the city. | think we all have something to celebrate and be proud of. This restrictive
covenantis standard in private development. You use it sometimes in zoning, when
people come in and make promises, this is the same tool. It will go on public record,
so that it can be enforced by, again, us, you, | would hope we would enforce
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together, if we ever need to enforce and work it out as we have every step of the way
on this. So, | guess, | would ask at minimum that, | think, we are ready, or it's our
advice that the city is ready to sign, we’re ready to write the check. We will, there
is more money to come out. We will make sure that all the conditions, the one that
remains, which is mainly that crosswalk is taken care of, and we state that on the
record. So, | would be happy to answer any questions. Ed, of course, with the hotel,
but Mr. Hayes thought it would be best that we speak to what we’ve done the last,
about a month, Ed, we’ve been working on this?

Edward Johnson: About a month.
President Fanello: Does anybody have any questions?

Commissioner Mosby: | guess the only question | would ask, Mike, and | thought it
was an agreement when we were in the Mayor’s office that time that this crosswalk
would be built before you came and asked for payment?

Mike Shopmeyer: The agreement absolutely contemplates that, you’re right.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay, what has changed to date then? And why are we
maneuvering around this?

Edward Johnson: Could 1?
Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, either one can answer it.

Edward Johnson: Mr. Mosby, it would have been built to date, except there were
design problems, which you guys, | think, are aware of. They had come before you
this Fall and suggested a design that you did not find acceptable. So, when you
didn't we had to go back, redesign it. It’s in a situation now where it's been
designed, it's been let for bids. John is coming in tomorrow, he’s going to grant the
contractor to go forward with it. It's going to be our problem if it's not done, but that
answers your questions as to why we are here tonight when we said we’d doit. We
would have done it, except the design changes which, again, we’ve done and we’re
not going to look back on, but we’ll do them. We’ll do it your way.

Commissioner Mourdock: Even so, there’s no real breach, if you will, because you
still have to (Inaudible) first get it done (Inaudible)--

Edward Johnson: No, to be fair aboutit, originally, when we were here, it was signed
off on, itwas supposed to be done by now. He’s done everything else. | mean, man
he’s spent money, that hotel is so first class you wouldn’t believe it. He’s spent
millions on that. He acquired the title at a huge cost. He’s done everything, and he
would have done, he would have done, and | think he’s going to. | mean, he’s letting
it for bids. He’s got the design your way. So, | guess, you would say, technically,
there’s a breach, but the reason | would ask you to go ahead and first of all sign the
restrictive covenant so that we can get the million dollars from the city, clearly runs
to your benefit. | mean, that gives you guys a clout, and secondly, with regard to the
funds themselves, John was counting on them for tomorrow. We asked that he go
ahead and allow us to do it...the design plans are here by the way.

Mike Shopmeyer: We put the design plans into the restrictive covenant.

Edward Johnson: Right, yeah.
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Mike Shopmeyer: Because that, obviously, had been an issue in delay. So we not
only made a day, but we put those plans in to provide, | think, it was originally
contemplated to be back here, at least it was in my mind, now it's the vomitory
closest to Walnut. The plans are, | mean, you might want to look at the plans to
make sure those are the right plans, but they’'ve been represented to us as the
correct plans.

Commissioner Mosby: | guess my pointis, and | will totally agree with everything you
said about it being a first class facility, everything being nice. He’s lived up to his
agreement, but there has been problems with the crosswalk, and | know it took two
or three meetings to get that settled out, and | would feel a whole lot more secure
once | seen that being built and a contractor over there and seeing it bid out. |
mean, I’'m just not comfortable, and | mean, we made an agreement, and | really
intend to stick to that agreement.

Edward Johnson: Will you sign the restrictive covenant?
Commissioner Mosby: No.
Edward Johnson: You won’t sign those?

Commissioner Mourdock: Let me just add something here. Mr. Shopmeyer
mentioned about the restrictive covenants that we deal with in zonings all the time.
That’s true, but at least what I'm hearing is the difference here, | don’t recall in my
eight years when we’ve dealt with a restrictive covenant through zoning that it ever
worked to the favor of the county, or the county had the true power to enforce it.
Usually, restrictive covenants are out there and the neighbors can enforce it against
the petitioner of the rezoning, but it isn’t the county that can enforce it. In this case,
though, it clearly goes to the benefit of the county with the $30,000 a month
payments. So, we have the means to enforce it.

Mike Shopmeyer: You have teeth.

Edward Johnson: It says so in here. It's going to be enforced by the city or the
county.

Commissioner Mosby: | mean, | just really feel like we made an agreement, and, |
mean, | would hate to sign something different other than what we’ve got already,
and, | mean, I’'m just looking at tax dollars here. | would like to...and I’'m not even
sure the County Council is ready to pay their part of it.

Edward Johnson: I'm not-—

Commissioner Mosby: Well, | mean, originally—

Edward Johnson: | don’t speak to that, but—

Commissioner Mosby: —the Commissioners are in for $500,000, and the County
Council is in for $500,000-

Edward Johnson: $500,000.

Commissioner Mosby: —and they’re not even going to have a meeting until the first
of February, so.
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Edward Johnson: Again, I'll respect whatever you tell me, but you couldn’t sign the
covenant tonight that just locks us into paying the fine if we don’t do it? | mean,
that’'s—

Commissioner Mosby: | really would prefer that once you have a design and you’ve
bid it out and you have a contractor, and we see who that contractor is, you know,
and we have a comfortable feeling that everything is going to go forward and
happen, | would consider it.

Edward Johnson: Fine, so we should come back when we have the contract signed
and, alright, very well.

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah.

Mike Shopmeyer: | mean, we’'re the city will proceed tomorrow and sign it. It will just
be an amendment to bring another party in at that point. Or if you wait until after the
bridge is built, then | suppose, that provision will come out. The city is going to sign
it tomorrow as it’s written, with that bridge requirementin it for May 1, because we’re
going to submit a payment. | want a restrictive for us, this is the lawyer in me, that
restrictive covenant is more important.

Commissioner Mosby: Well, Mike, you know, and | question that because | thought
we went in this agreement together, the city and the county. So now you’re telling
me the city is pulling out of the agreement.

Mike Shopmeyer: No.

Commissioner Mosby: Yes you are. You are telling me that you are going to go
ahead and sign tomorrow. Now, originally, we had both bodies working together to
come up with the money to do the Executive Inn deal. Now, since your part is
satisfied, you really don’t care what the county gets out of this, so you are going to
go ahead and sign off. | disagree with that.

Mike Shopmeyer: Not what’s left, we think we’re more than secured in the
agreement that is written. In many, many ways.

Commissioner Mosby: | understand, Mike, but you’re telling me that you are going
to give me a covenant, and even if | don’t feel happy with it, and | don’t feel like the
county has been satisfied, because you know and | know we were in the same
meeting, the crosswalk was a part of that, and it would be built before we made
payment. Now, | mean, you can disagree if you want—

Mike Shopmeyer: Right.

Commissioner Mosby: —-but we were in the same meeting.

Mike Shopmeyer: Oh, |-

Commissioner Mosby: And now you’re telling me that you feel like you've been
satisfied, so you want to pull out of the agreement with the county. That you are
going to go ahead and sign. | mean, | would be very hesitant to work another deal

with you. If that’s the case.

Mike Shopmeyer: Well, it's not with me.
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Commissioner Mosby: Well, it is with me. | mean, you just stood there and told me,
well, we’re going to go ahead and sign, and we’ll amend the covenant. That's what
you said.

Mike Shopmeyer: Because we have the coverage to protect, more than protect the
investmentinvolved if substantially below thatamount. We’ve gotaninvestmentthat
exceeds the amount that we established. The developer has exceeded all the
expectations. It's also a matter of when you deal with other developers, as we will
in the future, if you have a history of not making your payments, it also can create
a problem for us to lure economic development. | think that is the feeling of the
Mayor anyway, and throughout this, so.

Commissioner Mosby: | didn’t see anything in the original draft that said come
January the 14", if 70% of this deal is satisfied, I'll make partial payment.

Mike Shopmeyer: Well, we understood—
Commissioner Mosby: | didn’t see that.

Mike Shopmeyer: —we understood as we talked to Mr. Johnson that this problem
didn’t exist until about an hour ago today. We understood all along that everyone
was comfortable with the crosswalk, and we just found out today that there was this
problem. | mean, | had understood through Ed-

Edward Johnson: (Inaudible) statement on that part.

Mike Shopmeyer: Right, | mean, | understood through Ed that he was
communicating with the county and that they were okay on this point.

Edward Johnson: | talked to Phil about it. | did not talk to (Inaudible).

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, I'd talked to Mr. Johnson on Saturday and brought, you
know, this to his attention. You know, | guess, my only problem here is, and, you
know, | just said that once | seen everything happening over there and | felt
comfortable, that | would be willing to sign off. It just bothers me that the city is going
to go ahead and sign off without the county, when we originally went in this together.

Mike Shopmeyer: We hear what you are saying, and we’ll take that into account, but
this is the first we had heard that. We’ve been taking all kinds of safeguards, and
| think there is more than abundant safeguards here.

Commissioner Mosby: It's the first time you heard it because we haven’t talked.

Mike Shopmeyer: | understand, but I'm talking to the party, and | thought you were
talking all along.

Commissioner Mosby: | would think as a city and a county we went into an
agreement together on $3.3 million. | would have thought there would be some
dialogue between us.

Mike Shopmeyer: There has been dialogue with your lawyer, and he said work
through it as you see fit. That’s what I've been doing.
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Philip Hayes: If | can ask, Mike, there was a mention of the contracts being let on
bids that were, maybe that’'s Edward’s—

Edward Johnson: John told me that he had bid the contract, and he’s coming to town
tomorrow and he’s going to choose a contractor tomorrow.

Philip Hayes: Were those not quotes that had been obtained by the engineers,
Morley firm?

Edward Johnson: (Inaudible) | don’t represent their firm.

Philip Hayes: Do you know?

Edward Johnson: I’'m not part of that (Inaudible).

Philip Hayes: Okay, well that’'s a question that had been-

Edward Johnson: | just know he told me he was going to—

Philip Hayes: —asked.

Edward Johnson: —select a contractor. He thinks he knows who it's going to be—
Philip Hayes: Uh-huh.

Edward Johnson: —and we’ll be glad to furnish you with all of that as soon as we are
privy to the facts.

Philip Hayes: Yeah.

Commissioner Mosby: | will make a motion that we deny this, and it could be brought
back at a later date upon work beginning on the crosswalk, and once we know
there’s a contract in place, and a construction company in place, and the process is
beginning, when we see it.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll just make a statement here. I’'m not going to second
that motion, David. | was about to make another one, but you beat me to the punch.
There are times when you deal with business folks that you have to work a little bit
on the element of trust, and see where the progress is made. | look across the
street at what was over there 14 months ago, 18 months ago and it is so different
than it was at that point that | think that the developer deserves, at the very least, a
round of applause from this board, because he has helped make the Centre, which
we have a huge interest in, a much more viable property. Mr. Johnson stated, and
| know all of you recollect this as well, one of the reasons this delay happened in
getting the overpass or the overwalk built was because when the first design came
through they did not meet the specifications of this board. So, that slowed the
process down, because Veazey Parrott had to go back and redesign to make it fit
the, | think, Mike Shoulders’ term to make it fit the ambiance of the Centre. Which,
again, the fellow did that which was additional cost to them. So, | don’t think it’s
unreasonable to go ahead given the show of faith that they’ve had in this project, and
also the fact that there is some teeth in here for the sum of $30,000 a month. So,
| don’t wantto send the message that we are stiffing a developer who’s worked hard.
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President Fanello: I've got one other concern that I'm going to bring up real quick.
I’m concerned that the Council hasn’t put their money in place. Does Councilman
Finance Chair Raben have anything to offer to that?

Jim Raben: We’ll address it at our next meeting.
President Fanello: Okay. |s that January 30"? Is that your next?
Jim Raben: The first of February.

President Fanello: Oh, okay. Well, looking at the letter that we had in the original
agreement it was contingent upon everything being done, and if he’s going to pick
a contractor tomorrow, | don’t see why we couldn’t come back and maybe sign the
covenant on the, later this month, after we’ve seen that those things have been put
in place.

Commissioner Mourdock: | think that’s different than David’s motion, though, just to
specify. Because, David, were you saying in your motion not to do it until it was built,
or until the contractor was picked?

Commissioner Mosby: No, | said once that we seen a contract, and they got a
contractor or board, and we see some movement, then | would be willing to come
back and sign off on this—

President Fanello: So we could get—

Commissioner Mosby: —but | would like to see some type of improvements made.
Just going back and looking at the past history of what has happened, and | know
we had the deal with the design and you’re right, and the design wasn’t right, and
that’'s one protection we’ve had all along here, and | hate to give that up. [I'll just
leave it at that.

President Fanello: So we could do it as early as the 28™.

Philip Hayes: Madam President, before you, while this discussion is still going on,
| had also contacted the Building Authority counsel, Mr. Bowers, after we had an
opportunity to talk today, that is Mr. Johnson and | talked, and then there had been
a draft mark up sent over, | think, on Friday, and | spoke to Mr. Shopmeyer, there
are, excuse me, the matter of the encroachment agreements, | think, between the
Building Authority are to be done, and I’'m not sure if this is correct or not, but |
believe Mr. Bowers led me to believe that they still have to do the final agreement
concerning how the Centre is to be, how the construction is to proceed atthe Centre.
Then also how the improvement at a later date is to be handled. For example, if the
same fate overcame the facility again as it did before, what, who would be
responsible for maintenance of the crosswalk and those other improvements. So,
apparently, that is still to be done.

Edward Johnson: (Inaudible. Not at mike.)

Philip Hayes: Okay, so, in any event, well, in any, confirms that the Building Authority
still has some pretty important work to get done with that aspect of it. So, that’s
another part of the legal documentation, | guess you would call it, that has to be
completed that’s still out there.
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President Fanello: And when might that be completed?
Philip Hayes: Probably pretty soon | would imagine.
Edward Johnson: Yes, | would hope within a few days.
President Fanello: Okay.

Commissioner Mourdock: Again, that’s not for Mr. Johnson to do, that’s for the
Building Authority’s counsel—

Edward Johnson: Well, | did the first draft and sent it to them.

Philip Hayes: Yeah, Mr. Johnson has, I've seen the draft on that.

Edward Johnson: | just wanted to get it going.

Philip Hayes: | know that they’'re—

Edward Johnson: So, | did it.

Philip Hayes: Right.

President Fanello: Well, I’'m going to be agreeable that our money is in place, so it’s
not going anywhere, I'm going to be agreeable that we come back on the 28™ and
see where we are.

Edward Johnson: Thank you very much.

President Fanello: Shirley James. We’ll go ahead and get back to you.
Commissioner Mosby: You might tell Mr. Lawrence we’re done with him.
President Fanello: Yes, Mr. Lawrence, we approved your contract.

Shirley James: I’'m sorry, may | apologize if we were late.

President Fanello: That's okay.

Shirley James: | understood it was at 6:00.

President Fanello: We just moved on, now we’re getting to you. That’s fine.

Shirley James: I'm Shirley James and | would like to introduce to you Thornton
Patberg, who will present the budget. He is our, with our Finance Committee.

Thornton Patberg: Just a couple remarks before we go into the budget real quick.
We are happy to report that we hope by March they will start construction for the
Greenway passage from Sunrise Park to the Korean War Monument. Also a part
of that will be from the riverfront plaza to Ohio Street Bridge. By next Summer, since
we now have the property of the high rail along 41, from Lloyd Expressway to
Glenwood school, that we are hoping by the end of the Summer of 2003 you will be
able to go from Stringtown to Uhlhorn, which is already finished, and from Uhlhorn
to Ohio Street Bridge, down the waterfront, along the plaza, up to Glenwood school



Page 14 of 27 Vanderburgh County
Board of Commissioners
January 14, 2002

and down to the Lloyd Expressway. The way things are progressing, we should
have that, we hope to have that finished by the end of 2003. We had a corporate
donor campaign, and there were some matching gifts. We raised a little over
$100,000, but most of the donors signed up for certain amenities, such as benches
and signs and so forth, so it didn’t give us money that we could operate from,
because that is restricted money. We are part of the Parks Department, as you
know, and so all of the major funding will come from, and the repairs, etcetera, will
be from the Parks Department. What we are asking for is approval to go before the
Council for $12,000. Very quickly, what it's for, you can see, the first $1,200 is an
Internet access, which we would use for grants for as much as anything. You’'ll see
the next one is Field Office for minor repairs. As | said, the major repairs for the
Greenway passage will come from the Parks Department. Then you see the
Education and Marketing Committee, and there’s a description there of what we are
asking for the money. The brochures, | will say that the Convention Bureau has
asked us for this, that they would like to use, and they also use the brochures for
grant proposals. So, what we are asking for is the $12,000 for your approval to go
before the County Council for funding. We’ve got the two experts here, Shirley
James and Linda Goedde, that will answer your detailed questions.

President Fanello: Does anybody have any questions? Well, how do you feel about
the $12,0007?

Thornton Patberg: | will say that we are finally beginning to make...there is a lot of
red tape with INDOT and so forth in getting the funding for these various things, but
things are really starting to move now.

President Fanello: Let me understand, are you requesting the $12,000 from the
Commissioners? Or are you requesting to go before the Council and ask for the
$12,0007?

Thornton Patberg: For your approval to go before the Council.

President Fanello: Oh, I'll give you that approval.

Commissioner Mosby: I'll go ahead and make that motion, if there is no questions.
I'll make a motion that we give them the approval to go to the County Council and

ask for $12,000.

Commissioner Mourdock: And I'll second, and | would be prepared to hear, get
ready to stand in line, or some phrase like that from the Council.

Thornton Patberg: Alright, thank you.

President Fanello: Good luck.

Thornton Patberg: Thank you. | would also say that we talked to a Toyota
representative, he said to keep bringing power into the local area, this is one of the
most important projects that has happened. We did a little feasibility study at
Blufton, Indiana, and they said they just finished their parkway there, Greenway
passage along their river, | forgot what river it is—

Commissioner Mourdock: Wabash.

Thornton Patberg: What is it?
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Commissioner Mourdock: The Wabash.

Thornton Patberg: Wabash? They said there is nothing been done in the city
recently that has improved the atmosphere of the environment for the city. So, we
are hoping to get this thing done. Thank you people.

President Fanello: Thank you. Good luck.

Shirley James: Thank you very much. Appreciate that.

President Fanello: Any other group or individual wishing to address the board?
Commissioner Mosby: If there is no other group or individual, while we are under
Action Items, | would like to make some board appointments that we need to make
that we didn’t make last week. We need to make appointments to the Community
Corrections Board. At this time | would like to appoint John Browning, Lark
Buckman, Nancy Helms, Marty Amsler, Jason White, Allan Henson, and Randy

Heidorn to the Community Corrections Board.

Commissioner Mourdock: Do we not need a County Commissioner to serve on that
board?

President Fanello: Uh-huh.

Commissioner Mourdock: | had been on that board in the past, and | don’t recall
whether that is actually a statutory requirement?

Brad Ellsworth: (Inaudible. Not at mike.)
Commissioner Mourdock: Ah, you’re right, okay.

Commissioner Mosby: The County Council has Phil Hoy on there the way |
understand it.

President Fanello: So, are you still wanting to serve?
Commissioner Mosby: Yes, they make that appointment though, | believe.

Commissioner Mourdock: That is...yes, | would still serve on that as a lay
appointment.

President Fanello: We still have another lay appointment.
Brad Ellsworth: (Inaudible. Not at mike.)
Commissioner Mourdock: Okay. Okay.

President Fanello: Okay. | would go ahead and add Richard. He would like to
continue to serve.

Commissioner Mosby: Oh, okay. Then I'll add, I'll also add the name of
Commissioner Mourdock as a lay person.

Commissioner Mourdock: And I'll second all those.
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President Fanello: So ordered.
Commissioner Mosby: | have a motion and a second...oh.

Brad Ellsworth: Brad Ellsworth, Sheriff. Was there also one on there Candace Perry
as the Victims Advocate? Did | skip that on the recommended list?

Commissioner Mourdock: | didn’t hear it mentioned.

Commissioner Mosby: Don’t have that one.

Brad Ellsworth: Okay, I'd talked to her and she was interested in serving as the
Victim and/or Victim’s Advocate. So, if | may recommend that to the Commission.
She is willing to serve.

Commissioner Mosby: Candace Perry?

Commissioner Mourdock: That’s the one that has been on in the past, correct?
Brad Ellsworth: No, no. She is new. It calls for a Victim and/or a Victim’s Advocate,
and she works at Albion Fellows Bacon Center as the Deputy Director, and has
expressed an interest in serving.

Commissioner Mosby: Candace Perry, right?

Brad Ellsworth: Yes.

Commissioner Mosby: | will make a motion to also appoint Candace Perry to the
Community Correction Board.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.
President Fanello: So ordered.

Commissioner Mosby: | would like to also make an appointment of Wayne Ravelette
and John Dillingham to the HVAC Board.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Commissioner Mosby: And then one other appointment that | would like to make.
| would like to remove Mark Beard from the Building Authority Board of Trustees and
in place of Mark Beard put Jack Mc Neely on the Building Authority Board of
Trustees. The reason being is because Mark Beard, | believe, as of Friday, has
purchased a home in Warrick County and has asked to be removed. Under the
statute he can’t serve anyhow.

Commissioner Mourdock: Is he sending a letter in to that effect, David?

Commissioner Mosby: Yes, | believe he has.

Philip Hayes: | have a letter from Mr. Bowers, excuse me, | have a letter from Mr.
Bowers and there should be a copy of it, if you’ll give me one moment here.
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Commissioner Mourdock: But is the Bowers letter relative to Beard? Or is that—
Philip Hayes: It is relevant to Beard, yes. Here’s, yeah, Mr. Bowers has addressed
me under date of January 9 that, if you would pass that down. | apologize, | had
that, | think there’s a copy, | think we faxed a copy over to us.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Philip Hayes: Okay, that should probably go in the, I'll give this to Madelyn for her—

Commissioner Mosby: That’s all | have.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, and | have one that was carried over from last
week—

Commissioner Mosby: Oh, that’s right.

Commissioner Mourdock: —for Burdette Park. | would move the appointment, or
actually the reappointment of Diane Collins to the Burdette Park Advisory Board.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.
President Fanello: So ordered.

Commissioner Mourdock: Patty, would you, I'm sure Steve Craig has her address,
to make sure we send her a letter of that appointment.

President Fanello: Okay. We’ll move on to Department Head Reports. County
Engineer.

Madelyn Grayson: May we make a tape change first?
President Fanello: Okay.

(Tape Changed)

John Stoll: County Engineer

John Stoll: First, | would like to request to go before County Council to request an
appropriation of $200,000 from the Road and Street Fund for the Elmridge and
Congress Street and Drainage Project. Listed in front of you is a cost estimate that
was prepared by Clark Dietz for approximately, | believe, it was $400,000 to
$425,000. This is a preliminary estimate for the repairs and the drainage
improvements, and we have $250,000 currently budgeted for this project, and I'm
just requesting another $200,000. That would cover any contingencies that they
may run into as they prepare the final plans. The drawing there shows the scope of
what they are proposing. The green line is the new storm sewers they are proposing
out there on Iroquois and Congress. The yellow area is a section of the street they
are proposing would be entirely replaced. There is miscellaneous patching
elsewhere throughout the project, but that will all have to be specifically defined as
(Inaudible).
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Commissioner Mosby: | will make a motion to give the County Engineer permission
to go to the Council for a transfer for Street and Road.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: Next | have Request for Proposals for the bridge inspection. It’s
requested that that RFP be approved and then we will send it out to all the
consultants who have asked to be on our list, as well as all the DBE consultants that
INDOT requires us to notify. The proposals will be due back in on February 25" as

a result of that RFP.

Commissioner Mourdock: Have we been doing that on an annual basis, or bi-
annual?

John Stoll: This is bi-annual.
Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

John Stoll: And it’s always a four year contract. Basically, it's for an inspection, and
a reinspection two years after the initial inspection.

Commissioner Mourdock: | will move approval of the issuance of the RFP.
Commissioner Mosby: Second.
President Fanello: So ordered.

Madelyn Grayson: John, do we need permission to advertise that as well? Oris that
what you just asked for?

John Stoll: | don’t...we can advertise it, | guess. | don’t know that we have.
President Fanello: It doesn’t really have to be, but | guess we could if you want to.
Madelyn Grayson: No, that’s fine.

John Stoll: Okay, | was just going to say, | will just send it out to the consultants then.
Last item | have is a revised offer for Parcel #4 owned by Gene Pfeiffer on the
University Parkway Project. The previous appraisal failed to include a costto cure
for the removal of a water well that is out there on Mr. Pfeiffer’s property. This adds
$3,200 to the appraisal for a grand total of $124,900.

Commissioner Mourdock: Motion to approve.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: That’s all | have unless you’ve got any questions on anything.

Commissioner Mosby: Thank you.
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John Stoll: Thanks.

Ralph Kissinger: County Highway

President Fanello: County Highway.

Ralph Kissinger: Ralph Kissinger, County Highway Department. You have my
reports. | do have one thing to add. Commissioner Mourdock and | spoke this
evening, before the meeting, about the two situations, one was on Sensmeier Road
and the other was on Schillinger Road. Myself and the County Engineer both went
out and | took some pictures of the situation to document it. If Mr. Kissel will sign off
and release us from any further liability, | would be glad to haul some rip rap to his
property. He said he will place it, if we’ll haul it out. With permission of the
Commission, | will go ahead and take care of that, if he’ll sign an agreement that
says that he will pursue this no further. It is actually off the county right-of-way, but
there has been a pipe replaced...what happened, the pipe that was under the road,
the culvert pipe, had become about half silted up. When we put the new pipe in, it
released the drainage, and it washed the ditch bank out. It's protruding into his field,
so the agreement that we would like to pursue on that is just go ahead and ask him
if we haul the rip rap out, he places it, he’'ll release us from any further recourse on
this.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll move we have the County Attorney draft what'’s, in
effect, a release from him—

Philip Hayes: Something.

Commissioner Mourdock: —yeah, conversation for the release is two trucks of rip
rap.

Commissioner Mosby: | got a question before we do that. Are we going to set a
precedent here?

Commissioner Mourdock: We have done this before. The precedentis already out
there, in that sense, in that there are times when we’ve done things with drainage,
and done them correctly, and we didn’t do anything wrong, don’t misunderstand—

Ralph Kissinger: Absolutely not.

Commissioner Mourdock: —in opening up this culvert pipe, but once we opened it
up, we actually did increase the flow, and because it comes out on an angle onto the
property, we are somewhat culpable. | mean, yes, we’ve done the right thing, but
| think we are a little bit culpable, and we have done this in the past, so. That's why
| think it's important that we, if we’re going to do this that we never, ever do it without
some form of release from the person saying we’'ve met all of our obligations, and
get them to sign off on that.

Commissioner Mosby: | will give you a hesitant second, but.
President Fanello: So ordered.

Ralph Kissinger: | have nothing further, unless you have any questions.
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Commissioner Mourdock: You did say that you’ve spoken to Mr. Kissel?
Ralph Kissinger: Yes. | will notify Mr. Kissel tomorrow.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

Ralph Kissinger: And tell him what was said at the meeting.

Commissioner Mourdock: Tell him if he still needs to talk to me, to give me another
call.

Ralph Kissinger: Okay, that’s fine. Thank you.

Phil Hayes: County Attorney

President Fanello: County Attorney.

Philip Hayes: Thank you. Just preliminarily with regard to the discussion of the
restrictive covenant on the Bays matter. There is nothing problematical legally about
the Bays matter. The issue | want to clarify is that | did not attempt to represent the
attitude of the Board of Commissioners with regard to payment of the funds. | was
well aware it was late. I don’t, | know that a lot of work has gone into this by Council.
| was asked to coordinate this between the various bodies, primarily the Building
Authority, and the city and ourselves. | have no problem whatsoever, and have had
the restrictive covenant draft since about 7:20 on Thursday night, and | had a chance
to address it. Then the finals came over. So, | didn’t want to leave the impression
that somehow or other the Board had not been informed. | think it was, basically, a
question of taking a shot at it with the cash without pay now, pay later, and that
matter, obviously, has beenresolved. It's not Mr. Shopmeyer or Mr. Johnson’s issue
here at all. | think they want to simply hasten it, as they’ve already made the record
on, so. In addition, | wanted to report that there was a mediation in regard to
Vanderburgh County vs. Nelson Kuhiman Construction. As you know, there had
been a mediation, and as a result of the mediation and authority given, the counsel
attorney reported that this lawsuit was settled for $83,500. We had authorized that
at our previous Executive Session. The funds are now being gathered to be paid to
the county. We don’t have documentation for that tonight, but will be notified when
we do. There will be no further action that needs to be taken by us, except just to,
signing of the releases.

Commissioner Mourdock: | just want to clarify something for the record, you said it
was authorized in Executive Session, it was actually authorized through claims
through the public meeting, since we can’t do it—

Philip Hayes: I'm sorry, that is, | did misstate that.
Commissioner Mourdock: —in Executive Session.

Philip Hayes: There was a, just as John had sought authority previously on the issue
of upping the award in one where we are paying the other way, this was a law suit
brought for compensation to the county, and there, indeed, was a authorization over
and above an amount, and then $83,500 was, ultimately, determined at the
mediation.
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Commissioner Mourdock: Just as a follow up with the attorney’s report then, too, and
this brings to mind. We need to add to tonight’'s Consent Items, and I'll make the
motion at this point, that we add a blue claim form to USF & G to the Consent Files.

(No blue claim submitted in Consent File for approval.)
Philip Hayes: Okay.
President Fanello: So ordered.

Philip Hayes: Then | wanted to report that articles of amendment to the not-for-profit
incorporation for the new Old Courthouse Board, which is solely for the purpose, and
the promotion, development, operation, support and preservation of historic
landmarks in Vanderburgh County, which is in general. Then, in specific, the Old
Courthouse Foundation, Incorporated, and the appropriate amendments were made
to accommodate the various board appointments that were reported to you, and
copies of which were given to you from last meeting. That just arrived, and | want the
record to reflect that we have that. | believe that’s, oh, | also had a contact, | did
have a contact from a company called Municipal Services Bureau, which had
previously sent material, and | believe they may have attended one of our meetings
earlier on. Mr. Smaby is an official of that company. He contacted me and | wanted
to make a record that he wishes to make a proposal concerning collection of court
costs, fines and fees that are delinquent and unpaid. He’s made arrangements with
the County Clerk to meet later on in the month with her in order to go through issues
there. He will send further information back to this body. | suggested that he,
consented that he do that through our office. I'll, when we receive that, we’ll forward
them to you for review on that. He did not indicate how much anticipated revenue
that he might recommend could be collected, or for what prices. | believe thatis the
extent of our report this evening.

President Fanello: Thank you.
Philip Hayes: Unless you have any questions on anything.

President Fanello: Any questions? Okay.

Superintendent of County Buildings

President Fanello: Superintendent of County Buildings, and Tammy had to be
absent tonight. Patty, did she have anything.

Patty White: It's in the packet.

President Fanello: Okay. She had a worksheet that she put in the packet.

Steve Craig: Burdette Park

President Fanello: Burdette Park.

Steve Craig: Steve Craig, Manager of Burdette. First thing | have, | guess, is the
letter that we had give to the Commissioners on sending out to different businesses
for them to sponsor kids in the Day Camp and the Science Camp. If the letter is
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okay with you, then we’ll put it on letterhead from the County Commissioners and
have you sign it. Then we’ll run the copies off and send them out.

Commissioner Mourdock: So moved.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Steve Craig: Then the second thing | have, is that I've got some updated information.
I met with Morley and Associates late this afternoon, and I've given you a short, brief
outline of it, and we got it down a little bit more, we made some more cuts. Whatwe
actually need in dollar figures is $469,719, is what we need to start the building, and
with a 10% contingency fee, it actually comes out to $666,690, instead of the
number that | had gave you on the—

President Fanello: What was that first number you gave?

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, me too.

Steve Craig: $469,719.

Commissioner Mourdock: And with the contingency fee, you said it was six hundred
and something?

Steve Craig: Contingency fee was $196,971, and the two of them added together
comes up to $666,690.

Commissioner Mourdock: But the $469,000, isn’t your contingency fee 10% of that
number?

Steve Craig: No. That’s just the money that I'm asking to get the total amount. The
contingency fee is the amount for the whole project.

Commissioner Mourdock: Ah.
Steve Craig: It's 10% of the cost of the building.
Commissioner Mourdock: Oh, sure. Okay, you're right.

Commissioner Mosby: What did you...l was just reading the letter that you sent on
January 10" saying that you needed $715,000. What did you cut this time?

Steve Craig: Yeah. Where did | get that? | deducted all the equipment out of it, but
when Morley’s came out, there was other fees and things that | didn’t want in there.
Once we took the equipment out of it, the overhead and the profit, which they had
21% putin. Then | took the 21% off the total fee of that, which gave me the final
number here. Do you understand what I’'m saying?

Commissioner Mosby: | didn’t quite understand what you were saying there.
Steve Craig: Well, what we had done, what | did, Morley had, was out of town and

| couldn’t get in touch with them last Thursday, was that they had the equipment in
the building, included in it. So, | deducted that from it, but then when Ben Kunkel
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came out from Morley and Associates, | had asked him about the overhead, the
profit that they have in it is 21% of the total cost. So, once | took out the equipment,
that made it $44,000 less than what they had in their profit margin.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay. Well, wasn’t this building originally like $1.8 or nine?

Steve Craig: It still is. The total cost of the building is $1,969,719.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay. The cost of the building minus furnishings is
$2,014,456.

Steve Craig: No, it's $1.96.

Commissioner Mosby: This is your paper, Steve, not mine.

Steve Craig: Yeah, but we took another $44,000 off of that. That’'s what | said, if you
kind of just disregard the first part, because when we went over it this afternoon late,
we made the other cuts.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay, and then | guess my question was originally when we
started this, | mean, back a year, year and a half ago when it was first brought to my
attention, what was the price then? | didn’t think it was this much.

Steve Craig: It was $1.888 million.

Commissioner Mosby: So, what’s driving the cost? | mean, is it just the economy?
Steve Craig: | guess in the last year—

Commissioner Mosby: Construction costs and that?

Steve Craig: Yeah, because he gave me a spread sheet, and that’s what it's went
up in the last year, | guess.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay. So, are you asking to go to the Council then and ask
for $666 thousand-

Steve Craig: 690 dollars.

Commissioner Mosby: $666,690. | will make a motion to go in front of the County
Council and ask for $666,690.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.
President Fanello: So ordered.
Steve Craig: Then | have my worksheets.

President Fanello: Is there any other questions?

SWCD & Ozone Officer Reports
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Commissioner Mourdock: I'll move we include the Soil and Water Conservation and
the Ozone Officer’s Report to the file.

President Fanello: Oh, we can wait. We can wait.
Commissioner Mosby: Second. I’'m sorry.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Consent Iltems

President Fanello: Consent Items.

Suzanne Crouch: | would like to ask that the Commissioners amend the Consent
ltems to include a Substance Abuse Renewal Grantthatthe Health Department has,
is going to renew. It's a pass through grant, so you all don’t need to sign it, but we
would like to submit it for the record.

Commissioner Mosby: I'll make a motion to amend the Consent to include the grant.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

Commissioner Mosby: Then | will make a motion to accept the Consent Item as
amended with the blue claim and the grant.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered on both.’

Scheduled Meetings

President Fanello: Scheduled meetings. From the last Council meeting there was
discussion between the Sheriff and the Council about the Final Building Program
from United. Paul Summers from United will be here on Thursday in Room 303 from
12:00 until 3:00 to go over the Final Building Program with Council members. So,
Patty called over and let Sandie Deig know today, and she was supposed to getin
touch with all the Council members, and we also sent out a, we’re going to send out
a, excuse me, letter also. So, and-

Unidentified: When is that meeting?

President Fanello: Thursday.

Commissioner Mourdock: The 17",

President Fanello: The 17". In Room 303. What he will do is conduct one hour

segments, three times, obviously, so in order to let people come in as they can allow
in their schedule. The Sheriff has something to say.

'Consent Items listed on Page 27.
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Brad Ellsworth: I’'m sorry. Brad Ellsworth, Sheriff. | just wanted to comment. | think
in our last program meeting with Paul last week when we were going over that, we
thought that would be beneficial, because he has just such first hand knowledge.
We even had questions of what this meant in the program, and if you can ask him
right there at the point when you are looking at it, it really helps you out, so. | would
recommend anybody that could make it down there, it would help.

President Fanello: Because | don’t think anybody could take that home and really
understand—

Brad Ellsworth: And not have to come back and have it marked and so—

President Fanello: Yeah, exactly, uh-huh. So he will be there for three hours to
conduct one hour segments, so.

Commissioner Mourdock: Just, what do we expect will be the outcome of that? They
are going to go through the same Final Building Program. That's the 264 page
document.

President Fanello: Yeah, but we don’t have a Final Building Program. That was a
draft, and what the Sheriff did was go back and make his changes. As | understand,
Paul finished it up last week.

Commissioner Mourdock: But they won’t be presenting new estimated budgetary
numbers?

President Fanello: No, no. This is just the Building Program only.

Brad Ellsworth: And, and | think it’s really importantto emphasize every time that that
is still going to be a draft.

President Fanello: Uh-huh.

Brad Ellsworth: That is not the schematic design or the—

President Fanello: Exactly.

Brad Ellsworth: —final thing that says this is what we are going to build. That’s ideas
and brain storming, and certainly open to comment or deletions and still to be picked
apart. There’s no drawing there.

President Fanello: Uh-huh. Exactly. But the Councilmembers had expressed
interest in looking at that, and so he will be here with one final copy to sit down and

go over it with Councilmembers, or anyone else who wishes to attend. Is there any
other questions? Any other meetings?

Old Business

President Fanello: Old Business?

New Business

President Fanello: New Business? Motion to adjourn?
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Commissioner Mourdock: So moved.
Unidentified: (Inaudible. Not at mike.)
Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: Oh, yes, the letter that we talked about last week sending to the
Council about the Old Courthouse.

Commissioner Mourdock: The letter | appreciate. | sent some language in to Patty,
she included that, and | think it looks fine, so I'll move approval of the signing of the
letter to President Winnecke.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered. A copy will be given to all the Councilmembers. So,
now do | have a motion to adjourn?

Commissioner Mosby: So moved.
Commissioner Mourdock: Second.
President Fanello: So ordered.
Meeting was adjourned at 6:40 p.m.
CONSENT ITEMS:

Employment Changes:

County Clerk Circuit Court Health Department
Coroner Public Defender German Assessor
Superior Court Auditor

Travel Requests:

Health Department Treasurer Area Plan

County Engineer Knight Assessor Center Assessor

Requests for Service:
Superior Court Area Plan

Co-Op Extension Office:
Contractual Services Agreement.

Auditor:

Substance Abuse Grant Renewal for Health Department.
Declaration of Surplus Equipment.

Submit Accounts Payable Vouchers.

Commissioners:
Letter to County Council President Regarding Old Courthouse.
No blue claim for USF & G submitted for approval.

Treasurer:
Submit monthly report.
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County Assessor:

Permission to advertise legal ad for PTABOA public meeting regarding
land values.

Prosecutor: Declaration of surplus computers.

Pigeon Assessor: Declaration of surplus computers.

Sheriff:
Weekly jail information and reports.

Those in attendance:

Catherine Fanello David W. Mosby Richard E. Mourdock
Philip Hayes Suzanne Crouch Patty White

Madelyn Grayson Z. Tuley Shirley James
Thornton Patberg Russell Lloyd Mike Shopmeyer
Edward Johnson John Stoll Ralph Kissinger
Steve Craig Brad Ellsworth Jim Raben

Others Unidentified Members of Media

VANDERBURGH COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Catherine Fanello, President

David W. Mosby, Vice President

Richard E. Mourdock, Member

Recorded and Transcribed by Madelyn Grayson.



Vanderburgh County
Board of Commissioners
January 28, 2002

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session this 28" day of
January, 2002, at5:32 p.m. in Room 307 of the Civic Center Complex with President
Catherine Fanello presiding.

Call to Order

President Fanello: | would like to call to order the Board of Commissioners meeting
for January 28".

Introductions and Pledge of Allegiance

President Fanello: Introductions are as follows; Tammy McKinney, Superintendents;
Phil Hayes, County Attorney; David Mosby, County Commissioner; Richard
Mourdock, County Commissioner; Suzanne Crouch, County Auditor and Madelyn
Grayson, Recording Secretary, and I’'m Catherine Fanello. Please join me in the
Pledge of Allegiance.

(The Pledge was given.)

Approval of Minutes

President Fanello: Do | have approval of the minutes from January 14™"?
Commissioner Mosby: So moved.
Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered. And if we could move item F and G up to the front
of the agenda, would that be okay?

Commissioner Mosby: Madam President, before we do that, | would like to put Joe
Harrison on for just a second so that we can talk about the skywalk agreement that
they have to have an okay before tomorrow’s meeting with the Building Authority,
which won’t take but a couple of minutes. Then, | would also move to go ahead and
put F and G up under A so we can get that out of the way.

Philip Hayes: And if we could do this—

Commissioner Mourdock: Just as a reminder, let’'s not forget, we did have an
Executive Session last Tuesday, so we also need to do our summary minutes, in
fact, I'll make a motion now that we accept summary minutes from our meeting last
Tuesday, from the Executive Session. Present were the three Commissioners, plus
Counselor Hayes and Mr. Harrison and the meeting lasted approximately one hour
and 30 minutes, began at 9:30-

Commissioner Mosby: 9:30.

Commissioner Mourdock: —and dealt solely with pending litigation against the
county.

Commissioner Mosby: | would second that.
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President Fanello: So ordered.
Philip Hayes: Sealed bid that—
President Fanello: And, Mr. Harrison.

Commissioner Mosby: Oh, okay.

Joe Harrison, Jr: Executive Inn Skywalk Agreement

Joe Harrison, Jr.: Thank you very much. Joe Harrison, Jr. Appreciate you moving
us up on the agenda. | am here on behalf of the Evansville-Vanderburgh County
Building Authority, and they have been asked to enter into a Skywalk Agreement
with the Evansville Executive Hotel. They are here by their representative, Joe
Vezzoso, and by Edward Johnson, their attorney. The county has also, should also
be a party to this agreement which will enable the skywalk that has been proposed
to be constructed, used and maintained in the future. This agreementwill enable the
construction to begin, and will, for the most part, grant the authority with the
Executive Hotel to handle the unlocking and locking of the door to the skywalk. They
will be solely responsible for the construction, maintenance and operation of the
skywalk. They will be solely responsible for insurance with respect to the skywalk.
They will be responsible for holding, not only the Building Authority, but the county
harmless and indemnify and defend the county should anything ever happen with
respect to that skywalk in the future. There is also a provision in there that may
enable the skywalk to be deeded over to either the Building Authority or the county,
and at that point lease back to them for a rental price, but if that happens, they will
still be solely responsible for the maintenance, operation and use of the facility, and
continue to hold the Building Authority and county harmless and indemnify and
defend the county or Building Authority should anything happen with respect to that
structure in the future. The county, as you know, has a leasehold interest in the
facility, and after the bonds are paid off, the county will own the Centre. Thatis why
we are here to have the county also approve this agreement, because, at some point
in the near future, | can’t remember whether it's 20 years, but that facility will go to
the county after the bonds are paid off. Mr. Johnson may have a question or two,
but this will after, if you all execute this agreement, it will then be considered by the
Building Authority at their meeting tomorrow, and then will be signed by the
Evansville Executive Hotel, and they can then begin construction. There are other
issues regarding that matter, and that has nothing to do with this agreement. This
is solely the maintenance, use, construction and who’s responsible for what, with
respectto that structure. If you have any questions, | would be glad to answer them.

President Fanello: Do you have any questions?

Commissioner Mourdock: The only question | have, | think then this resolves all the
issues that this board discussed, what, two weeks ago today regarding the county—

Commissioner Mosby: No this has nothing to do with the payment.
Commissioner Mourdock: Well, that's why | was asking. If you were, so you'’re

not..this is not going to...this is not going to resolve the concerns you had regarding
the payment?
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Commissioner Mosby: No. We’re going to address that next week. That’s going to
be on next Monday’s agenda. What we’re addressing back then was the building
of the skywalk and them having a construction outfiton board, and | believe that they
have signed an agreement with a local construction company to build the skywalk.
So, that’s going to be on our agenda next week for, and then we will make payment
on the offer that we made back to the Executive earlier in the year.

Joe Harrison, Jr.: This merely enables them to get to that next step. Because,
without this agreement, they can’t get to that next step.

Philip Hayes: There is one blank that is on the document...this is strictly relative to
that—

Joe Harrison, Jr.: | ended up filling that in, Mr. Hayes.

Philip Hayes: On the front page. It has been?

Joe Harrison, Jr.: Yeah.

Philip Hayes: Okay. Good. This message just came across then, it had to do with
the minimum height requirement being 15' from the street level. So, that’s been
taken care of?

Joe Harrison, Jr.: Yes.

Philip Hayes: Alright. Very good.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll move agreement, approval of the agreement then as
submitted.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Joe Harrison, Jr.: Thank you very much. You all do have an original and several
copies with you, and | have an extra original that | can have the Building Authority
sign, but | would like to get maybe the Executive Hotel to sign both those, if possible.
Philip Hayes: Have those been signed?

Joe Harrison, Jr.: | don’t know. It can be down the road.

Philip Hayes: They will be placed in our signature file in the usual procedure, and
then signed tonight, and then available in the morning from the Auditor’s office, from
Madelyn.

Joe Harrison, Jr.: Okay, thank you very much. Thanks for taking it out of order.

Commissioner Mosby: Thank you. You’re welcome. Thank you.

Opening of Bid for Title Searches for Tax Sale Properties
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Commissioner Mosby: Also, before we hear the jail proposals, | would like to make
a motion, it's not on the agenda, but we had one bid come in for title searches for
Suzanne, so | would like to make the motion to have the counselor open this, give
it to the Auditor and take it under advisement until next week.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

21°%* Century Corrections Corporation: Jail Proposal
Ken English/ Ed Hafer

President Fanello: Now we will proceed with Ed Hafer, jail proposal, but we have
Ken English.

Ken English: I'm Ken English with 21°' Century Corrections Corporation, and | want
to introduce Ed Hafer and Alan Braun who will make our presentation.

Ed Hafer: Thank you. Over the past several months there have been several
meetings, discussions, newspaper commentaries, the like, relative to the various
proposals for the jail project. Mr. English’s company, corporation, 21° Century
Corrections Corporation, has assembled a proposal that we are going to present to
you tonight that we believe it presents multiple options to the county with respect to
capacity of the project, site selection, as well as cost for your consideration. It's
based on prior studies that have been done by previous Commissions. It's based
upon meetings that we have had with the affected parties, as you might say, the
Sheriff and others, both recently as well as recent meetings. Input from our team,
which includes our firm, as well as Jacobs Facilities and Industrial Contractors.

Jacobs Facilities as construction, as corrections specialists. | think the best way to
explain this project and this proposal, is to first go through what we refer to as really
the benchmark project. The benchmark project provides for 512 jail housing units,
224 community corrections units, and 24 juvenile units. The, and the support
facilities for all of those numbers. The support facilities which are intake facilities,
medical facilities, service facilities, which is food service, laundry, equipment and the
like, for a jail that could be substantially larger than 512 units. So that in the future,
if additional housing units are added they can be accommodated without
construction of additional food service and the like. This does not require a
significant amount of square footage. Most of that can be done with staffing and
shifts for meals and things like this. So, it's not something that we’re paying or
building a lot of high-end, front end space. So, the L shaped space that you see
there from starting at the right, if you will, the sally port, moving right in there...the
sally port, which is the drop off space for detainees, prisoners, the like, through the
intake space, which is, again, intake, booking, drunk tanks, video, arraignment
facilities, a medical facility and then turning the other way, food service, laundry and
the like. That’s part of the basic component. Within the front of that is public area,
which would be accessed by the general public, jail administration and the like. The
units, and you’ll see eight of them there, four to the left and four to the top. Each unit
is a nominal 64 bed unit. Those numbers can shuffle slightly, depending upon the
mixes of single bed units, to multiple bed units, six or eight person dormitories. Each
of those units is based on direct supervision, 64 beds. 64 beds being the maximum
relative to supervision requirements and the like. So, we build four of those units as
a part of the basic proposal to the left, and four to the top. A total of eight units, 512
inmates. That in and of itself would be a jail. It would be totally self-sufficient.
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Everything necessary for the jail is within that project. To the bottom you see a
community corrections facility. Community corrections facility, as | say, has 224
dormitory units and the necessary administrative and program spaces. The reason
that that is separated from the rest, is that we would anticipate that being an entirely
different type of construction. Far more economical than hard core jail construction
and the like. It can also as part of the flexibility that’s built into it, that can be a
separate phase, if in fact community corrections is or is not part of the facility. Then
off to the right is the third component which is the juvenile facility, which shares the
main sally port that would be built as a part of the jail. It's own intake and
administrative area and housing for 24 juveniles in the wing that you see there. The
site itself, public parking off of a main road, and this is a hypothetical site to be
determined, and the actuallayout of the expansion and the like could vary depending
upon the configuration of the site, but anyway, public parking there. Toward the left
is staff parking, which also is the service entrance for incoming food and the like, as
well as outgoing trash and these sorts of things. Then you see a loop row that goes
around with access to the sally port that off of that would provide parking for sheriff's
deputies, jail administration and the officials associated with the juvenile facility.

Within the proposal that is being made as a part of this site is our facilities only for
jail administration. You also see there another wing of the building adjacent to the
main entrance which could house a full fledge sheriff’'s office, as well as even
potentially space for courts. The parking that | indicated is roughly 350 cars to take
care of this space. So, when it's all said and done, there would be a facility with 512
jail beds, 224 corrections beds, 24 juvenile beds, a total of 760, 350 cars,
approximately 193,000 square feet of space. Utilizing the very same program and
looking toward downtown and the Civic Center, a second proposal has been
developed as part of our presentation. This is a new downtown jail on the site of the
Civic Center parking lot. You can see the convention center at the top of the sheet,
and Locust Street right below that. As Locust Street would continue in to the Civic
Center parking lot, that intersection between what’s there is a drive in the parking lot
and Ninth Street. That’s the corner in which we are anticipating the new jail building
would be built. This building is to be built under the exact same program that |
described as part of the benchmark site, would have on it’s first floor all the support
facilities for the jail, the kitchen, the intake, the medical, administration and the like.

The second floor would be the juvenile facility. Third floor would be community
corrections. Fourth and fifth floors would be jail. As | said, it's the same building
program, but it is stacked vertically. So, we have a building that really approaches
seven stories, because those two jail floors would actually have a floor plus a
mezzanine. Sally port is there at the bottom to provide access into the jail. We
haven’t shown a connection back to the courts building, a bridge, the like could be
constructed to provide overhead connection to the courts building. Other
consideration developed usually would be to transport prisoners with a vehicle of
some sort. This building when it’s all said and done, would have the same building
program. | would say that high rise construction will take some more space,
because of stairs, elevators, additional lobbies, and the like, so we are anticipating
that from a square foot standpoint, this building would be approximately 10% larger
than the one on the open, flat, essentially single story site. Briefly, to run through the
plans, in interest of time, you can see the first floor plan here, again, the (Inaudible)
is slightly different, but the eight jail pods there, the L shape with the intake services
and the like, community corrections off to the left, juvenile down to the bottom. Then
as I mentioned, in this facility there would be a mezzanine above the cell blocks, and
a potential second floor for the jail. A typical cell block here, that you can see on
the...down, the next one, up. Again, direct supervision, which means that there will
be a person stationed within the middle of the large day room here that will supervise
everything. The trapezoidal shaped room that you see up there is actually outdoor
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recreation space rooms around the perimeter on both floors. One of the interesting
things on this, on the mezzanine level is actually where visitation would occur.
Visitors to the jail would, or inmates would actually be brought into the facility to the
second floor, the prisoners would never leave the cell block. For those of you who
may have visited the facility in Lexington, Kentucky, diagrammatically this is
Lexington. It’s not pie shaped, those sorts of things, but the type of supervision, the
number of basic units and the like is the same. So, and we would use that same cell
block in either one. The downtown site, to go through it quickly, again, Alan I'm out
of order there, but that third floor, that's the community corrections floor, ground
floor, I'm sorry, again a main entrance at the corner of Ninth and the Civic Center
parking lot. The sally port down at this side, intake, food service and the like in the
back, administration, jail at the top. The second floor is the juvenile facility, as |
mentioned, as well as the administrative space for community corrections that you
see up there. Then the fourth floor is the community corrections floor. The fifth and
sixth are open floors for jail cells. Now, again, that one will have approximately 10%
more area than the Civic Center side. When we talk about options, if you look at this
board, | can kind of walk over here, this is that basic jail support area that we talked
about. The project—

Commissioner Mourdock: Excuse me. Alan if you would, or Ed would you walk over
with the mike? Because we’re trying to get it all on tape. Our mike won’t pick you
up otherwise.

Ed Hafer: The units build up to here, with in the case of the basic project, the eight
units, to the point that a single five or 760, 512 bed jail would look something akin
to this. When we add the community corrections here, this square footage we get
the red plus the green, the jail, we get to this. Then with respect to expansion, as
| mentioned, we can expand this way, or we could expand this way with individual
jail pods. We can expand the juvenile in this way, or that way. We can add
additional wings here for community corrections, as need be, and as | said, the
sheriff’'s office and the court facility are also not in the basic project. Each of these
64 units are to build a pair of units 128 units, of jail space. Each of the expansion
that you see, as far as the modules, and there are four there in the grey space for
community corrections, each of those would have 56 units. The juvenile is not built
really on a modular system. So, within that, there are a whole series of options,
depending upon whether you build certain types of facilities, or you don’t build
certain types of facilities, and then, of course, how many you build. |think Alan now,
you have a spreadsheet or a sheet in the back of the pass out that shows however
many A through K is as far as options.

Alan Braun: I'm Alan Braun with Industrial Contractors. | would just like to go
through the cost, and | might add that down at the bottom there where it says
financing is included. It’s really construction financing that’s included. So, basically,
we’re talking these whole prices include everything but land cost, and construction
financing is included. We could start with the, | would say, what Ed was saying is
the full jail, 512 jail, under your thing, that would be option G, with 512 jail beds, 224
community construct, community corrections, and 24 juvenile. And that would be
$44,808,000. Now, you know, we wanted to know, basically, what can you get for
around $35 million. At $35,051,000 we get 512 jail beds. The entire jail that we
have. Now off of that I've got a lot options. Like if we got 384 beds, and that would
just be taking off, the best increment to take off is 128, or 64 to 128, as you can see
by the pods, and that’s why we did it that way. You know, it's set up modularly, and
it's in 64 cells, so we did an option for 384 jail beds, for 448 with no juvenile, 448
beds with 224 juvenile, rather 224 community correction. 448 with 224 community
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correction and 24 juvenile. Then the 512 jail beds with 224 community. The full
thing there with 512 jail beds, 224 community and 24 juvenile. All the way up to 640
beds, with 280 community corrections and 24 juvenile, which is $51,172,000,
including all construction financing, no land cost. You know, this way the jail is
constructed, as Ed said, we recommend, our recommendation is to go to a green
field site, just because of the cost. A high rise jail, in our opinion, would be 15% to
20% more. Everyone says operationally, you know, if you build it next to the existing
jail, it will help in one thing, with taking prisoners back and forth. | think we had 50
trials last year. You know, otherwise, operationally, the single floor is much better.

| just, | guess, I just refer to it how would your operation be at your house if you had
a seven story house or a one story house? Moving food, anything that you do, when
you don’t have to go to the elevator to move food, move supplies, to move prisoners,
| think you are much better off. You know, the visitors can all go to, the way it's set
up, the visitors can all go to the jail cells. | think, to the areas. | think, operationally,
it works very well. We would just recommend that, you know, we don’t prefer any
site, we just said it takes, it will take at least eight to ten acres, probably 20 would be
preferable, just to get a buffer zone, but it's dependant upon where you putit. We
do feel like operational, the preferred jail would be the one on a green field site.

Anything you want to add to that?

Ed Hafer: Yeah, | didn’t, | neglected to really talk about some of the issues relative
to the downtown site, but, you know, | mentioned that under the green field site we
would build the community corrections facility in a more economical manner, in
terms of type of construction. Once we fold that into a high rise building, you know,
we’re committed to what’s known in the trade as Type | construction, just because
of fire codes, things like that. So, that will go up. The downtown site, as | did
mention, will take more square footage. Building to a downtown site, unless land is
just, you know, of no concern, which | think it is in the case of that, really it is the
flexibility of the project down the road. | mean, with this one, you know, we can
come back later, or you can come back later and add more jail units and things like
that. Much harder to do locked into a high rise solution. There are some ways, like
Lexington, where they actually built community corrections facilities, which later
could be converted into full jail cells, but they paid the price for that and it’s a fairly
significantone. | think there is, there are also social issues with putting a community
corrections facility in downtown, and there are a lot of logistic issues in terms of if
you use the Civic Center site, so.

Alan Braun: | guess, just to wrap up, we would just like to really thank the
Commissioners for giving us the time tonight, and | would like to thank all the
Councilmembers we met with for their time, and the Sheriff, for your time. We
appreciate it very much, and appreciate the opportunity to give you this proposal.

President Fanello: Do we have any questions?

Ed Hafer: We would be happy to answer questions.

President Fanello: | was going to say, stick around for questions.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, | have a bunch, and these are in no particular order,
| guess, but the idea that going up costs more, kind of goes against, it seems to me,
most preconceived notions of construction. Generally, as you go up, thatfloor space

is considered somewhat cheaper. Do you want to address why in this case that’s
not accurate?
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Alan Braun: | think in this particular case that we end up, as Ed stated, that you end
up, if you put community corrections in there, you’re putting what could be a lower
priced, you know, | think community corrections can just be a big dorm. If you put
itin here in this particular setting, you are going to end up with a lot more expensive
construction. It takes the site that we are using here, that might be the case if you
are putting, | don’t necessarily agree with, number one that it's cheaper to go up. |
think, in some instances it is, but in most it's not.

Commissioner Mourdock: That’s my preconceived notion, and I’m not saying that’s
right. Tell me why I’'m wrong.

Alan Braun: | was going to say—
Commissioner Mourdock: Tell me why I’'m wrong, Alan. What is it that’'s going—

Alan Braun: Well, it’s just your circulation, your elevators, your, you know, | mean,
anything down the line. As a rule, sometimes that’s true, but most high rise office
buildings cost you more than when you go outin the suburbs and build a single floor.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay. As you looked at the jail component of this, and
defining your units of, what was it 567

Alan Braun: 64.

Commissioner Mourdock: 64, okay. Are all 64 maximum security? | mean, in this
plan is there any set aside pods for maximum security, and others for minimum
security? Or are they all the same? Is there any differentiation in what you did with
those?

Alan Braun: Yes.

Ed Hafer: Each pod can house 64 people, two people per cell. Two beds per cell.
So, the game that you play is that if you need a certain number of single maximum
security in there, you make the rest of them dormitory, or a corresponding number
dormitory type cells in that wing. So, you are still at 64, it’s just that the mix changes.
Rather than having, you know, 64 or 32 doubles, you might have, I'll get the math
wrong here, but, you know, 12 singles and, you know, 54 or you know, a
combination there. You want to total up as close to 64 as you can to maximize staff
efficiencies.

Alan Braun: One other item, if you happen to look at downtown, also is of course
parking, and where it's going to go and how much parking you are going to take and
what’s that going to do, and if these projects go at the same time, you know, you’ll
probably catch yourself in a situation where you already do need a parking garage,
but you’ll need one for sure. Then make sure how they’re...you’d have to get the
parking garage done, basically, before you started the jail, because you are going
to take up an awful lot of space. It may even delay the jail some. | think that is
another consideration.

Commissioner Mourdock: | should have said at the outset and didn’t, | want to thank
the three of you for starting this discussion here, and especially for taking the time.
| know you’'ve met with all of the Commissioners individually, and met with all the
Council folks, or almost all the Council folks, and | think that is a key part in what we
need to do here, is just keep that kind of discussion going on. | appreciate you doing
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that, and | know it took a lot of time. Last question I'll have here is, when you look
at your option, that is the $35 million option, option E, the 512 jail beds, is there
anyway if you did only that option, that the back 40 or the courts parking lot or
something close to hand becomes more desirable? In other words, if you only do
that, does your idea of having a green field spot become less important? Do you
understand the question? Want me to try it one more time?

Alan Braun: | guess...no, | understand.
Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

Alan Braun: Number one, you have to realize that it's probably not a $35 million
project anymore.

Commissioner Mourdock: Because you are going to have to go up.

Alan Braun: Because you are going to have to go up. Personally, you know, we can
do it. You know, we’re willing to build it wherever you all want it. There’s no doubt
aboutit. We just give you what we recommend. The other thing is when you go for
expansion, you know, what we’ve got here, as you can see, is very expandable. If
you are going to go high rise, and you want to expand, and you decide 512 jail beds
isn’t enough sometime in the future, it goes on top. Then we all know how much
more it costs. So, you know, | mean, you have to realize that personally, you know,
it can work. We’re not saying that at all.

Commissioner Mourdock: It only takes money, right?

Alan Braun: That’s right. You know, we knew that that was, you know, one of the
things that’s been the hold up, and that’s why we tried to do what we thought was the
optimum one.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, | appreciate that.

President Fanello: Any questions? | just have a couple of questions. I'll try to make
them as brief as possible. On the cost scenarios, | guess, | would like to know, we
have a total cost here, but what’s the county’s payment going to be, or how? | know
before, and there was talk in the newspaper this morning that you were going to
charge $17 a day per bed, then | heard that that wasn’t the case. So, what is our
payment annually? In order for us to compare costs.

Ken English: We probably can’t give that right now. | mean, if we give it to you
today, it might not be the same if interest rates move or something like that. Also,
do you want it for 15 years, 20 years, 25 years? Those are things that we have to
look at before we can really, but basically we're looking at your total number. So,
you can extrapolate that out.

Commissioner Mourdock: Just to follow up with that, because | think that is a key
point, and | understand there can’t be any real definite terms until there is some
serious negotiation, but | presume if a contract was entered into, there could be
some early buy out provisions? In other words, if for whatever reason the county
was suddenly flush with money and wanted to take the thing over quickly, that that’s
something that could be included in the terms of the lease?

Ken English: Yes. Yeah, we would work with that, sure.
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President Fanello: | just have one question, probably, Mr. Shively could answer this
question. If he would like to, since he’s the, he is your legal part of the—

Les Shively: (Inaudible. Not at mike.)

President Fanello: Well, come up here and I'll see if you know the answer. If we
were to consider, consider a private agreement...I've been reading, been trying to
read up on the material and everything, and | understand there is an article to the
State Code, Article 23 under Title V that deals with privatization.

Les Shively: (Inaudible.) When operating (Inaudible).

President Fanello: How does that fit in? It requires that if you are going to consider
a private agreement that you go out for Request for Proposals. So, what’s your
interpretation?

Les Shively: You have two ways to go. If you have a true sale and lease/back
arrangement, which is the material that | think | faxed you towards the end of the
week, it’s simply a turn key type operation. Thatis providing that there is, at the end
of the lease, it's one dollar, then basically it’s just a sale, it’'s a true sale and lease/
back arrangement. You don’t have to go through that. The provisions that you talk
about joint operating BOT’s. They are a little bit different, because they cover a
plethora of different kinds of situations. Everything from golf courses to managing
airports, what have you. It’s alittle, it's more of a hybrid type situation. Both of them
are viable, it all depends on how you structure the deal. But even if you go with a
BOT, yes, you can do, it requires you do an RFP, butit’s not, it’s totally different from
a public bidding situation, where you are under the public bid laws. You do an RFP,
but the statute particularly says that all proposals, responses are kept confidential,
and all you have to do is do an RFP, and at a public hearing, award that contract or
enter into that agreement ata public meeting. It's still a totally different concept from
the public bid laws when you do a conventional bond issue, construction contract,
what have you, but you have either option to go. A lot of that, | think, depends upon
what you do on the situation. They’ve talked about a green area, or a site away from
downtown, a lot of that would depend, would probably lean more favorable to doing
a straight simple sale and lease/back arrangement. Did that answer your question?

President Fanello: Yes.
Les Shively: (Inaudible. Not at mike.)
President Fanello: That's my question, because—

Les Shively: | only sent you material on the sale and lease/back, you apparently had
already read about the—

President Fanello: Well, | had a book about construction contracting for public
entities, and | was going through it and it was talking about public/private
agreements. So, it was confusing as to whether or not this would call for a Request
for Proposal.

Les Shively: That’s very understandable. We were looking at this several months
ago. I've talked to competitive community, competitive governmental contractors,
which is a group of former of City of Indianapolis DMD type people that formed a
company that assists local governments in doing public/private arrangements, and
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| posed the same question, | said, which set of statutes are we under? They didn’t
know the answer either. They work with it all the time. It all depends on how you
structure your deal. To me, if it's more of a truly sale and lease/back of a turn key
operation, then your under the lease statutes. Ifit’s not, if it's something different,
if it's a hybrid, then you would be under the other statutes, but both of them are
viable.

President Fanello: Okay, thank you. Thank you. Then my other question, | don’t
remember, excuse me, if | asked this question before, but the only example of
another private agreement | could find in the state of Indiana was one in Marion
County where an annex was being run by an actual private corporation. Are you
aware of any examples of the kind of situation that we are talking about here?
Unidentified: No.

President Fanello: Well, because the newspaper kind of confused me because they
had an editorial a couple of weeks ago, or a week or so ago that said that, you know,
privatization had been done in Indiana, but yet | could only find one example. So,
| was a little confused by that.

Commissioner Mourdock: The annex you're referring to, is that the community
corrections facility in Indianapolis?

President Fanello: This is a 700 bed annex in Marion County.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, that’s it. It's a community corrections facility they
are doing, and, basically, and | forget the name of the corporation—

President Fanello: CCA.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, okay. Community Corrections or Criminal,
whatever.

President Fanello: Whatever it is.

Commissioner Mourdock: They came in and boughtthe building and then remodeled
it.

President Fanello: | was just trying to find if there were any...yes?
Brad Ellsworth: It is a jail.

President Fanello: It is a jail?

Brad Ellsworth: (Inaudible. Not at mike.)

President Fanello: Okay.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, but it's not a jail in the sense that we think of the
iron bars. It's more of a big drunk tank.

Brad Ellsworth: No, they retro, no, they retrofitted a whole warehouse with secure
cells inside. The retrofitted (Inaudible. Not at mike.)
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President Fanello: | was going to say, DOC was using 300 or 400 of those beds, was
the word that | got. | don’t know if you know anything about that.

Brad Ellsworth: It's overcrowded too.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, that’s the one where the Sheriff, for a while, was
being ordered to pick who he wanted to release because of over crowdedness.

Brad Ellsworth: (Inaudible. Not at mike.)

President Fanello: So we would be setting somewhat of a precedent, so we would
have to approach it very carefully, | think.

Commissioner Mourdock: It would be nice to be on the cutting edge, though.
President Fanello: If it came out good, yeah.

Commissioner Mourdock: True.

President Fanello: Thank you, gentlemen.

Troy Tornatta: Troy Tornatta, County Council. You guys said you were going to
come up with some type of price structure per year on a lease/back, is thatanywhere
in the works? That was something that we requested in our meeting. | didn’t know
if that was given out.

Commissioner Mourdock: | don’t think they can do that-

President Fanello: That was my question earlier.

Commissioner Mourdock: —without specifics from us. Until we tell them exactly what
it is we’d be looking for—

Troy Tornatta: You’ve already told them what you are looking for.

Commissioner Mourdock: No, we haven’t. | mean, that's why they gave us A
through K as options.

Troy Tornatta: What about the 650 expandable to 1,000, the 330 community
corrections, the 24 juvenile detention beds? Was that not stated, voted on and
approved?

Commissioner Mourdock: It was not given to them as an instruction. They’'ve done
this on their own. They based this based on whatever they design to be the
reasonable number of units, or number of people in any given pod with the 64 and
such. I mean, we did not direct them to do any of this.

Troy Tornatta: What was the vote taken for at this Commission on what the county
needs? Isn’t that what we’re after, what the county needs?

Commissioner Mourdock: Yes, we are after what the county needs and what the
county can afford.

Troy Tornatta: I’'m not pointing this at you, I'm just saying—
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Commissioner Mourdock: Go ahead and point at me.

Troy Tornatta: —under these auspices, we’re trying to figure out exactly what the
county needs. We voted on what the county needs. | say we, the Commission has
voted on what the county needs, and passed what those numbers should be set.
Are we going against that now? | guess, if that’s the case then we are kind of getting
off base is what I'm—

Commissioner Mourdock: On that we would agree, Troy, because as | spoke to Mr.
Hafer and Mr. English today, my comment is | think we have, somewhat, lost focus,
in the sense, and by this when | say we, | include myself here, in that we started this
project some time ago based on the 1979 court case dealing with jail overcrowding.
Then it suddenly started to include community corrections. Thenitincludes juvenile,
and two weeks ago, at this meeting, we had a brief discussion on if, in fact, the
County Council stays at $35 million, what is it we can do? At least two of us, at that
point, were saying well maybe community corrections cannot be included based on
the budgetary numbers we’re looking at. So, I think your comment about the 650
and 300 and 24, yes, it was voted on at this Commission, but, | think, it has to be
seen as somewhat fluid—

Troy Tornatta: Right, but—
Commissioner Mourdock: —because the budget isn’t going to be there for that.

Troy Tornatta: —in the United, let’s bring them up because they are the majority vote
for the architect. In their proposal, we had an idea of what the yearly totals, or some
type of frame on what a yearly payment would be. | guess, to me, being of the fiscal
body, | would like to know what kind of number we are looking at before | can feel
comfortable with any proposal. | mean, this is...so, they’'ve got A, B, C through G,
whatever they’ve got, | don’t have the document in front of me, how do we know
what those boil down to? That’s, | guess, what I'd like to hear out of this, and what
| was trying to, what | was talking to you guys about bringing in. | have, | mean, I'm
not pinned to anything, but | have to have the fiscal numbers in order to make a
decision.

Commissioner Mosby: I'll try to answer your question. | guess, when | met with
them, that’s exactly what I told them. 650, 300 and 24. | told them that was what
was voted on here. Probably as close as you are going to get would be 640, 280
and 24. So, we're going to be ten beds off on the jail, 20 beds off on the community
corrections, and we need to put a number behind that $52 million figure, or
$51,172,000. | guess, depending on if we build it on the back 40 like we’re talking
at, we can add 20% to the $51 million and try to come up with a cost from there to
compare to our cost.

Troy Tornatta: Right, but, | guess, I'm saying | don’t want to speculate their costs.

Commissioner Mosby: And really, | mean, it's going to be tough to do, because they
are saying, deciding on when financing is due, and | don’t know when they are going
to finance it. So, | mean, it’s going to be tough for us to figure their interest rate in
and figure a payment, because, | mean, all of a sudden we are figuring $51 million,
plus 20%, plus whatever their cost might be, so you are probably close to $55-$60
million.

Troy Tornatta: I'm not—
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Commissioner Mosby: (Inaudible. Talking over each other.)

Troy Tornatta: —that’s my question | pose to you.

Alan Braun: I’'m not sure that United’s proposal is built on the back 40.
Commissioner Mosby: That's where we told them to look at.

Alan Braun: Well, | know, but | mean I'm not sure that’s where their price is.
Anyway, from there, we can price it, and you know, we gave a per bed price. Per
bed price changes depending on the mix. You know, if you're talking community
corrections, if you're talking straight jail, or if you're talking juvenile, community
corrections and jail. That’s why we didn’t give a price. We didn’t give a price on
financing cost change, although when | say financing costs may vary, you know,
yours is going to vary too—

Commissioner Mosby: Right.

Alan Braun: —depending on when you do. That’s all we’re trying to say. This merely
has construction financing. What I’m saying is, we can't, if you tell us what, we can
very easily tell you what it will cost at a specific date, if we know which one’s you
want priced. | just gave this to you, you know, we tried to give you about every
option we could give you, and say what do we really want. If we do that, we have
no problem pricing it at all. Mr. English doesn’t. | mean, he’s got the financing lined
up, you know, at Fifth Third, you know, he’s got it lined up, so | don’t think it would
be any problem.

Commissioner Mosby: You know, | understand that, and | guess when | met with you
and | said | wanted to try and compare apples to apples, but you know, still | sit here
and look at option K at 640, 280 and 24, and | really don’t know what that
encompasses. | mean, | can look at United’s proposal that we had that we
presented to the Council, same as the Council looked at it and said, oh, | didn’t know
you was moving the command center, you know, | didn’t know you was moving
administrative. You know, and that’s what our proposal consists of. |stilldon’t know
what yours consists of. | mean, | don’t know what you’ve allowed for. | don’t know
what you want me to compare. | mean if I'm going to compare something, it's got
to be apples to apples. So, | mean, basically, | guess | could show you our four
options and everything that was included in them, but | need you to show me your
options, and make sure that you have the same amount of square footage, and you
have the same amount of administrative, and the same amount of laundry room and
kitchen and medical, and the whole nine yards. | mean, to look at option K and say
I’'m going to compare that really doesn’t give me anything to compare. | mean-

Unidentified: (Inaudible. Not at mike.)

Jim Raben: Councilman James Raben. Pardon me for stepping in, but | would like
to comment on a comment made by Commissioner Mosby on, in terms of your
proposal. | think it’s only fair to state that the proposal that you’re referring to came
with a price tag of about $400,000. So, | don’t know what your fee has been to date,
or their fee, but what is it?

Unidentified: We’d be happy to bill you.

Jim Raben: Well, | mean, let’s be very fair.
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President Fanello: Well, with all—
Jim Raben: | mean, $400,000 we should have a clear definition.
President Fanello: —with, with, with—

Commissioner Mosby: With the $400,000 | have a clear definition of mine, | don’t of
theirs.

President Fanello: With all due respect—

Commissioner Mosby: I'm just saying, that’s going to be in the total cost of our
project, and we all knew going up front that we had...we wouldn’t have anything to
compare againstif we didn’t hire somebody to do it. | mean, | don’t know if you were
willing to go out and sell this city and county for nothing, and not have anything to
compare on, but if you were willing to do it, it's poor, that’s poor-

Jim Raben: | don’t know that either of the two groups would probably like to take that
$400,000 proposal, and you could probably bid from it, could you not? | mean, if you
want apples to apples.

Commissioner Mosby: This is not a bidding war, Councilman.

Jim Raben: No, but | mean, | want to be fair—

Commissioner Mosby: I’'m sorry, but—

Jim Raben: —to these gentleman that have taken their time and have not, and have
done this, basically, free gratas to the county. | want to be very fair with them, and
your point was not true when you stated, or | guess it was true, but it wasn’t fair,
because their was a deal associated with that information—

President Fanello: Let me interject there for a moment. We have a 265 page
Building Program, Sheriff? Is that about how many? And how many months have
you worked on that?

Brad Ellsworth: Five or six.

President Fanello: Okay, with all due respect, and | appreciate everything that they
have brought, they’ve done, you know, a lot of work here, but there is probably a lot
more work that they would need to do—

Jim Raben: Right.

President Fanello: —which I’'m sure, you know—

Jim Raben: If they had the same opportunity, I'm sure they could be a whole lot more
elaborate with their proposal-

President Fanello: But we do have a 265 page Building Program that’s been drafted.
Would it be possible for these people to take that Building Program and—

Jim Raben: You know, I'll leave that to them, but | did want to hit on something else
that Troy had mentioned. Troy, they had stated that part of the reason why, and I'm
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sure you’ll here it again with the next proposal, again, it has a lot to do with the
interest rates and what have you. We haven’t said whether we want a 15 year, 20
year, 25 year lease or bonds, you know, all that has to be considered before they
can give you a total figure. Again, any figures that were given to us last week, if I'm
not mistaken, there was a bill associated with those figures, with those calculations.
Was there not?

President Fanello: What figures last week?
Jim Raben: From our, our meeting from the 30". When bond counsel was here.
President Fanello: Our Commission hired them.

Jim Raben: Okay, but | mean there was a fee associated with obtaining those
numbers. So, again, let’s be fair to the people that are—

President Fanello: Well, | think we understand-
Jim Raben: —here asking for an opportunity.

President Fanello: | think we understand what you're saying. We’'re just saying what
we need, or what we feel we need to be able to compare.

Commissioner Mourdock: | don’t know that Mr. Kinkel is going to come forward and
give exactly the same type of information, but certainly we could provide to both of
these gentleman, or both of these groups and anyone else who wants to offer us
some type of privatization option, the same general terms and conditions that Crowe
Chizek included in what they did with their annual projections. In other words, what’s
the term? Is it going to be 20 years or 25 years? What's the interest rate? We can
lay out all those things, and | suspect these folks would be more than willing to get
back to us given those terms and give us some estimated costs or actual costs, not
estimated, actual costs and what it would be.

Alan Braun: We’d be more than happy...l think what you have to realize, and, David,
we did listen to you when you said you wanted 650, but the reason we used 640—

Commissioner Mosby: And that’s fine.

Alan Braun: —you know why, it's because the multiple what one, really, jailer can
watch is 64. You know, that’s the maximum, so we tried to maximize operationally,
and that’'s why the pods are set up that way. That’s all we tried to do with our
design. | know it didn’t work out exactly the same, but we tried to get very close.

Commissioner Mosby: And United has said that too, that it doesn’t always work out
to the number you say. We just round it. Like | say, this is close enough that | was
telling Councilman Tornatta, we can compare that. | mean, it's only 30 beds off, the
whole total. So, that’s not a problem, because United has said the same thing. It’s
not that you will always get 322 if that’s what you want. You might get 328 or 320.
That’s not a problem.

Madelyn Grayson: Excuse me, may we change the tape please?

Commissioner Mosby: Sure.
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(Tape Changed)

J.T. Kinkle - Jail Proposal

President Fanello: Are there any other questions? Does anyone else have any
questions? Okay, thank you gentlemen, we do appreciate your time and effort.

Commissioner Mosby: We just need to keep moving.

President Fanello: We've got another proposal that they are waiting to make. Would
you mind maybe after that proposal?

Unidentified: (Inaudible)
President Fanello: Is it about the proposal? Okay. J.T.?

J.T.Kinkle: Thank you. | hope that | still get fifteen minutes. Well, thank you for your
invitation to make this presentation and contrary to anything you have heard by any
other public or private proposal, this proposal is project specific. | think that we all
know what we are talking about. We have shown it to you in numerous pictures.

We are not here to compete with the previous group. We’'re just, we’re not. This is
based on a 23 year old study that came out in 1979, a Blue Ribbon Committee that
my father was on. It has gone through much additional recent thought by a number
of parties and there | will take you through what some of those re-thoughts have
been. The basic premise is that it is based on placing a round tower, or towers, in
the judges parking lot. The towers lower floors would be for administrative and
supportive functions with the upper floors providing space for 48 inmates per floor.

So, these floors are both flexible and modular and | will address further what | mean
by the flexibility and the modularity of those floors. The floor layout uses a central
direct supervision station that allows 360’ visibility for the detention officer. With a
spin of the chair the detention officer can directly see each cell, have full control over
that cell’'s functions and environment. In other words, the detention center by the
detention officer seated in the central core controls all of the doors, water valves,
lighting, heating and cooling devices, etc., giving them complete control over
everything in that area, except the personality of the inmates. Also, the cells
perimeter walls provide a double containment zone, similar to a pipe in a pipe. The
flexibility of the cells stems from the inherentisolation of each wedge. No cellis able
to see or directly hear any other cell. This gives the administration daily flexibility to
arrange the inmates from floor to floor as well as cell to cell to accommodate that
day’s population based upon, and here | will give a few examples, | am not a jail
administrator, you might be violent and some areas and non-violent in others. Male
in some areas, female in others. Pre-trial verses post-trial and any other format that
the administration sees fit. So, you have 64 with six people, I'm sorry, eight per cell,
or six, with the pie you can divide by six people all the way around and floor to floor.

So, this gives you the flexibility for what we obviously see as a changing inmate
population in Evansville, Indiana. It does not stick you with 64 people be guarded
by one guard or the inverse of that, one person guarding one person due to a 64
area pod, 64 person pod. The floor to floor flexibility also permits the same flexibility
as the cells but on a larger scale. So, the double containment design allows
provisions for flexibility from floor to floor allowing that floor’s population to move
about within the floors should the administration decide that is proper usage. Now,
this proposal over and above the low direct project which | will also get into later, is
advantageous to the county in many other ways. You already own the land, there
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won’t be any blue ribbon committees needed to find a new site for a difficult to locate
jail. You would not be required to incur costly zoning expense and seek approval to
locate a new jail in someone else’s back yard. The construction of our proposed jail
would not interfere with the existing jail or its operations. The existing jail would then
be renovated to another corrections based function as a minimum cost. It can be
community corrections, program space for the new jail, jail storage or it could be
used as s for additional beds. Since it has been shown that locating the jail in the
back 40 by numerous parties is not feasible and it goes against the county or the
city’s master plan, | will limit my discussion to a comparison between our proposal
and a proposal that requires a new site or a green field site. With any off site options
the following costs must be considered. Number one, the cost of the land, in
Evansville, Indiana it could be anywhere from one-half million to one and a half
million or even greater. Number two, the costs, both the financial costs and the lost
time costs to find land suitable to the project and to demonstrate to the neighbors
that you'll affect, that is truly the necessary place to put that jail. The costto develop
a new site, well that includes sewers, roads, and possibly environmental clean up
depending upon where you decide your site will be and that could run into the
millions of dollars. Fourth, you have the cost to modify the existing jail to a new
corrections based facility, such as temporary holding for hearings, | would consider
that probably $60 a square foot at your nearly 50,000 square feet for three plus
million dollars. Or, the cost to modify the existing jail to a non corrections based
usage, such as offices. | would say that might cost you $120 a square foot or six
plus million dollars. So, after you add those things together, only the dollar issues,
you are looking at maybe $10 million but you have to add to everything that you have
talked about thus far. So, as you know, no public or business decision should be
made without analyzing the cost verses the benefit. Our proposal, the cost is 20
million in round figures. May we use your easel? | hope thatldon’t break into Elvis.
Okay, we had to look, | hope you can see this, we had to look at one particular set
of perimeters to even talk to you about dollars. So, we decided 480 beds, as we
said, we are not saying one tower, we are saying one, two, three or who knows how
many towers using the judges parking lot, if you will. With private funding we
estimate the construction costs at $200 a square foot for basically $20 million dollars
Then, providing the construction interest for almost $1.4 million gives you a total
project construction cost of $21 million. Then if you add the architectural and
engineering fees that the private funding has to pay as well, that is $1.5 million or
possibly greater at $22.6 million. Now private developing and finding money and
committing to the loan, the legal fees bond, well you wouldn’t have a bond fee, you
would be up to about $24 million which gives Vanderburgh County a monthly
payment of $200,000 plus with an annual payment therefore being $2.4 million or
basically $2.5 million dollars a year. | think it is important to think about those
figures. The daily cost per bed here is $13.95 with a monthly cost of $424.46 and
these are estimated figures. We also placed the public bond numbers there just so
that you could have a comparison. Those are all based on 6.11% which | believe
was the successful rate which the Library Board was able to achieve. Now, the
benefits of what we have. The jail, sheriff's office and courts remain central and
adjacent so the operation may continue to take, of what we see, as an inherent
efficiency. No additional travel costs for inmate court visits or concern regarding the
security of the travel process. Now, on the same note the inmates may continually
remain in direct supervision, at the direct supervision jail as they await their trial.
You wouldn’t have the added responsibility of liability of deciding which detainees
requires direct supervision. You have flexibility for operations with the cell to cell and
floor to floor modularity. Fourth, you have flexibility for the administration. The plan
may employ a one, two, three tower solution providing a great deal of administrative
program space. More than 2,000 square feet for each 48 inmate floor, or in this
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particular case which | am presenting tonight more than 20,000 square feet of non-
inmate program space. The existing jail operations will not be affected and the
transition to the annex jail would be minimal. Both the current and passed Indiana
State Jail Inspectors have reviewed this concept and provided positive remarks.

This proposal satisfies the first county priority of providing additional jail space and
i's modular design permits the use of floors and existing jail space for other
corrections based usage. Now the two objections that | see to our proposal are
number one, it displaces parking spaces in the judges parking lot and would
probably result in the construction of a parking garage and as we said earlier it is
probably already sorely needed. Number two, the towers would obstruct the view
from the offices along the judges parking lot. Now, in trying to consider what the
other proposals have, their cost benefit, | look at the cost. Tens of millions of dollars
more in the initial project cost. |1 don’t think that | have heard anything less than $35
million and then you have to add the additional costs which | earlier estimated at $10
million dollars. So, the benefits to those plans and | think those were demonstrated
earlier by the previous group, starting from scratch gives the county the ability build
a county corrections campus exactly as the administration dictates to the designer.

It gives you everything. The only limitations to the wishes to the administration or
imposed by a) the site you ultimately choose and b) the limits on funding. So, the
cons here are obviously related to the site and the funding. | think that we have all
learned that at this point in the process. Estimates provided by your consultants
reach beyond $60 million dollars and those same consultants indicate that the
associated costs that | just referenced are estimated, | estimated at $10 million are
not included and need to be taken into consideration by your commission. At this
point, | would like to demonstrate what each $1 million really means to Vanderburgh
County. We looked and decided what one of the highest paid county employees,
detention officer, what is the true cost to Vanderburgh County? | came up with a
little less than $45,000 annually. So, you know, trying to write this like a text book,
| made an example. If the County Commissioners elect not to spend an additional
$20 million on the project at the estimated bond rate of 6.1%, 45.3 employees could
be added to the county payroll for the life of the bond of 15 years and that is just one
example. When you get out here that 113.2 employees. | think itis staggering when
you think about what a million dollars really means. So, with that being said, | would
find it difficult for this commission to dismiss our proposal without further
investigation. Thank you for your time.

President Fanello: Does anybody have any questions?

Commissioner Mourdock: | thought | was confused before, J.T., but now | know | am
when | look at all of these numbers and all of these costs.

J.T. Kinkle: Good.

Commissioner Mourdock: You heard in the prior presentation that going up is more
expensive and yet everything you have done here seems dramatically less in cost
and | just. How can you explain that? How can there be such a wide variation?

J.T. Kinkle: Well, | think, | am not saying that anything said earlier is inaccurate.
What we have said is that looking at the particular configuration we have and our
proposal is very project specific, we are not saying we are the answer to every
problem, we are saying this project, this problem. We know that it takes about 205
square feet per inmate and we are using a number of $200 which is per square foot
which is almost 20% greater than PMSI| ever recommended. So, we are throwing
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in a lot of extra costs, we have just figured out by annexing you can really save some
money.

Commissioner Mourdock: And as you use the term annexing, you are saying in
annexing with the present jail or what? How do you mean that?

J.T. Kinkle: You will be annexed, you will be on this campus, you are not going out
buying a new site, having a new development, flat ground. | don’t know what the
other consultants are telling you dollars per square foot. | just have a good feeling
that with what we have talked about, building a tower or series of towers to match
something that looks like this building with the controls that we are talking about, we
are estimate $200 per square foot.

Commissioner Mourdock: And for, if you would, turn back one page on your
presentation there, for what you are describing the private funding option for the total
there, the third line down, if | can read it, $21,800, no-

J.T. Kinkle: The third line down?

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, let’s use that one.
Unknown: (Inaudible)

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, right.

J.T. Kinkle: You might as well pay us. Let’'s go down, we’ll go down three lines so
that you get the full picture.

Commissioner Mourdock: So, it's what $22.6 something?
J.T. Kinkle: Yeah, $22.6.

Commissioner Mourdock: And for that building and what that would buy us would fit
on the footprint out here in the Court’s parking lot?

J.T. Kinkle: That’s correct.

Commissioner Mourdock: And that does include the financing costs and the 6.1%?
| mean?

J.T. Kinkle: That’s the only number | could, actually the private funding, we don’t
think we can get that cheap of money so we bumped it up a bit. On the public bond
you will notice that it is less expensive and that it is $13.14 daily cost per bed and
that is because it took advantage of some of the lower loan commitment fees and
we decided that the legal fees would probably be about half and it took advantage
of the 6.11% that the Library was so successful in getting.

Commissioner Mourdock: And state again as you talked about the present jail with
what remodeling costs would be, what are your thoughts there? How would you use
that space?

J.T. Kinkle: Well, we think if you could keep it, corrections based. You don’t have
to go and cut window openings and you don’t have to completely change the usage
and that you could maybe do it as inexpensively as $60 per square foot.
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Commissioner Mourdock: And with that $60 are you basically meeting all of the ADA
requirements that otherwise would be imposed once you turn the first brick over in
that project?

J.T. Kinkle: Well, we haven’t, | would love to say that we have studied it in detail to
that extent, obviously | can’t say that.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

J.T. Kinkle: But, our intention is to cover every code. We can’t build without meeting
every code.

Commissioner Mourdock: Sure, | understand and Brad we ran into that a couple of
times and | have heard that said so often. If we getin there and do any remodeling
at all then all of these ADA things would have to be included with any revision in the
current jail. Do you have any idea what that would do to us in number of beds?
Have we ever had anybody make a guestimate?

Brad Ellsworth: Brad Ellsworth, County Sheriff. According to the program that we
have done with Paul from the State DOC, with the current square footage, with the
standards that we have now, we think that it would reduce the current jail beds to
about 148 and | think that was in the PMSI (inaudible). So, if we go from 268 bunks
to 148 bunks in the current jail. We would have to look at kitchen, when you are
increasing this many inmates, the current kitchen, but we think if you remodel the
current jail as jail beds and knock a wall out or bricks whatever they said, 148 beds.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, thanks.

J.T. Kinkle: So, | think, to kind of jump on what Brad said, our administrative areas,
that 20,000 square feet, that’'s 480 beds, or if we go to a third tower or increase to
go up further we can increase that by 150% to 200% to take care of the kitchen, all
of the problems that you have administratively, not all of the problems. Rewind that
tape...some of the problems. We don’t say or ever try to tell you that this solves all
of the county’s problems. It solves the big one, which is dollars.

Commissioner Mosby: How much total square footage did you say was in that
proposal?

J.T. Kinkle: Oh, let’s see.
Commissioner Mourdock: Un, 480 times 200, | guess.

J.T. Kinkle: It's 480 times 205, that’'s a lot harder than adding 12 to 48. Does
somebody have a calculator?

President Fanello: Yeah, 480 times what?

Commissioner Mosby: Un, 98 times 400 and what did you figure, $200 per square
foot?

J.T. Kinkle: $200 per square foot.

Commissioner Mosby: What does that come up to? Okay thatis $19,680,000 and
your proposal is for what 207?
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J.T. Kinkle: No, the construction costs, $19,680,000.

Commissioner Mosby: So, you have really not figured any administrative area?
J.T. Kinkle: The total lease, the total project lease amount if $23,989,920.That takes
in development fees, loan commitment fees and the legal fees on private funding.

Over here at $22.5 it does not take care of that.

Commissioner Mosby: No, that’s not what | meant. | meant, you didn’t figure, you
said you figured 200 square feet.

J.T. Kinkle: $200 per square foot.

Commissioner Mosby: $200 per square foot, but you figured 200 square feet times
480 beds. Is that what you said?

Unidentified: Two hundred five.

Commissioner Mosby: 2-0-5.

J.T. Kinkle: Two hundred and five square feet-

Commissioner Mosby: Two hundred, five square feet times 480.
J.T. Kinkle: Two hundred five square feet per inmate.
Commissioner Mourdock: Times 480 inmates.

J.T. Kinkle: Times 480 inmates for this particular example.

Commissioner Mosby: For this particular example. Okay, now where is all of the
sheriff’'s people going to be?

J.T. Kinkle: Probably where they are now, plus the 20,000 square feet of
administrative area that | just covered.

Commissioner Mourdock: So, | know what you are asking, David. That was my
question there too,

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, | mean.

Commissioner Mourdock: This 20,000 square feetforadministration in there but that
is otherwise included in the 205 foot average.

J.T. Kinkle: Yes, the wedge does not take the full 205 square feet per inmate. It
takes about 160 square feet per inmate so you have 35% locked on for
administrative areas below and that is all based on, it sounds like we are just
extrapilating numbers butitis based on the circular stacked pod design that we have
shown from the beginning.

Commissioner Mosby: So, your 205 square, your 205 square feet per 480 inmates
is including enough room for administrative offices or whatever?
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J.T. Kinkle: As | said before, never have | ever said that we are going to fix
everything. .

Commissioner Mosby: That's what | am getting at here.

J.T. Kinkle: We never said that we could fix everything.
Commissioner Mosby: Right.

J.T. Kinkle: Because the problems as you know continue to come.

Commissioner Mourdock: But, it does include the 20,000 square feet of
administrative space. Now, rather that or not that’s enough.

J.T. Kinkle: And you can ultimately, if you decide that you want to go to 720 or any
number there out, you add, you multiple our number of 20,000 square feet times
150%, that’s three towers.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay, the other Commissioner is saying that this includes
20,000 square feet and | am not figuring out where that’s coming from.

J.T. Kinkle: If-

Commissioner Mosby: | am hearing you talk about 205 times 480 and that’s all you
are basing your price on.

Commissioner Mourdock: Let me say it this way to be sure | understand it. If in fact
the 20,000 square feet that you already have in this structure, if we decided that we
didn’t want to use that 20,000 square feet for administration we would be adding 97
more beds? That’s 20,000 divided 205.

J.T. Kinkle: You have a computer to do that math. | am not going to agree with
97.5 because | can’t do that math right.

Commissioner Mourdock: Right, butitis in there, David, | understand your question.

J.T. Kinkle: So, if you wanted to, the first tower could be 10,000 square feet of
administrative space. The second tower, you take the 10,000 square feet that would
be used for administrative space bring it down to two or how ever many more floors
of beds. Everything we have given you is completely modular, completely modular.
You can have, the way the ACA code, as | understand it, reads, you need separation
sight and sound. With the circular pod design, double containment with a central
core, you satisfy all of those ingredients. | am sure the Sheriff could either agree
with me or not.

Brad Ellsworth: | didn’t even hear what you were talking about.

J.T. Kinkle: Well, good, now he can’t.

Brad Ellsworth: Are we talking juveniles or females?

J.T.Kinkle: No, | have never said anything about juveniles. That's something, if you

decided that you wanted to use the old jail for juvenile space or for safe house, |
don’t know if Sheriff Ellsworth’s numbers on 160 square feet or 160 people, | don'’t
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know if that’s, | am guessing that is just jail. It has never been looked at by our firm,
how many safe house or community corrections beds that could result in. But, |
think with the savings it would be difficult for you to say that it is not worth looking at.

President Fanello: | have one question. Are you offering private funding?
J.T. Kinkle: Correct.

President Fanello: Because | don’t, Phil would have not comment on this, or if Mr.
Shively is here, he could comment on it. But, as | understand the state statute, we
can’t have a design and go out in a public process and go out for bidding. Is thata
design/build situation?

J.T. Kinkle: No, | can. I'm the developer.
President Fanello: Well, if you are private funding, yes.

J.T. Kinkle: | am the developer and if | want to bid it to the lowest contractors, | hope
Industrial Contractors gets it.

President Fanello: Yes, through private funding. But, if we went with the public
funding scenario where we would have to adhere to—

(Inaudible, many people talking at once)
President Fanello: | am talking about the public funding scenario.

J.T. Kinkle: The public funding, | just put it up there to show you that really we are
not taking any great advantage of you with the private funding verses the public
funding. If it works out better for you, we would be happy to give it.

President Fanello: That’'s what | was just asking you.

J.T. Kinkle: | guess we are confusing you. We are giving you a lot of options but
options are how you save the county money.

President Fanello: Well, all I am trying to get straight is that if you are offering it
through private funding, yes we can look at a design, as | understand the law, if you
are offering it through public funding, we have a situation where it is a design/build
situation where we are going against competitive bidding laws. | am just trying to
make sure that he is offering private.

Phil Hayes: The legal affect of the presentation appears to be design/build, lease/
back proposition. | believe it is the case.

J.T. Kinkle: Correct. We will even sell it to you for fifty cents at the end.

Phil Hayes: | understand and while you are at it, maybe you could get us some
authority on what state statute we can do. Now, Mr. Shively has made some
remarks concerning that and | will be more than happy to look at it but it is
inconsistent so far with the information that | have concerning how the state statutes
allow county governments to proceed with public funding, competitive bidding, public
finance and the Title 36 was sent over, and unfortunately | didn’t get a chance to
discuss that much with Les, but the case law thus far that | have looked at and the
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commentary indicates that the courts have consistently, in Indiana at least, not
allowed. That is why Ed was accurate and perhaps Alan and said are there any
examples that you know of or Kenny and they said “no” and that is why the
explanation is that there are no lease/build backs done. The BOT’s are build,
operate and transfer back, they are the types of corrections corporations of
American, whack and hut, others that are operating on that kind of a basis but for the
most part, in fact, for all part, our courts have found these propositions of build/lease
back to in affect skirt the public competitive bidding laws and there are no provisions
that have passed mustard through the Attorney General or through the legislature
that we can find. Title 36 allows short term leases and they allow some long ones.

J.T. Kinkle: | don’t pretend to be an attorney.
Phil Hayes: | understand that.

President Fanello: | just wanted make that clear because we have to be very careful
because | just did some reading this weekend which has confused me even more
because | read law, but there has been, like Phil said, there is no case law in Indiana
really goes against what we are talking here, that’s my concern, so.

Commissioner Mourdock: But, you did say there is at least one precedentin Indiana
which is the one in Indianapolis where they have effectively done.

President Fanello: They operate that, they did not build it and turn it over to the
county, they actually operate it which is totally different.

J.T. Kinkle: | am sure, if you would like, that we would do it publicly.
President Fanello: Um, um.

J.T. Kinkle: It is just a matter of you hiring us.

Phil Hayes: You are asking for an architects contract?

J.T. Kinkle: No, | am not asking for anything. | am giving you options and | am saying
an option to you is to hire our firm to go through the public process should you like.
We have also shown you a private funding scenario and | don’t know what the legal
repurcussions are. Like | said, | don’t pretend to be a lawyer. It is just another
option.

President Fanello: Well, let’s get back on track here, are there any other questions?

Commissioner Mourdock: Well,  have one question for both of these companies but
| think it is very dependent upon the last few remarks that were made and let me tell
you what | was going to ask each of these companies to do and David’s point before
about having apples to apples is an important one and neither of these groups have
come to us with any kind of estimate of what the operating costs would be which we
have received some information from Crowe Chiziak and the work they did. If we
are going to look at these things on a equal basis, | think it would be appropriate to
have reports back from these two groups that would give us on standard footing
interest rates, the time period, what the operating budgets would be and those types
of things. However, the last comment or two that was made here makes me wonder
if it is worth sending these good folks out to do that.
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President Fanello: | am just confused, that’s, | am not saying that it wouldn’t be a
worthwhile exercise but | am just confused on the case law that’s just on the public
bidding laws and that Article 23.

Commissioner Mourdock: Although, I am not a lawyer but maybe the case law is not
as important as what the law allows.

President Fanello: Well, that’s true.
J.T. Kinkle: So, | guess you will get back to us?

Commissioner Mourdock: That is where | am trying to go with this. Is it the opinion
of this commission at this point is the question, that these two options are worth
further study by these folks? | mean, | don’t want to send them out the door if there
is not chance that we are going to look at realistically and seriously that they come
back with so maybe the appropriate way is to do this by motion but before | make the
motion before | send them out to come back with those things that | mentioned a
moment ago, operating budget, interest time period, etc., is there any reason why
we shouldn’t do that with these folks?

President Fanello: If we are going to make a comparison between private and public,
| see no reason why we shouldn’t have something to compare apples to apples
which is where we are still not at that point, to be able to do that.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, David do you have any comment?

Commissioner Mosby: | just said what you said earlier, if we are going to compare
apples to apples, we have to have it to compare.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

Commissioner Mosby: And we don’t have it to compare. | hate to found out that
what we are looking atis not even legal in ramification and send them out to do that.

Commissioner Mourdock: It would seem to be me to let them make that comparison
we need to provide them with some information which is the basis or was the basis
forwhat the Crowe Chiziak operating numbers were and the general financial terms.
So, | presume that we have no problem giving them that? | am not looking to giving
them a 264 page report, | don’t think that is appropriate.

President Fanello: | guess as far as the financial information, | really don’t know what
benefit that would have as far as, | mean, they need to put together their interest
rates.

Commissioner Mourdock: But, again for them to look at them in the same basis they
need to know what the interest rate was.

President Fanello: | see.
Commissioner Mosby: They need to know what?

Commissioner Mourdock: They need to know the same basic financial that Crowe
Chiziak brought to us which is what was the interest rate, what were the terms, what
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were the estimates | presume for legal fees and those types of things just so that we
dohave apples to apples.

President Fanello: And there was a public document handed out in the December
19 meeting.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah. Okay, let me do this. | will make a motion then that
we present to these two groups so that they can return to us, | will let you guys
choose the date

President Fanello: One week.

Commissioner Mourdock: As soon as practical, information on a private option for
us and | would include in that motion that we provide with them basic financial
information that we had previously received from Crowe Chiziak so that they can
have a comparable, | don’t want to use the word bid, a comparable-

J.T. Kinkle: Excuse me, before you make that motion, | can’t speak for the other firm
but | know that we are not going to go through that exercise without asking for a fee.
You are talking about a terrific amount of work. What we have done so far, just
shows you numbers, and it shows you numbers that | think are compelling to
continue looking at how to save the county money. But, | am not, you know, my
share of these taxes isn’t enough to make me go do all of that work.

President Fanello: Well, then that’s your choice.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, | mean, it’s.

President Fanello: | mean we are trying to-

J.T. Kinkle: As | said, | am not speaking for the other group, | am just speaking for
my-

Unidentified: (Inaudible)

President Fanello: Are you willing to go through that exercise?

Alan Braun: Yes, we are.

Ken English: We have been on a fool’'s mission for a long time.

President Fanello: And you will continue on that, won’t you?

Commissioner Mourdock: Let me re-word the motion this way because | think we
really need to be fair with this. | would make the motion that we provide to any
private party that would come forward to us because we can’tjustlimit it to these two
groups, within the next ten days the basic financial criteria which were used by
Crowe Chiziak in putting together their document for us.

Ken English: | have a question.

Commissioner Mourdock: You need to come to the mike please.
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Ken English: When you are talking about operation, define that a little bit. What are
you talking about because we are not going to be hiring deputies to run the jail and
stuff, | mean.

Commissioner Mosby: Well, | think what, and | know what | would be referring to is,
what do you think it is going to staff what you are offering?

Commissioner Mourdock: And | agree.

Ken English: Well, that would just be out opinion, the Sheriff may have a totaling
different opinion.

Commissioner Mosby: Well, if you’ve got professionals on board, they will know.
Ken English: Well, we can do that.
Commissioner Mosby: | mean.

Ken English: Did your people also have a firm price from a contractor that said he
would build it for that?

President Fanello: No, we can’t do.
Commissioner Mosby: We have bid it out yet.

President Fanello: So, nobody knows what the total cost of this project will be until
the day the bids are opened.

Ken English: (inaudible, other comments made from audience) We will furnish those
operational numbers, we can do that.

Commissioner Mosby: Well, | was going to say, a professional firm could furnish
those numbers, that is what | would want to see, is what you think or what your
professionals think that it would take to staff what you are designing here because
your design is not the same as somebody else’s.

Ken English: | understand.

Commissioner Mosby: And with Jacobs on board, they certainly have done a lot of
jails, so | am sure that you do have that expertise.

Ken English: Okay.

Commissioner Mosby: Restate your motion because | might want to add something
to it.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, | will try one more time. | would move that we make
available the information that we have received from Crowe Chiziak regarding the
general financial terms that they presented to us at the joint meeting, when the
commission and council met, specifically that information would include things like
the interest rates, the time period that they used in making their calculations.

Commissioner Mosby: | will second that.
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Phil Hayes: That will be alright.

President Fanello: | have a motion and a second, so ordered.

Commissioner Mourdock: Obviously, the hope is that whichever firms would like to
come back to us with a review with those data included and the operating costs, we

would take some serious look at.

President Fanello: Can we set a time frame to get these back because | want to
keep on focus and keep on track here, so.

Commissioner Mosby: Two weeks.
President Fanello: Two weeks?
Commissioner Mourdock: Two weeks.

President Fanello: Two weeks from tonight. Will we be here two weeks from
tonight?

Unidentified: Yes.
President Fanello: Okay, thank you gentlemen.
Ken English: Thank you.

Troy Tornatta: Troy Tornatta, real quick. Is there a number set to that? | mean do
we, are we apples to apples, are we setting a number to that?

Commissioner Mosby: | really don’t know.

President Fanello: He has a good point there. Which option are we asking? They
presented us with how many options there?

Commissioner Mosby: Well, there is options A through—
Commissioner Mourdock: They did present a number of options.
Commissioner Mosby: A through K.

President Fanello: That’s true.

Commissioner Mosby: So, | guess if | am going to try and compare apples to apples
it would have to be on “K”. | mean that’s what we've got.

Commissioner Mourdock: Crowe Chiziak gave us several different options as well
based on their operating criteria were.

Ken English: Why don’t we do it the same way that they did?
President Fanello: That's fine, can they do it the same as Crowe Chiziak did?

Commissioner Mourdock: That's works with me.
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Commissioner Mosby: That’s fine.
President Fanello: Okay.
(Inaudible comments)

President Fanello: Well, do we need to stay with the agenda and have her come up
at the individual? We have atime for public comment and we will get to that shortly.

Madelyn Grayson: May we make a tape change, please?
(Tape Changed)

Madelyn Grayson: Thank you.

Troy Tornatta: Is the tape not ready?

President Fanello: Let's go. Phil Hayes you are on.

Phil Hayes - Title Work Bids

Phil Hayes: Yes, with regard to the matter of request for bids on title work for tax sale
jobs available with the County Auditor, there is one response, Mills Land Title
Corporation. We have opened their bid and itis submitted in the amount of $250 per
tax code parcel and for those jobs available at 52 jobs, we request that the single bid
be taken under advisement for review by the County Auditor.

Commissioner Mourdock: So moved.
Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered. Board Appointments.

Board Appointments

Commissioner Mosby: | would like to make an appointment for Sheryl Freudenburg
to the Four Rivers Resource Conservation and Development and Reverend Gerald
Arnold to the Human Relations Council.

President Fanello: Did you hear that?

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered. Nextitem, is Alan Teeple, ACS contract renewal.

Alan Teeple - ACS Contract Renewal

Alan Teeple: Alan Teeple, Director of Computer Services. You should, | don’t know
that, is this on?

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah.
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Alan Teeple: You should have in front of you a packet to extend ACS’s contract for
a year and also the addition of three additional personnel. We are coming to the end
of ACS’s contract. On June 30" of this year the contract ends. So, we need to do
something. Atthe direction of both Catherine, | am sorry, Commissioner Fanello and
the Mayor, they asked me to put together an amendment so that we could have 12
months both for ACS to continue on this site and for you all to have time to do a
proper RFP, RFQ. | think that is what the purpose of this is. | have kept it as real
and you can tell if you have reviewed the amendment, it is a very simple
amendment. | kept it real simple, short and sweet. Are there any questions? |
realize that you are probably burned out from hours of your previous discussions but-

President Fanello: We can’t really tell what time it is because the clock is wrong.
Alan Teeple: Well, it's 7:30, so-
Commissioner Mourdock: We are just getting started.

Commissioner Mosby: | think that you need to warn the crowd that we are about two
hours away from zonings yet. So-

Unidentified: Madame President, | just need to continue mine, my agreement. Do
| have to wait two hours?

President Fanello: Yes, you do, you have to wait. | think what we have here, in order
to exp-, everybody has a copy of the numbers and there was a revised one brought
up at 4:00 today.

Commissioner Mosby: Yes, | have the revised.

President Fanello: What we are looking at, if we continue, if we extend from July of
2002 through June 2003 without considering three new people, we are looking at a
monthly increase of about $1,411, and if we were to add three new people that
monthly would be $8,563, and if we were to add new people we would also be
incurring costs from now until June 30" as well. So, | think that there needs to be
discussion of are we going to add three new people? Are there any comments on
that?

Commissioner Mourdock: | guess that | would simply ask the question, instead of
three the only option you had was one person, and | know that you had three
separate job descriptions here, the consultant, network specialist and micro-
computer specialists. Which one is most important to you at this point?

Alan Teeple: Well, at this point, | think and Commissioner Fanello and | talked about
that earlier today. If | was limited to just one, | would say that it would have to be a
network person, have to be. We have 41 servers and as of right now it is being
supported by 1 and 2 people. The ratio that, at least according to Gertners
Standards, are that you should have one to six or one to ten servers because there
is a lot of work that gets down on servers. One person per six to ten servers. So,
definitely under the gun there. As far as PC’s, the PC support and the consultant
that you would remove, | guess that | would have to say as long as there is an
understanding that the level of service and my ability to perform the number of
projects that have been requested by both the city and county would be degraded
and that is the minimum that | would need, the three additional personnel, just to
maintain the level of service that this city and county have come to expect.
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President Fanello: | think he brings up a good point. | mean and we can control that
here. Our budget probably won’t allow us to go three people but it is up to say that
they need to work within the perimeters that they can work within.

Commissioner Mourdock: Did you say the budget will or will not?

President Fanello: Will not. You know they only have so many hours to allocate
among all projects and we need to make sure that we are not giving them more
projects than they can do. So, | mean we are in control of that destiny there.

Alan Teeple: Well, and | guess just as an example and some of the members were
at the Data Board meeting on, or the panel was at the Data Board meeting on
Wednesday, we sent out a survey at the beginning of December to say okay what
projects do you want done in 20027 We have about a third of the elected officials
or department heads respond and just from that list, there are 87 projects that they
are desiring. Now, some of them are small and some of them are large and we are
in the process of identifying how many hours are associated with that, but that is just
projects. My maintenance, just the, my computer doesn’t work, my printer won'’t
print, my PBA doesn’t work. | average about 3600 hours a year on just that alone.
That is not projects, that is just break, fix, | don’t know what | am doing, or meaning
the client or user is saying that, help me understand what | need to do to make it
work to the printer is broken and needs to be repaired. So, we just need to
understand what that means. Now, let’s take it one step further and | realize that
you have been in the midst of two hours of discussion and you probably don’t want
to draw this one out, at least tonight any longer, but I think the other thing that needs
to at least be discussed is that you have already got in your budget to pay for my
services, meaning ACS for 2002, it doesn’t stop June 30". The budget was in place
for the entire year for 2002. So, at least take that into account that it would be the
2003 budget that we would need to be concerned about as far as those six months,
providing that the RFP or RFQ isn’t done by then and that we are talking, | realize
my view of a slight increase and your view after some of the discussions that you
have just had are two different views of reality, and | know that, but when you are
talking about $16,000 a month increase to provide three people and an additional
level of service, | don’t see that as large, but those are fiscal decisions that you all
have to make. The other thing that| would say is that | think that this goes into some
of the things that | have started working with as far as SLA’s and that means Service
Level Agreements, that you ought to be looking for as far as an RFP or RFQ
process, RFP, and that means that you stop thinking of FTE’s you think of level of
services. A fixed price contract if you will and you choose, you know, gold, silver,
platinum, lead and that’'s what you pay for and there are certain levels of
responsibility and that it is up to whoever your provider is to deliver it. Whether it
takes two people or fifty people, it is up to the provider to meet that level of service
or you have penalties. Those are the kinds of discussions at least that we have had
as it relates to a new RFP or a new contract

President Fanello: Let me just add a couple of things. | did meet with the Mayor, he
called me about 4:00, after 4:00 and we did meet at a quarter till five and he did want
me to carry the message over here that he is willing to support one new person, but
isn’t willing to support beyond that at this time. So | am carrying that message.

Alan Teeple: Okay.

President Fanello: And just for reference point there have not been any new
employees added since 1998 to Computer Services.
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Alan Teeple: That is correct. | guess the other thing, and again it sounds like both
the Mayor and you all have made a decision as far as maybe it could be one
additional person, but we have grown just since 1997, when we had 406 PC’s to
1116 PC’s. You know we have increased exponentially as far as the level of the
user community, but haven’t increased the support staff. | can tell you the user
community hasn’t decreased their level of what their expectations are.

President Fanello: So, | guess, does anybody have direction or comments?
Commissioner Mourdock: This has not yet gone to the Board of Public Works?
Alan Teeple: It has not. It was due to go before there this morning and at the 11"
hour they made a decision that the Mayor wanted one more discussion with the
Commissioner and myself at some point.

Commissioner Mourdock: Your point regarding the increase, Alan, on the number
of machines that we have verses what we had. | mean, it is obviously a dramatic
increase and | understand a bit of your frustration, but | am getting more and more
frustrated with our budgeting process and all of the demands on it and | don’t know
that | can do much more than the one person. So, | will move that we accept
amendment number 10 as presented to us accepting that the additional position as
defined in paragraph four be limited to just one person and that one person be
identified as a network specialist.

Alan Teeple: Okay.

President Fanello: Commissioner Mosby?

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: Motion and second, so ordered.

Alan Teeple: And | guess that one final thing since this is my first time before this
body with an amendment is that | make the revisions and then bring it up to Tammy
for signature?

President Fanello: Is that okay?

Commissioner Mourdock: Actually, you probably ought to make revisions and send
it to Phil and then he can run it by us next week.

Phil Hayes: Alan, that would be fine to deliver it here and Tammy can contact. That
will be convenient for you?

Alan Teeple: | will change also the back head, the fourth page heading, payment
schedule, | need to revise that payment schedule.

President Fanello: Yes.
Alan Teeple: Thank you very much, even though | didn’t get three, | will take one.
President Fanello: You got something.

Alan Teeple: And that we got the contract amended.
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Commissioner Mourdock: Getting one of three is better than the previous year.
Alan Teeple: You got that. You got that right.

President Fanello: Okay, next item, Dennis Feldhaus.

Alan Teeple: Thank you.

Commissioner Mosby: Did you not do this? The RFP for this?

President Fanello: Oh, oh.

Commissioner Mosby: Steve Craig.

President Fanello: | am sorry. | made an error here and skipped over Steve Craig,

| apologize. Steve? Dennis, can you hold on just a second? Steve can you come
ahead.

Steve Craig - RFP VC15-2002
Burdette Park Concessions

President Fanello: Okay, Steve has a request for proposal to send out for Burdette
Park Concessions.

Commissioner Mourdock: Steve and | were talking about this briefly, the only thing
that | want to be sure | understand and that it is clear to whoever is responding to
this, is that the sole basis at which we are looking to make this award on a financial
side that it being determined and the bids be submitted strictly with a percentage.
The pricing sheet says proposal, total amount listed clearly on the firstline. You are
simply looking, Steve, for a percentage, is that correct?

Steve Craig: It should read total percentage of gross listed clearly on the first line.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, total percentage of gross. The other comment that
| would have in this section regarding questions regarding the RFP says, “questions
regarding the RFP will be directed, Steve Craig, Manager of Burdette Park, County
Commissioners, | would suggest that be amended to say, Steve, “all questions
regarding the RFP will be directed in writing to Steve Craig” and then | would also
suggest that whatever those questions are, if you have three or four people
responding to this, make sure everyone gets a copy of the questions, respond to
them in writing and make sure that everyone gets a copy of your answer. So, again
we don’t have someone coming in at the last minute with some misconception.

President Fanello: Do you have a question?

Commissioner Mosby: | guess the one question | got is why are we giving our
income and expense summary for the past five years?

Steve Craig: That is a decision up to you. | gave it to you so that you could see
where we are at on it and if they wanted to include it, we would include it.

Commissioner Mourdock: Wouldn’tthe bidder likely to need thatto have a good feel
as to what their gross costs will be as well as their gross earnings?
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Steve Craig: | think | would be interested in it if | was bidding on it, what it would
have been. But, that is a decision that we will have to make, if we want them to
know that.

Commissioner Mourdock: It is otherwise public information so they can get it
anyway.

Commissioner Mosby: Well, | could see giving them attendance figures, | mean, it
is just giving them something to say, this is what they made last year, | ain’t giving
much more than that.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah.
Commissioner Mosby: Well, that is my only, well that and -

Commissioner Mourdock: Well, maybe that page needs a little footnote, the old stock
market quotation, “previous results are not necessarily indicative of future
performance”.

Commissioner Mosby: The other thing that | did circle in here is why are you
including the vending machines?

Steve Craig: Because they could take them over and run them themselves, but right
now we allow Coke to run them, and you know it could be profitable to both of us if
they run them because they can purchase the soft drinks cheaper than if they do it
through Coke.

Commissioner Mosby: Wouldn't it profitable if you took them over?

Steve Craig: Well, we used to have them when Mr.Tuley ran them but we quit
running them because of the storage space for the soft drinks and also because of
the, we have to use our people to stock them and then when the machines broke
down we had to wait until they fixed them and our machines were broke a
considerable amount of times.

President Fanello: Has Phil Hayes reviewed this?

Phil Hayes: | had an opportunity to look at it this evening in the packets. | don’t have
any particular problem with them, it was pretty well couched in the same language
that you used last year. Isn’t that right, Steve?

Steve Craig: Yes.

Phil Hayes: It had that same familiarity with it butin terms of the particular discussion
that you are having right now, | really don’t have an opinion. The most important
thing is to make sure that it's clear to anyone responding exactly what’s expected
and that’s the best | can say and | will defer to you on the language.

Commissioner Mourdock: And just on a what if basis, since they are going to bid this
on a percentage, is there any question that if we had two vendors respond with a
number, and | will pick a number out of the air of 6.8%, that we have some
mechanism by which to select a bidder.
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Phil Hayes: Well, you ordinarily, we are instructed to go to the best analysis, that is
the best bid or in the Federal language, the best and most responsive and—

Commissioner Mourdock: The only way they are being responsive is to fill in one
number.

Phil Hayes: Just to fill in a number here, yeah. What's the timetable that the
Commissioners would like for this to go out? Are you still within the time limit that
you, do you absolutely have to have an approval tonight on the language or if you
want me to work with Steve and try to develop something we could.

Steve Craig: We probably have a couple of three weeks before it starts getting down
to where it would be crunching the people for their—

Phil Hayes: | think we could do it in a couple of days, | think we could have it so that
it is back on the agenda for the following meeting.

Steve Craig: That would be fine.

Commissioner Mourdock: | move then that we defer for one week.
President Fanello: Second.

Phil Hayes: | appreciate that.

President Fanello: Next item, Dennis Feldhaus.

Dennis Feldhaus - Property and Casualty Insurance Renewal

Phil Hayes: Am | supposed to like this?

Dennis Feldhaus: Dennis Feldhaus, County Insurance Agent of Record.
President Fanello: Do you have an extra copy?

Dennis Feldhaus: | do not.

President Fanello: | left mine in my office, he brought it by earlier today.

Dennis Feldhaus: First of all, as your current agent of record, and for the record and
since 1987 | have had the privilege of representing the Commissioners for the
insurance on the property and casualty short of six years during that time frame.

That being said, | regret that this evenings proposal before you represents not only
the largest dollar variance of increase in your renewal property and casualty but
unfortunately also the largest percentage increase in the 17 years that | have had
some involvement either inside or on the outside looking in. The top copy that you
have on your proposal this evening is basically analyzing the coverages, the major
areas of coverage, the expiring premiums of the current policy, the renewal
premiums offered by the carriers for the next 12 months effective 2/1 and the
variance in dollars and the variance in price. | am not going to analyze each of
those, but | will entertain questions if you have those at the end. | just would like to
drop to the bottom line. We all seem to be bottom line folks and you might ask what
is the 44%7? How did we ever get into a position to get a 44% rate increase in
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Vanderburgh County from 2002 to 20037 | was negotiating these very prices as late
as Saturday afternoon, which is why | apologize that you didn’t get previous
documents before this evening. 25% of the 44%, basically, is roughly the
marketplace, and | will explain that as we move forward in my presentation. The
other 19% is basically us. Basically Vanderburgh County. | will try to explain that
in some detail. If you turn to the second page, | have kind of summarized the factors
involved in our premium increases, and they are categorized in five categories of
which the first two are the 25% , the marketplace. | want to talk about the
marketplace just a little bit. You will recall when | came to this podium a year ago,
| delivered to you an 11% rate increase for the expiring policy. At that time |
mentioned then and | will mention again that from 1992 though 2000 roughly the
county’s insurance program as far as premium dollars budgeted and spentremained
unchanged and that is the upside to the county’s insurance program. | also
mentioned to you that the market is changing. When | delivered the 11% rate
increase last year. In August | was asked to provide budget estimates and | did so
knowing that the market was continuing to harden and budgeted in the budget some
17% to 20% increase per coverage, and those were the numbers that were
submitted through the Commissioners and the Highway Department line items for
insurance. Unfortunately, | am too, as 9/11/01, we don’t need to talk a lot about
9/11/01 except how that effects Vanderburgh County this evening in their renewal
rates. It is a whole new ball game. The distribution channels of insurance
specifically for municipalities has changed dramatically. The reinsurance carriers
and the treaties involved for reinsurance companies to provide coverage for an entity
of this size when you are looking at $115 million of property, when you are looking
at $10 million in liability, when you are looking at $42 million at any one location. All
of those items, drastically affected 1/1, and all of the reinsurance treaties are being
increased. Reinsurance companies are, for those who don’t know what reinsurance
companies are, they are the companies that insure insurance companies that we
deal with day in and day out. Our excess property carrier, if you refer back to the top
page, you will notice that the excess property took on a 97% rate increase. Our
carrier is Allianz and it is the only carrier out of seven that would give us a quote for
$115 million in property coverage, which we need to provide coverage for the
taxpayers of Vanderburgh County. Allianz, if you had a list of the carriers that were
involved in the World Trade Center and who took the biggest hits, it was Swiss
Munich, Allianz. 1 don’t think that | need to say anymore. It's passing down the rate
increases even from 9/11. Not only are the premiums up, but the coverages are
less. On the table for your approval this evening is an exclusion for terrorism,
specifically for the location of the Centre. It was targeted as a major exclusion in all
commercial properties this year, bank on it, it is starting right here tonight at the
Centre.

(Inaudible)

Dennis Feldhaus: We have an exclusion for the act of terrorism at the Centre
location only for Vanderburgh County so if there is property damage to the facility as
a result of a terrorist act, | don’t have property coverage for you this evening. | can’t
buy it for you this evening.

Commissioner Mourdock: For the Civic Centre?

Commissioner Mosby: Auditorium.

Commissioner Mourdock: The Centre only and not this building?
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Dennis Feldhaus: Correct. Okay, | am sorry. The Centre only. Another sub-limit to
the renewal is earthquake and flood. Last year we had a total of $115 million of
quake and flood and as another CAS loss, catastrophic loss, that the reinsurance
companies are really not offering the product. | have a $25 million limit this evening
for earthquake and flood. | am working on options and will bring those back to the
table, but as of tonight, as | stand before you, | only have $25 million of quake
coverage. So that basically is the marketplace, and it is not pretty. If you are in
business you are going to find that out soon enough. The other items that | would
like to talk about which consist roughly of the other 19% or 20% of our rate increase
is us, Vanderburgh County. Obviously insurance companies base your rates on the
exposure. The three main exposures for Vanderburgh County is payroll, fleet, auto
units and property values all of which are up over last year. Another item that
underwriters look at and insurance companies use as a bible is your individual loss
history or your frequency. How are you doing with what, from a risk management
standpoint and what is the actual loss for Vanderburgh County? Unfortunately this
year we go back two years from 2/1/99 to 2/1/01, a two year period there. The
county’s loss ratio was 105%, which means for every dollar paid to the insurance
company they paid or reserved a $1.05. That is also reflected in our renewal rate.
During that time we sustained 371 total claims and we paid out in excess of
$320,000 in paid losses, we paid out $97,000 in expenses and we have in
outstanding reserves $272,000 which as your agent, I'm constantly working on
getting that reserve down because it does affect your renewal premium. Those
reserves involve a number of losses that | won’t go into detail this evening. The last
item, our specific underwriting concerns that were discussed by the underwriter with
me on the telephone Friday and Saturday and they are reflected subjectively. If you
ask me how many dollars does that involve? | can’t give you an answer, but after
all the underwriter subjectively looks atthese issues, and these issues that we spoke
of earlier this evening. Number A is the number of property losses and specific
dollars paid at our current Safe House. There have been six losses there in the past
eight years totaling well in excess of $120,000 of property loss in one location. So,
it is not necessarily the dollar amount but the frequency and the trend that is an
issue there. Obviously, we have overcrowding of jail issues and we all know about
those issues, and | don’t need to elaborate on those and the Department of
Corrections report that the underwriter has access to that specifically hones in on
that particular issue and it is a major issue for your insurance carrier. And C and D
are basically from an underwriters point of view sitting in Nashville talking to
underwriters and Lloyds of London in England trying to get us pricing for
Vanderburgh County, and they don’t understand the politics nor do they really care.
They look at what we’ve got, where we’'ve been and where we are going and they’d
like to see us get there as quickly as possible and the Commissioners and Council
are basically charged to help us get there. Again, the renewal premium itis 2/1 and
| need to have your approval this evening in order to provide binder coverage, and
this is ,unfortunately, the best that | have available after six major carriers declined
coverage for Vanderburgh County.

Commissioner Mourdock: There is still much outstanding from 2/11 or 9/11 to be
determined.

Dennis Feldhaus: Yes, very much.
Commissioner Mourdock: Yes and if it was two attacks. If it was one attack. Those

kinds of things could still have huge, huge repercussions. If we do this tonight are
we in fact locked in for a year?
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Dennis Feldhaus: With respect to premium and coverage?
Commissioner Mourdock: Well the total cost.

Dennis Feldhaus: Yes, there will be no change in your premium or coverage locked
in tonight. My charge is to find you more than $25 million in quake. If we have an
earthquake and the Centre goes down we leave the taxpayers short, and that is my
charge, but it will come at a price as if these aren’t bad enough.

Commissioner Mosby: How many carriers did you shop this with?

Dennis Feldhaus: Willis Corroon is the broker that Vanderburgh County has done
business with since 1985, and they are the all lines aggregate program that we
benefitted from since that period of time, and they are still the same broker and they
brokered this through six different carriers. Munich Re, Swiss Re, CNA, Hartford
and Travelers, and St. Paul. St. Paul offered $50 million max on property and the
others declined.

Commissioner Mosby: And probably to check with another agent would they have
any different carriers than you?

Dennis Feldhaus: | would say that if, Mr. Dillow is lucky not to be here this evening,
he would bring you the same basically, the same price the same product.

Commissioner Mosby: So, anybody else would use the same companies?

Dennis Feldhaus: It is what it is and that is not meant negative towards the Torian
agent, they are an excellent shopper and he was your county agent of record for four
years, the same company, same products, same pricing.

Commissioner Mourdock: And let me just add something to that because | don’t
know if you have elaborated on it but one of the things that they were speaking to
me about this past week was the effect on just what the, | won’t get the term right,
but the money that the insurance typically turn around and invest for the last two
years that has been negatively performing for them so there is less revenue being
generated on that side of the insurance equation and they have to make it up even
if 9/11 hadn’t happened, they would have to be making that up.

Dennis Feldhaus: Yes, yes. Again, 25%, last years 11% was actually was what that
was. It was already the start of the hardening because of the interest rates going
down, insurance companies didn’t have the cash flow and they had no interest
income. | am hopeful in this, this is for the benefit for the Council and the benefit of
the Commissioners and all of the people involved in the jail issue. | am very hopeful
that this jail issue can be resolved in some fashion with either grievance for the
outside for the overcrowding and/or a new jail facility that is voted on, approved and
moves forward. Short of that, on 2/1 of next year, if no movement is made within the
next 12 months my concern would probably not be earthquake, flood or property
limits, my concern would be public officials, errors and admissions liability and law
enforcement liability insurance, they will be affected. Either by what is offered or by
the price for what we get.

President Fanello: Are the Councilmen able, can you hear back there?
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Dennis Feldhaus: Would you want me, | guess | need to, did you want to go into the
dollars and where they are going to be? Because the premium on the table exceeds
the budgeted amount. | think that Council may want to know that we are not coming
back to them. As you know at the end of the year the line item 3000 in the
Commissioners account, what is not spent is quietused over into 4281 and 4281
which is the Vanderburgh County loss fund. As of this morning, per Anne Virgin in
the County Auditor’s office, that account had $190,550. What was approved by the
state in the budget for both the Highway and Commissioners accountand comparing
that to the premium on the table to be paid, | am $88,000 short. My budget is
$88,000 short of what | need, it would be my recommendation and also my request
this evening to quietus $88,335 of that amount back into a budgeted item such as
insurance for Commissioners and Highway so that we can pay our insurance
premium leaving the balance to roll into 4281 Loss Fund.

Commissioner Mourdock: | think formally, we would need a Council call to go ahead
and initiate that.

Dennis Feldhaus: | don’t know how that works, but-

Commissioner Mourdock: For the $88,000 what did you say, 335?

Dennis Feldhaus: Yes.

Commissioner Mosby: We would need what?

President Fanello: Go to the Council.

Commissioner Mosby: If it is already in the account.

Suzanne Crouch: | think that could be blue claimed. | will check with State Board of
accounts since that money was actually budgeted at one time and is money that has

rolled into that account.

Dennis Feldhaus: The point being as a body, | don’t believe that we have to go back
to additional funding, | believe that is the important thing this evening.

Commissioner Mosby: That's what | was thinking.

Dennis Feldhaus: Despite the bad news.

Commissioner Mosby: | mean | don’t know. | would make a motion that we take the
$88,000 if at all possible, take that and quiestus it back in and make our payment
before 2/1 so we are not left without insurance. So, | make a motion that we go

ahead and accept it.

Suzanne Crouch: And you can provide a breakdown for how much goes to Highway
and how much goes to General Fund?

Dennis Feldhaus: Yes, | have that.
Commissioner Mourdock: | will swallow hard and second the motion.

President Fanello: So ordered.
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Dennis Feldhaus: Thank you.
President Fanello: Thank you, Dennis.

Commissioner Mosby: Before we move further, | am going back to a situation. Can
we not let Mr. Bohleber and his client and the other people that are here for that, go
because they have done held it at the City level and | will make the motion that when
we get to the rezoning agenda to hold it so that they can negotiate this out for a
month and then come back.

Commissioner Mourdock: And you are just looking for a one month?

Steve Bohleber: Thank you for this consideration. | am Steve Bohleber and there
is a long version and a short version. The short version is that Shirley James and
some folks from the West Side Improvement approached us in the hall just before
the City Council meeting with some talking points that we have not addressed before
or heard from as specifically from them before. | am always one that likes to talk and
see if we can reach a consensus and we moved to City Council to continue this
rezoning for one month for that purpose and | move the County Commissioners for
the same consideration and that was a request made by potential remonstrators and
| am always happy to act upon those requests.

Commissioner Mosby: | will make that motion for you at the rezoning meeting if it is
agreeable. No problem. | don’t see any reason for you have to sit through all of this
if you are not going to have a hearing.

Steve Boheleber: See you next month, thank you.

President Fanello: Thank you.

Commissioner Mosby: Thank you.

Commissioner Mourdock: It's a great civics lesson though.

American Medical Response Contract

President Fanello: American Medical Response contract. Are there any questions
by the Commissioners on that contract? There weren’t any changes except the
date.

Phil Hayes: Just the same thing. | could say for the record just to inform you, Mr.
Key was extremely helpful to our Commission last spring and summer on this, that
is apropos of nothing except for the fact that | felt it was worth mentioning for the
record. | think that these are contracts for them to meet anyway but | felt that he
added a great deal in terms of assistance. | would like the record to reflect that.

Commissioner Mosby: | make a motion that we accept the AMR contract for next
year.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

Voices for 1-69 Contract
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President Fanello: So ordered. The I-69 contract, same contract.
Commissioner Mourdock: | will move approval of the 1-69 contract.
Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Commissioner Mourdock: (inaudible)

President Fanello: Okay, department head reports.

Commissioner Mosby: Are there other people here?

Any Other Group or Individual Wishing to Address the Board

President Fanello: Oh, | am sorry. Is there anyone else here wishing to address the
Board?

Madelyn Grayson: May we make a tape change, please?
(Tape Change)
Commissioner Mourdock: You can go ahead.

Unidentified: Go ahead? Okay. | will be brief, | have asked this question before, |
really wanted to ask the jail designers though while they were here. | mentioned to
you last time | heard.

Commissioner Mourdock: State your name please.

Connie Whitman: | am Connie Whitman, sorry, Evansville resident. | asked you
before what you are doing about this number of jail beds. There are hundreds of
people in the jail that don’t belong there. There are two huge categories. There is
civilincarceration for things that were fines and if somebody misses a court date and
bam they got a bench warrant. Then you have kids held months and months,
sometimes a year, without a trial because there are no lawyers in this town that give
a darn to give them a speedy trial. There just aren’t any lawyers in this town that
care. Sowhen you have somebody held eight months for a traffic ticket that wouldn’t
have carried any jail time, you have so many people in jail that don’t belong in jail.
You could do it a lot less. So for instance, the people that had the 64 pods, you
know pods of 64 or the other with the modular, | suggest that you go with the lowest
number that you can. What | would really like to see you do is hire me for $15,000
or $20,000 a year to review all of your cases and | could save you millions. Because
when you hold somebody eight months in jail that didn’t owe any jail time in the first
place, or wouldn’t have after they had their trial, would be a fine or restitution or
something else or nothing. Most charges aren’t even true and they are dropped
later. They raise their charges as bargaining chips. They can’t make bail, and you
sit in jail for that higher bail for something you didn’t do. So, | hope that you all will
listen to what | say and go through those cases, have these cases reviewed and see
if there aren’t hundreds of people that don’'t need to be released and if they don'’t
have a speedy trial under the sixth amendment or reasonable bail under the eighth,
if the lawyer doesn’t do anything in two weeks or four weeks, let them go. Make



Vanderburgh County Page 43 of 60
Board of Commissioners
January 28, 2002

these lawyers do their jobs. You would save millions, not to mention the misery you
would alleviate for somebody doing eight months of jail for a $25 ticket. It is not just
right. | see a civil rights action here because the jail population is less than 1% of
the population. Itis not a voting block and they have no one to speak for them. Like
| said, a kid that is pulled over and misses his court date, suddenly is owed jail time
for no reason and that is a minority, less than 1%. They need some kind of
protection. Also, | didn’t hear anybody address the Public Defenders office. Or
what, | don’t know what you use the space in these 193,000 square feetor 118,000
square feet. The police and sheriff are on duty, three shifts a day, seven days a
week, and | think that you should have a Public Defenders office inside the jail three
shifts a day, seven days a week. There should be lawyers on duty to balance out
the rest of the Constitution. Like | said, you all have managed to violate every single
provision of the Constitution that it is possible to violate, especially the sixth and
eighth amendments.

President Fanello: Is there anyone else that needs to come forward? Okay, seeing
none, moving onto Department Head reports. County Engineer.

John Stoll - County Engineer

John Stoll: First, | have a change order on the Boyle Lane Bridge contract, this was
contract number VC01-08-01. This is for a net decrease of $1,003.76.

Commissioner Mosby: | motion for that.

Commissioner Mourdock: You beat me to it. I'll second.

Commissioner Mosby: It's for a decrease.

President Fanello: Okay, so ordered. We’ll take all that we can get.
Commissioner Mosby: There aren’t too many decreases that come across.
Commissioner Mourdock: Where is Dennis Feldhaus?

John Stoll: Next, | have a street acceptance request for Buente West Court in
Section 5A of Cross Pointe subdivision. This street was inspected and it was built
in general accordance with the approved plans, and it is recommended that the
street be accepted for maintenance.

Commissioner Mourdock: So moved.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: Next, | have a letter that | drafted to send to IDEM in regard to their latest
draft of the Phase Il storm water regulations. I've got 15 different items that try to
address some of their more stringent requirements, and hopefully they will make

some of these changes we are requesting.

Commissioner Mourdock: | appreciate your dogged persistence, John. Motion to
approve.
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Commissioner Mosby: Second, | am sorry.
President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: | was going to say reading through the regulations during the meeting |
found out six more that | am going to send a letter. Rather than have you sign, I'll
send it myself, because the deadline is Thursday. So | will get that written. Next,
I've got a letter—

Commissioner Mourdock: Excuse me, | think Bill Pedtke wants to say something
about the storm water.

Bill Pedtke: Not about that necessarily but the letter specifically. Bill Pedtke with the
Builders Association. Excuse me, can we also get a copy of that letter to our State
Representatives and State Senators from the Southwestern region? Not just
Vanderburgh County, but | think that we need to start drawing some support. This
stuff is getting ridiculous.

Commissioner Mourdock: Greatidea. | would move that we send copies of that letter
to the various State Representatives and State Senators from Southwest Indiana
and ask them to pursue our issues as well.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.
President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: | have also been in contact with the Warrick County Surveyor, Karen
Barnhill and she is planning on doing the same in regards to sending out the letters
to the State Reps. Next, | have got a letter regarding Parcel 20 on the University
Parkway project. This is the Marvin Wright property. The increase is a request for
an additional $1,310.62. This is to cover Mr. Wright’s property tax bills that will occur
after we have acquired the property. This would make the grand total offer to Mr.
Wright, $261,310.62. We have gone ahead and had similar increases on total
property takes in the past. Inkenbrandt parcel was another one where we had an
increase to cover the property tax issue, and based on that it is recommended that
this increase be approved.

Commissioner Mosby: | will make a motion.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: The last item that I've got is a request for street plan approval for Liberty
Estates. This is located off of Bergdolt Road. It is off of the east end of Bergdolt
Road, east of Oak Hill Road. This subdivision was formerly known as Section 2 of
Ashwood Subdivision, butdue to it not being recorded, it's primary approval expired.
So it has been brought back with a new designer and a new name and | have
reviewed the plans and recommend that the street plans be approved.

Commissioner Mourdock: So moved.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.
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President Fanello: So ordered.
Phil Hayes: | am just being nosy, John.
John Stoll: That is all I've got unless you’ve got any questions on anything.

President Fanello: Thank you, John. You got any questions? Okay, County
Highway.

Commissioner Mosby: A few more minutes.
John Stoll: Pardon me.

Commissioner Mosby: Are you going to be around a few more minutes, until we get
to new business?

John Stoll: | guess | can be.

Commissioner Mosby: About 15 minutes.

John Stoll: Sure.

Commissioner Mosby: | would like for you to stay.

President Fanello: County Highway.

Ralph Kissinger - County Highway

Ralph Kissinger: Here are two sets of pictures that we can pass one one way and
one another. This is Ralph Kissinger, County Highway. These pictures are of a
dump site on Newman Road that our, a continuing problem we spend thousand and
thousands of dollars a year to clean this up. | don’t have a problem cleaning it but
we need to work on a solution for this. | have talked with Chief Williams and he is
able to step up the patrols. Itis a remote area and | don’t really have any real good
ideas, but | am open to suggestions. This is an ongoing problem of a dump site, but
this time there where, we cleaned, this picture was taken. These pictures were
taken after we had already hauled off a full tri-axle load of roofing out of the roadway
itself. It had obstructed traffic and we had already loaded one tri-axle full of roofing
and, you know, what the tonnage is on roofing and what they are charging at the
dump. Last spring we cleaned this site completely up, and by mid-summer we had
to go back ago. Itis an ongoing thing, and | am open to suggestions. | broughtitto
the Sheriff’'s department and the Chief said that he could step up patrols down there.
| don’t know, maybe some sort of surveillance, put a camera on a tree, get some
license numbers. | think if someone would actually get fined it would deter a lot of
it. 1 know it is a tough situation, like | said, | am open for suggestions, but it is an
ongoing thing that continues to eat away at our budgets.

Commissioner Mourdock: Is all that is being dumped, is it confined to our right-of-
way?

Ralph Kissinger: No, but most of it is on right-of-way, but there is a property there
that a farmer owns. That part of it is on, and part of its off where the dump is, but it
actually runs from the road all the way to the edge of the wooded lot there. From
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what the right-of-way | get, | haven’t gone into any deed research, which John could
do for me, but we have got a pretty liberal right-of-way down there.

Commissioner Mourdock: Where is Newman Road?

Ralph Kissinger: It is off of Old Henderson Road down several, two miles passed
dogtown, approximately two miles.

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah a couple, abouttwo and a half miles. I don’t know if you
are familiar with Green Light curve down there but it is right past that. You turn to
the right. You like that? Green Light? That's whatitis called. | can’t help it, but it
is. | know the area that he is talking about, and it is very handy to back right up there
and dump real quick and go on out and never be caught.

Ralph Kissinger: | know there have been signs put up there in the past and itis a
favorite spot for people to go out and shoot their hand guns, and they just shoot their
signs until they fall off of the post. It's just a bad situation. Like | said, | am open for
any kind of suggestion to try, and you know, if we can’t eliminate the problem at least
get it to something that we can control easily. Not including manpower, but just the
expense alone of dumping this stuff is quite expensive for the county.

Commissioner Mosby: Have you ever dug through any of it to see if you could get
any names?

Ralph Kissinger: | did today. | actually did and as we scraped through it, | was trying
to find something with the contractors name on it because what | thought happened
on the roofing a contractor probably charged somebody a tremendous amount to
haul that off and then dumped it down there after they tore the roof off. So, you
know these things happen.

(Inaudible)

Ralph Kissinger: Right, it could have been an individual but there was an awful lot
there.

Commissioner Mourdock: It may just be an exercise in helping someone exercise
their second amendment rights, but let’'s go ahead and stick a couple of signs down
there so that they are aware of what we are doing.

Ralph Kissinger: Yeah, like | said, signs are fine. | don’t know if anybody would pay
attention to it or not. What do you think, Brad?

Brad Ellsworth: (Inaudible. Not at the mike.)

Ralph Kissinger: The only other thing that | have here this evening, | have rewritten
the specs. | have some tandem axle trucks on my capital improvement.

Commissioner Mourdock: Before we go to this, first thing, let’s go back to the signs.
Do the signs that you have been putting up, say simply no dumping? Or do they
have anything about a fine on them?

Ralph Kissinger: The signs that were up in the past were so shot up | couldn’t tell
what they said. | really don’t know. | didn’t mean to be humorous there.
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Commissioner Mourdock: Let’s at least stick something up there that involves
money.

Ralph Kissinger: Sure, | can get with the Engineer’s office and he can direct me as
to what to put up there.

Commissioner Mourdock: Something that states-

Ralph Kissinger: | don’t know what the ordinances are in the county but...| have
rewritten some specs on our tandem axle trucks. The ones we have were spec’d
way too light, and we’ve had a lot of spring problems with them. | have rewritten
these to state minimums, and with your permission, | do have the funding in place,
and | do have it on my capital improvements to buy two of these trucks this year. |
would like to go ahead and give these to Phil Lawrence and get the bidding process
started on those two trucks.

Commissioner Mourdock: Ballpark number, what will these trucks go for?

Ralph Kissinger: Equipped the way they are, | would say between $60,000 and
$70,000 per unit.

Commissioner Mourdock: And you are looking for what, two?

Ralph Kissinger: Two. | have two 1988 trucks in the fleet. I've got five 1993 and two
1998 models. The 1988 models both have over 300,000 miles on them.

Commissioner Mourdock: My question isn’t about what the need is, but about the
overall county budget.

Ralph Kissinger: | do have it budgeted.

Commissioner Mourdock: | know, | understand that.

Ralph Kissinger: For that amount, yes sir.

Commissioner Mourdock: | see growing demands out there.

Ralph Kissinger: | understand, and | am trying to get some of these older vehicles
updated with more fuel efficient computerized engines. There is-

President Fanello: Well, we can’t use the Highway budget for anything else other
than, does this come out of the Highway budget or is in the General Fund?

Ralph Kissinger: This is actually Local Roads and Streets.
President Fanello: Which we still can’t use for anything other than.
Ralph Kissinger: No, | think Local Roads and Streets funds are equipment budget.

Commissioner Mosby: | will make a motion that we accept the new specifications to
give to Phil Lawrence:

Commissioner Mourdock: | will go ahead and second.
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President Fanello: So ordered.
Madelyn Grayson: Ralph, do you have an extra copy of that?

Ralph Kissinger: Yes, | do. | should have one. That is all that | have this evening
unless you have anything else.

President Fanello: Is there anything else for Highway? County Attorney.

Phil Hayes - County Attorney

Phil Hayes: | have no prepared report for tonight.

President Fanello: Thank you, Superintendent.

Tammy McKinney - Superintendent of County Buildings

Tammy McKinney: | have nothing.
President Fanello: Okay.

Commissioner Mourdock: | have one quick question, Phil. Did, | shouldn’t have
made it that quick of a question. From our Executive Session without going into all
of the details regarding litigation. Did Joe get feedback from Indianapolis that he
was going to try and talk to, has there been contact made?

Phil Hayes: Yes, he was here earlier this evening and he has gotten some, and he
said that he would be contacting our office. In turn we’ll try to pass on where we
are.

President Fanello: Okay, Burdette Park.

Steve Craig - Burdette Park

Steve Craig: All | have is my work reports tonight. | need to set up a time with Phil
to meet over the concessions.

President Fanello: Okay. You can just get with him. I'm sure you’ll have to call the
office and set up a time with him.

Commissioner Mosby: Did you hear that he needs to get with you?

President Fanello: Does he just need to call the office and set up a time with you?
About the RFP?

Philip Hayes: No, I'll call you.
President Fanello: Okay. Don’t call him.
Philip Hayes: Just give me a call.

Steve Craig: Okay.
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Philip Hayes: Don’t be shy. | know you are.

SWCD & Ozone Officer Report

Commissioner Mourdock: We have Soil and Water reports and Ozone. | would
move those be included with the submitted department reports.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.
President Fanello: So ordered.
Commissioner Mosby: (Inaudible) worksheet.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Consent ltems

President Fanello: Consent Items.

Philip Hayes: Yeah, ask Jeffers how we (Inaudible).

Suzanne Crouch: | ask thatthe Commissioners amend the Consent Items to include
a pass through grant. It’'s a grant renewal for the Health Department. It does not
require Commissioner signatures. We received it today. | apologize for the
lateness.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll move adding that item to the Consent file.

Commissioner Mosby: Then | would like to also add another one for an interlocal
agreement between Vanderburgh County and Henry County to the Consent Items.

Commissioner Mourdock: Is that regarding the jail?

Commissioner Mosby: Yes.

Commissioner Mourdock: Same type agreement?

Commissioner Mosby: Right. Same as White and Spencer.

Commissioner Mourdock: As I’'m thinking of it, let’'s be sure we get copies of those
to Dennis Feldhaus since he’s kind of left with the impression that maybe there are
(Inaudible) more things in the works. Anything else for Consents? I'll move approval
of the Consent Items then, with those several additions.

Philip Hayes: I’'m not sure | want (Inaudible)--

Commissioner Mosby: Second.’

'Consent Items liste on Page 60.
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Scheduled Meetings

President Fanello: Okay, scheduled meetings. Oh, I'm sorry. He made a motion.
Commissioner Mourdock: | made a motion to accept the Consent File.
Commissioner Mosby: | said second.

President Fanello: Okay, so ordered. Sorry. Scheduled meetings. None that we
know of.

Old Business

President Fanello: Old Business.

Commissioner Mourdock: One bit of Old Business, and I'll just pass out for review
next week, but as you know we’ve had some discussion about what our space
allocation would be, and Mr. Utley, before he left tonight prepared a bit of a survey
form that could go to all the various department heads with space here in the
building on the county and city side if we choose to do it. So, I'll just give you copies
and then we can talk about the (Inaudible) at a future date.

President Fanello: Okay. Just one copy.
Commissioner Mourdock: That’s all the Old Business | have.

President Fanello: Okay.

New Business

President Fanello: New Business.

Commissioner Mosby: Yes, | have one piece of New Business, that’s why | wanted
John to stay. Last Friday | went out to Jobe’s Lane with the, with Judge Tornatta.

INDOT was out there, some other people from Indy, the Health Department, EMC,
I’m trying to think of all the parties involved. We have a bad sanitary, we don’t have
a sanitary sewer, so it's a problem with septic tanks, and most septic tanks all
flowing into one, and it goes to the bottom of the hill. |1 don’t know how familiar you
are with all this. Anyhow it's in court. There’s a court case, | think, David Schroeder
versus some of the neighbors, some of the neighbors versus Vanderburgh County,
I’'m not sure who all’s involved in this court suit. It's been an ongoing problem.

Health Department has basically, | guess, condemned every septic out there. Now
they have went out and tested the wells and all the wells are full of ecoli or whatever,
so they are told not to wash their clothes or use the water to drink. So, what it
amounted to is the Judge was trying to look for a solution to this whole problem after,
I’'m going to say, three or four years, I’'m not sure how many years this has been
going on. What he had done was talk to some people in Indy, they are...there was
two of them come down, they checked what was called the rural county something,
and we didn’t qualify under that. They checked under INDOT or IDEM and we didn’t
qualify. They have found a couple of sources, possibly, of funding that would allow
these people a grant, rather than to try and use the Barrett Law, because this is like
a 54% income neighborhood. They have the income averages on it. These people
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basically couldn’t afford the Barrett Law. What it's going to require of the county is
that we will in turn have to put the up front money up for an engineer to go out and,
basically, give us a design of what it will take to put a sewer in. They are also going
to end up putting a water line in at the same time, because they need a water line
too. It’s going...they said it would be easier to do both while the hole is open. There
is a lot of easement problems to this area. From what | understand, Jobe’s Lane at
one time should of went that a way, and it’'s goes that a way. So, we are going to
end up, probably, having to get some easement rights signed. We have to foot the
up front money for the attorneys to go out and do the easement work. Hopefully, if
the grant comes through, like they are hoping, this would all be paid back out of the
grant to the county. We would get our money back for the engineer. We would get
our money back for the work the attorneys do on easement rights. If it doesn’t and
they have to go with a low interest loan, they said it’'s up to us whether we want to
add that cost into the loan to the residents. There is nine houses involved in all this.

Commissioner Mourdock: You mentioned at the start of that, David, and I'm not
familiar with this one, but you mentioned that Judge Tornatta was there, and several
other people. So, there are some law suits—

Commissioner Mosby: There is law suits on this.

Commissioner Mourdock: Is the county a name defendant?

Commissioner Mourdock: Yes, we've been named, | think, at one point in time.
Philip Hayes: Well, they, they, technically it's the next thing to being named, but
under a special procedure we were brought in as a necessary party. We've not
been added-

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

Philip Hayes: —but we’re certainly under strong obligation to be there as a...it's an
unusual way to do it, but it's a better part of judgement. Joe Harrison has had this
case going back into, I think, ‘99, David? Did they say?

Commissioner Mosby: | thought it was longer than that.

Philip Hayes: Was it longer than ‘997

John Stoll: | think it’'s longer than that.

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, it goes—

Philip Hayes: Yeah, probably.

Commissioner Mosby: —back.

John Stoll: They had originally looked at a Barrett Law, like David had said—
Commissioner Mosby: Right.

John Stoll: —and | got conflicting stories on why it never was designed. | guess one

of the people involved had Morley and Associates go out and take a look at things,
and then some bills were never paid is the way | was told—
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Commissioner Mosby: Yeah—

John Stoll: —So, Morley has never continued with the process of looking at the
project. That was the end of my involvement. At that time it was a Barrett Law
project, and they were looking at trying to run it down the street, because there was
no existing easements. Since the Barrett Law doesn’t allow, really, for
condemnation of an easement, itwas all intended to go down the street right-of-way,
but there again, there is the other problem with the street right-of-way it's not
accurate. So, there were all kinds of problems in getting sewer out there.

Commissioner Mourdock: So, at this point, bringing this before us tonight, is the
primary issue simply trying to find out what we might do by way of grants? Is that
accurate?

Commissioner Mosby: What, I'm not sure ifit's IDEM or INDOT, one of the two, what
they were asking of this Commission is we have to be willing to put the money up for
an engineer. We have to be willing to do the legal work out there, before we can
even get the process started. A good possibility is, they think there is a very good
chance of getting grants. If and when we get the grants, we would be paid back for
engineering costs—

Philip Hayes: Soft costs.

Commissioner Mosby: —that we incurred with whatever company we choose, and
we would also be paid back for the attorney fees. If we don’t get the grants, then
they are talking about looking for low interest loans that these people will have to
sign off on, and we could add that costin if we want. If we don’t want, you know, we
don’tadd them in to try to save the cost of the project. Butthey need a commitment.
We have to actually file, | think. The way | understand it, this county has to be the
entitlement body that files for the grant. So, that’'s why it was brought to my
attention. I didn’t get back with Judge Tornatta today to see if anything... I don’t think
Patty got any e-mails.

Commissioner Mourdock: So, the most we could hope to do tonight then would be
to simply start the process to see what we might need to do by way of filling out the
grant application?

Commissioner Mosby: | guess, the motion | would make that is that we accept the
responsibility to do the legal work, and to get an engineer on board to get...we have
to have a cost. Nobody actually knows what the cost is, because Morley went out
there, but it was like a walk through type deal, from what | understand.

John Stoll: Right.

Commissioner Mosby: Nothing was ever designed. So, when we say $150,000, we
don’t know if that’s true.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, and that’'s why I’'m hesitant to do much more than
make, start the process going tonight. | hate to have something in the record
interpreted that tonight we’re accepting the cost, when we’re just hearing about all
this. I’'m certainly willing to look into it and find—

Philip Hayes: | think we can know by next week. | think by Monday-
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Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, that’s fine.

Philip Hayes: —we could know, pretty much, the information you are talking about.
| can get with the Judge tomorrow.

Commissioner Mosby: | mean, what do we want to know?

Philip Hayes: You want to know concerning what our odds are of getting back the
money? You know that you need to be a sponsor, but—

Commissioner Mosby: The odds are we will get the money back if we get the grant.
Philip Hayes: And it's applicable—

Commissioner Mosby: But we can’teven apply for the grant...what I'm saying is, until
we decide if we are going to spend the money, everything is dead in the water.

Philip Hayes: So, it's an application need—

Commissioner Mosby: And we have to do the application. | mean, | will be very
supportive of it. I mean, I've seen the lake, it's full. The wells are full. The only way
to get the process started is for this county to take up on the challenge.

Commissioner Mourdock: | understand. The fact that the lake is full, regardless, no
matter what the lake is full of—

Commissioner Mosby: | don’t need to tell you.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, | can assume, butit’s also true the county didn’t put
it there. So, | just want to make sure we don’t accept liability we don’t have. Again,
I’m not necessarily objecting. It sounds like what we need to do is start filling out the
grant application. Start that process, and as soon as you get the grant application
to, then we can vote on the thing, up or down, as to yes, we’re going to do it, or no,
we’re not.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay.

Commissioner Mourdock: We just need to start with that. Is that right?
Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, we need....we need to be willing to take on the Rural
Community Assistance Program, Todd Trinkle, was outthere and then Steven Brock
from—

Commissioner Mourdock: Petersburg?

Commissioner Mosby: Todd Trinkle?

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, is he on the Pike County?

Commissioner Mosby: He’s out of, no, Indianapolis, Indiana. They are both out of
Indianapolis. This guy was working on the program, this guy is working on the

funding, the financing. We have to be willing to accept the cost before anything can
go forward. | am willing to do that.
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John Stoll: It sounds—

Commissioner Mosby: What I’'m probably, yeah, | was going to say what will end up
happening is | told them | would talk with you to decide who we want to get an as
engineer and architect.

John Stoll: Are there any time frames on when it has to be filed by?

Commissioner Mosby: Last week. That was what | was told. This is considered an
emergency, and that’s the way they are stating it in Indianapolis, and they are trying
to get some kind of okay’s within two to three weeks.

John Stoll: So, we would need a reliable cost estimate, basically—

Commissioner Mosby: So we need to move. We have to have some type of reliable
cost estimate, so that they know what they are actually applying for.

John Stoll: So, whatever consultant we select then would have to basically be able
to get right on it, and not have any delays then.

Commissioner Mourdock: And if we do do it, and even make payment prior to getting
reimbursement from the grant, is that coming from our budget? Or what budget are
you—

Commissioner Mosby: | would propose taking...I would propose taking it out of
Infrastructure or Riverboat. Water and sewer is infrastructure. Then reimburse it
when it comes back in out of the grant. | mean, | don’t know where else to take it
from.

Philip Hayes: It...maybe it would be helpful if...I can, | know recall the details of the
docket. This case is a botched subdivision that was done, and the people that
bought the homes didn’t even know there was no sewer there. What has happened
is that the law suit was started because the jury-rigged sewage effluent device by
one neighbor was alleged to be noxious and the other neighbor sued to stop that.
In effect, what it was, it was diversion. Various engineering firms have tried to tackle
this. They have measured it against the Barrett Law. The county has not been a
party, because as you point out, this was a private property matter. Their legal
strategy choices, as well as their, and | can’t speak to the engineering choices, that
would take a lot of the other people in this room, but in so far as the legal strategy
choices were concerned, they are less than desirable. In fact, they are retarded.
And as aresult, the county finally was pulled in by the Judge as a third party, without
naming us, but the Judge inherited the case just as we have, and finally said, you
know, this is a health crisis out here. So, this lagoon that is being described as a
lake, is not a lake, it’s a lagoon, at this point, has polluted the area. Last year, 2000
or 2001, Commissioner Mosby asked me to take a look to see whether there were
any contingency funds with the sewer, EMC operators. | was told where to go. We
followed up on that, we’ve been told to go further.

Commissioner Mourdock: Make a return trip.

Philip Hayes: Deeper into the original destination. So, what it amounts to is that
everybody is fit to be tied with it. Each time you move anywhere you’re blocked off.
We’'re not concerned about county liability, on a legal matter. If we were, if they
attempted to force us to be liable, we would not be liable. In fact, the health
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enforcement that’s gone on, basically, makes these people homeless if they want
to get going. They all, they can all be evicted, but the practice...I've investigated the
practice on this in other surrounding counties. Warrick County has some situations
similar to this, | can tell you, that is right against some very valuable property, which
is going to come to a head before long, if you'll pardon the expression. There are
other counties that have the same deal. So, | have to say that it does speak to crisis
management at this point. | think our choices are basically either attempt to do
what’s available through this Rural Assistance...and it may be a tough fit, because
| don’t know that our county is a rural assistance county, however—

Commissioner Mosby: This project didn’t qualify.

Philip Hayes: Yeah, did not.

Commissioner Mosby: It's only...this project is a—

Commissioner Mourdock: Did or did not?

Commissioner Mosby: It did not qualify because we’re 45' from the city line.
Philip Hayes: Right.

Commissioner Mosby: The city line is actually right across the street, comes right up
the middle of this lake, and you could go from here to the elevator and be in the city.
| have talked with the city Water and Sewer Utility and they don’t want anything to
do with it. City Water and Sewer Utility has agreed to accept the line once it’s laid,
and they have agreed to take the maintenance on, and do the billing and everything.
That was one of the other requirements we were going to have to have. | have
talked to Jim Cameron down at the city Water and Sewer Utility, and John Rexing
was on site.

Philip Hayes: The legal that’s involved now, there has been some new legal brought
in. There is new engineering brought in, and I think they are all working pro bono.
| don’t see where there is a quarter involved in it for any of them. It's not a
productive piece of legal or engineering work. It's pretty much a disaster for us out
there. So, if this...and how, | was not aware of the meeting and I’'m glad that they got
Commissioner Mosby out there, but I'm aware of the issues that have simply been
kind of waiting for there to be a consensus developed among the parties, butl guess
they finally, basically, said this is about it. So, that’'s where we are.

President Fanello: Let’'s move on. Do we need to make a formal motion?

Philip Hayes: Yeah, you need a-—

President Fanello: Okay.

Philip Hayes: —to give a motion.

Commissioner Mosby: | make a motion that we work with Judge Tornatta, INDOT,
IDEM whoever, to come up with an engineer, at their request, and they said they
would get back with us, but I'll make a motion at their request that we come up with

an engineering design and cost. We take the money from Infrastructure, Riverboat
and that we work on the legals to speed this along.
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Commissioner Mourdock: I’'m going to reserve my right to object later on, but I'll go
ahead and second the motion just to get the process working. | do have some real
concerns, and | understand it's an emergency, it’s, and I'm glad to know we’re not
having any part of the liability here, that’s good to know, but | just want to make sure
that we don’t open the door for everybody who’s got some septic problems to come
to us—

President Fanello: Okay.

Commissioner Mourdock: —and say help us.

Philip Hayes: We can come back, | think we can come back to, before we get into,
on an unlimited basis, we could stop (Inaudible. Mike not on.)

President Fanello: Okay, so—
Philip Hayes: This is going to take ten days to get things going.

Commissioner Mourdock: And that would be appropriate. That's what I'm saying,
some time—

Philip Hayes: We can come in (Inaudible. Mike not on.) So it’'s not an unlimited
commitment to (Inaudible).

President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: | was going to say, get me the phone numbers of the people, and | can
talk to the guys you talked to and at least try and find out what they need from us.

Commissioner Mosby: | was going to say as soon as they e-mail Tammy, | will have
a list coming in the next day or two—

John Stoll: Okay.

Commissioner Mosby: —of everything they want us to start doing right away.
John Stoll: Okay.

Commissioner Mosby: Because they are putting this in as an emergency.
John Stoll: Okay. Yeah, you can just forward it to me.

Philip Hayes: This would hook into, this would hook into EMC’s nearest (Inaudible.
Mike not on.)

John Stoll: They’ve got—
Philip Hayes: It's going to be part of-
Commissioner Mosby: It's going to be gravity pull. No pump station.

Philip Hayes: Gravity pull, no pump.
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John Stoll: They’ve got other lines out there, it's just it has to be extended out to
serve these people.

President Fanello: Okay. Any more New Business from either of these
Commissioners? I've got two things. I'll be as brief as possible. It's come to my
attention, and | did not notice it before, but | had Tammy make copies of the travel
claims that we’ve, that have gone through...people have not been submitting, | think
we’ve gotten into the habit of not submitting receipts with the travel claims, and we
are paying per diems without receipts. The travel ordinance that was approved back
in ‘98 by the Commission did call for receipts. | think that’'s only prudent of us to
require those receipts when we’re paying a per diem amount. So, | bring this to
everyone’s attention. | just think that as we go forward, we need to make sure that
we are requiring receipts.

Commissioner Mosby: What do we pay?

President Fanello: $26 per day.

Commissioner Mosby: Well, if somebody requests $26, how do we know if they
spent?

President Fanello: We don’t.

Commissioner Mosby: How are we paying that, Suzanne?

Commissioner Mourdock: It's in the per diem.

Suzanne Crouch: And Council back, I think it's been since this ‘98, there was some
legislation, | would have to research it and pull it where Council went ahead and
made some, put some mechanism in place to pay per diems up to $26, but I'll have
to research that.

President Fanello: Without receipts?

Suzanne Crouch: Because of state called meetings, and yes.

Commissioner Mourdock: This isn’t the question here and | don’t want to make this
a long issue, but if the per diem is $26 a day, typically, it's $26 a day, whether they
spend $5, | mean, if we are going to have a per diem, a per diem is a per diem.
President Fanello: Well-

Commissioner Mosby: Well, per diem is up to and you approve the receipts.
President Fanello: | mean, we’re going to go ahead and pay people $26-
Commissioner Mourdock: (Inaudible. Talking over each other.)

Commissioner Mosby: Well, no, the city is per diem. | used to go on every city and
town’s convention, but you come back and hand out your receipts. If you had $32,

this only paid you $26, but if you had $15, they paid you $15.

President Fanello: Yeah.
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Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, then it’'s not a true per diem. Let’s just use the
word—

President Fanello: Okay, well, that’'s what we call it, and that may be...but | am not
in favor of paying people an amount of money when we have no proof if that's
exactly—

Suzanne Crouch: | agree.

Commissioner Mourdock: And | agree with that too, as long as it’'s not a true per
diem.

President Fanello: Uh-huh.
Commissioner Mourdock: So, yeah, we need—

Commissioner Mosby: | don’t have a problem with mileage. | don’t have a problem
with...and do you make them submit motel receipts?

Suzanne Crouch: Yes, they do the motel receipts, uh-huh. They do parking,
typically, and—

Commissioner Mosby: So, you ask for receipts on all that?
Suzanne Crouch: Uh-huh.
Commissioner Mosby: You're just not asking for receipts on food?

Suzanne Crouch: Some offices do submit them, and some do not. I'm all in favor.
| think that’s what you ought to do is to give us the directive that—

Commissioner Mosby: Well, I'll make a motion tonight that we don’t pay any per
diem without receipts, and we only pay up to $26.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered. The other thing, real short, | think each of you got
a copy of the minority and women business owned plan that the Mayor had sent
over. | did have a joint press conference with him last Friday, and told him | would
bring it to this Commission for consideration, so you each have a copy of it, and we
can talk about it at a later date. That’s all | have to say about that.

Commissioner Mourdock: Motion to adjourn.

President Fanello: Second.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: We’'ll take five minutes and we’ll start Rezoning.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:25 p.m.
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CONSENT ITEMS:
Employment Changes:
County Clerk Sheriff Department Superior Court

Surveyor

Travel Requests:

Weights & Measures Pigeon Assessor German Assessor
SWCD Health Department

Request for Service:

Treasurer

Auditor:

Pass through of Indiana Criminal Justice Institute Grant App/Prosecutor
State of Indiana IDGF Grant Agreement for Graham Packaging
Declaration of Surplus Equipment

Permission to Advertise Statement of Receipts and Expenditures and
Wages and Compensation for 2001

Pass through of Grant Renewal for Health Department

Commissioners:
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St. Mary’s Occupational Medicine- Letter of Agreement

Lease Agreement for Space at Old Courthouse- Robert Pokorney
Knight Township Fire Department: Adoption of VC Honor Guard
Knight Township Trustee: Adoption of Township Standards

Treasurer:
Submit monthly report.

DADS:
Contract for Services for Medical Consultation

Sheriff:

Weekly jail information and reports.

Interlocal Agreements: White, Spencer and Henry Counties
Two EPA Applications for Reimbursement.

Those in Attendance:

Catherine Fanello David W. Mosby Richard E. Mourdock
Philip Hayes Suzanne Crouch Tammy McKinney
Madelyn Grayson Joe Harrison, Jr. Ed Hafer

Ken English Alan Braun J.T. Kinkle

Troy Tornatta Jim Raben Steve Bohleber

Alan Teeple Steve Craig Dennis Feldhaus

Bill Pedtke Connie Whitman John Stoll

Ralph Kissinger Les Shively Brad Ellsworth
Others Unidentified Members of Media

VANDERBURGH COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Catherine Fanello, President

David W. Mosby, Vice President

Richard E. Mourdock, Member

Recorded by Madelyn Grayson. Transcribed by Madelyn Grayson and BJ Farrell.



Vanderburgh County
Board of Commissioners
February 4, 2002

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session this 4™ day of
February, 2002, at 5:32 p.m. in Room 307 of the Civic Center Complex with
President Catherine Fanello presiding.

Call to Order

President Fanello: | would like to call to order the Commissioner meeting of February
4,2002.

Introductions and Pledge of Allegiance

President Fanello: Introductions are as follows; to my right Tammy McKinney,
Superintendent; County Attorney, Phil Hayes; Commissioner Mosby; myself,
Commissioner Fanello; Commissioner Mourdock to my left; Suzanne Crouch,
County Auditor; and Madelyn Grayson, Recording Secretary. Please join me in the
Pledge of Allegiance.

(The Pledge was given.)

Approval of Minutes

President Fanello: First item, approval of minutes from January 28™.
Commissioner Mosby: Motion to approve.
Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Rebecca Gootee: Domestic and Sexual Violence 2001 Annual Report

President Fanello: Next item, Domestic and Sexual Violence 2001 Annual Report,
Rebecca.

Rebecca Gootee: (Inaudible. Not at mike.) As you all see, again, we have done a
lot of wonderful things with the commission from the Evansville-Vanderburgh County
Commission on Domestic and Sexual Violence. | am going to leave this for your
leisure to look through. If you have questions, | did put my card at the top. Itis quite
a large document. Just a couple of things | wanted to point out in there is that this
is a collaboration from many, many agencies working to eliminate domestic violence
in our city. We were able to have Karen Freeman-Wilson as part of our education
committee join us in our annual luncheon to present to the city. We’ve looked at
diverse areas that we were having gaps in. We’ve expanded our Evansville Police
Department unit now to expansion of officers to cover larger areas of domestic
violence, and will actually be forming a unit off-site to address those issues. So,
there are many wonderful things that the commission has done last year. They've
already set their goals in place, presented them to me for the upcoming year. | think
that next year you will see another great report. So, please take a look atit. If you
have questions, give me a call.
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President Fanello: Thank you.

Commissioner Mosby: Thank you.

Request to Award Title Searches Bid
for 2001 Expedited Tax Sale Properties:
Mills Land Title Corporation

President Fanello: Next item of business, Auditor.

Suzanne Crouch: Yes (Microphone feedback) I think | better step back a little bit.
We would request that the Commissioners award (Microphone feedback) the title
searches...may | use your microphone? We would request that the Commissioners
award the bid for the title searches in connection with the 2001 expedited tax sale
properties to Mills Land Title Corporation. They were the lowest and responsive
bidder, and the only bidder.

Commissioner Mosby: Since it's the only bidder, | don’t think it's going to be real
hard.

Philip Hayes: The numbers that were in the bid appear to be consistent with prior
years service. There is a tiered style fee. We don’t have to have a full search on
absolutely everything. It also appeared to be consistent with fees one could expect
in title services through the tri-state area.

Commissioner Mosby: | will make a motion to award Mills Land Title Corporation.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

County Engineer: Lynch Road Project

President Fanello: County Engineer.
John Stoll: I'm not sure if Phil has a copy of that. On the Lynch Road settlement.
Philip Hayes: You can go ahead, if you like. Or | can—

John Stoll: Basically, the condemnation suit was settled for an additional $28,700
and some odd dollars. So, that right-of-way will be clear once the settlement
agreement is signed off on. This will finally put an end to it after better than two
years.

Philip Hayes: Yes, and for the record, a document has been prepared consistent
with what the County Engineer has just stated. First of all, there was a dismissal
entry received on the case showing that the final settlement amount was paid in, and
that also a claim then will be filed through the project budget by the County Engineer
to pay that $28,000 amount. In addition, an agreement of the Board was also one
of the conditions. That agreement simply is this, that the Board shall take no action
which will deter an application to be made by the condemnee for a right-in, right-out
access break. No action will be taken by the Board to impede the approval of the
application. The Board does not have final authority, and that’s the understanding
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of all parties to this agreement. That any application will be conditioned on approval
by both United States Department of Transportation and Indiana Department of
Transportation and any other federal, state and local laws and ordinances. Finally,
it's the understanding of the parties that nothing obligates the Board to expend public
monies, or otherwise finance the desired access break. All of that expense is on the
private property owner or it's successors and assigns, and this is the agreement of
the Board only as presently constituted. It shall also be the agreement of any future
Board, which may be constituted of other members. That would be the case even
if we didn’t say that in the agreement. Itis a binding final part of the consideration
for obtaining fee title interest to the right-of-way that was taken by condemnation,
threat of condemnation and a law suit. It's to be signed, and | think it would be
appropriate to have a motion on it's adoption. Then it's to be executed by the
President on behalf of the Board, and approved as to form by County Attorney.

Commissioner Mourdock: Motion to approve.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: We did get the paperwork so we can issue the check for the Durchholz’s.
It will go through next week’s meeting. We didn’t get the court paperwork until
Friday, so it was too late to get on this agenda.

President Fanello: Okay.

Philip Hayes: And—

President Fanello: Thanks, John.

Philip Hayes: —in addition, then, for the record, | will submit a copy of the judgement
findings, and order of the court, along with the signatories, which are legal counsel
for all of the parties involved in this case. That will conclude the matter. This copy

is filed January 31, 2002, and become a part of our regular minutes of this meeting
and the permanent minutes. Okay, and that’s all, John? That’s all we have.

Joe Vezzoso: Executive Inn Skywalk

President Fanello: Joe Vezzoso.

Joe Vezzoso: Madam President, Commissioners. | stand before you tonight,
hopefully, for ,maybe, the last official time on this matter, unless you all request us
to come back. We have been to every board, | think, imaginable. City, county and
before you all, and have received approval on all of the encroachments through the
Board of Public Works, Building Authority, through you all last week. We have
signed a contract with ARC Construction Company, a union contractorlocally, for the
construction of the skywalk that will connect the Executive Inn and the Centre. |
think we have crossed every “t” and dotted, | think, nearly every “i”. We come before
you tonight to ask final approval, and to release the funds to Mr. Bays that he had
requested a little over a year ago. | would say that we have worked very closely with
the SMG Company that is running the Centre. We met with them last Friday, and
they will be coming to each of our construction meetings, which occur at 7:30 a.m.
every Friday. We are also working very closely with that group in sales efforts both
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for, not only our hotel, but other facilities in the community when those conventions
exceed the size that’'s needed for our total room capacity. So, we see great things
ahead of us, and really the first thing that we are asked by every group is when the
skywalk is going to be completed. The contractor indicates that it's 105 days from
the date that we sign the contract, which was last, about a week ago. So, we’re
ready to move forward. | do have a full set of plans if you would like for me to leave
them with you all so that you have a set in your office. | would be glad to. If you are
going to not use them, then we can take them back. If you have any questions, |
would be glad to try and answer them.

Commissioner Mosby: So, you are saying that in approximately three months the
crosswalk will be up? The skywalk?

Joe Vezzoso: Yes, sir.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay.

Joe Vezzoso: 105 days exactly.

Commissioner Mosby: When did you say you met with SMG?
Joe Vezzoso: Last Friday.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay, this past Friday.

Joe Vezzoso: Yes, sir.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay, because | had talked with them, and it didn’t seem like
there was much dialogue there.

Joe Vezzoso: No.
Commissioner Mosby: At the point when | talked to them.

Joe Vezzoso: Yeah, we didn’t until we executed the contract. Then we met with
them to make sure the contractor knew who they contacted at the Centre. We want
to make sure that neither facility, when there is a major event going on, that anyone
is displaced. We have indicated to the contractor that they have to take special
caution for protection of tile work and carpeting in that building. Both Sandie Aaron
and Rob Seitz were at that meeting, and they will be at every meeting, one of them
will be at each meeting on Friday mornings.

Commissioner Mosby: That’s fine.

Commissioner Mourdock: Regarding the copy of the plans, Joe. You know, they are
probably of less value for us in this office. If you’d leave them, then we’ll make sure
they do get a copy across the street, unless they already have one. SMG, do they

have a copy?

Joe Vezzoso: I'm not real sure, but if you, | mean, we’ll make sure they get a copy,
if they haven’t already got a copy.

Commissioner Mourdock: They definitely need a copy.
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Commissioner Mosby: | guess, with knowing that we’ve executed a contract with
ARC Construction, and there has been dialogue with SMG, and you will continue to
work with SMG, | would make a motion that we release the funds to John Bays for
the Executive Inn project.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Joe Vezzoso: We want to thank you all very much, and we look forward to working
with the County Commissioners and also SMG to bring a lot of conventions to
Evansville, and help pay for the Centre. Thank you all very, very much.
Commissioner Mosby: We appreciate that.

Joe Vezzoso: We appreciate it.

President Fanello: Thank you, Joe.

Steve Craig: Request for Proposal VC15-2002:
Burdette Park Concessions

President Fanello: Steve Craig.

Steve Craig: Steve Craig, Manager of Burdette. What | have is the Request for
Proposal for the Burdette Park Concessions. | had got with Phil and we had made
the corrections that you had requested.

Commissioner Mourdock: There is one correction on, it is labeled page 13 of 1,
regarding the RFP. The point | brought up last week, Steve about any questions
regarding the RFP will be directed to you, and | had said we wanted to make sure
that language is, it will be directed to you in writing, and answers provided to all the
respondents.

Steve Craig: Oh, okay. On page 11 dash one, | had added that the responsibility of
vendor to provide contact information, and | added in writing there, and the
modification of withdrawal on proposal, | put the writing in there.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, well just add it to the question—

President Fanello: Uh-huh.

Commissioner Mourdock: —you don’t need to resubmit this to us, just go ahead
and-

Steve Craig: On page 137
Commissioner Mourdock: It was the question regarding the RFP?
Steve Craig: Okay, | made the other two, and | didn’t get that.

Commissioner Mourdock: And, again, if someone submits something to you with a
question in writing, whoever else responds to it, make sure you send a copy of the
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question and a copy of your written answer, so everybody is dealing off of the same
deck.

President Fanello: When are these due back?

Steve Craig: Pardon me?

President Fanello: When are these due back?

Steve Craig: Well, we haven’t put the official time—

President Fanello: Oh, yeah, put the date on there, okay.

Steve Craig: Find out when we’ll advertise them, and then I'll get the copies.
President Fanello: Okay.

Commissioner Mourdock: How long will it take someone to respond to this?

Steve Craig: | think it would be two weeks.

President Fanello: He needs a motion.

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, I'll make a motion that we instruct the Burdette Park
Manager to go out and send out the Request for Proposals for Burdette Park
Concessions.

Commissioner Mourdock: With that last modification?

Commissioner Mosby: Yes, with the modification that it be in writing, on page 13.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Phil Hayes: Permission to Advertise Ordinance to Establish
the Old Courthouse Advisory Board

President Fanello: Phil Hayes, permission to advertise ordinance, first reading,
permission to advertise ordinance on first reading to establish the Old Courthouse
Advisory Board.

Philip Hayes: Yes, this, the title pretty well says it all. This proposed ordinance was
drafted, actually, a lot of work by Tammy McKinney, who’s been handling this, and
it amends the Code in order to establish an advisory board. The purpose of itis to
manage the day-to-day operation of our Courthouse. To carry that out, the
ordinance actually sets out various jobs that this particular board will do, in some
detail. In summary fashion, it analyzes and considers and reviews current
operations, the use of the zero base budget approach, necessity of repairs
evaluation, savings to be realized, the utilization and development of the Courthouse
facilities as well as personnel, alternatives and citizen recommendations. It makes
reports and recommendations to the Commissioners, and, Tammy, would you, for
the record, wish to further speak to the ordinance, as far as informing the
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Commissioners as to it's anticipated use? That is the advisory board. You don’t
have a prepared speech?

Tammy McKinney: Can | say no? As far as, you want the annual—

Philip Hayes: Who the members are, maybe, that would be good to, who you
propose to be members. The five citizens.

Commissioner Mosby: We don’t have any.

Tammy McKinney: Huh? What did you say?

Commissioner Mosby: | don’t think we have any (Inaudible), do we?

Philip Hayes: You are proposing to the five citizen members will constitute the board.
Tammy McKinney: Right, but | haven’t—

Philip Hayes: No, | didn’t mean the names—

Tammy McKinney: Oh, okay, that’s what | thought.

Philip Hayes: —I'm sure you hadn’t. Yeah, any recommendations, but if you, what
the advisory board consists of.

Tammy McKinney: Okay, the advisory board consists of five citizen members; two
members appointed by the Commissioners, two directors of the Old Courthouse
Foundation appointed by the Commissioners, one member appointed by the
Vanderburgh County Council. Is that—

Commissioner Mourdock: Just so | understand the wording in number two, this
Board appoints the directors to the Old Courthouse Foundation?

Tammy McKinney: Right.

Commissioner Mourdock: Then—

Philip Hayes: (Inaudible. Mike not on.)
Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, then we have a—

President Fanello: The Old Courthouse Foundation is a separate not-for-profit board.
They have specific, and did you get a copy of the by-laws?

Tammy McKinney: They will have a 501-C3.
Commissioner Mourdock: Right.

President Fanello: Yeah, they have a specific designation of who can be a...allwe’re
saying is that we will pick two of those members from that board to bo on our board.

Commissioner Mourdock: Thatbeing the reading of that, then thatis kind of unusual.
| mean, | don’t know that it's a serious flaw, but normally when you set up a board
like that (Interrupted by cell phone ringing in room)...when you set up a board like
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that, you give them the discretion to appoint their own people. Is there areason why
we want to cherry pick off their board?

Philip Hayes: | think the logic, if | could respond—
Commissioner Mourdock: Sure.

Philip Hayes: —Madam President? The logic of it was this. The 501-C3 has to
maintain it's integrity as a tax exempt organization so that no governmental unit,
having any control, particularly budgetary control, in the manner that the county
does, would have any influence over how it disposes of it’s charitable raised money,
and how it executes on it's defined purpose. The county, nonetheless, has a
responsibility to execute governmental functions as to the building itself, and the real
estate, it’s budget that’s provided by the government , such as it may be from time
to time. So, the idea was to establish two different ones. The communication
between the two is not unlike that that the Parks Foundation, as an example, has
with the Board of Park Commissioners in the city. There are other ad hoc 501-C3's
that we know about; the Zoo has had in the past, and, | think, does now. So, it was
an attempt to try to capture the best of those concepts, as | understand it from the
drafting that was done. This was the starting point. Certainly, it can be modified
anyway you would wish to do it, but the idea was that the foundation wanted to have
some participation from appointees of all the governments. In fact, the city, | believe,
will have appointments on the 501-C3 organization. That is the Courthouse
Foundation. That is reconstituted. It's board of directors reconstituted that entity,
and amended it's by-laws in order to accomplish that.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, and what are you thinking of in terms of these
numbers? | didn’'t see anything in here. Are these people on this thing—

Philip Hayes: | think that’s certainly can be a matter to fill in. Do you have a
preference, Tammy, from your experience as to the terms that you wish?

Tammy McKinney: As far as the two directors from the Courthouse Foundation?
President Fanello: Any of them.

Philip Hayes: On any of them, yeah. For how long you wish for them to serve? |
think it says, shall be appointed and serve at the discretion of the respective
appointing authority for the duration as provided herein. So, | suppose the idea
would be to replace them on a discretionary basis without regard to time. So, no
term or term limit was written into this document.

Commissioner Mourdock: Well, I'll just, and | don’t know if we need final, permanent
action on this tonight, but | would suggest for the terms that we do as, again, with
most of our other boards, that we set it up so that we stagger them. So, that we
have, you know, some continuity on that board. Otherwise, if | understand what Phil
was just saying, in a whim, a new Commission could replace all those people.

Commissioner Mosby: Uh-huh.

Commissioner Mourdock: At least if you had some staggered terms there is some
continuity across the board.

Commissioner Mosby: I'd say do them one, two and three year terms.
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Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, that would be fine. Just some sort of duration in
sight.

Philip Hayes: So, that would necessarily amend the section that you observe, section
2.78.030, appointment of members. Itwould be appropriate...this is really in the way
of drafting, and if you wish to do that, we would still request that the board grant
permission to advertise on first reading with this. | think it would be appropriate then
if you have a motion to state that we draft the appropriate language into that section
at the point where, shall consist of five citizens, and then subsection B, members
shall be appointed and serve without compensation, and at that point the insertion
that’s stated can be placed in.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll move that we go ahead and advertise this with the
understanding that prior to final reading such language be inserted as 2.78.030 (b).

Commissioner Mosby: Second.
President Fanello: So ordered.

Madelyn Grayson: Tammy, will you have that on disk for me to provide to the
Courier? Do you have that?

Tammy McKinney: | do. | have it on my computer.

Madelyn Grayson: Okay, thank you.

Philip Hayes: Then the staggered terms, if you want to clarify the, as to how many
would be appointed for one year, two years or three years, and which appointments

those will be.

Commissioner Mosby: | was going to say, we can get back with you with that
information before next week.

Philip Hayes: Actually, if we are going to, if we would advertise it on first reading, we
would need to have that by tomorrow, wouldn’t we?

President Fanello: Well-

Commissioner Mosby: Well, you can amend the language can’t you?

Philip Hayes: Well, you would have to re-advertise again then, it would be with the
amended language. You can draft tonight—

President Fanello: Well, this is just first reading, right?

Commissioner Mosby: | was going to say, this is just first reading.

Philip Hayes: Well, | understand—

President Fanello: Or it's not even first reading. It's permission to advertise first
reading.

Philip Hayes: It's permission to advertise for first reading, and that’s why if we have
a language change, it might be more efficient to go ahead and insert the language
consistent with the Commissioners motion, and then take care of that. | think, take
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care of the advertising, but what would be appropriate would be to suggest the
language, or agree on the language that you would like to have as far as the, which
members would have which terms.

Commissioner Mosby: You are saying we can’t advertise this without that?

Philip Hayes: Well, you would have to—

Commissioner Mosby: (Inaudible. Talking over each other.)

Philip Hayes: —if you amend it, if you amend it on second reading, | think, then you
would have to go back and re-advertise. Is that correct, Madam Auditor?

Madelyn Grayson: Yes, but the way the meetings fall this month, if you, we would
have to advertise ten days prior to this being heard. So, even if we advertise by the
15", we could still hear the first reading on the 25" of this month. That would give
you time to amend it and bring it back next Monday.

Philip Hayes: Alright, good. That’s fine then. We’ll go ahead and re-draft, and we
can—

Commissioner Mosby: | never heard of this.

Philip Hayes: —as you may wish to do then. So, we’ll have an extra week then.
Madelyn Grayson: Yes, because we don’t have a meeting on the 18",

Philip Hayes: Okay, we don’t have the deadline then.

President Fanello: Okay.

Phil Hayes: Request for Proposals for Transportation Services
for Elderly and Handicapped Citizens

President Fanello: Next item, Request for proposals for transportation services for
elderly and handicapped citizens.

Philip Hayes: An RFP has been authored, and that’s in your packets. It proposes
that a deadline date be established for seeking those proposals, and they need to
be from qualified vendors for transportation services to the elderly and handicapped
citizens. The Board reserving the right to reject any and all proposals. The scope
of services is set out as to those specifically providing services to elderly and
handicapped citizens of Vanderburgh County not residing within the corporate city
limits of Evansville, where either the trip origin or the destination is outside the city
of Evansville corporate limits. Those services would be available Monday through
Fridays, between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. A bond is required,110% of the total
contract price. The usual proof of general liability insurance in the amount of $1
million per person, and an aggregate of $2 million per occurrence. This will require
the contractor to have available for servicing a sufficient number of vehicles, which
would be accessible vehicles for the elderly and handicapped. Those vehicles used
for transportation of handicapped citizens equipped with wheel chair lifts and tie
downs, and the drivers have those valid public passenger licenses, which allow
transportation of the passengers described. Radios involved for communication.
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The specific proposal will set forth an amount and manner in which the contractor
is to be paid for these services. The term would be for a period of one year, with
possible renewal upon mutual agreement of the parties. Then, of course, the usual
requirements of naming the principals, background information of any entity wishing
to make a proposal, includes, but not limited, to the number of years experience in
such transportation services business, and whether or not any other contracts of
similar nature are held or were held by the entity. This is the RFP then for the
contract, the same services which previously, | think, the contract was held by
company, A.S.A.P. That’s the complete request as drafted.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll move the proposal, or move the advertising for the
Request for Proposal for the Transportation Services.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: Before | say so ordered, who will insert the dates? This has
blanks as to when it's to be submitted, and the issue date. Will you do that,
Madelyn?

Madelyn Grayson: I'll need that provided to me.

Philip Hayes: Yeah, it's your discretion—

President Fanello: Okay.

Philip Hayes: —as to when you would wish to have the respondents submit any
proposals.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, | would suggest that we go ahead and use 30 days
after this thing is issued that we need proposals back by then.

President Fanello: And...go ahead.

Commissioner Mourdock: And | was just going to make reference that if this thing
goes out as is, obviously, this was contemplated to be done last month. So, there
is a couple of spots that we need to change January to February.

President Fanello: And the time from 6:00 to 5:30.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yes.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay.

President Fanello: I'll say so ordered.

Madelyn Grayson: Phil, can you just provide that to me on disk? That way it will be
ready to go to the Courier.

Philip Hayes: Yes, we will do that. We will fill it in. The 30 days, as clarification,
Commissioner, you want that 30 days after the last date of advertising?

Commissioner Mourdock: Right.

Philip Hayes: Okay, so we’ll calculate that then.
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Commissioner Mourdock: We don’t have any conflict with the current service,
because we are not getting the current service, correct? As far as one contract
ending and this one beginning?

Philip Hayes: No. That’s pending. We’ve not entered into any mutually agreeable
extension of the last contract.

Fall Craft Show Proposal

President Fanello: Okay, next item, Vicki Bohleber, Fall Craft Show Proposal.
Steve Bohleber: Hi, I'm not Vicki Bohleber.
President Fanello: Boy, | was going to say, you sure do look different.

Steve Bohleber: I'm Steve Bohleber, and to clarify the record, Vicki is not my
daughter, although she looks as though she could be, but rather my wife. Seated
next to her is a lady named Theresa Blankenberger, and it's Vicki’s sister, as you
can probably tell by looking at them. I'm here because I’'m the family lawyer. The
craft show is something that I've lived with for 25 years, it seems. Just a little history
of this craft show, 2001 would have been the 25" anniversary of the Old Courthouse
Craft Show. Atit’s peak, it had become one of the three largest craft shows in this
area; Big Rivers over in Audubon Park and the 4-H being the only one’s that rivaled
it. It had become a holiday tradition. |think my wife, my client, introduced this to the
Commissioners back in November, when a letter was directed to each of you, that
she authored. | apologize, | don’t have a copy of that here today. It looks like my
son-in-law worked on the computer, and it's no longer in existence. The letter,
basically, resulted from a lot of the crafters coming to Vicki and Theresa, since they
promoted other craft shows, asking for them to approach the county about
resurrecting that show, and seeing that it continued, because it was a significant
source of livelihood for many of those folks that had depended on itin November of
every year for a part of theirincome. They came to Vicki and Theresa for a couple
of reasons. Even though it's a self serving statement and | may be prejudiced, they
are probably the people with the most experience at promoting a variety of craft
shows in this area. Theresa promoted Infa Life Seekers Craft Show. Started it,
created it, turned it into a very successful venture for that organization. A few years
ago Vicki and Theresa were asked by the original promoters of the Golden Harvest
Craft Show at Ellis Park to undertake that. They took a struggling craft show that
was near collapse, with a lot of unhappy crafters, and not only returned it to it's
former strength, but improved upon that. Improved upon it to the point that Ellis
Park, which is the Churchill Downs Corporation, wanted them to do more craft shows
in the off-season at the park. In addition to promoting these matters, these shows,
my wife filled my basement for 25 years or more with ceramics that she crafted and
sold at all the craft shows. These ladies know all the crafters. They know the
peculiar business of craft shows inside and out, as both participants and promoters.
They interact with these people at most all the craft shows today. The crafters
themselves asked these ladies if they would step up and help the county continue
on with this tradition. This is an important craft show, because, among other things,
it gets people downtown. It gets people downtown in the Old Courthouse. It really
became a regional attraction and a tradition. People marked it on their calendar
from year to year. Crafters historically came from four or five states, and spent a
couple of days here. Stayed in our hotels, spent money at our businesses,
introduced themselves to Evansville. Thatwas an ever changing number of people,
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and sometimes they will tell you that they’ve had inquiries, you know, from Pacific
Northwest about coming to craft shows in (Inaudible) Indiana. Not only is it an
attraction for, that helps the city with the crafters, but a lot of patrons make it a day
as well. They spend their money not only at this show, as they introduce themselves
to the Old Courthouse, but also the mall and other places. Another thing this does,
from your perspective, is it makes money, directly to your perspective, it makes
money to help support the Old Courthouse. You know, aesthetically, it provides and
continues a tradition of holiday entertainment that people have come to enjoy.
Another thing that Vicki and Theresa are offering, and that will benefit the
community, is and historically there have been concessions, all these places offer
concessions, food. They did it, in fact, Sheriff back here used to pop popcorn at the
Old Courthouse Craft Show, and he became pretty good at it.

Commissioner Mourdock: And look where he is now.

Steve Bohleber: And look where he is now, that’s right. That shows you, if you
participate in this show, look what it can lead to. Dealing with things like the jalil, |
suspect, butanyway. They want to involve not-for-profits that they’ve dealt with from
the high schools, in particular, to sell the concessions at no cost to them, so they can
make money for themselves as well. The proposal, | think, we’ve met with
Commissioner Fanello earlier and gave a written proposal and contract form for your
consideration. Was that passed out to all the Commissioners? | have a revised
version, changed only to the extent that | have both of their signatures on it, rather
than an agency capacity. The proposal itself is to let them use the Old Courthouse
for three days, November of 2002, for this show. It spells out the booth rental that
has historically been charged here. It allows them to keep 60% of the booth rental,
giving 40% to the county. 100% of the electric charge, that’s always been charged
at $5.00, would come to the county. We hope that you will allow these ladies to do
this. There again, it wasn’t necessarily their idea to even come to the
Commissioners, but rather the crafters that approached them at the Golden Harvest
show last Fall, and at other craft shows wanting them to do it. There is some
urgency to this. | know you are just getting ready to start a new not-for-profit to
operate this facility, at least manage it on a day-to-day basis, but the urgency is this
is a year round thing. People that have come to this show are already setting their
schedules for 2002, the crafters. The way that they found most effectively to recruit
people is to walk all the craft shows in the area, and talk to them, and say, you know,
they’ve been doing this even this past weekend to promote the Golden Harvest
Show. They would have loved this past weekend to say and also we now have the
Old Courthouse Show, here are the specifics. They work on these people time and
time again. That’s the way at the grass roots level you build up participation from the
crafters. So, our proposal does have, comes with some degree of urgency. We
hope that you will consider it. My client is ready to sign an agreement with the
county. They are here to answer any questions too, because | have told you
everything | know about craft shows.

Commissioner Mosby: | think you answered my first one, | was going to ask you
what month the 8™, 9" and 10" you was talking about, but—

Steve Bohleber: November.
Commissioner Mosby: Okay.

Steve Bohleber: I'm sorry, it's November 8", 9", and 10™.
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Commissioner Mosby: It just says Courthouse on the 8", 9" and 10" of 2002.
Steve Bohleber: Oh, it does.

Commissioner Mosby: So, | was just trying to figure out—

Steve Bohleber: Yeah, well, you know, | drafted this, David, so—
Commissioner Mourdock: Family lawyers. You get what you pay for.

Steve Bohleber: You get what you pay for, yes, that's true. [I'll regret that
statement, I'm sure. That should be the 8™, 9", and 10" days of November, 2002.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay, November.
Steve Bohleber: | apologize, yeah.

Commissioner Mosby: | guess, the other thing that I'm concerned about, you get
100% of the admission fees.

Steve Bohleber: Right, it's a buck.
Commissioner Mosby: | knew what it was, but why don’t we get 40% of that too?

Steve Bohleber: Well, we’re providing all of the employees to run it. We're going to
have people atevery gate. That's probably going to take care of the overhead costs.
We don’t know how many people come to the show, nor do we know how many
people are going to come in 2002.

Commissioner Mosby: | just happened to be able to come across some of the
records, so | got a pretty good idea. We just got access to them about three or four
days ago. So, well, because | see in here where the county is going to have to move
the necessary equipment, and otherwise effectively promote the show, provide it’s
maintenance staff for clean up and all this. | mean, we pay the guy over there is
union. You know, I’'m going to be protecting the county’s interest here, and we’re
going to have to negotiate this according to our costs too. You know, not only your
costs, so. | mean, I'm more than willing to look at this, and more than willing to
agree to it, but | don’t, | think right now the terms more favor you than they do me.

Steve Bohleber: Well, but they are also taking a risk, because last year one reason
people came to these folks is because they were very unhappy with what happened
last year. They may be taking a big risk here and spending a lot of money, and in
2002 not be as successful as it was five years ago. It may take a couple of years to
build this back up. They are going to be paying the insurance. They are going to be
paying all of the advertising costs. They are going to be paying everything else,
asking the county to just plug up the electricity and open the doors, and clean up the
small remains that will be behind. Most everything is going to be picked up.
Commissioner Mosby: Well, we’ll have to have somebody on site all three days if
you are going to be there, so.

Steve Bohleber: Probably that’s true.

Commissioner Mosby: You know, it’'s going to be expensive. Like | say, I'm willing
to look at it, but I'm not going to agree to this document as it’s written.
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Commissioner Mourdock: How does this, Tammy, affect the people who are over
there and doing business in the Old Courthouse? | mean, the 8", 9" and 10" is a
Friday, Saturday and Sunday.

Steve Bohleber: Friday would just be after hours for them to set up for the Saturday
and Sunday show. It would be after business hours, so we can certainly amend the
contract to so reflect that. | don’t know of anybody that has a Saturday business.

Tammy McKinney: Not on a regular basis. | do have some tenants that come in and
work, but the Court, after the craft show this past year, | didn’t have any complaints.
| hadn’t heard of any complaints about the—

Steve Bohleber: Historically, there have been some businesses that have operated,
the doors aren’t locked, and they’ve been able to peacefully coexist.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

Steve Bohleber: | think that’'s a minimal concern, and certainly something that if it
becomes a concern can be individually addressed.

Commissioner Mosby: It didn’t seem to be a problem. | went by there this year, and—

Commissioner Mourdock: | guess, | have the question that I've posed before as far
as what is our plan for the Old Courthouse? How all of this comes into play? Are
we kind of for cross purposes using it for this type of purpose as well as the more
commercial use that we have now versus whatever our longer term use might be?
It also begs the question, we have a nice facility that we really set up across the
street, meaning that way, with the idea that it would be for all types of trade shows,
convention shows, craft shows. Has there been any discussion with the folks over
on that side of the street?

Steve Bohleber: | would venture to say that their rent is cost prohibitive to the
crafters as well as any promoter. That would be my thought.

President Fanello: | was just going to comment to that. | don’tknow why we wouldn’t
want to, | guess, promote the historic building and have people come through for a
craft show. | think that is very in line no matter what we are using the Old
Courthouse for. Justto promote, you know, it's being there, it’s historic perspective.

Commissioner Mosby: One other question that | had thought about as | was reading
this, and | know they used to use the Coliseum too.

Steve Bohleber: Uh-huh.

Commissioner Mosby: It's going to have to be written in here that you are going to
be responsible for the lease of the Coliseum, because that goes to the Veterans.

Steve Bohleber: If, in fact, that was an overflow. Don’t know if it’'s going to be an
overflow this year. It evolved as an overflow from the Old Courthouse, and that may
require some negotiation with them, but, again—

Commissioner Mosby: | do know they have their own concessions at the Coliseum,
so. | mean, my wife goes to this thing every year | hear about it. Or | see the end
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result, | should say that. It's when the check book, you go to look at the check book.
The end result.

Steve Bohleber: Tell us what to do. Unfortunately, from their perspective in this
business, if it's not done quickly, it may be lost for 2002, as these crafters line up
other Fall shows that weekend. They’re not going to be here. They are going to be
in Champaign, lllinois or Nashville, Tennessee or a variety of other places that
weekend if we don’t strike quickly.

Commissioner Mourdock: One other question, and | know we don’t know the answer
to this, but certainly the Commission has asked the County Council to come forward
with some form of budget for us to work on so that we might redo some things at the
Old Courthouse. Do we have any idea what the schedule might be for making those
improvements? Fixing the roof for instance? How might that fall into play with this?

President Fanello: | have not received any confirmation from that, but—
Commissioner Mourdock: | understand. It's a rhetorical question. | understand.

Steve Bohleber: We have a lot of rhetorical questions here, because there are a lot
of things we don’t know about this process. These ladies are willing to try, and take
a risk and gamble to bring it back, because of something the folks they deal with
want to see happen, because it's hurt their livelihood if it's not going to continue.

You won’t believe the nasty phone calls | overheard the end of because it didn’t
happen last year as it had for the 24 years before that. So, what’s your proposal,
Commissioner Mosby, in terms of resolving, and other Commissioners, in terms of
resolving these issues on a quick basis? | mean—

Commissioner Mourdock: On a quick basis, let me make this suggestion. David, it
seems that you have the most background with this. | would suggest that
Commissioner Mosby deliberate—

Commissioner Mosby: Spent the most money maybe. | said, | spent the most
money.

Commissioner Mourdock: That's the same thing.

Steve Bohleber: Well, maybe we should negotiate with your wife, David, how does
that sound?

Commissioner Mosby: No.

Commissioner Mourdock: | would suggest that Mr. Bohleber and David have some
phone conversation—

Steve Bohleber: Sure.

Commissioner Mourdock: —as far as what your thinking is on what the terms of the
lease might be, and if something is drafted, can be brought back to this Board for
consideration.

Steve Bohleber: Okay.

Commissioner Mosby: | would be more than happy.
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Steve Bohleber: Alright, I'll probably give you a call in the next two days then.
President Fanello: So, was that a motion?

Commissioner Mourdock: So moved.

President Fanello: Do you want to second that motion?

Commissioner Mosby: Do | get out of it if | don’t?

President Fanello: No, because I'll just second the motion.

Commissioner Mosby: | second the motion.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Madelyn Grayson: May we make a tape change please?

(Tape changed)

Site Selection Process - County Jail

President Fanello: The moment we have all been waiting for, Site Selection
Discussion, Jail Project.

Unidentified: Can we do this at the jail?

President Fanello: Can we do this in the jail? This is on the agenda to continue
discussion about site selection for the jail project. Just my thoughts in general, there
has been a lot of talk about the back forty and | think that before we move to
consider any type of green field site, we need to either rule in or out the back forty.
So, | guess that | would like to hear what everyone’s thoughts are at this point.

Commissioner Mourdock: Let's define back forty. Do you mean by back forty,
basically the Building Authority property? Which could mean either what we think
of as the back forty parking lot or the Courts parking lot.

President Fanello: I’'m personally talking about this parking lot back here.

Commissioner Mourdock: Well, then by definition, | will talk about the Courts parking
lot.

President Fanello: Okay.

Commissioner Mourdock: | think that the Mayor made a reasonable point when he
suggested that doing something out of the back forty might in the future preclude
what we do with Main Street. | think the current back forty is ultimately what the
county needs to do or the place, the City-County Building Authority needs to come
up with a parking garage. | think that the better site would be the Courts parking lot,
both for its immediate location next to the Courts building and also that it provides
us with other options for the back forty in the future. That is my feeling.

President Fanello: Okay, and that’s your first choice?



Page 18 of 44 Vanderburgh County
Board of Commissioners
February 4, 2002

Commissioner Mourdock: That's right. That would be my first choice. In going along
that line of thinking, | think that the back forty would be my second choice, provided
that we find someway to leave the possible access for Main Street out there and also
come up with a plan on an adjacent property to do the parking garage. | mean, we
have to have that parking. The parking spaces for this building, for the Centre, and
| think it is incorrect for us to try and make that two separate discussions.

President Fanello: Oh, most definitely.
Commissioner Mourdock: We need to do those at one time.
President Fanello: Commissioner Mosby?

Commissioner Mosby: | don’t know that the Courts parking lot would be big enough,
| guess, | mean, | would say that | like the back forty and the back forty is probably
my first choice. My problem is that | don’t know what we are building yet. If | knew
what we were building, | guess, | would have more of an opinion on whether |
thought it was possible or not. | really do hope for that to happen this coming
Wednesday when the Council will gives us it’'s scope, as | would call it, once they
determine the price. | think we handed the Council a paper with four scenarios on
it last week and ,Commissioner, | think it is on your desk tonight, but depending on
what price the Council comes up with on Wednesday is going to give us a scope of
the project. If the Council sticks to the $35 million, | don’t think it would be hard to
just put a jail only, possibly, in the parking lot of the Court building. Which is not
going to leave much for future expansion. Which would bother me. Or putit on the
back forty. If the Council decides to spend more, and we go with jail and juvenile,
or jail and community corrections, | would leave it up to the consultants, the
architects and the engineers to tell us that the back forty is big enough, and whether
it would be able to be expanded in future years. If not, then there’s the possibility
that we have to go off site and look somewhere else. | guess, | am more waiting
than anything to see what the Council comes up with on Wednesday, and let’s us
know if we are looking at a jail, and whether we are going to do away with
Community Corrections and phase it out or whatever. | mean, because, | guess, |
will go ahead and say this, itis my feeling that we are going to have to do something
with Community Corrections. If we are going to build just a jail only. | think with
what you read in the paper this morning, with the insurance and everything that we
have to seriously come back in here after they make their decision and decide where
we go with Community Corrections, and whether that would be phasing that out by
the end of the year.

President Fanello: My feelings, my first choice would be the back forty, but | don't,
| believe, that the Council is going to stick with $35 million. That was the consensus
last week, and | don’t see that changing, unless a miracle happens. $35 million does
not leave us any money to go out and buy land, and that is the down side, because
that will notleave us enough money to construct what United proposed that we could
construct for $35 million. But, it would probably be more, less expensive to go out
and buy land than it would be to construct a new parking garage. So, you know, pro
verses con there. | think that we need to have some kind of direction where we are
moving. | don’t think that the Court parking lot, personally, is going to be adequate
enough, because it is not going to leave room for expansion.

Commissioner Mourdock: May | answer that one? Because David mentioned that
too. | don’t think that we can shade our thinking inside that box, because there is
property across, what is that Ninth Street? Across Ninth Street where the cleaners
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is and several other buildings. You know, | don’t think that if you build itin the Courts
parking lot that you necessarily take away any possibility of expanding it in the
future. Granted that ,yes, you would have to buy other properties, but, depending
on how you build this, no matter where you build it, how you expand it is still going
to cost you some money. So, what you save in the beginning by starting on this
verses a green field project, | think, could easily be justified. To say that you can’t
expand it, let me come back to one other thing, to say that, well David, | give you a
gold star for consistency, which | value when a person is consistent, you have said
from the beginning that you did not want to pick the land until you knew what you
were building. My position has been somewhat opposite of that, thinking that we
know what land we have, is going to affect how we design it. So, we disagree, but
we are both consistent. | think that if you start with something like the Courts parking
lot, it may take you several levels but | clearly think that space is there. That would
also allow you a greater option of using some of the existing jail space for maximum
security space. So, | don’t think that itis, | don’t think it is unreasonable to say that
if you put it there you can’t expand it at some point in the future.

President Fanello: | would like to hear from Sheriff Ellsworth, on what your thoughts
are.

Commissioner Mosby: Commissioner, while he’s coming up, | think that one of the
reasons | said that, and | am waiting for an answer, you know, from the Council on
what they are going to do. Because the important thing that | see here is Community
Corrections. If we are going to do Community Corrections, | would want to build the
jail to where we could do Community Corrections, where it can be serviced on the
same facility as far as the kitchen and laundry, and we would build all of that big
enough.

Commissioner Mourdock: And I understand that. In my way of thinking, and reading
what the Council has said, and what they are going to do in the future, | don’t right
now know that we can look at Community Corrections as being part of this project.
Am | saying let’'s do away with Community Corrections? No. | am not saying that,
but | am saying with this project, | don’t know that we will have the funds to do both.

Commissioner Mosby: Well, and if we don’t, | think seriously we have to look at that.
Because what | am hearing from, you know, our insurance agent over at ONB, and
the problems that he went through this year trying to get insurance for Community
Corrections and the Jail, and Community Corrections due to the fact that we’ve had
so many claims over here, and | guess we repaired the roof or replaced the roof
three different times, that | don’t think we will get insurance in the future. If we do,
it is probably going to be worse that 44% increases.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yes, and again, | understand that, and | am not
disagreeing with that. | am simply saying, to include the Community Corrections
component with this brand spanking new $35 million project, probably isn’t going to
work. I 'am not, in my own mind, precluding doing something else with Community
Corrections, in some other facility or trying to work with the Judges on a greater
basis with Day Reporting and those kinds of things. So, yeah, we are going to have
to do something with Community Corrections, | just don’t know that it can be in the
same building.

Commissioner Mosby: If they are going to allot money for Community Corrections
then | wish they’d do it on Wednesday. Because | would like to do this project as
one and service it all in one facility with one kitchen, one laundry room, rather than
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spend twice the money and try to do as the Sheriff is doing right now. You know,
you are securing a building over there and a building over here. | mean, | wish that
if they were going to do that, you know, they would tell us that Wednesday. If they
are not going to do that, then we need to be giving the Judges some direction on
where we are heading with on Community Corrections.

President Fanello: | completely agree with that. | think that we are just exposing
ourselves or exposing the taxpayers to a lot of liability with the current Community
Corrections facility that we have. Like David said, if they are not going to allot money
with this project, | mean | don’t want to see them come down the road six months
later and say, well, | guess we do need to build a Community Corrections facility.
then it's, you know, we are at a loss for time and things have gotten out of whack.
so, | agree with what you are saying that we will have to take a look at that very
shortly. Sheriff?

Brad Ellsworth: Okay, you can see that | have worked hard on my notes, since |
have been standing here. | will try to address the site first, and then if you want me
to comment about Community Corrections as the President of the Advisory Board,
| will. Firstof all, | have been saying all along that what makes the back forty or one
of these parking lots number one in my book would be connectivity to the Courts. we
have enjoyed that as a luxury for 30 years now. we walk the inmates down a hallway
and they are never exposed to the public. It doesn’t expose them to any harm either,
which is what we are charged with, is protecting them. Minus connectivity, if we
don’t have a tunnel or a direct connectivity to the Courts, then as far as | am
concerned, the back forty really does become one of the least desirable sites in my
eyes. There is a couple of reasons for that. One is, we were told by, and we don’t
know if this is true or not, we were told by the independent company that came in
last week that they were going to look at a portion of the back forty because there
was future plans for expansion of the Centre over into the parking lot. | was not
aware of that before, but if that is a real proposal then that takes away that corner
back there of the parking lot which puts some limitations on that. There are ways
that you can reduce, | know that | get a lot of calls and | am sure that you do too,
about the high cost of transportation. | still propose, as we did through all of the
meetings, that if we build in and wire this place for video arraignment we could
possibly cutdown on a large number of the transports from jail to the courts. | agree
with certain points from all of the Commissioners as far as the site selection being
after we decide what we are building. It makes more sense to me, and | hope that
| am being consistent on that. One thing that | have seen, and | know you have, if
you saw the diagram that 21°' Century showed you last week, it wasn’t a perfect
square. It had the building design, and then the future expansion was already
planned in, where you had the pods. | know where itis. Richard has already sat in
hundreds of meetings that staffing and operational costs are going to be 90% of the
cost of this, over the course of the lifetime of the building. So, we have to really think
about what this is going to cost. So, if we talk about putting the building there and
then expanding, well we’ll add, we need to make sure this thing is designed to add
the pods into that area. Where are we going to go? Are we taking the Curtis
Building? Are we taking just the garage? Are we coming this way? We need to
know that up front where these pods are going to be, just like 21°' Century had.

Their pods were all planned out, two this way and then fourimaginary pods this way,
which still allowed the inmate movement, the food service and all of those services
are still a logical flow. Site direction, connectivity are all important. Those are things
that we are trying to build in so that central control has site down the hallways and
that, and that’s why, to me, that probably this becomes less and less desirable, of
an area in here. If you look at any jail drawings in any of the architects books, very
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few are square anymore. There are very few, they are almost diamond shaped or
spider shaped, any more because that is the more efficient design so that you have
direct supervision of them. That seems to dictate more of going to a green space
or brown space or whatever, an off-site. Again, if we are limited to $35 million it
doesn’t, unless we bring in the $9 million architect across the river, it looks like we
are going to get a jail that’s $35 million. The one thing that | think we all agree on,
is that we need to plan for future expansion. If we only build a 500 bed jail and |
know that we talked about this last week and I've appealed to the Council on this,
let’'s build the core services big enough. | don’t know if anybody here went to
Lexington, but they had the areas that were for future expansion. It may seem like
a lot for a 500 bed jail but those are going to be the areas that are very expensive
to build if we have to add those for the HVAC system and storage space and things
that we are lacking now. So, | don’t know how much expansion, if we only building
500, I don’t know how much expand ability we are going to be able to plan for if we
are locked in by streets. Another thing that we have to think about again is, we are
adding quite a few cars. Probably right now, well, we talked about Community
Corrections, never mind about that, because that may not be included in here. We
are talking about serving up to three times the meals, if we are doing 1,000 meals
a day or 900 meals a day now we are talking about increasing that amount. We are
meaning trucks blocking in, we are going to have to figure out where the city police
are going to park their cars, because | see that we are going to have to find ways for
the trucks. Right now if you’d see an eighteen wheeler try to get underneath our
canopy over there itis nearly impossible, and lots of time they park on the street out
by the police cars and then truck itin on hand trucks. | think there are things like that
that now is the time to improve those situations, so that we are not blocking a city
street to unload an eighteen wheeler for the food for 500 to 1,000 inmates. But, we
are also going to have to have a plan of what we are going to do with those police
cars. At least where we can put those. Whether that’s in the back forty. Again,
going on the back forty, it seems like it is going to require parking if we go that way
instead of over there, and will require a parking garage before we do anything. Or
before we can even fence off the construction area for the jail, we are going to have
that garage up and built and ready to go. | have heard anywhere from four months
up to minimum eighteen months when you talk about the planning and the ready to
go. Thatis what Mr. Braun told us in their meeting last week. That really by the time
the plan comes in, the deeds are signed, the paper work is done, you are talking
close to eighteen months. | don’t know if that is true, | am not in that business, but
| still see the population in this building becoming critical, | don’t know if we can
afford to wait eighteen months.

Commissioner Mourdock: What do mean, the population? The jail population?

Brad Ellsworth: The pressure from the population we house and as we get closer to
the possible agreement with the ICLU and if those caps really go into place. Our we
going to have an extra 18 months to wait? | know that we are going to be working
on the jail drawings and the programming and that, but it still seems like it is setting
us back. | had one more point to make and | can’t remember what it was. The
expandability, the layout and the importance of that and not trying to fit that round
peg into a square whole concerns me. Connectivity is important, but | don’t think
that connectivity is going to be as important as getting the proper design on the jail
for efficiency. If we do video arraignment and two or three vans, higher capacity
vans might do the trick in that if we have video arraignment built in. It happens,
actually we are one of the few, probably, counties that have connectivity between the
jail and the courts. Warrick County, they drive miles. It is much smaller and less
people go to court but they do the trip in three squad cars a day. The one thing that,
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Richard, | will try to comment on what you said over there, again what | am going to
have to try to do in my role in this is try to use the least amount of people to
supervise the most amount of inmates. That is one of the things that | have been
charged with. | think, even back from PMSI and everybody that we have had in,
have said that this current jail is pretty much near the end of its natural life. Now,
can we hold inmates in there? Are they going to get out? Hopefully not. There are
some security things that | could tell you about that concern me that | won’t because
we are on the net and on TV, maybe, but there are things over there, and plus it is
an extremely...as you know, a lot of things that drive our insurance costs us. The
broken jaws and that are a direct result of the way, the way we can’t supervise in that
jail, being the old linear design. | propose that we could cut insurance costs by the
fact that we have guards in a direct supervision jail stopping those type of assaults
and fights before they would ever get started, and stopping those lawsuits in a direct
supervision capability. So, yes, we can still hold inmates in there. Is it an inefficient
design by today’s standards? Absolutely. Is there a better way? | am sure. | don’t
know what the life of that is still going to be, holding the higher security.

Commissioner Mourdock: | understand that it is not optimal, and no matter what we
end up doing, no matter what we end up doing, it will not be optimal because you
always make compromises in a project of this size somewhere along the line. But,
several of the points that you raised, Brad, are good ones. The one about the video
arraignment, and | have to confess, and | wish that there were a Judge here to
address this, but one of the concerns | have is that we could put all of that
technology in place from some green field site and they still wouldn’t use it.

Brad Ellsworth: Right.

Commissioner Mourdock: Because of whatever reason, courts, notjust Vanderburgh
County courts, but | have seen this across the state, courts tend to be very
conservative and they feel, for whatever reason, the video conferencing isn’t
necessarily the same thing as that persons day in front of the court. | don’t agree
with that, but then we know how much power we have over the courts, which is zero.

Brad Ellsworth: You read that programming book that we first came out with, in one
of the interviews when United was with them alone and it said that few would use it
and | think that’s, it is one area that probably very inexpensively you can wire the
building for it. You don’t have to build, buy the monitor, the camera, you wire it so
that when it gets to a point, where we say this is a necessity and we can’t move 150
inmates a day in there, even if it is the initial arraignment or for the lawyers off site
to do video visitation.

Commissioner Mourdock: In regarding the parking, | will try to see if we have one
point of consensus here. Regardless of whether the site is ultimately the back forty
or the courts parking lot, if we are going to do something with the jail on the Building
Authority property, do the three of us agree that, that does require a parking garage?
| mean, | don’t see that is an option. If it is going to be here you have got to do a
parking garage.

Commissioner Mosby: | would like to see us doing a parking garage right over here
where this SWIRCA building used to be.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, but regardless where itis we have to have a parking
garage.
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Commissioner Mosby: | think you have to do a parking garage because there is not
adequate parking today. Sometimes | come up here and see this whole back forty
full. But, | would like to see us do one over here because not only do we build a
parking garage to service the Civic Center, | think you build a garage to service the
Victory and the Centre. If at some point we could connect them, | think it would be
very beneficial to this $42 million project we have setting here. One thing that | was
going to say, and | guess my opinion would be, if we build on the back forty or the
Judges lot or where ever we build, | would like to see us take the old jail and sheriff’s
administration down there and put a juvenile detention center. | proposed that to the
Council the other day just in passing because | have no figures, or | shouldn't, |
mean guesstimations if you want to call them, | would like to see us move Judge
Niemeier over to the old jail along with the juvenile center and take his 3,210 square
feet and make two court rooms out of them. Which | think there again solves about
three problems all in one. | mean rather than use the jail for maximum security and
in its design today which | don’t believe is really a safer, you know the jailers that we
have over there, | would like to see us do juvenile detention and Judge Niemeier and
then Mr. Utley’s cost on, | think Judge Niemeier's 3210 square feet is about
$238,000 to make court rooms over there.

Commissioner Mourdock: Catherine, before you, the issue of the parking garage.
Do you concur?

President Fanello: | do, | do agree that we would have to have a parking garage.
Commissioner Mourdock: We have reached an agreement on something.
President Fanello: We all three agree.

Commissioner Mourdock: Brad, with the building program thatwas putin place, what
is the current number that is estimated as required for maximum security folks?

Brad Ellsworth: Are we talking about square footage? Or number of people?
Commissioner Mourdock: Beds, | guess.

Brad Ellsworth: When you say, maximum security, then sometimes | think of a
segregation type where they can’t play well enough with others to even be with other
inmates and they have to be segregated, for whatever reason, and there are a lot
of different reasons but | think we programmed, | think, it was somewhere between
15to 20 segregation beds. That’s, you are in there alone, you come out for basically
one hour of recreation a day and you’d, like | said, you just can’'t be housed with
anybody else. Go a step above that, probably 20% of the jails would need to be
hard lined, maximum security. So let’s just say, you know, 50 to lets say we are
going to 500 beds, probably 100 maximum.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, if you were at 650, just doing the math real quickly,
it would be what, 130 beds?

Brad Ellsworth: Right, of pure maximum security. Some combination of that, you
know there might be some people, | wouldn’t want the guard in doing direct
supervision, he would have direct observation but not direct supervision. You know
the pods could be designed the same, it’s just that they are individual cells, not
group, dorm types. As you go down and can put more people together then it is
cheaper construction.
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Commissioner Mourdock: | have heard it said and correct me if this is wrong but
when this building was builtin 1969 that the jail we presently used now is considered
a 100% maximum security. Is that correct?

Brad Ellsworth: | would say that is true. | would say that is true.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, so coincidentally then, from what Eric Williams said
a week or so ago, if the renovations were to take place in this jail because of ADA
the amount of beds would be cut down here, but he said it would take us to about
140 beds, which is almost a perfect match if your 20% is right, because we would
have 130. That is an interesting bit of math.

Brad Ellsworth: Right, and like Utley told us there we are talking, no telling what
community corrections is going to be, but we are talking five locations again and the
transportation of all of this and the flow of inmates, plus you know the way a person
works through, he may come in, when we go to a classification system, and
depending on how his crimes and previous record is, the way he works his way
through the jail and into, he may come in and be maximum security and then work
his way to a minimum security bed by the way he acts in jail. Vice versa, he comes
in and we put him in a minimum, we never bring them in minimum automatically, but
by the way he plays with others works his way into a max and that can change. You
don’t see, in all of the jails that | have toured, your minimum and maximum are not
that much totally different construction. They have to build these things to last a real
long time because they don’t take care of them like we do our homes. So there is
a lot more wear and tear, in fact, one statistic | heard, they call it dog years for a jail,
and it is more like the three or four years to one for every you know, for every year
a building like this lasts, a jail gets four years put on it because of the 24 hour, and
the wear and tear that the inmates try to inflict on the building. Another thing that’s
cut down is when you have direct supervision, you can see what those inmates are
doing. If a guy goes up to scrape on the wall, or whatever, you see him
automatically, which we don’t have that luxury over there. What they do behind
those steel doors, you know, if you walk in and catch them. But, of the jails, you
don’t see, like | said, community corrections, the over glorified pole barn, | think is
adequate. Just like Mr. Braun said, but in the jail, where you see your minimum and
maximum is, the amount of people that are living together in dorm style which cuts
down on the number of doors and the number of toilets and that type of thing, verses
single person living. But, it's not a huge difference in the way they are constructing
the building. So, | have to agree with Commissioner Mosby, if you are going to
separate these all out, and that’s up to you and the Council, that it is certainly a
better use to renovate, to make juvenile, and because of the square foots, bringing
in all of those beds. You've got the plumbing in place and all of that. You can
reconfigure the walls than to try and make that the maximum security jail. It would
be my advice to go with that idea and turn it into a juvenile justice center over there
and make the jail all in one place.

Commissioner Mourdock: But, if we are only talking about 24, a 24 bed juvenile
facility, which has been the discussion all along, it would seem to me that there is a
lot more space in the jail configuration than 24 would require.

Brad Ellsworth: That is probably correct. | don’'t know, they talked 24 expandable to
48 and all the programming, but it takes a little more room for juveniles but you are
right, there would be extra space there’s no doubt about it. David had some?
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Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, | think if you look at United’s proposal on the juvenile,
itwas 19,700 and some square feet and Judge Niemeier presently has about 3,250
square feet, and is looking for more space, but what | was thinking if you took Judge
Niemeier and the extra space that he would need along with Probate and Juvenile,
you are really going to end up taking up somewhere around 30,000 square feet. The
Sheriff currently has 35,700 square feet over there. We could easily do juvenile
detention, juvenile court and probate and still have 5 or 6,000 square feet left if we
needed more court space.

Commissioner Mourdock: You are saying they are using 30,000 now?
Commissioner Mosby: No, they are using 3, they are squashed into 3,000.
Commissioner Mourdock: But, | thought you said including several other things.

Commissioner Mosby: | am saying that United’s proposal for juvenile detention was
19,700. So, | am just figuring that 20,000 along with what Judge Niemeier would
need, if we moved him over here and we would still have some extra space if we
wanted to do something.

Commissioner Mourdock: Let me see if | can reach a point of agreement here.
Whatever happens to this existing space is largely going to be dictated by cost in
some ways, because and | will just make it hypothetical here, if in fact we chose to
use this space for maximum security and cut it from 268 beds downs to 140 and just
making up the situation that would cost us $500,000, making up numbers and if it is
$3 million to do it to juvenile because we would have to change it from maximum
security to something else, obviously that cost is going to impact on our decision,
correct? | mean, that would seem logical to me but | am making up numbers.

Commissioner Mosby: It would seem logical, but what | am going to be looking at is
the cost that the Sheriff is going to incur by trying to do two sites. | mean, if you’re
saying lets build a jail and let’'s keep maximum security, now he has two jails. Now
he has two jails and community corrections, and he is going to be at five or six
different sites. | don’t think that is a wise use of money when they say that 90% of
your cost is incurred, you know, under your management. | mean ongoing costs.

Commissioner Mourdock: And that makes my point as well. The key here is not
what we know at this point but what we don’t know. We are coming, this is the kind
of discussion, this is a very good discussion in that we are kicking around some
options by which we can provide some level of direction to an architect, and if we say
to the architect, we’ve decided that we want to use this for either maximum security
for 140 beds or we want to use it for juvenile, take a look at this space and tell us
what it is going to cost us to do each. Then we have given him some direction, and
he can come back with a real number to us. You know, | am certainly willing to have
the architect do that as far as the operational costs and the costs of transportation
from some undisclosed green site to here. | mean that. That to me is a great
unknown. | think the Sheriff would agree. Until we know where that site is, and
exactly what we are going to put at that site. If we start off by just saying we are
going to have a green field site that is 40 acres, then all of a sudden we start the
wheels turning all over again. What all are we going to have at that green field site?
Pretty soon we are, pretty soon we’re way over what our budget is going to be at $35
million, so.
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Commissioner Mosby: | agree with you to an extent. Itis a very good discussion, but
| guess what | am looking at is what we were talking about a minute ago. Number
one, whatis it going to cost to redo that over there? Number two, what would it cost
just to go ahead and add the extra beds in while we are building a jail? Because if
we do that we can probably do-

Commissioner Mourdock: Define the extra beds. What do you mean the extra beds

Commissioner Mosby: You are talking about having a 140 over here. | mean rather
than build 500 if we build 640 in one location then we don’t have the operational
costs that he has to go to secure two facilities and | would have to see what that
operational-

Commissioner Mourdock: Exactly.

Commissioner Mosby: If we are only going to save half a million or a million dollars
by redoing this, his operational costs in a given, how long would it take you to blow
a million dollars?

Commissioner Mourdock: He would never blow a million dollars.

Commissioner Mosby: Well, I'm not saying, but | mean | am just saying that if you
had two locations and you are trying to operate both where he is talking about with
direct supervision and-

Commissioner Mourdock: But again my pointis, until we can direct an architect with
some real specifics as to what the options are. There is no way that Brad or anyone
else can come back and give us a realistic picture of what the operating costs are
going to be. Go ahead, Catherine.

President Fanello: | was going to say that brings me to my point of where this is
leading to and like David said, he didn’t want to say, he doesn’t really want to commit
one way or another until we know for sure what the Council does on Wednesday.

So, itwould be my wish that next Monday after knowing what the Council’s decision

is, that we have something, we lay something out on the table to be able to direct the
architect to come back and give us the information we need. We all agree on that
they are to evaluate the back forty site, the courts parking lot or do we send them out
to evaluate green field sites.

Commissioner Mourdock: That is a fine direction to take. Again, | think we have to
give them some direction.

President Fanello: And that needs to happen as soon as possible.

Commissioner Mosby: Give who some direction?

Commissioner Mourdock: The architect.

President Fanello: United.

Brad Ellsworth: And this isn’t any of my business, but after working with those guys
for several months now as you keep throwing them in, | think you need a Council

commitment that as you throw out different options, they need to be reimbursed for
their services.
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President Fanello: | agree, | agree.

Brad Ellsworth. It may seem like a strange thing to you all but, you know, they have
not been paid for anything, and now okay now evaluate this and now evaluate this
and look at this. At some point, if | was the architect | would tell you all let’s see
some green first. And at an hourly rate-

Commissioner Mourdock: Thatis the flaw that we have in our process, Brad, you are
exactly right. | disagree with your premise, we should have at the onset have known
whoever the architect was going to be to say this is what we want and let’s start that
cycle of revising and we didn’t do that. As far as | am concerned what the architect
does is work with you from the get go, knowing what you want to help design what
you want. So, | have a hunch.

Commissioner Mosby: | am not going to say that we didn’t know what we wanted-
President Fanello: | think we-

Commissioner Mosby: It's just whether or not we are going to get it.

(Inaudible - too many people talking)

President Fanello: Well, | think the biggest unknown is that the Council started off
with a number that they really had nothing to base that number on other than the fact
that they felt like they could use that number and not raise property taxes, but that
number in no way told them what they could get as far as jail construction. So, |
think we started off with a handicap right there.

Commissioner Mourdock: Well, let me defend the Council, you said two things there
in juxtaposition, you said they kind of made up the number and the only thing they
did was try to do it based on taxes. Those are not two different things, that number
was based on what they could do without raising taxes. Now if you want to fault
them for that you are certainly free to do that, but they did have a basis for the
number. They did not just pull one out of the air.

President Fanello: That is what | said, they based that number on not raising
property taxes. Which property taxes will still go up. That is not an entirely true
statement, but the fact is, to me that is being short sighted in not considering what
we need to do to take care of our concerns with the jail and court space, and what
we need to do to plan for the future. So, like | said, | think we started out backwards
at that point.

Commissioner Mosby: | am going to touch on that, not raising property taxes. 1 don’t
think that Council or that Auditor sitting down there can tell me that we got $2.7
million dollars a year extra for the next 25 years. Now, don’t tell me that we ain’t
going to have to raise property taxes, because as the cost of living comes along and
as we give our employees raises, and as we bring things on line to serve this
community we do not have enough money sitting in our fund today or tomorrow to
do that for the next 25 years. Everybody says that we are doing this and not raising
property taxes. If that is the case, are you telling me that we've got $2.7 million a
year that we can look at for the next 25 years? And never raise property taxes?

Commissioner Mourdock: Well, | am not a financial analyst but | will say this-
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Commissioner Mosby: | don’t think you have to be to answer that.

Commissioner Mourdock: No, but you have to make the point that all forecasts be
they done by the County Council or Crowe Chizek , our financial forecast, is there
some element of unknown in them? Absolutely. Thatis always going to be the case.

Commissioner Mosby: | mean, what | guess | am wondering is have we wasted $2.7
million a year for the last ten years that we had extra? You know if we are not going
to have to raise taxes to get this money, are you telling me that we had this much
money sitting around that we just blew it and threw it away and now all of a sudden
we are going to save it? Because we are going to build a jail? | don’t think so. |
mean that is, to me, number one, it is an out. If you want to say it's an out of what
they wantto spend. What we should have been doing is probably looking at the best
way to fund this jail and | think some of them options were explored last year and
that there are several counties sitting around the House and Senate this year doing
what we had proposed to do last year. But, no, we didn’t go for that. | mean and
they say we are looking at the best use of the taxpayers dollars. Building 488 beds
is the best use of the taxpayers dollars? When we know at one point that we had
430 in there. So, we are getting a known 55 beds more than the capacity of that jail
at one time.

Commissioner Mourdock: Well, your discussion isn’t about the decision as much,
David, as it is about the process. You know the Council has it’s duties to fulfill and
we have ours and we need to work with them to make it happen. So, it's how they
do their budgeting is certainly on their side of the Indiana Constitution and they are
trying to do that to the best of their ability, and, again, we can differ as to the
opinions as to how it can be done but they have their responsibilities and we have
ours and the Sheriff has his. So, now we have to just deal with the facts as they are.

President Fanello: Well, | am going to put this back on the agenda for Monday
knowing that basically what | said a minute ago. We will have a final decision from
Council on the budget and | would like to see us as a Board give direction to the
architect next Monday.

Commissioner Mourdock: And | like, again | appreciate the discussion. | think it is
a good one and | hope we are in a position to at least have them, meaning the
architect, give them a couple of options, because | think that is what we need to do,
not just give them one, give them a couple.

President Fanello: Exactly. So, if there is nothing else to say on this issue. Any
group-

Madelyn Grayson: May we make a tape change?
President Fanello: Yes.
(Tape changed)

Madelyn Grayson: Thank you.

Any Other Group or Individual Wishing to Address the Board
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President Fanello: Any group or individual wishing to address the board. Would you
like to address the board?

Clarence Weber: I'm Clarence Weber, and | live at 930 Schutte Road. | have a
petition to improve Schutte Road. | would like to give you (Inaudible. Walked away
from mike.) That will give you an idea of what (Inaudible). Now, Schutte Road
hasn’t been widened, except for pavement since 1937, when the WPA changed it
from one lane to two lanes. It is dangerous. The most dangerous part is a ditch
where the guardrails are about 20' apart. When you pull out of Clark Lane, you can
see about 150'. There is a hump in the road, and anybody coming 40 miles an hour,
there is no way you can see them. No way you can pull out. The shoulders, they
are either narrow, or there is none. I've had my mailbox knocked down several
times. You've got a list on a lot of incidents from Clark Lane to the Lloyd
Expressway. The last time my mailbox was knocked down was January 26". Matt
Hill come out and he picked up all the pieces and took them up to my house, and he
said here we go again, and, Brad, he done a good job. He said here we go again,
| said would you sign my petition, and he said | would sure be glad to. So, | know
that you don’t build roads overnight, but | would like to get this in the pipeline. I've
been trying for 15 years to get something done to the road, and | think it's time that
something is done. If you have any questions—

President Fanello: Does anybody have any questions?

Commissioner Mourdock: No, I'll just tell you by way of...I'll tell you by way of the
process, Mr. Weber, we normally have a road hearing that is scheduled in March.
| don’t know that we’ve scheduled that yet for this year, but what we do is we submit
things to the County Highway Department and the County Engineer, so thatthey can
work through the schedule as to what we can do in the next 12 months, and certainly
we can pass this on to the County Engineer and County Highway as well to make
sure it gets thorough review prior to that meeting in March.

Clarence Weber: Okay, | appreciate it. I've talked to Dr. Hoops, and Dr. Hoops said
that he would cooperate in anyway, but they are not allowed to sign anything as far
as petitions or anything, so he (Inaudible).

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, you said a petition, | don’t have any petition. Okay.

Clarence Weber: | (Inaudible) around to Brad, trying to get his name on it, because
he drives it everyday.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay. Did you give one of these to the County Engineer
and Highway? Did you guys get these? Okay, make sure they get a copy of that.

Clarence Weber: | haven’t gave one to the County—
Commissioner Mourdock: We’'ll get them a copy.
Clarence Weber: Okay.

President Fanello: Thank you.

Board Appointments
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President Fanello: Okay, Department Head Reports, County Engineer.
Commissioner Mosby: Back up.

President Fanello: Do you need to?

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, yeah.

President Fanello: Commissioner Mosby has something else.
Commissioner Mosby: I’'m not another group though.

Commissioner Mosby: You're another group, yeah, you’re another group.

Commissioner Mosby: | thought we were going to finish with other groups and
individuals.

President Fanello: Sorry.

Commissioner Mosby: | just want to make one appointment. | need to make an
appointment to the Southwest Indiana Comprehensive Economic Development
Strategy that George Rehnquist and Jonathan Weinzapfel have formed, and | want
to make the appointment of Lo Porter, from over at the bank.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, that’s a motion?

Commissioner Mosby: Yes.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

Commissioner Mosby: Motion to appoint Lou Porter.

President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: County Engineer

President Fanello: Now County Engineer.

John Stoll: First item I've got is a sidewalk waiver request for Wolfe Creek Estates.
This is a subdivision on the south side of Wolfe Creek Drive just east of Eickhoff
Road. There are no other sidewalks out there in the vicinity of this subdivision. So,
it's recommended that the sidewalk waiver be granted.

Commissioner Mourdock: So moved.
Commissioner Mosby: Is that a good idea? | mean, is this the one we had in
Drainage Board last week, that they said they were going to ask for a sidewalk

waiver?

John Stoll: No, this is off Eickhoff. Are you thinking about the Highland Point off of
Mohr Road?

Commissioner Mosby: Maybe that’s it.
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Commissioner Mourdock: The one where there was quite a large number of people
here? That was Highland Point.

John Stoll: Okay, | was going to say, | didn’t think this came to Drainage Board last
week. This is just a little five lot—

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll look and be sure, but | don’t think it did.
Commissioner Mosby: | was thinking we had Wolfe Creek last week too.
President Fanello: (Inaudible. Mike not on.) Was it in this (Inaudible).

Commissioner Mosby: There was something at Drainage Board last week that said
they were going to be requesting a sidewalk—

Commissioner Mourdock: You’re right, there was a Wolfe Creek final drainage plan.
Commissioner Mosby: Yeah.

Commissioner Mourdock: But, | think it must have been deferred, because | don’t
have that we acted on it.

President Fanello: Yeah, we didn’t (Inaudible. Mike not on.).

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, we had something on our desks that said something
about a sidewalk waiver, and that’s why | was wondering—

Commissioner Mourdock: | didn’t see thatin my packet. Unless it showed up today.
President Fanello: | just had one on my desk—

Commissioner Mosby: No, it was on our desk last week.

President Fanello: —yeah, before the meeting last Monday.

John Stoll: | was going to say, | got—

Commissioner Mosby: Let me see, what’s that?

President Fanello: It was just a piece of paper.

Commissioner Mosby: That is, that’s the same one right there. We had that on our
desks last week. Veachy, Nicholoson. Because, as a matter of fact, Mr. Nicholoson
was here, and | couldn’t read his writing, and he said he was here for Wolfe Creek,
and we didn’t discuss it. So, I didn’t know if there was a problem with this or not.
John Stoll: No, it's just the five lots here. (Inaudible. Someone coughing.) Wolfe
Creek Drive. There’s an existing house back here on this lot one, and back here is
where they are building all the condos. There are no other sidewalks anywhere out
here that they would connect to if they did try to build sidewalks out here. So, in that

respect, they really weren’t necessary.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay. He made a motion. I'll second.
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President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: Second item I've got is an encroachment permit that was submitted on
the walkway connecting the Centre and the Executive Inn. Jim Morley came by my
office last Friday and said that the building permits for the walkway were being held
up because they hadn’t received an encroachment permit from either the County
Engineer or the City Engineer. [I've discussed this with the County Attorney,
basically, this encroachment permit would just allow the walkway to encroach in
whatever rights the county may have out there on that property. Since it's not truly
a county right-of-way, it's not an encroachment permit in the same sense that the
city’s will be, but so they can get their building permits, Phil was saying that we just
need to go ahead and sign off on it. So, I’'m asking for your approval to go ahead
and sign off on the encroachment permit.

Commissioner Mosby: Motion to sign off on the encroachment permit.
Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: Lastitem I've got, | would like to request approval to continue to have Pat
Seib work part time in our office. He is the USI student that we had working last
semester, and | would like to request that he be allowed to continue to work this
semester for up to 10 hours a week.

Commissioner Mosby: Make a motion to continue to work part time for Pat Seib.
Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

John Stoll: That’s all | have unless you’ve got any questions on anything.

President Fanello: No?

John Stoll: Thanks.

Ralph Kissinger: County Highway

President Fanello: County Highway.

Ralph Kissinger: Ralph Kissinger, County Highway. These are the completed State
Board of Accounts review for this year. I've reviewed them and signed them.
Everything did balance out. I'm giving you your copies, and | do have to have the
one original signed and returned to, | guess, you send that in, Suzanne? Or do we
go ahead an submit it ourselves? The signed copies.

Suzanne Crouch: | think in the past we've sent them up for you.

Ralph Kissinger: Okay. The rest of the copies are there. If there are any questions,
| would be glad to take the questions and answer them next week, because | am not
familiar with the entire procedure, but | do have a bookkeeper who is. I'm trying to
get this on the computer so | can familiarize myself with it. I’'m not an accountant.
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President Fanello: You say that like it's a bad thing.
Ralph Kissinger: It's not a bad thing. I’'m just stating a fact.
Commissioner Mosby: Do we need to make a motion to approve this?

Commissioner Mourdock: We do. The only thing | would suggest and, Catherine,
| presume you are seeing this for the first time too?

President Fanello: Uh-huh.
Ralph Kissinger: | think you should probably review it.

Commissioner Mourdock: We don’t have a date certain on this tonight? | mean, if
we looked it over—

Ralph Kissinger: | don’t think it's even due for two more weeks, but | did get it
completed—

Commissioner Mourdock: (Inaudible. Talking over each other.)
President Fanello: Okay, that’s fine.

Ralph Kissinger: —and | wanted to get them in before, so there wasn’t a mad rush
on it.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll move that we take it under advisement for action next
week.

Ralph Kissinger: Other than my reports, | don’t have anything else.
Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Commissioner Mosby: Thank you, Ralph.

President Fanello: Why don’t you pass that original to Madelyn.

Ralph Kissinger: Thank you.

Phil Hayes: County Attorney

President Fanello: County Attorney.
Philip Hayes: No report.

President Fanello: Okay.

Tammy McKinney: Superintendent of Buildings

President Fanello: Superintendent.
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Tammy McKinney: The only thing | have is a late Travel Request from Soil and
Water. | gave David and Catherine and Richard a copy, and then the original is in
the signature file. | went ahead and added it because it wasn’t very much money,
and they are traveling Thursday, | think.

Commissioner Mourdock: Going backwards a step, Phil, anything new on the case
we are working on that Joe, Jr.’s involved with? Have you heard anything more?

Philip Hayes: There, there is no hard activity that has been done. There is an
insurance matter that was noticed up, and there was a refusal, which was a standard
refusal. We will also request, and that’s one of the things at the end of the meeting,
to ask for an Executive Session to discuss that for next week.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

Philip Hayes: | think we would need—

Commissioner Mourdock: That'’s fine.

Philip Hayes: —approximately a half hour, but, yes, there will be a request for
litigation in regard to that.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

Philip Hayes: And, finally, then | think there is also some indication that we need to
move aggressively for a set aside of the AAA award. | know that the Building
Authority met today at 1:00, | think, it was there organizational meeting—
Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

Philip Hayes: —so, | don’t have any report since then.

Commissioner Mourdock: Just for the record then, since it does sort of fall under the
County Attorney’s report, you are saying that we need to schedule an Executive

Session for next Monday at 5:007?

Philip Hayes: Yes, that would be satisfactory. | think 30 minutes will take care of our
business at that time.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

Tammy McKinney: Isn’t that Solid Waste?

Philip Hayes: Oh, do you? Okay.

Commissioner Mourdock: When do you want to do it then? At-
President Fanello: | don’t know. | kind of like doing it in the morning.
Philip Hayes: Is Solid Waste 5:007?

President Fanello: Yeah, or we start 5:30, no, Solid Waste is at 4:30.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah.
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Philip Hayes: So, if 4:00 would be, if that would be satisfactory—
Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

Philip Hayes: —I can promise you we won’t drag into it.
Commissioner Mourdock: | would move the advertising then—
Philip Hayes: Can you do that, David?

Commissioner Mourdock: —for Executive Session—
President Fanello: Next Monday at 4:00? Executive Session.
Philip Hayes: Next Monday at 4:007?

Commissioner Mourdock: —4:00 next Monday.
Commissioner Mosby: Yeah.

Philip Hayes: Okay.

President Fanello: He made a motion.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: Okay. So ordered.

Steve Craig: Burdette Park

President Fanello: Okay, Burdette Park.

Steve Craig: The only thing | have is my work sheets, unless you guys have any
questions for me.

Commissioner Mosby: | don't.

President Fanello: Alright.

SWCD & Ozone Officer Reports

Commissioner Mourdock: And I'll move—

Steve Craig: Thank you.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll move approval of Soil and Water Conservation District
and the Ozone Officer's Report to the Consent file, or to the be included in the
record.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.
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Consent ltems

Commissioner Mosby: Under Consent, did you say that we need to add that? Or
you’'ve done added it? Right, okay. Yes or no. | need to add it or | don’t? Don’t
need to add it.

Tammy McKinney: No, you don’t.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay.

Tammy McKinney: Yes, | did.

Commissioner Mosby: You did add it, okay. | don’t know since we voted last week
has anybody said anything to these people on their travel that they need to have
receipts for their per diems? I’m not sure we might not want to put that on here that

receipts required.

President Fanello: Well, | received an e-mail forwarded to me, | think, from Tammy
from Terri Woodward.

Tammy McKinney: Right.

President Fanello: And in the ordinance it does say per diem, and she said she
asked the State Board of Accounts, and they felt like we didn’t need to collect
receipts. | disagree.

Suzanne Crouch: No, | don’t think, Catherine, that’s what they were saying.

President Fanello: Okay.

Suzanne Crouch: They were saying that the current ordinance says per diem, which
is a daily allowance—

President Fanello: Ah, okay.

Suzanne Crouch: —so we’re doing it fine.

President Fanello: Okay.

Suzanne Crouch: But if you want to make receipts with a cap of like $26—
President Fanello: Uh-huh.

Suzanne Crouch: —then we just need to change the ordinance—
President Fanello: Amend the ordinance.

Suzanne Crouch: —and send a notice out to the department heads.

President Fanello: Okay. Which | had put on the agenda..we’ve got...hmmm?
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Philip Hayes: The ordinance...that’s different than the receipts. It says per diem.
That’s a different question than the receipts. If you want to require receipts, you can
still require receipts.

President Fanello: Well, | would think so.

Philip Hayes: It's a matter—

President Fanello: | still don’t understand—

Philip Hayes: Whether you need them or not, it depends on...it's a policy matter as
to whether or not an attached set of receipts can be required.

Commissioner Mourdock: It is a simple thing. Itis really two things. Itis the policy.
It is the ordinance. Certainly, our policy says that we will issue a per diem, which,
in essence, as we talked about last week, doesn’t necessarily mean you would need
receipts, because you are just giving whatever the dollar figure is per day.
President Fanello: Uh-huh.

Philip Hayes: That’s right.

Commissioner Mourdock: But | think it would be appropriate that we formally change
the policy to say, a per diem up to $26 a day, or really take the words per diem out
and say up to $26-

President Fanello: Up to 26.

Commissioner Mourdock: —a day, justified by receipts. Because, | think we all agree
what we want here—

President Fanello: Oh, yeah.

Commissioner Mourdock: —we want people to turn in receipts—
President Fanello: Exactly.

Commissioner Mourdock: —and not pay more than $26 a day.

President Fanello: Uh-huh. So, but I think David’s question is, has a letter or notice
been sent out? Or are we requiring receipts?

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, | just want to make sure that nobody gets caught off
guard and comes back and says, you know, why didn’t you tell me. You know, that’s
my only—

President Fanello: | think we need—

Commissioner Mosby: —point is we don’t leave somebody hanging out there, and
I’m, you know—

Suzanne Crouch: (Inaudible. Mike not on.)

President Fanello: | think we need to go ahead-
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Tammy McKinney: | was going to say, it's on the agenda for next Monday.
President Fanello: To amend the ordinance, yeah.
Commissioner Mosby: We'll do it after that.

Commissioner Mourdock: Can we target the date of March 1°'? Say as of March 1°,
if you don’t have receipts, you don’t get reimbursed.

Tammy McKinney: That's fine. The only one...the Travel Request, | can tell the
Treasurer and DADS and Soil and Water that they need receipts. Health
Department, they pay their own. So, | never receive any blue claims from them. |
can make phone calls to the one’s that are on tonight’s agenda.

Commissioner Mosby: Does the Health Department not, though, follow county
policy?

Suzanne Crouch: Yes, they do, but they also do the receipts.

Commissioner Mosby: Well, | mean, that’s good, because, | mean, | think they need
to do as any other county office would. Even though | know they are their own taxing
district, we’re still responsible for the taxpayer out there, or to the taxpayer.

Tammy McKinney: They probably have to do it for their grants and everything—
Commissioner Mosby: | think they need to follow policy.
Tammy McKinney: —that they get, yeah.

Commissioner Mourdock: The group that will be the hardest to getin line will be the
courts. | mean, when they send their people, if they haven’t done it before, they will
argue that we’ve never done it that way.

President Fanello: Well, just because we’ve never done it that way, doesn’t mean
that we are not going to do it that way. Okay, so do | have a motion to approve—

Commissioner Mosby: Motion to adopt or approve Consent Agenda Items.

Commissioner Mourdock: Just the one question here. | have not yet read through
this letter that | found. Do you want to summarize that real quick?

President Fanello: Did you get a copy of the letter to Cheryl Musgrave?
Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, | seen it here a minute ago.

President Fanello: This is a summary, basically, and the reason | wanted this Board
to send it out was because we are the contract administrators, basically, for
Computer Services, and, you know, we, basically, set policy. There were a few
concerns brought up at the last Data Board meeting about, | think, communication
between the GIS project and the Data Board and everybody involved. There were
several concerns brought up. There have also been concerns brought up to me by
ACS, and, basically, this letter reflects their concerns, and just really asking Cheryl
to respond to them and let us know how she feels about them. And how we might
maybe improve communication in the future.
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Commissioner Mourdock: Alright, with the motion out there, | will go ahead and
second it, approval of the Consent file.

Commissioner Mosby: | made the motion, and he seconded.
President Fanello: Oh, that’s right. You say second. So ordered.
Madelyn Grayson: Commissioner Fanello, is the original going to be in—

President Fanello: Here’s the original. '

Old Business

President Fanello: Okay, is there any Old Business?

Commissioner Mourdock: Just one quick item. You touched on it briefly earlier
tonight when you were talking about the jail discussion and community corrections.
Have you seen, or did we receive from our insurance folks the loss record for last
year? Having left the meeting last week, we were certainly in agreement that we
need to tie up our rate as quickly as we can—

President Fanello: Uh-huh.

Commissioner Mourdock: —at 44%. | do recall seeing through the routing file their
normal recommendations and those type of things, but | don’t recall seeing a
complete loss record. Have you gotten a copy of that?

President Fanello: No, | haven’t seen a complete loss record.

Philip Hayes: The big, thick book, Commissioner?

Commissioner Mourdock: It can be.

Philip Hayes: There was one from the previous year from the year 2000, delivered
in 2001.

Commissioner Mourdock: Right.

Philip Hayes: We should have a 2001 coming on, but if | recall that’s like probably
down the road another couple of weeks. We can contact them—

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, let's—
Philip Hayes: —(Inaudible. Talking over each other.) seen it.
Commissioner Mourdock: —that’s what I’'m asking about.

Philip Hayes: They have not delivered one. Uh-uh.

'Consent Items listed on Page 45.



Page 40 of 44 Vanderburgh County
Board of Commissioners
February 4, 2002

Commissioner Mourdock: Obviously, it's in our best interest to keep those costs
down as much as we can. While the statements | remember reading in the routing
file, and it's been three or four weeks ago that | read them, were pretty generic. If
there is anything specific in there as far as workman’s comp claims, or specifically
with community corrections that we can act on, we need to do something with that.

Commissioner Mosby: | will say that | went over a lot of that with Dennis Feldhaus
in my office the other day, and there is not really anything in particular that he said
we could do about the community corrections. He said that building is that building
and unless we want to go out and rebuild it, that’s the only way we are going to do
anything with it. | mean, as far as, you know, he said that talking to the people in
Nashville, when he was talking to them, | mean, they read the newspaper, off the
Internet, and whatever. | mean, they see where the stalemate is. They gotourDOC
inspection report. Other than that, he said he had expected, you know, the 17% to
20% increase.

Commissioner Mourdock: Right, and | understand. As we talked about even prior
to the meeting last week, | think, a lot of the cost increases that we are seeing have
to do with the economy as a whole, and also September 11" unresolved issues. |
mean, | understand that there is going to be a significant increase. | just want to
make sure that every aspect that we do have some element of control over, that we
try to—

Commissioner Mosby: No, he just said that the 17 to 20 was just a kind of, he said,
| seen that coming, too. He said it was the other 25% that | didn’t see coming. |
guess, | had a conversation just with my own personal insurance man today, and he
told me, he said, 20% would be just the very average—

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, and I've—
Commissioner Mosby: —today.

Commissioner Mourdock: —in my travels around the state this past few months, I've
spoken to a lot of counties that are seeing increases that are close to ours, but not
quite as much as ours, and I'm not sure what the basis for that is. Maybe it’s
community corrections, maybe not.

Commissioner Mosby: He just told me, he said, | don’t think I've wrote a commercial
policy that hasn’t went up 20% to 22%. He thought it was funny, because he read
the paper this morning where the city said they weren’t getting an increase. He said
| would like to see that happen, because he said | don’t think they will be saying that
when their policy comes due.

President Fanello: It comes due in May.

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, so, they probably ought to hold on. | think theirs is
what 100 and, God, what did | read in the paper? A million three was their last
year’s policy.

Commissioner Mourdock: One other bit (Inaudible. Mike not working properly.) The
issue that came up last week with Jobe’s Lane, did we get the paperwork done on
that? | noticed there is nothing in the Consent File on beginning to request that—
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Commissioner Mosby: The paperwork is not done. | had a conversation with Todd
Trinkle out of Indianapolis Friday, and they are sending me some more info down on
what they need. It's going to be my job in the next week or two to get two or three
of our Sate Reps to write letters, and our State Senators, and then they need a letter
from the Commissioners here. They are exploring funding right now, but there’s
just...we did contact Bernardin Lochmueller, they are supposed to get back with us
tomorrow on whether they have time, and they can go out and do this. John has had
some conversation with the Water and Sewer Utility. They had some preliminary
estimates to run water out there at one point in time, so we—

Commissioner Mourdock: In contacting Bernardin Lochmueller, though, thatis going
a step beyond what we said we were going to do last week. Last week we said that
we were going forward to try to get that grant information.

Commissioner Mosby: And get quotes for engineering, because | can’t go forward
on the grant until | get an engineer. That’s the whole first step of this thing. That’s
why | said, that’'s why | made that motion. You can go back and read the record.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, well, I'll go back and look at it. | didn’t think the
quote was in there, because | was specifically concerned about the fact that we can
be on line for monies here before we had any good idea as to what the response
rate would be on the grant.

Commissioner Mosby: I'd have to get her to get us a copy of the minutes, but that
was the biggest thing in my motion is that—

Commissioner Mourdock: That does remain a concern to me. | understand there’s
an environmental problem out there. Please don’t misunderstand. | really fear that
we are opening, or could be opening the door here to everybody who has a bad
septic system outin the county, and believe me, there are hundreds of them. I don't,
you know, | don’t want us to make the subjective judgement as to who can and who
can’t afford something, as far as the cost of an improvement, like a Barrett Law type
situation. We need to be very careful how we tread down that road, because all of
a sudden, once that precedent is set, we’ve opened the gates. | would say the flood
gates (Inaudible. Interference on mike.)

Commissioner Mosby: I'm hanging this on the Judge. | mean, you know, | guess it’s
not very often that you are going to be drug into court. You know, the Judge is the
one that called me and asked me to come out there and look at this. Then he had
went as far as to contact IDEM, and then IDEM just said, you know, with the county’s
cooperation that they could possibly move forward on exploring some of the funding
through IDEM. Then he brought a guy by the name of Steve Brock with him—

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, and do | understand this filing, Phil, that all of this
was first filed with Vanderburgh County’s name on it in Judge Tornatta’s court?
Wasn't it Tornatta, yeah, on January 25™? There was nothing outstanding with the
county’s name on it to that point?

Philip Hayes: That’s right. That entry, I’'ve not had an opportunity to follow back up
with Joe Harrison as to exactly how that entry gotinvolved with Vanderburgh County
on the caption. | may have missed us being joined. Joe’s had that case, that was
legacy that he left with me, and | left it with him, since he was conversant. To
shorten this up, we, frankly, agree that the county does not have a liability position
here. We have, what we do have is a Judge exercising equitable powers, which are
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there, and we’'re treading very lightly, because we don’t wish to become a party. We
disagree with some of the private plaintiffs, | think... won’t...I'm not sure which, right
now without looking at my notes, which one is which, but we disagree with the
private parties that somehow or other we are able to be joined. So, we are in a
limited matter...manner joined for these kinds of purposes. The kind of purpose is
to explore that if there is rural assistance for sanitation there, and we can be a pass
through, we’ll try to do that. We’ve tried it informally, and the lack of response from
the lawyers is why the Commissioner was called personally.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'm sorry, | missed something there.

Philip Hayes: The lack of response from me and from Mr. Harrison is probably why
the public official was called personally by the Judge. Because we’ve been
operating on a very strict basis with the court in avoiding the kind of responsibility
that you’re concerned about, rightfully so. At the same time, we’ve got a public
health situation that’s awful. The Health Department has not brought an action to
terminate that. Although we’ve talked about it. About doing it.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah.

Philip Hayes: It's been in order for cure. It’s kind of a...it’s not atypical of what I'm
finding when I'm calling around to the other counties. I'm finding it in Warrick
County, I'm finding it here, because it’s very dislocating. Health Departments have
different views about how much is tolerable. The other place this feeds in is on the
new storm water rules.

Commissioner Mourdock: Uh-huh.

Philip Hayes: | talked to John today on the phone about the commentary that was
sent up, and | asked him a little bit about the history of publication of the rule, what
kind of debate there was, and what kind of potential fiscal and legal impact we were
likely to see. We're likely to see a lot, because every time there is any kind of
infiltration during storm water occurrences, then we may very well be facing a more
speeded up schedule in our area, as opposed to some of these others, but Warrick
and Vanderburgh will take a hit on those storm water rules.

Commissioner Mourdock: Just one other thing (Inaudible. Mike not working
properly.) Catherine, something that was in the (Inaudible) file, was a code
enforcement issue as the owner of Habitat of Evansville for property, and also the
(Inaudible).

Philip Hayes: | haven’t seen that. I'm sorry, | wasn’t ...was it in my file?

President Fanello: No.

Philip Hayes: Okay. I'll be glad to look through it and inform you.

Tammy McKinney: | think that was a surplus property. If I'm not mistaken.

Philip Hayes: Tax sale?

Commissioner Mourdock: | suspect it was (Inaudible. Talking over each other.).

Philip Hayes: Oh, we've acquired it by—
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Tammy McKinney: No, Habitat bought it.
Philip Hayes: Oh.
Tammy McKinney: Right.

Commissioner Mourdock: Which is why I’'m puzzled. Our name shouldn’t be on
those things.

Philip Hayes: That’s right. Yeah.
Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

Philip Hayes: Well, we’ll find out.

New Business

President Fanello: Any New Business?
Commissioner Mosby: Motion to adjourn.
Commissioner Mourdock: Second.
President Fanello: So ordered.

Meeting was adjourned at 7:28 p.m.

CONSENT ITEMS:

Employment Changes:
Area Plan Center Assessor VCCC
County Clerk

Travel Requests:
SWCD DADS Treasurer
Health Department

Request for Service:
County Clerk
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Commissioners:

Letter to County Assessor: Re: GIS Project.

Amendment No. 10 to the Information Resource Management Agreement
County Council: 2003 Holiday Schedule.

Prosecutor: Federal Annual Certification Report.

Sheriff: Weekly jail information and reports.

Those in attendance:

Catherine Fanello David W. Mosby Richard E. Mourdock
Philip Hayes Suzanne Crouch Tammy McKinney
Madelyn Grayson Rebecca Gootee John Stoll

Joe Vezzoso Steve Craig Steve Bohleber
Clarence Weber Brad Ellsworth Ralph Kissinger
Others Unidentified Members of Media

VANDERBURGH COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Catherine Fanello, President

David W. Mosby, Vice President

Richard E. Mourdock, Member

Recorded by Madelyn Grayson. Transcribed by Madelyn Grayson and BJ Farrell.



Vanderburgh County
Board of Commissioners
February 11, 2002

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session this 11" day of
February, 2002 at5:30 p.m. in Room 307 of the Civic Center Complex with President
Catherine Fanello presiding.

Call to Order

President Fanello: Call to order the Board of Commissioners meeting of
Vanderburgh County for February 11, 2002.

Introductions and Pledge of Allegiance

President Fanello: Introductions, Tammy McKinney, Superintendent; Phil Hayes,
County Attorney; David Mosby, County Commissioner; Richard Mourdock, County
Commissioner; Suzanne Crouch, County Auditor; and Madelyn Grayson, Recording
Secretary, and myself, Catherine Fanello. Please join me in the Pledge of
Allegiance.

(The Pledge was given.)

Approval of Minutes

President Fanello: Approval of minutes from February 4™.
Commissioner Mourdock: I'll move approval of the minutes as filed.
Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Certification of February 11, 2002 Executive Session

Commissioner Mourdock: And I'll also move approval of summary minutes from this
afternoon’s Executive Session that began at 4:00, ended at 4:30. In attendance
were Commissioner Mosby, myself, the County Auditor and County Attorney. The
meeting ended at 5:30 and dealt solely with pending litigation.

Commissioner Mosby: The meeting ended at 4:30.

Commissioner Mourdock: What did | say?

Commissioner Mosby: 5:30.

President Fanello: 5:30.

Commissioner Mourdock: It only seemed like 5:30. It ended at 4:30.

Commissioner Mosby: I'll second that.

President Fanello: So ordered.
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Christine Martin: SWIDRCC

President Fanello: Christine Martin. Where is she?

Christine Martin: Good evening. My name is Christine Martin, and | am the Director
for the Southwest Indiana Disaster Resistant Community Corporation. We have
come, Roger Lehman is here with me this evening, he is the Chairman of our Board,
and we have come this evening to officially request $10,000 from Vanderburgh
County to help fund the SWIDRCC for the year 2001, or 2002. We have gone to the
other counties. We already have their commitments, and have already billed the
other counties. The City of Evansville has committed $15,000, and they are in the
process of being billed. The other counties; Gibson, Warrick, Spencer and Posey
were each asked for $5,000, and they have already, as | said, approved it and are
in the process of being billed. | had given to you handouts, and, Mr. Mourdock, did
you receive, Commissioner Mourdock, did you receive that today? Okay. |
wondered if any of you had any questions. | had given you a list of our activities
from last year. Proposed projects for 2002, and approved budget for 2002.

President Fanello: Does anyone have any questions?

Commissioner Mourdock: The money you are requesting wasn’t in the budget,
correct?

President Fanello: No.
Christine Martin: No.

President Fanello: Rememberthey came last year, and | don’t think Council ever put
that in the budget.

Christine Martin: No.

President Fanello: Not to my knowledge anyway. | think what Christine was wanting
to know, if we have any extra money in our budget to help fund it.

Commissioner Mourdock: Join the club.

Christine Martin: We’ve been trying to get together before the end of last year, but
that has been unable to do.

President Fanello: Do | have a motion from anyone?
Roger Lehman: (Inaudible.)
Commissioner Mourdock: Sure.

Roger Lehman: We have experienced in the other counties, the County
Commissioners in Posey County took it out of their 2002 budget that was already
approved for their $5,000. The other County Commissioners sent a request to the
County Council for additional appropriations. These are all in process, and we would
welcome either alternative this evening. We do think that Vanderburgh County has
received an exceedingly large amount of funding that would not have come
otherwise from this process. What we are seeking to do through this request is to
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continue to be able to operate as we have, which includes obtaining grants. We will
be going to Little Rock, Arkansas at the end of March to attemptto geton the USGS’
next five year rotation program, which potentially could bring $5 million a year into
this area for five years. If we don’t have administrative money to continue this work,
then all of us have full time jobs, we won’t be able to have a director, nor an office
person, and we will lose out on the opportunity to do a lot of this work, because we
all have jobs. So, this money is really seed money to continue to bring into the
county money what has been brought in over the past two years. You see them
there in excess of $1 million, and we just want to keep on doing that. If we don’t
function, we can’t do it.

Commissioner Mosby: | will make a motion that we pass this on to the County
Council.

Commissioner Mourdock: | was going to make a suggestion. | know we are going
to have a lot of demands on our budget this year. Obviously, we’re watching real
closely. Would we consider doing $5,000 early, and then later in the year looking
at another $5,000? Just a thought.

Commissioner Mosby: Either way. | just know we’ve got to the 14™ to make their
deadline. So. I'd say we pass iton to them. If they don’t fund it, then we come back
and look at it next month.

Commissioner Mourdock: Alright, fine, and your motion is for the full amount, so I'll
go ahead and second.

President Fanello: So ordered. So, our Superintendent, Tammy, can turn in an
appropriation, and it will go before Council at the end of the month.

Christine Martin: Thank you very much. We appreciate it.
Commissioner Mosby: Thank you.

President Fanello: Thanks.

Old Courthouse Fall Craft Show Contract Proposal

President Fanello: Vicki Bohleber.

Steve Bohleber: Steve, again, Bohleber. We had some discussion last week about
my wife and her sister operating the craft show at the Old Courthouse this Fall. A
contract was presented. There was some discussion. Commissioner Mosby and |
met a couple of days after that. We revised the contract and presented it to the
Commissioners. We hope it meets with your approval. If so, | have multiple pre-
signed copies by Vicki and Theresa. | will leave those with you for your execution,
if it otherwise meets your approval.

President Fanello: Do | have any questions?

Commissioner Mosby: A comment. | do, I've got one question here, and possibly
one change, and | don’t mind if we go ahead and pass this and you can clean your

copy-
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Steve Bohleber: Alright.

Commissioner Mosby: —and bring it back over. Do you want to go through the
changes that we made?

Commissioner Mourdock: No.

Commissioner Mosby: You're aware—

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, they added what you wanted about the Coliseum.
Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, the Coliseum and then the money differences. We’re
going to get part of the gate money, or you can call it the gate money, after the first

$1,000, we get all the table money. Number two, you put down at the bottom;

County shall allow Promoters access to all pertinent records from past
Craft Shows.

Steve Bohleber: Uh-huh.

Commissioner Mosby: And | did agree with that. Number four, under Accounting,
| would like to make that Accounting and Records—

Steve Bohleber: Certainly.

Commissioner Mosby: And at the end of that where it says;
Promoters shall provide a full accounting to the County for all revenues
generated in connection with the show withing forty-five (45) days of the
event, and access to all pertinent records of craft show if requested by
the County for any reason.

Steve Bohleber: Certainly.

Commissioner Mosby: If you'll just add that sentence, so that we can have access
to the records if anything ever happens in the past.

Steve Bohleber: And |-

Commissioner Mosby: The Coliseum is under five, so that’s fine with me.

Steve Bohleber: I've just added then;
Promoter shall provide full accounting and records to the County for all
revenue generated...da,da,da,da,da,....and access to all pertinent
records of craft shows, at County’s request.

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, if requested by the county for any reason.

Steve Bohleber: | will initial that on behalf of my clients, and present a copy with
those changes.

Commissioner Mosby: | appreciate it.
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Steve Bohleber: Plus a couple of additional copies. I'll pick up a signed copy from
the Commissioners later in the week.

Commissioner Mourdock: You need to get your clients approval there? You need
to do that pretty quick.

Steve Bohleber: No, I've got authority here.

Philip Hayes: (Inaudible. Talking over each other.) I'm sorry I’'m just now bringing
it up, but (Inaudible), attorney fees—

Commissioner Mosby: Uh-huh.

Philip Hayes: —it's been our policy not to do those default items. Not to use that.
Steve Bohleber: Do you want to strike that language, Mr. Hayes?
Commissioner Mosby: Yes.

Steve Bohleber: Fine, just strike that whole paragraph.

Commissioner Mosby: Strike number seven.

Philip Hayes: Yeah.

Steve Bohleber: It’s fine with me. I'm just trying to be fair and equitable here.
Commissioner Mosby: Okay.

Philip Hayes: | understand.

Steve Bohleber: We’'ll both benefit, or not benefit equally from that.

Philip Hayes: It’s just been a policy—

Steve Bohleber: | understand.

Philip Hayes: —not to include those over the last year—

Steve Bohleber: It cuts both ways. That will be fine.

Philip Hayes: —wherever we catch them, yeah, so.

Steve Bohleber: So, if you take out seven, I'll initial that too.

Philip Hayes: Okay.

Commissioner Mosby: So, | will make a motion to accept the contract with the proper
language in number four, and striking number seven.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.



Page 6 of 38 Vanderburgh County
Board of Commissioners
February 11, 2002

21° Century Corrections Corporation Jail Proposal

President Fanello: Okay next we have the—
Steve Bohleber: Thank you.

President Fanello: —thank you...two presentations from Ed Hafer and J.T. Kinkle. |
would ask that each group please limit their presentation to ten minutes, so that we
can have enough time for questions.

Ken English: Ken English, and this week we are going to show the financials that you
asked for. Comparing them to the United/DLZ programs that you have. | think you
will see some substantial differences. Alan is going to present this (Inaudible.
Walked away from mike.)

Ed Hafer: I'm Ed Hafer, of Hafer and Associates. All we really want to say tonight
aboutthe proposed buildings, building, is that, again, we’ve developed a very flexible
scheme here based upon support facilities that could support a jail from 448 up to
640 beds, a juvenile facility of 24, up to 24 beds, and a community corrections facility
up to 300 beds. So, again, in comparing scenarios, and trying to find the proverbial
apples to apples, | mean, we can stack these various components up in multiple
ways. So, even though we’ve really tried to confine for the interest of simplicity to
four basic scenarios, using David’s terminology from the Council meeting last week,
there are multiple other options here within this scheme. So, with that, | will let Alan
go ahead and talk about the various scenarios, the four scenarios that we’re
presenting, and the financial components behind them.

Alan Braun: I'm Alan Braun with Industrial Contractors. Firstlwould like to talk really
about the detail of the, let’'s go with the summary of the scenarios. This is, basically,
what you had given us on the Crowe Chizek study, and we just tried to compare to
it. Scenario numberone, forus, is 134,000 square feet, 448 beds. Scenario number
two is 170,000 square feet and 640 beds. This compared to their 650, but, basically,
ours is set up in those 64 pods, so we did 640. Scenario number three is 184,000
square feet, which is the 640, plus a 24 juvenile. Scenario number four is 224,705
square feet, and that’s the 640 jail beds, plus 300 community corrections, plus 24
juvenile. Our project costs; for scenario number one are $25,265,000. Our soft
costs are $3,500,000. For a total cost of $28,776,000. Our total amount financed
is $30,989,000. Now, we did annual lease payments on this with a 25 year lease,
a 20 year, and 15 year lease and financing, using 7.2%. This was today’s rate. As
you know, the rate can vary, as compared to the 5.56 bond rate that DLZ was using.
As you can see, in scenario numbertwo, 170,000 square feet, the project costs were
$31,875,000. Soft costs were $4,334,000. Total cost, $36,210,000. | might, just a
little bit, elaborate on what we’re talking about here under total costs, is construction
costs, plus furniture, fixtures and equipment, plus contingency. That’s where we get
our total project costs. Our soft costs are AEB’s and Reimburseables, Developer
Fee, Program Plan and Implementation, Other Fees and Costs, Builders Risk
Insurance, Telecommunications, and also our Financing Costs, Issuance Costs. We
also have all the numbers for scenario number three and number four as you can
see there. These are all passed out to you, | won’t go through them all.

Commissioner Mourdock: Excuse me, Alan, one question. Scenario two, 640, that’s
just jail beds? And scenario three is jail beds plus juvenile?
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Alan Braun: Yes, it is. Just like it was in the Crowe Chizek report that you all gave
us that we were supposed to show you, be similar to. We also looked at not only
construction costs, and soft costs, but also the operating costs. Tom Hickey, of
Jacobs, talked to the Sheriff and went over it with him, and I'll let him explain these
to you.

Tom Hickey: In order to arrive at the operating costs, we focused on all the staff, the
security staff, matching up with those identified in the Crowe Chizek report to
operate our design concept. Our housing units were set up at 64 bed housing pods,
rather than 128, or 125 that was in the Crowe Chizek, which actually requires like
double staffing within a housing unit. So, what we did is set up a program, we met
with the Sheriff and reviewed the staffing configurations of existing staff and new
staff that it would take to operate the facility. So, on the top line there under
operating staff for each of the scenarios, those represent the average salary rate that
was used in the Crowe Chizek report of the $28,000 per staff in operating the jail.
Now, what we did, so that you have an idea, we actually took all the staffing and
created a staff matrix that showed it by shift, and all of the positions that were
identified in the Crowe Chizek report under the yellow side, are existing staff. In this
side it shows the additional staff required to operate the larger facility. We extended
those, and in some cases we, you know, for instance, where Crowe Chizek did not
have transportation officer, because of the green field site, we added transportation
in. So, in trying to come to an operational matrix, for a comparison, we really dealt
with the solution itself, in coming up with that. So, that’s really what makes up our
staffing analysis, and we provided this matrix for the Sheriff for each of the solutions
that he could review with this Chief Deputy and what have you.

Commissioner Mourdock: So, you said you did include a transportation cost
component.

Tom Hickey: Yes. We actually had transportation—

Commissioner Mourdock: So, you are assuming this is a green field site, somewhere
other than here?

Tom Hickey: Correct.

Commissioner Mourdock: And did you include land in this then?
Alan Braun: No land costs are included.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

Alan Braun: There is no land cost included in any of these illustrations. And there
was none in the other illustration.

Commissioner Mourdock: | understand.

Alan Braun: So, | guess, what I'd like to do then is kind of make a comparison for
you, and that’'s what these charts are. That's scenario number one, the 448 bed,
United/DLZ’s cost is $26 million. 21° Century is $25,265,000. We're just a little bit
less than they are, but we also have 10,000 more square feet, because we have
provided for expansion in all of our areas of kitchen, etcetera, where the jail can be
expanded. The next scenario, two, is 650 beds, they have, we have 640. The
construction costis $35,660,000 for United, $31,875,000 for 21° Century. Scenario
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number three, the 650 beds, plus the 24 juveniles, ours 640 and 24. $39,657,000 for
United, $35,099,000 for 21°' Century. The total, full blown project of 640 beds, 24
juvenile, and 300 community corrections is $44,807,000 for United, and $40,550,000
for 21°' Century.

Ed Hafer: And | might point out that in the detailed pass outitis a per bed cost if you
want some idea of what that (Inaudible. Not at mike.)

Alan Braun: Next is the total amount financed, and this would be your soft costs plus
your construction costs. Under scenario number one, United/DLZ would be $35
million, 21°" Century $30,989,000. Scenario number two, $47 million, United.
$38,900,000 for 21°' Century. Scenario number three, $52 million for United,
$42,900,000 for 21*' Century. Under scenario number four it would be $58,815,000
for United, and $49,500,000 for 21%' Century. Going further, if you add in, if you look
at the annual lease payment, now we did three scenarios for 21°' Century, and that
was a 15 year, the 20 year and the 25 year. Under the first scenario, for 448 beds,
United would be $2,854,000. The same 25 year for 21°' Century would be
$2,862,000. For 20 year would be $3,126,000, and for 15 years $3,605,000. Under
scenario number two, United would be $3,840,000. 21%' Century’s would be 25
years, $3,588,000, 20 years $3,921,000, and 21 years $4,523,000. If you look on
down the line, going to scenario number four, United would be $4,789,000. 21°
Century, 25 years would be $4,540,000, 20 years, $4,963,000, and 15 year,
$5,728,000. Once again, we are using 7.2% for 21 Century, 5.56% for United. As
you can see on the chart, we charted it out again, United is in blue, the rest are the
color coded. The initial operating costs for United, under scenario number one was
$4,645,000, 21°' Century was $3,998,000. Scenario numbertwo was $5,879,000 for
United, $5,051,000 for 21% Century. The last scenario, the full blown was $9 million
for United, and $6,950,000 for 21° Century. Now, if you, and this is the operating
costs, and we have the back up on all of it.

Unidentified: First year.

Alan Braun: First year, initial operating costs.

Commissioner Mourdock: Do you, when you say first year, it just kind of hangs in the
air, Ed. What are you telling us? What’s the multiple years? Is it going to change
dramatically? I mean, comparing United/DLZ to yours, is there going to be a marked
difference in later years?

Alan Braun: Well, we—

Ed Hafer: (Inaudible. Not at mike.) | can go ahead and show you that, but, obviously
if you—

Madelyn Grayson: Mr. Hafer, can you come to the mike, please?

Ed Hafer: We didn’t show you that, but, obviously, if you expand each of them by
say, 3%, the gap is going to widen.

Alan Braun: This is the combined, initial operating cost, first year, and lease
payment. Under scenario number one, United is $7,500,000. 21°' Century for 25
years is $6,860,000, for 20 years is $7,125,000, and for 15 years is $7,604,000.
Now, you’ve got to realize that this is only for 15 years. Going on down the line,
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scenario number four, United is $13,824,000. 21° Century, 25 years is $11,489,000.
A 20 yearis $11,911,000, and 15 years is $12,677,000.

Ed Hafer: One quick point on operating costs. These are total operating costs.
When it comes to like staff, | mean, these are existing and new. So, these aren’tall
new costs.

Alan Braun: Now, if the total lease is paid to the term, this just shows you under each
scenario; scenario number one, if you paid to the end of the term, the total payments
for 25 years for United would be $71,350,000. For 21° Century, $71,556,000.

Under the 20 year scenario, it would be $62,536,000, and if they took a 15 year
lease, the total lease payments would be $54 million. Under, going all the way to
scenario number four, if you took United’s 25 year would be $119,725,000. 21%
Century’s, $113,522,000. 20 year, $99,270,000, and if it was a 15 year lease it
would be $85,932,000. That'’s total lease paid to the end of the term, with different
terms, of course. So, if you combine the operating costs with a 3% inflation, and
the lease paying to the end of the term, this is for the lease amount paid to the end
of the term, and operating costs to the end of the term with 3% inflation. Under
scenario number one, United’s 25 year would be $240 million. 21% Century, 25 year
would be $217 million. 21° Century’s, 20 year would be $169 million, and 21°
Century’s 15 years would be $128 million. If you went to the end, to scenario
number four, it would be $449 million for United, 25 years. 21% Century $366 million.
20 year, $285 million, and 21* Century, 15 years would be $215 million. This is the
combined operating costs with 3% inflation and lease paid to the end of the term,
whatever the term may be, 15, 20,25 years. | think, we feel like 21 Century
matches up extremely well under every scenario. We have a project that is
expandable. We can meet the needs in many ways. You know, we’ve shown, |
think, that Tom has talked to the Sheriff and gone over staffing, etcetera. We’'ve
gone through different scenarios with them. We think we can make a project that
will work for the county. We don’t have a schedule for construction. Not knowing
the site, not knowing when you are going to approve it, it's pretty difficult to do. | will
say that | don’t think, | think it’s, very few people would argue with the fact that
design-build is a faster method of delivery. Thank you.

President Fanello: Thanks, Alan. Does anybody have any questions?

Philip Hayes: Madam President, on the issue of the cover letter, along with the legal
opinion, if | could have your permission, | would just like to address those. It's not
in the way of a question, but more in the way of a deconstruction of that
presumption.

Commissioner Mourdock: Which letter, Phil?

Philip Hayes: First of all, there’s a pass out dated February the 11"
Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

Philip Hayes: —addressed to the Commissioners, then a paragraph indicating that
there is an attached opinion from Counsel Bingham Mc Hale, Sue Beesley,

addressing Mr. Shively. Do you have reference to those?

Commissioner Mourdock: Yes.
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Philip Hayes: Okay. There are no problems with regard to the conclusions, except
for one thing, and thatis thatit’s not your intention, anybody can answer on the team
here, it's not your intention to operate this jail, is that correct? | think you answered
that positively last week, that you did not intend to operate this jail.

Unidentified: No.

Philip Hayes: Okay. So, the statutory reference that’s made by our Title V, Chapter
23, having to do with BOT'’s, as to build, operate and transfer facilities, means that
those would be operated. So, those are not facilities which are within the range of
what you are presenting. You don’t intend to operate this. We know that there are
operators who do build, operate and transfer on leases. Those include Wackenhut
is one, Corrections Corporation of America is another, just by way of example. So,
our opinion made reference to Title V. We know that we can pass a resolution. The
Commission has been so advised, and we could at that point go out for either RFP’s
or bid those types of facilities. So, the legality of the proposition being brought to us,
we can address, since you are not going to operate it, we can address it in the
context of what kind of a situation is being presented. What’s being presented is a
build lease/back, and that is what we will find in the last session that we had, is not
authorized under our Indiana law. Notin the way that you propose to have this body
do it. We would have to advise this body, as far as it’'s relationship with the State
Board of Tax Commissioners, in order to impose a levy to pay for these items, that
this matter would have to be first spec’d, and at that point, bids be taken, because
the Indiana bidding laws come into effect. We could not, on a straight away one-to-
one basis, simply make a selection and do a negotiation in order to build a facility
based on these characteristics that you’ve given to us both legally and financially.
That doesn’t comment on the merits of the proposal or anything else. It comments,
and it's an effort to try to rectify what seems to be being ignored, and that’s the legal
power of this body to act. It’s a very simple process. The simple process is, that if
it wishes to do so, to simply lease a facility and have it built, then it can do the
specifications for that, and it can then bid that proposition out. Once done, then all
comers are welcome, under those kinds of propositions, but very simply stated that’s
the issue. | don’t think we disagree one bit with what Ms. Beesley has written. Ifit’s
being submitted for the proposition, that this is just fine. The one thing that Ms.
Beesley needs to assume, which she has notassumed, is that you are notintending,
by your proposition, to operate this jail as a private jail. That’s the problem with it.

Commissioner Mourdock: | had a question—

Philip Hayes: Other than that, then you’re fine.

Les Shively: May | respond to that, please?

Commissioner Mourdock: Let me be sure | understand what you’re responding to.
Les Shively: Okay.

Commissioner Mourdock: Your point, Phil, is simply that the way they’ve presented
this, if they are not going to operate it, the only way we could go forward would be

to take this similar type package, putit on the marketplace and let others bid it under
similar conditions? Is that what you're saying.
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Philip Hayes: Simply, very simply speaking, yes. In a rudimentary manner. It's a
lot more complex than that, but, yes, that could be done.

President Fanello: Mr. Shively.

Les Shively: Madam President, members of the County Commission, my name is
Les Shively. At the last meeting that we were here on January 25", your Counsel
opined that there was an Attorney General’s opinion that said that the sale and
lease/back and BOT statutory provisions were a circumvention of the law, and that
we could not legally, this county could not legally proceed in the fashion which 21
Century Corporation has proposed. | posed this question to Sue Beesley. The
reason we chose Sue Beesley of Bingham Mc Hale is because Ms. Beesley’s firm
is not involved, presently, with any type of bond counsel functions with the City of
Evansville, Vanderburgh County, is totally independent. Mr. Hayes and members
of the Commission, the specific question | posed to her, which is summarized in the
very first paragraph of the letter is the question | posed to her;

Can a County enter into an arrangement for a new jail complex
whereby a private company constructs at the private company’s
expense, a new jail complex, lease the said facility to the County on a
sale and lease/back arrangement, where at the end of the lease term
the facility belongs to the County upon payment of a minimal fee?

Ms. Beesley’s response is;
The answer to this question is absolutely, yes.

Furthermore, | made it very clear to Ms. Beesley that my clients are doing a sale and
lease/back. Which is understood in the parlance of the law and in the financial
community, to be a financing vehicle only. It has nothing to do with operations, and
made it very clear to her that my client does not intend to operate this jail facility,
except provide a methodology to construct this facility on this term, and finance the
construction of the facility and sale and lease/back. She has rendered the opinion
that you can do that. It's not necessarily, necessary under the BOT statute, Title V,
to also operate it. So, | respectfully disagree. | would also like to submit to the
Commissioners, Ms. Beesley’s letter, which you already have. A copy of the sale
and lease/back statute, a copy of the, with all the official annotations, a copy of the
build and transfer statute, with all the annotations, including Supreme Court
opinions, Court of Appeals decisions, Attorney General opinions, none of which have
found these statutes, which were duly enacted, and most recently updated by our
General Assembly in the last session, to be improper. Moreover, I've included a
summary of private agreements, such as what has been presented to you this
evening, from the firm of Ice Miller Donadio & Ryan, which is a publication that is
widely distributed to County Attorneys, Municipal Attorneys, which gives guidelines
into interacting with and setting up these public-private arrangements. These
statutes, as the Ice Miller handout will show you, are given the greatest amount of
flexibility, and, again, what’s in that handout mirrors completely the opinion of Ms.
Beesley of Bingham Mc Hale.

Philip Hayes: Now, Les, let me explain to you how this is going to work. I’m going
to render an opinion that this body may go to the State Board of Tax Commissioners
with the proper propositions, which is a petition by taxpayers to place the financing
costs, which would be lease costs or what have you, on the tax rolls. There will, the
scheme of things, as of now is, that there will probably be a jail corporation, such as,
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which would be a building corporation, known as a leasing corporation put together.
The BOT statute under Title V is, by it’'s name, build, operate and transfer. We know
of know authority to on a one-on-one basis, ignore the public bidding laws, and
simply negotiate a build/lease without the operate. Without the “0” in the middle.
We don’t know of any legal authority to do that. We have checked this proposition
with our bond counsel, with Baker and Daniels, if we’re throwing names around, and
| quite frankly, I'll be glad to read your material, which is the first time, first
impression we’ve gotten of it tonight. I've talked to Mr. Hafer, | believe | talked to him
almost immediately after the meeting the other day, privately, and told him | thought
that what he had better do is review this. The review that I've seen from Ms. Beesley
is unsatisfactory. It leaves out the presumption of operate. That’'s the problem with
it. I have no intention of rendering an opinion to this body to go to the State Board
of Tax Commissioners without complying, without any intention of complying with the
public bidding laws, on any kind of a proposition like this. Because that’s simply not
authorized under Indiana law. Not authorized. We have build, operate, transfer
facilities that have been referred to, there’s a jail in Indianapolis, the Sheriff has
talked about it. | don’t know the full details of it, but be glad to look at it, but the
facility is operated in the proposition. That's not what we have here, and that’s not
what the, either the fiscal body or the executive body has opted to do. So, with all
due respect to you and your authority, | think that the presumption and the premise
that is being offered here is leaving out that very meaningful operate. In my final
discussion of that, may | say that there is an example being used here in Ms.
Beesley’s letter, which has to do with a public facility, | believe, a water works facility,
am | right?

Les Shively: No, you’re not correct.
Philip Hayes: Which one is it that?

Les Shively: Mr. Hayes, she simply states in her first paragraph her experience on
various—

Philip Hayes: Right.
Les Shively: —she’s not comparing it to water (Inaudible. Talking over each other.)

Philip Hayes: The point being that the comparison is apt, because of the fact that
those are operating facilities as well. That’s part of the privatization scheme. The
fundamental premise of privatization is that the entire thing is shipped out. Thatis
what the courts, and that is what the Indiana Attorney General have cited to, and
have validated, is privatization. This is not a privatization situation.

President Fanello: Okay, with that said in mind, we need to keep moving here, so—
Les Shively: May | summarize to say this—
President Fanello: —I don’t want to get into a legal debate.

Les Shively: —I know I’'m not under oath here this evening, but | am an attorney,
licensed to practice law in this state, and | have an ethical obligation. | have told you
exactly what | told Ms. Beesley, and | told her, and made it very clear, there is no
operations involved. She has given her opinion, absolutely, yes. It's not a Les
Shively opinion. I've gone out and sought competent people throughout the, from
the state, who have no dog in this fight. You've seen a presentation this evening that
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shows substantial savings to the taxpayers of the state of Indiana. | would strongly
urge this Commission on the behalf of the people of Vanderburgh County, to find out
where these differences are. We’ve shared with you our written material. We've
shared with you our research, simply because we are not trying to play gotcha.

We’'re laying it all out here. We’ve been very open. These folks have been very
open with their numbers. We’ve been very open with the legal research that has
been done. Let’s look into it. Let’s find out why Mr. Hayes has a different opinion.

I’'ve seen nothing in writing from Baker and Daniels, but you have in front of you two
renowned law firms that have offered their opinion. | think the folks of Vanderburgh
County would certainly like to see why we have this difference of opinion. See if we
can’t come to some resolution, because it seems to me a wonderful opportunity, and
an innovative way. Vanderburgh County could be a leader here in moving forward
with this project.

President Fanello: Thank you, Mr. Shively. Does anyone have anything else to
offer?

Commissioner Mosby: | just want to ask a couple questions here, and it's under
operating costs, detailed operating costs. |look at your comparison between United
and 21° Century. Under operating supplies, it's $130,000 for United, and I'm just
going with the first scenario, because it get worse on back through, $130,000 in
supplies for United, but only $33,000 for 21° Century. Now, | guess, I'm got to how
you can buy these supplies for so much cheaper, but I’'m going to go on for a minute,
because down under Building Maintenance, or let’s just go to the last one, Utilities.
You’'ve got $440,000 under United and $240,000 under 21° Century. It's hard for me
to believe Vectren is selling you stuff cheaper than they will sell us.

Ed Hafer: Well-
Commissioner Mosby: | mean, | just don’t make these comparisons.

Ed Hafer: —we don’t have the back up on United’s costs, other than one sheet that
I’'ve identified. In the case of Utilities it said, gas, electric, sewer and water.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay, Trash Removal, $52,000 compared to $20,000. |
mean, these are the comparisons I’'m making here.

Ed Hafer: Because that’s their monthly fee. You know, all we’ve done is to check
out what the monthly fees for a facility like this are. You know, | can certainly give
you justification for our numbers. This works out to about $1.80 a square foot in the
case of Utilities. Certainly an acceptable number in, with today’s utility rates or
whatever. United’s costs are $3.12, | believe, a square foot. | don’t know where
they got their numbers, David.

Commissioner Mosby: And | don’t either, and that’s why | would have thought that
would have crossed your mind too to think that utilities were $200,000 different. |
mean, | realize that you built this in and you show this big gap, and as you added
your 3% to it and took it out over 20 years, and we come up with these astronomical
numbers, but I'm still going back to two and three weeks ago, let’s play apples to
apples. Vectren is not selling you utilities or gas and electric cheaper than they are
selling me.

Commissioner Mourdock: But, David, let me throw—
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Commissioner Mosby: And Trash Removal, | don’t believe, you know, BFI’s going
to remove it at a cost same to you as same to me.

Commissioner Mourdock: | see two points here, David. Number one, whatever the
energy cost would be from Vectren, you’re right, on a per kilowatt basis they are
probably going to be buying it the same. These folks were working off whatever
design they had, and perhaps they do have cheaper energy costs in their design, but
even if they don’t, the thing I think we have to keep in mind here is the numbers they
are providing...well, that’s not true either, because you are not going to operate,
you’re not contracting for those operating costs.

Commissioner Mosby: Right.
Commissioner Mourdock: | take that back.

Commissioner Mosby: And, you know, Supplies $130,000 and $30,000, | mean, |
can’t imagine, you know, if you are going to supply a building—

Ed Hafer: All we did on the breakdown there, when you get to Supplies and Building
Maintenance, some of these, were to take historical numbers from Jacobs in terms
of what it would cost to operate a jail, and as best we could divide those up
according to some pretty elementary information we had as to what they had
included in each of theirs.

Commissioner Mosby: Right.
Ed Hafer: So—
Commissioner Mosby: | just find it...I'll have to take time to go through that, but—

Ed Hafer: One last comment | wanted to make relative to the Building Costs. Last
time we told you that a downtown, or a high rise project would cost 15% more. That
is true. We still stand by that. On the other hand, these costs would be good, as |
understand the United proposal is, if we were to build a low rise type facility on the
existing Building Authority property.

Commissioner Mosby: So, are these costs taking into consideration the back 407
Or are these costs—

Ed Hafer: I'm really answering in relationship to Mr. Mourdock’s costs, or comment
relative to transportation. These costs would be applicable for the same type of
building on a downtown site.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay.

Commissioner Mourdock: One other question on general operating costs. You said
that you had met with the Sheriff, Brad, did you have anything that you wanted to
add here? | want to give you the opportunity since you’d looked at the operating.
| mean, is there anything that they did include or didn’t include that you have
comments about regarding what their staffing looked like?

Brad Ellsworth: (Inaudible. Not at mike.) spent four or five hours going (Inaudible)

Madelyn Grayson: May we make a tape change please?
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(Tape changed)

Brad Ellsworth: Sheriff Brad Ellsworth: We spent about four to five hours together
comparing numbers and pod sizes and (Inaudible) and tried to go down at least in
staffing, do that apples to apples. | am pleased and comfortable with the numbers
that both, that we programmed with United and with Mr. Hafer’s group.

Commissioner Mourdock: From the total design that you had with United versus this
and | don’t have all, the whole set of United’s numbers in front of me. Is there more
manpower in this one, less manpower? | am talking this meaning their general
building plan.

Brad Ellsworth: In the early programs it’s actually very similar in early program what
we talked about what 100? What were the pods, Eric? 100 something with two
officers in each pod? With the proposal from the Hafer Jacobs team it would be a
64 man pod, but with one person staffing that pod. So, it was really close, what we
came up with on the numbers of staff. There were some differences in, | know in
United, and going off of the early PMSI, we had cooks involved, that was going off
when PMSI and the county actually employed three cooks. Those have since then
been eliminated. So, they don’t figure in anymore. We would anticipate another
contract with another food vendor. So, there is going to be some differences in
there, but what we saw was what the Hafer team, we talked about closing down
some pods at night with roamers and letting roamers (Inaudible), but we haven’t got
to that point with the other team here, so it’s all still in the works.

President Fanello: If there are no other questions, we’ll move onto the next
presentation. Thank you, Mr. Hafer, Mr. Braun and Mr. English and Mr. Shively.

J.T. Kinkle Financial Jail Proposal

J.T. Kinkle: Thank you. | am J.T. Kinkle, with Jack R. Kinkle and Son Architects. |
would like to open this discussion just as | did on the 29". This proposal is project
specific. Itis notin competition with the previously heard proposal. ltis, just stands
on it's own merits. It's completely different. It is tied to a site, and it's based upon
placing two round towers in the Judge’s parking lot. The towers lower floors and
basement would be for administrative space and support functions, with the upper
floors providing space for 24 and 48 inmates per floor. These floors that | am talking
about are both flexible and modular with respect to great segregation of inmate
classifications. So, in order to present as close as possible to apples to apples as
was requested, the number of beds has changed since the 29™. | used 432 and this
is as close as | could come to 448 given the perimeters of our design. That floor
layout which you have seen is based around a central , indirect supervision station
allowing 360 degree visibility for the pod officer and a minimum walking difference
for the pod officer, and a minimum walking distance for the floor officer, to safely
provide interaction with each cell. With the spin of the chair the pod officer can
indirectly see each cell, and have full control over each cell’s functions and
environment. In other words, the pod officer seated in the central core, controls all
doors, water valves, lighting, heating and cooling devices, etc. So, this is, basically,
where we stopped on the 29" . So, | apologize that my graphs are not a little bigger,
| would have like to have done power point, but | had a big couple of weeks. As you
can see, the first column is your current proposal. The second column is our
annexed addition, done in the manner of a public-private partnership which is build
to suit, or turn key. The project costs, construction costs with the fixtures, furniture,
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equipment and a contingency of 5% is $22,925,210, estimated of course against
$26,055,000 for a great number of beds, 448 verses 432. It is as close as | could
come for apples to apples. So, the soft costs that we have on the public-private
partnership are $4.5 million verses $4.8. Again, very similar, very close. The total
costs, $30.8 verses $27.5. Now going over the information that you gave me, | have
to look at, you considered a $35 million bond is what you were going to use. So,
after adding the project costs, soft costs, construction interest, underwriters discount,
etc., you require $35,853,763. Our project would require $29, 468,205. Just using
the numbers and you have to look at what is the annual payment based on the bond
issue. Crowe Chizek gave us the number of $2.854 million. Ours using the true
uses cost is $2,038,761, giving a construction cost per bed of $68,213, verses a
public bond at $80,031. So the daily cost of our bed is $12.93 cents verses $17.45,
a substantial savings. Now, when you look at that again, annual cost, we are looking
at $815,239 and that is our annual costs savings. So, by going with our public-
private partnership, you save $815,239 a year in construction costs. Over the life,
apples to apples, $20,380,963. Now, feel free to stop me at any time if you have
questions over each sheet. So, | can move on with those numbers?

Commissioner Mosby: Okay.

J.T. Kinkle: As | said, the soft costs are essentially the same even though each item
is different, even though a number of the items are substantially different. In the
end, they net out to be almost the same. Ours being $4.5, almost $4.6. Theirs
being $4.8. A lot of it has to do with the issuance costs of a public-private
partnership bond. You invited me here today to discuss total operational costs.

Using the same format that | was given in the documents you sent to me, our design
is more staff intensive. | think, | believe, the number of positions that the current
proposal had was 86 positions, after taking in shifts and shift relief factors. Whereas
we have 92.1. | am guessing that is going to end up being 93. So, on the other
hand, this design distinguishes itself from the 112 bed pod scenario that was
presented. In the fact sheets that you gave me, the County Commission, that you
recently sent me, it shows 112 inmates. | extrapolated. 112 inmates in a day room
with 2 correction officers. Now this is my first exposure to those numbers and | want
to make sure that | understood this correctly. You will have two detention officers
without firearms, without weapons, in a day room with 112 inmates and you only
have 20 personnel, including cooks, maximum, working at the jail at any given time.
Is that the correct understanding?

Brad Ellsworth: (Inaudible. Not at mike.)

J.T. Kinkle: Yes.

Commissioner Mourdock: You need to come to the mike, Brad.

J.T. Kinkle: | wanted to confirm what it was.

Brad Ellsworth: One of the things, Sheriff Brad Ellsworth, was 120 person pod, two
correction officers working in that pod, cooks, you know that was back when PMSI
was presuming that we had cooks in the jail. | don’t want that to be an option
anymore with a new facility.

J.T. Kinkle: Well, they were given in the current—

Brad Ellsworth: | understand that.
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J.T. Kinkle: So, | just want to understand that is truly the proposal at hand, 112
people in a day room with two unarmed correction officers and that’s the state of the
art.

President Fanello: It's called direct supervision.

J.T. Kinkle: Itis all direct supervision and | tell you what you couldn’t pay me $28,000
to directly supervise 112 inmates.

President Fanello: It must be working very successful across the United States.

J.T. Kinkle: Well, okay that’s great, but now | hope that you will look at ours and
you’ll decide to think further about the risk associated and the liability with that
design, and what you can have, what you can avoid with our design. Our design cell
flexibility is due to the inherent isolation of each wedge. No cell is able to see or
directly hear another cell. This gives the administration daily flexibility to arrange
inmates from floor to floor, as well as from cell to cell to accommodate that days
population. Now some of the inmates that you have to manage would be male,
female, violent, non-violent, felony, misdemeanor, sex offenders, inmates with
communicable diseases, physical violent, handicapped, substance abuse, mentally
disturbed, pre-trial, post-trial. It goes on and one, and permutations, combinations
make this exponentially grow. So, if you have a pod with 112 people and you only
have four pods, | am trying to understand how you can ever manage that corrections
population. | am sure | won’t get an answer.

President Fanello: | am not a correction expert, so | can’t give you an answer.

J.T. Kinkle: Well, | am sure that | won’t get an answer. So, what we are giving is
floor to floor flexibility as well as cell to cell. Now, the inmate classifications can be
positioned with our design with nearly an infinite number of scenarios, to best fit the
staff needs and the changing inmate population, which is probably going to change
daily. It's not limited to four pods of 112 inmate populous or any other number. The
biggest number you have with ours is six inmates. Six, that leads me to my next...

as | did say, our costs are more expensive on the operation staff, we are $2.5,
$2.578 and the other number is , well | got lost in my own notes, lets see, | don’t
have it here in front of me, but you’ll see that all of these numbers on the operation
sheet done in the very same format as United/DLZ are almost all the same. Most
are based on bed costs. Actually some of ours, | decided to make higher, just
because they, | didn’t think it covered it. So now when you start looking at, well the
annual payment that you are talking about plus the annual operating expense. Our
annual operating expense is $4,661,853, estimated the same as everyone else’s,
verses $4,645,000. Giving you a total annual expense of the new jail operated at
$7,499,000, verses our $6,700,614. Giving you a daily operational cost of our
proposal $29.57 or United/DLZ at $28.41. So, they win. Now you have to look at
what's the daily costs based on the total annual expense of the jail including
everything. What's it cost to finance this thing? What's your yearly payment?

What's your operating payment? To operate what they have, using the numbers
provided by you, $45.86 is a daily cost per bed. Our costis $42.50. So, an annual
costsavings of nearly $800,000, over 25 years, apples to apples, that's $19,959,643.
Now, everything that | have given you with my operating cost is based on not using
the back 40. | think it has been shown that it is not feasible, but if you chose to we
can work those out and give a different, it would cause a completely different
scenario. Now, with any off-site options, the following additional costs must be
considered. These costs are associated with the project dependent on acquiring
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new land. Should the back 40 still be under consideration you would have to look
at that expense. These costs have been presented to the Commission previously,
but are considered outside the scope of this discussion. So, buying the new land,
30 acres, hopefully you would do as well as $75,000 per acre and thatis $2,025,000.
Now, you have the cost of both the financial and the lost time cost to find the land
suitable to the project, and demonstrate to the neighbors that it is truly necessary to
place the jail in their neighborhood. | am going to guess that you can do that for
dollar figures along, 500 legal hours at, | am probably low, $125 an hour or
$625,000. Now, you find a site, maybe it is a perfectly green site, and this number
should be taken out of consideration if you can find a perfectly green site in
Vanderburgh County. You would have building demolition or at least environmental
assessment and environmental clean up. | am throwing a round figure of a million
dollars, probably low. Now, you have to develop that site. You putin new sewers,
roads, environmental clean up, $3 million or $100,000 per acre. That is a cost of
$6,875,000. Now, | had to make some assumptions, as | said, | had a busy week
last week and was unable to schedule with either the Sheriff or anyone else to
understand what the usage of the existing jail will be. Now, | have to imagine that
if you pay, | think its $16 a square foot annually for that space?

President Fanello: $16.83.

J.T. Kinkle: $16.83 so my numbers are based on $16, at $800,000 you would want
to do something with that property. The county is going to pay $800,000 no matter
what. So, if you use it ,and correct it, and make it usable for a corrections base
usage, you probably need to put $3 million into the project for that. There was some
discussion presented to me that there is a thought of using a portion of the existing
jail to hold weekly offenders or people that are going to trial that week to get rid of
all of the travel costs and all of the expensive operation component there. So, that
would be 45,000 square feet. Trying to turn the existing jail into a non-corrections,
offices, refitting with office HVAC, lighting, etc., | think would cost about $120 per
square foot or $5.4 million. Now, to take the 5,000 square feet you need from the
existing jail to make it temporary holding for court appearances weekly is probably
going to cost you somewhere more in the neighborhood of $400 a square foot,
because it is to incredibly intensive in small area. That would cost $2 million for a
total there of non corrections based usage of $7.4 million. Now, it would also be
important to get into, well what’s that little jail going to cost you? At a minimum |
think you would need two officers, a matron as required, three shifts per day with the
same shift factor that was given by PMSI at $792 a day. Daily costs for the meals
$36 based on ten inmates. The daily cost of transporting the meals because you
need one hot meal, you have to do at least once a day, that’'s going to cost a
minimum of $22 and | actually don’t know any possible way that it could be done in
two hours but | will give you the benefit of the doubt. Now, here instead of using a
figure that gets into the operation utility cost of the actual building, | would assume
that you would stick with the same building rent of $16 per square foot, $219 for a
total of $1,069. Not to mention that now you have to dictate to the Judges that they
will be required to schedule court appearances one week in advance. So, now you
take all of the numbers and you start putting them together. So, we have kind of
gone sheet by sheet here of disagreeing with me. First sheet, no disagreements, |
didn’t hear any on the second, this is the third and probably the most controversial.
You put that late end expense cost adjustments in, the land, the renovation, the
facility operation costs and now you are looking at an additional $1.5 million to the
current proposal. It would cost $207,000 a year that you would have to add to my
proposal. So, a daily cost per bed based on that, $9.03 verses $1.32 and that brings
us to daily cost per bed on annual payment and including adjustments itemized
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above, $54.89 per bed for your current proposal. These numbers that | have been
given verses $43.81, giving you a total annual operating expense of eight basically
nine, $8,975,229 for the current proposal, $6,908,000 for our proposal. The annual
cost savings based upon those numbers, obviously with the current proposal, that
is not applicable, butitwould be a $2,067,059 savings with ours, for over the 25 year
and, again, this is apples to apples, $51,676,481 and | meant to take the cents off
but | forgot to do that. So, hopefully, what | set out to do with this proposal was tell
you that there is another option out there, and to show it to you. Now, as the
questions led last time about the financing, there is no doubt that our proposal does
require a referendum and it would be publicly bid, but | think the taxpayers would be
excited to vote for the referendum, or at least be given that option. So, thank you for
your time and if you have any questions.

Commissioner Mourdock: The public bidding on what you are proposing to do would
be basically bidding the construction and what you’'ve otherwise designed for the
construction and the lease package?

J.T. Kinkle: Correct, correct. Butitis a public-private partnership, and it’s in the build
to suit area.

Commissioner Mourdock: And Phil, | presume you’d have those same questions that
you were talking to Mr. Shively about?

Phil Hayes: Yes, the set up with regard to bill lease/backs in Indiana.

J.T. Kinkle: This is not a build lease/back. Itis a public-private partnership. It's in
a different spot.

Phil Hayes: | appreciate what you are saying in that it's not a build lease/back. |
don’t know what a public private-partnership bond is, but we can talk about that and
you can instruct. The point being the Commissioners question is, yes. What, if |
understand correctly what the Kinkle proposal is, basically, that they would take the
place of the architect selected and contracted now, they would spec this sort of
construction out and you use the term, bond, so | assume that it's some type of—
J.T. Kinkle: Tax free financing.

Phil Hayes: --which would require, again the procedures with the State Board of Tax
Commissioners. The authority to get the levy, the petitioning and you don’t mean
a plebiscite-

J.T. Kinkle: | don’t know what that word means.

Phil Hayes: -well, you said that it would require an election, did you say?

J.T. Kinkle: A referendum. So, | guess November is our next referendum.

Phil Hayes: Well, we don’t referendum in this state and what-

J.T. Kinkle: You don’t?

Phil Hayes: -what you would have is a petition process, and then you would have an
opportunity for remonstrance under the bonding laws, is what you are talking about.



Page 20 of 38 Vanderburgh County
Board of Commissioners
February 11, 2002

J.T. Kinkle: Okay.

Phil Hayes: However it is done, the point is that what you are talking about is going
ahead and trying to do this, and, again, it's the authority granted by the legislature
that we can’t overcome, basically, and that is that on the private end of the build
lease/backs we don’t have that luxury of negotiating that out.

J.T. Kinkle: Well, given a letter of intent, | would be happy to bring our consultantinto
the picture, who has instructed us on how this bonding would occur.

Phil Hayes: You are leaving me hanging, who’s your consultant?
J.T. Kinkle: | am leaving you hanging?

Phil Hayes: Sure, not Mr. Shively’s authority is it?

J.T. Kinkle: No, no.

President Fanello: Okay, if there are no other questions?

Les Shively: (Inaudible),l address the tax levy?

President Fanello: Very quickly.

Les Shively: It won’t take long. | was trying to respond to what | thought was Mr.
Hayes comments a while ago, and | was remiss in not hitting the obvious comment
that Mr. Hayes made, that going to the State Board of Tax Commissioners for levy.
Itisn’t necessary with our proposal, because the financing is provided privately. The
county will not have to borrow any money, and you will not have to go to the State
Board of Tax Commissioners for a levy authority. Pure and simple. | think thatis a
distinction that is real that this Commission needs to take into consideration.

President Fanello: Thank you, Mr. Shively.

J.T. Kinkle: We also looked at that same proposal and decided that we would rather
show you what we showed you. Because of the obvious you can do so much better
with tax free bonds. | am sure that the county would be more than happy to vote this
in. | hope that the county would be more than happy.

President Fanello: Thank you, Mr. Kinkle.
J.T. Kinkle: Thank you.
President Fanello: Thank you for your time.

Commissioner Mourdock: Just kind of summary comment from both of these
presentations. | think, again, thatthey have raised a lot of very good points, because
a couple of weeks in a row here where we have had some good discussions about
the jail project. Not being the attorney and realizing that the reason we have Judges
is because we also have attorneys with different opinions. | would like to see us try
to proceed in some way that we can answer that question and, perhaps Mr. Shively’s
last point about not having to be a publicly bonded issue, maybe that makes it a little
simpler, but when | look at the last pages of both of these presentations, not that |
need to be reminded of it, but these are huge dollars that we are talking about. |
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think we would be less than diligent if we didn’t take these under advisement and
plan on having some additional discussion at some point down the road again, as
far as what the options might be. If for no other reason, David’s questions about
comparing the 21%' Century one, their specific operating costs verses the ones we’d
received previously. | would certainly, at this pointin a project like this, there can be
a lot of justifiable reasons for operating costs, but when you start to look at the total
cost to the county over the 25 years, again, it's big numbers.

President Fanello: And how long are you wanting to take these under advisement?
Commissioner Mosby: One week.

President Fanello: Well, we don’t have a meeting next week.

Commissioner Mosby: Two weeks.

President Fanello: That would give us two weeks.

Commissioner Mourdock: We can come back and have some discussion in two
weeks is fine.

President Fanello: | would like for us to wrap it up on that night.

Commissioner Mourdock: Well, we can certainly bring anything up for a vote at
anytime. | just will make the point again. We are looking at big numbers and just
doing some quick math on the numbers we were presented on each one of these
presentations, each one of them, just doing the total beds times the yearly cost and
the number, the term of the agreements, each one of them is well over the cost for
the federal prisoners and the state prisoners that we have talked about and that just
raises a lot of alarm bells in my mind, because we’ve had that discussion from
different people at different times, well, you know we can offset this cost by filling the
jails vacant prisoners or state prisoners and the cheapest of any of these is at least
six bucks a bed per night over the cost that we would otherwise have coming in as
revenue. So, | mean, | think those kinds of questions out there may be hard to
resolve in a week or two, but, again, | think we are asking the right questions.

President Fanello: Any comments? Okay.
J.T. Kinkle: | am not sure that | understand what is happening in two weeks.

President Fanello: Well, we need to come back, we need to take this under
advisement and | guess we will have-

J.T. Kinkle: So, will | be contacted?

President Fanello: - we will have discussion on the 25", | don’t know if it's necessary
foryou to be here that night. I'm not exactly sure what kind of discussion will happen
that night, so-

J.T. Kinkle: Thank you for your time.

Madelyn Grayson: May we make a tape change, please?

(Tape changed)
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Madelyn Grayson: Thank you.

Travel Ordinance: Per Diem

President Fanello: Next item on the agenda was the Travel Ordinance, and | would
like to defer that until our next meeting, if that is possible.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll move deferring the Travel Ordinance.
President Fanello: He made a motion.
Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: Okay.

Phil Lawrence: Permission to Advertise APA014-2002: Traffic Paint
and APA015-2002: Traffic Signs

President Fanello: Phil Lawrence.

Phil Lawrence: Phil Lawrence, Purchasing Department. | need permission to
advertise the—

President Fanello: Judge Heldt and Judge Bowers?

Unidentified: Yes?

President Fanello: Can you stick around for a few minutes?
Unidentified: So close.

President Fanello: So close, yet so far. Oh, did Judge Lloyd leave?
Unidentified: Yes, she did.

President Fanello: Somebody go track her down. Thank you for hanging around a
few minutes.

Phil Lawrence: Okay. Permission to advertise the annual price agreements for the
traffic signs, APA014, and APA015 traffic signs.

Commissioner Mourdock: So moved.
Commissioner Mosby: Second.
President Fanello: So ordered.

Philip Hayes: You sure you don’t want to enter into a public-private partnership? To
just negotiate that and forget the bidding?

Discussion on Letter from Judge Heldt:
Community Corrections
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President Fanello: Since the Judges are in here right now, | would like to go ahead,
it's not on the agenda, but have a discussion about the letter that we received on
Friday. I’'m sure everyone had an opportunity to read it. That was from Judge Heldt.

Commissioner Mourdock: No, | haven’t seen the Judge’s letter.
President Fanello: Was it—

Commissioner Mourdock: | was out of town.

President Fanello: | think | have a copy of it here.
Commissioner Mourdock: State the (Inaudible).

President Fanello: Okay. | think Judge Heldt might, could you come up and give us
a little synopsis of the letter, since Commissioner Mourdock didn’t have a chance to
read it over the weekend?

Carl Heldt: Frankly the purpose, the reason for the letter was that | had read in the
paper some comments from, | think, Sheriff Ellsworth that, | think, to the effect that
perhaps Community Corrections needed to be, or not needed to be, maybe, have
to be phased out, and that the functions that take place at the Community
Corrections Complex be diverted either to the Department of Corrections or to
Probation, or Electronic House Arrest. The purpose of this letter is to say that it's
much more complicated than that, and that it's my belief that through a substantial
reduction or elimination of community corrections would put an additional growth
spurt upon the county jail, and to point out that work release began in the county jail,
35 years ago. Over a period of time, we got to the Corrections Complex. That one
of the reasons that Vanderburgh County has been able to survive with the jail as
small as it is, is because you’ve got 205 people out at the Corrections Complex,
many of whom if they weren’t there, would be in the county jail. The purpose of it
was to tell Sheriff Ellsworth, and with copies to everyone | sent copies to, thatin my
opinion, it would be a real tragedy and a disaster for the county if community
corrections were closed, if that’s being considered. To say nothing at all of the other
programs that come out of community corrections, such as the drug and education
programs, community service programs, day reporting, home detention. Home
detention operates out of the Corrections Complex, but most specifically that if the
work release function were closed down out there, that | believe that much of that
business would be moved to the county jail. Ratherthan building a 464 bed jail, you
need to be thinking about something much, much bigger. Which I’'m sure you don’t
want to do. So, | think that money spent on the Community Corrections Complex,
is money well spent, because it is going to generate savings with your county jail,
which is much more expensive. That was the purpose of the letter. Just to put
everyone on notice that those problems weren’tjust going to go away. They weren't,
we can’t ship it all to Department of Corrections. Itjustwon’t happen. That was the
purpose of it.

President Fanello: Does anybody have any comments that they would like to make?
Judge Bowers would you like to add anything to?

Scott Bowers: Only, by the microphone, | know. The Superior Court Judges are
going to meet on Wednesday and just discuss Community Corrections policy and
work release policy, in particular, and see what kind of a configuration would make
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sense in view of the county’s fiscal restraints and other demands. So, | don’t really
have anything that | could add to the discussion, at this point, other than that we are
going to be talking, and , hopefully, we will have some ideas that will contribute to
the discussion.

President Fanello: I think that Commissioner Mosby brought up last week, you know,
the problems we’ve had with the building itself, and | don’t think anyone wants to
close community corrections. | think it's not a problem with community corrections,
it's a problem with the facility we are currently occupying. | had a conversation with
Joe Fistrovich who is the Director of Finance, | believe, at the DOC, if that’s, is that
correct, Brad?

Brad Ellsworth: Yes.

President Fanello: Okay. He is currently setting up a meeting with Mike Claytor from
Crowe Chizek, our financial advisor, to talk about possible financing of, or helping
us with some community corrections money. So, hopefully, we’ll know something
here in the next week or so. Did you want to add something, Sheriff?

Brad Ellsworth: Yes, please. Sheriff Brad Ellsworth. | would answer any questions
about community corrections and what’s going on right now, but before | do that, |
would like to clarify for the record, | don’t think the comments that Judge Heldt
referred to came from me, as far as the closing it down. I’m not saying that that
couldn’t happen with the, you know, stroke of a pen, but | don’t think the comments
in the paper came from me on community corrections being closed down. If you
have any questions about the current operation, | would be glad to answer those.

President Fanello: Do you have any questions? Okay. Do you have any questions,
Commissioner Mourdock? Okay. Just keep us informed of your meeting, and how
things turn out. Thank you.

Any Other Group or Individual Wishing to Address the Board

President Fanello: Okay, is there any other group or individual wishing to address
the board? Seeing none, | guess we move on to Department Head Reports, County
Engineer. Is he outside?

Commissioner Mourdock: Let’'s go with Ralph. Oh, Ralph went to get him, we can’t
go with Ralph. How about Phil?

President Fanello: Let’s, Steve Craig, why don’t you go ahead while we're...

Steve Craig: Burdette Park

Steve Craig: Steve Craig, Manager of Burdette. The only thing | have is a request
to surplus a park truck and to acquire surplus gradall and pickup truck from the
County Highway.

Commissioner Mosby: So moved.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.
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Tammy McKinney: Steve, the only problem with that is | haven’t got any
documentation that the Highway is surplusing that yet. So, once | get that from the
Highway to surplus it, then you can get it.

Steve Craig: Well, Ralph was supposed to be up here before me.

President Fanello: Okay.

Tammy McKinney: That's why there is nothing in the packets about that, because
| hadn’t gotten anything from the Highway.

Ralph Kissinger: My secretary was supposed to send that over this week. She didn’t
send that? | have surplused three vehicles, and he requested them. So, I'll get all
the paperwork involved with that.

Tammy McKinney: Okay, and then let’s just officially do it on the 25™. I'll have all
that in the packets.

Ralph Kissinger: Okay. I'm sorry, | thought she sent that. | was not in the office
today, so | didn’t know that she didn’t send it in before now.

Tammy McKinney: That's okay.

President Fanello: Alright, thanks, Steve.

John Stoll: County Engineer

President Fanello: John Stoll.

John Stoll: The only item I've got, is that | received a copy of that petition that was
submitted last week in regard to Schutte Road. After reviewing it, with your
approval, | would just like to go ahead and request that EUTS do some more
detailed traffic analysis to see what we really need to do out there. Granted there
are some problems as far as the ditches being right up on the edge of the road and
all that, but as far as trying to determine what kind of turn lane lengths and things like
that we might need, | think they would be more appropriate to look at it.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, I'll move we direct the County Engineer to work with
EUTS on Schutte Road.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.
President Fanello: So ordered.
John Stoll: That’s all | have this week.

President Fanello: Thank you, John.

Ralph Kissinger: County Highway

President Fanello: Ralph, County Highway.
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Ralph Kissinger: Ralph Kissinger, County Highway. You have my reports. | really
don’t have anything additional to add now that Steve let the cat out of the bag on the
surplus. | do apologize. | thought that my secretary understood that she was
supposed to send a copy of that with my packet, but | will getitin this week. It needs
to get to you for, to be declared surplus?

Tammy McKinney: Right.

Ralph Kissinger: Okay.

Tammy McKinney: Thanks.

Commissioner Mourdock: Thank you.

Phil Hayes: County Attorney

President Fanello: County Attorney.

Philip Hayes: The Auditor will require an endorsement on a $500 collection matter
that’'s been done on a case 82D06-0003-SC-2491. There is correspondence with
that matter, and I'll just simply submit that information for the record, and show the
crediting of a $500 payment on that judgement. Which is to the benefit of the
county. That’s the only matter we have | think—

Suzanne Crouch: Are you going to put that in the signature file?

Philip Hayes: —tonight. Yes, it would require an endorsement and deposit through
you.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll move that we add same to the signature file.
Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Philip Hayes: That’'s all we have this evening.

President Fanello: Soil and Water Reports, did you want to make a motion?
Commissioner Mourdock: Tammy.

Tammy McKinney: She always forgets me.

President Fanello: I’'m sorry.

Tammy McKinney: Superintendent of Buildings

President Fanello: Tammy.
Commissioner Mourdock: No respect.

President Fanello: No respect.
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Commissioner Mourdock: Rodney Dangerfield.

Tammy McKinney: Exactly. | do have a couple of things. | spoke with Shirley James
a couple of times in the past couple of weeks, and | think she came, or the
Greenway Passage came to ask for an appropriation. | think they kind of got their
wording mixed up, because in the minutes you gave them permission to go before
Council, but what they want to do is for us to go to Council for appropriation. So,
since appropriations are due on Friday, | just wanted your permission to put in an
appropriation for the Greenway Passageway.

Commissioner Mosby: I'll make a motion that you put it in for them.
Commissioner Mourdock: How much was it?

Tammy McKinney: | think $12,000? I'll go back and check the minutes. That was
the meeting | missed, so. | think it's $12,000.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll wish them luck and second.

Tammy McKinney: Okay.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Tammy McKinney: Next thing, | touched based today with Debbie Bennett. She is
the Grant Writer. Just to inform her that we are working on getting a 501-C3 status,
and so to start looking for grants for that. When | was talking to her, she was
sending me a letter telling me that she hasn’t found very much. So, but we are
touching base on that. So, that’s the status on that.

President Fanello: Is that it?

Tammy McKinney: That’s all.

President Fanello: Thank you.

SWCD & Ozone Officer Reports

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll move we include Soil and Water and the Ozone
Officer’s Report to the Consent, to the Department Head Reports.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Consent ltems

President Fanello: Consent Iltems?
Commissioner Mourdock: Move approval as filed.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.
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President Fanello: So ordered.’

Scheduled Meetings

President Fanello: Scheduled meetings.
Commissioner Mourdock: We do not meet next week.

President Fanello: We do not meet next week. When we come back we will have
Rezoning and Drainage in the same night.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay.

Old Business

President Fanello: Old Business.

Commissioner Mosby: | don’t know if it's Old Business or New Business. | was over
at the Old Courthouse today, and, hopefully, we are going to be in the process of
maybe leasing some space over there to the City Police Department and possibly
the Sheriff's Department and Police Department, down the road. Being over there,
we took some pictures, and what | would like to do is have Tammy write up a request
to go back to Council to see about getting some funding for the Courthouse roof.

We’'re going to get some more of these pictures made, but in these you’ll be able to
see some of the damage that is occurring day-by-day over there. Being over there
today, and the maintenance man showing me a couple of different areas, and the
plaster coming off the ceilings. The one picture is an actual hole in the ceiling.

That’s notreally a skylight. It's not supposed to be there. So, don’t misinterpret that
as a skylight, because it's not. It's just a flat hole in the roof. We’'re letting the
building deteriorate, really, to about nothing by just sitting around and doing nothing.
So, with some of the possible LIT money that the Council has, I’'m hoping that we
can find close to a million dollars to go ahead and try to put a roof on this building.

| would support that and then hope that the rest of the Commission would support
it, in sending this—

Suzanne Crouch: (Inaudible. Mike not on.)

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, because we’ve got it on disk. So, we can run more
copies. But, and, hopefully, these pictures, we’ll give a set to the Council so they
can see exactly what is happening. If they are interested in taking a tour of the
building, the maintenance man is over there at their leisure, and he will be glad to
walk them around and show them where the water is actually running into the light
fixtures. We have light fixtures that don’t work at this point. Light fixtures that we
can’t use, at this point, due to the water coming in. So, it's not a good situation.
There’s a lot of interest in the building, and if we don’t do something with it
immediately...l was talking with Chief Gulledge and Chief Fehrenbacher and all the
other to be’s over in the City Police Department today, and they love the building,
and | think it's time that we try to do something with it. If we can get the Council to
fund the roof on it, | would look at this Commission coming back and possibly

'Consent Items listed on Page 38.
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funding some of the window renovation that needs to be done to do as the architect
said in their findings over there. That we need to seal the building. | believe we’ve
got a good start on a lot of things over there, so.

Commissioner Mourdock: | presume though, those discussions with City Police were
very preliminary, but do you have any idea how much space they are talking about?
And for how long?

Commissioner Mosby: | think they are going to take 107, which is 1,300 square feet,
and we talked about a three year contract with them, because they didn’t want to
come in on a year-to-year basis. Then the possibility that they are going to talk with
the Sheriff. There’s another room over there that is 1,979 square feet that they
would be interested in looking at the combined lease with the Sheriff on a couple of
deals. Then they also looked at a room in the basement that is not really very big,
and they were talking about just doing some possible polygraphs, interrogation type
things. We looked at a small room down there—

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah.

Commissioner Mosby: —we showed them the phone booth. No, but they might be
interested in that too. So, | spent probably an hour and a half or two hours with them
guys over there today, and they said they would definitely keep that building in mind
also for other things too.

Tammy McKinney: (Inaudible. Mike not on.)

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, they like what they see, and they are going to go talk
with the Mayor, and, hopefully, this will all work out.

Commissioner Mourdock: I've said many times, the best use for that building is some
governmental use. That's what it was designed for, and it’'s never going to be a
good retail building, but for governmental use, it might see it's better day.

Tammy McKinney: David, | talked with the Mayor after Solid Waste, and Gulledge
has talked with him, and he’s all for it. He said, he is going to be out of town for a
couple days, and be back in town the end of this week. He would like to get
something nailed down by March 1°.

Commissioner Mosby: They are very interested in getting in quickly. | will probably
say, and | don’t know if | need to make a motion, we need to do some painting in that
one room, and we need to clean the carpets in there for them. They’ve asked that
we do that at our expense. So, we might incur some up front costs to get that room
ready, but not a whole lot. The carpet does not have to be replaced. The walls look
pretty good. Most everything else is in pretty good shape. It’s just the fact—

Tammy McKinney: What’s got to be done is going to be minor.
Commissioner Mosby: Yeah. We might incur a little bit of cost.
Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah. | suspect you will hear from the Council for any
funding requests, just that we, again, continue to work on the total plan for the

building, because what we do even with that million dollars for the roof, if, in fact, it
is a million, | know the original was $700,000, | think—
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Commissioner Mosby: That's what | asked again about a week ago, and somebody
told me to look between $700,000 and $1 million.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, yeah, | hope we can do it for $1 million.

Commissioner Mosby: | hope we can too. I don’t think if we do something to the roof
and the windows that we’ve threw away any money, because the four different
people that I've talked to, and a couple of them being energy saving consultants that
have looked at that building and walked through with the maintenance man, have
said we can in no way hurt ourselves by sealing the building up. So, | guess,
number one | would ask that we go and make a request to the Council. Number two,
we might have to spend some money to get that building ready for the Evansville
City Police. | don’t know what them figures are.

Commissioner Mourdock: | don’t know what-—
Commissioner Mosby: Coming out of Tammy’s budget.
Tammy McKinney: (Inaudible. Mike not on.)

Commissioner Mosby: Do you want them separated?
Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, just state the motion again.

Commissioner Mosby: The first motion would be that we have Tammy write up a
request for the County Council for up to $1 million on the roof.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay. Second.
President Fanello: So ordered.

Commissioner Mosby: Second motion would be that we, | guess, we’ll have to get
estimates and quotes, but that we would spend the money to clean the carpets and
paint the room to get it ready for the Evansville City Police Department.

Commissioner Mourdock: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered. Is there anyone else that has any Old Business?

I’ve got a couple of things here. About three things. First of all, getting back to our
discussion on site selection. | guess, | would like to know if anybody has any
different thoughts. | would kind of like for us to make a motion tonight whether we
are going to stay with the back 40, or within the vicinity of the Civic Center, or if we
are going to go to a green field site. So, | guess, | would like to hear everyone’s
comments on that.

Commissioner Mourdock: | guess, my comment s, | don’t know that we can do that
yet without, again, kicking this thing to know more fundamentally what the footprint
of the building is going to be. | will tell you that | have mellowed a bit on the Courts
parking lot, in talking with some other folks, but | haven’t necessarily mellowed
entirely in the sense of some of the adjoining property, as far as what it's availability
might be across Ninth Street. | am hesitant to rush into saying, yeah, absolutely,
positively it's going to be the back 40. | know the Sheriff has said, in some ways, he
thinks that’s the best site, but on the other hand, if he’s still here, | think he’s also
said that that site, he feels, is pretty restrictive for it's size. So, | guess, I'm



Vanderburgh County Page 31 of 38
Board of Commissioners
February 11, 2002

wondering if we really are yet at the point where we have the information, just to say,
absolutely, positively. If you're approaching it in this way, Catherine, to say, if this
were the motion, hypothetically, that we direct the architects to give us a plan that
fits one site or the other, or give us their best estimate, then I’'m okay with that,
certainly. But, | don’t know that we can make a final discussion or make a final
decision tonight, if that’s what you are looking to do.

President Fanello: Restate your first—

Commissioner Mourdock: What | started to say a second ago?

President Fanello: Uh-huh.

Commissioner Mourdock: If our motion tonight is simply to direct the architect to give
us some schematic plan, to see how it would fit either one of those two sites, I'm

okay with that. Is that what you are looking to do?

President Fanello: | just think we need to give them some kind of direction as to
where we are going.

Commissioner Mourdock: Yeah, well, I'm..I think there’s enough potential on each
of those two sites. So, I'll go ahead and make a motion that we direct United/DLZ
to work up a plan to see if those sites are favorable to a, and this is where it gets
tricky, I'll say to their, what was their minimal proposal, 448 beds?

President Fanello: 484.

Commissioner Mourdock: 484 beds. Because if it's not going to work for that one,
we know itisn’t going to work for the others. So, give them the minimal one, and see
if it would work for that.

Commissioner Mosby: This is on the back 407?

Commissioner Mourdock: On either of those two sites.

President Fanello: He’s just saying have them work up a feasibility.
Commissioner Mourdock: Let me state it another way, David. If we tell them look at
these two sites, this parking lot and the back 40 to see if your minimal design works
for either one of those two sites, and report back to us.

Commissioner Mosby: Okay, you’re talking about the Judges parking lot—
Commissioner Mourdock: Right.

Commissioner Mosby: —or the back 40.

Commissioner Mourdock: Correct.

Commissioner Mosby: | don’t know if they’ll get it on the Judges parking lot, but
that’'s—

Commissioner Mourdock: Well, and | don’t know either.
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President Fanello: If they could go ahead and either count—

Commissioner Mosby: Yeah, I'll second that.

President Fanello: Okay. So ordered. The other two things | have are the Old
Courthouse Advisory Board Ordinance that we talked about last week. | think there
was some kind of new language worked up on the Board members. | don’t know,
did you get a copy of?

Commissioner Mourdock: | don’t think | did.

President Fanello: | don’t know if | have the (Inaudible).

Commissioner Mosby: It's not in my packet either.

Commissioner Mourdock: It was just about staggering the terms?

President Fanello: Uh-huh.

Commissioner Mosby: No, it's more than staggering the terms. We, | got with
Jonathan Weinzapfel, who was working on this, and we were talking about the way
it was, and | had him go to a seven member board, which would be three members
appointed by the Commissioners for a two year term, one member who currently
serves as a director on the Old Courthouse Foundation, appointed by their Advisory
Board, rather than appointed by us. One member appointed by the members of the
County Council and the majority party, and one member appointed by the minority
party, and then the Vanderburgh County Superintendent of Buildings would sit on
that Board, who oversees that.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'll accept.

Commissioner Mosby: So, | thought we would go to a seven member board. Let the
Old Courthouse Foundation appoint their own. Tammy would be an automatic
member, or whoever is in that position, and then three by us and two by Council.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay.

Commissioner Mosby: So, we got together and worked it up, and they are staggered
on one and two year terms.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, so with that change from our discussion last week,
we simply need to move to advertise?

President Fanello: Yes, we would like to have permission to advertise.
Commissioner Mourdock: So moved.

Commissioner Mosby: Second.

President Fanello: So ordered.

Madelyn Grayson: And do you want first reading for that on the 25" of this month?

President Fanello: That would be fine.
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Madelyn Grayson: Okay, then | will need a disk tomorrow morning, Tammy, to get
to the—

President Fanello: Do you have that, Tammy?

Commissioner Mosby: | think Jonathan...l think Jonathan had—

Tammy McKinney: Jonathan would have it.

President Fanello: Okay.

Commissioner Mourdock: Okay, if it doesn’t come up until the following Monday—
Commissioner Mosby: Patty says she’ll-

Philip Hayes: Patty said—

Commissioner Mosby: —that was just a draft that he sent in to see if we like it. Me
and him worked on it Friday.

Madelyn Grayson: Because we have an early morning, about 11:00 deadline with
the Courier.

President Fanello: Can you work on that in the morning, Tammy? Okay, the other
thing is, | received a request by fax today from Architecture Plus, wanting to be
placed on the agenda for February 25" to propose, | guess I'll read it to you;

Architecture Plus and it’s construction management division, Contract
Management Concepts, specializes in design, construction
management of criminal justice services as a turn key package.
Therefore, we request to be allowed to make a presentation to the
County Commission at your February 25, 2002 meeting.

Thoughts?

Commissioner Mosby: My thought is that we’ve gotten away from what | consider a
private proposal. | appreciate J.T. Kinkle making his proposal tonight, but now he’s
saying this is more of a private-public partnership, than a private proposal. | mean,
| don’t know if Architecture Plus and Ed Bassemier are coming in with a financial
package, all in one, or what their hope is here, but, | mean, if this is another one of
these, well, we can build this, we can contract it out, but you are going to have to pay
the freight, | mean, we’ve already got that. Architecture Plus was one of the firms
that was in the first eleven that we all went through, and they didn’t make anybody’s
top six. So, now they are back with, you know, with a private proposal, and | would
assume that if we are going to hear this, we might as well, you know, send one to
Ace Consulting and Mike Shoulders and everybody else, and let them come in and
make a turn key proposal. | mean, that’s what it's getting to. The people that got
voted out now are all wanting to come back and make turn key proposals, and it’s
becoming a bidding war. I've seen that tonight right here on the floor. We’ve gotten
into a bidding war. Everybody is looking to lessen the cost in anyway possible.

When | see $40,000 difference in Trash Removal, you know, it bothers me. | see
$250,000 in Electrical Costs, and another $100,000 in Supplies. Everybody is
looking to cut their costs however.
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Commissioner Mourdock: Is that a bad thing?

Commissioner Mosby: No, but if one can, if one can supply the jail for $30,000, I'm
sure the other one can, unless we just, you know, unless the Sheriff mismanages
and starts buying, you know, ungodly and outrageously, maybe....and | don’t know,
| can’t see BFI charging us more to remove trash if United builds it rather than they
would have if Hafer builds it.

Commissioner Mourdock: My point is—

Commissioner Mosby: | guess, that’'s my point. So, one is assuming how much trash
is coming out of the building, and the other is assuming how much trash is coming
out of the building. | guess, in best case scenario, you are going to hope that Hafer
is right, I'm going to hope that Hafer’s right, because their trash cost removal is only
$20,000.

Commissioner Mourdock: I'm at the, with the big nine digit numbers for the full life
of this project, the trash removal is the least of my concerns, but the process is
important. On the one hand, regarding this specific request from this company, | am
certainly not in the frame of mind to open the door again and, in effect, open
Pandora’s Box. Okay?

Commissioner Mosby: That's what we’ve done already.

Commissioner Mourdock: That's correct. However, having seen the numbers that
we saw tonight, again, | think, as | said before, we would be less than diligent, if we
didn’t try to chase some of this down. Whether the electrical costis here, or whether
it's down here is important only in the sense that if you are going to contract with
somebody to build this, you can certainly add in that contract or design it, you can
have some requirements in there that the energy costs meet this certain level. Even
if it's done totally on a normal bid basis, they still have to stand by on the quality of
their work so that there is so many kilowatts used per degree day, and all of those
kind of things. | mean, you can have that type of contracting. | think whatever we
can do to bring into this process, to bring the cost down, and to be challenged to get
others or everyone to bring the cost down, | see that as a good thing, not a bad
thing. It's a laborious thing for us, but, again, we are talking about nine digit
numbers at the end of this project, and that’s lot of money.

Commissioner Mosby: I'm sure what we’ll probably hear if we do that, and we go
back on them after the cost, they’ll have assumed that it was only going to get so
cold, or assumed that it was only going to get so hot.

Commissioner Mourdock: No, that's—

Commissioner Mosby: And their costs all of a sudden ran over. | mean, that’s what
we are getting to. Yeah, it's big numbers. You know, I’'m sitting here watching, and
they are taking numbers times 3%, times 25 years, and they are getting into
outlandish numbers. I'll go back and take the $250,000 out and then take the half
a million out, and I'll start taking 3% less than that, and go back and back the
numbers back out for you. And that’s exactly what's happening here. They’re
projecting them out higher, and we’re going to back them out. I'd backed them out
in my mind tonight for a long time.

Commissioner Mourdock: You backed what out?
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Commissioner Mosby: Their numbers.

Commissioner Mourdock: Whose numbers?
Commissioner Mosby: Hafer’s.

Commissioner Mourdock: How about backing out United’s?
Commissioner Mosby: Okay—

Commissioner Mourdock: United’s are higher than Hafer’s.
Commissioner Mosby: Well—

Commissioner Mourdock: Isn’t that the point? We’re trying to get the county the
cheapest project.

Commissioner Mosby: No, we are trying to get them the cheapest project, but I'm
trying to figure out who’s being fair.

Commissioner Mourdock: Well, how do you know that United’s more fair than Hafer?
Commissioner Mosby: | don't.
President Fanello: Let’s—

Commissioner Mosby: | don’t know that they are, but what I'm saying is that when
one tells me electric costs $400,000, and the other one $200,000, when one says
trash is $60,000 and one says it's $20,000, you know, I've got to believe whatever
300 people are in that jail, they are going to create the same amount of trash.

Whether this guy builds it or that guy builds it. BFI is going to charge us to haul it
away. | don’t know who’s number is right. Everybody is assuming. Architecture
Plus is going to assume. That’s my purpose here. | mean, they are going to
assume, and they are going to come in with numbers, maybe a little bit less. You
know, | don’t know.

Commissioner Mourdock: That’s true, and, again, that's Pandora’s Box. You’re
right—

Commissioner Mosby: You know, J.T. Kinkle was assuming.

Commissioner Mourdock: —when you start....when these numbers are public, you
are absolutely right. Everybody that comes in the door is going to get cheaper and
cheaper. | don’t disagree with that, but, again, | think in many ways that helps the
process. I'm less concerned, as | said, about the trash disposal, as | am the bigger
cost, which are the energy costs and the operating costs. Which | find that
particularly significant in, and I’m talking simply in the operating costs meaning the
number of manpower they were deploying. | mean, that is a big number. We've
talked about we don’t want the operating costs to get carried away in this, and | think
those kind of things will drive the process further.

Commissioner Mosby: | just, | mean, I’'m really not in favor of hearing him. | guess,
something that you said earlier last year sticks in my mind, and I’'m thinking this more
and more as we go through the process here that we’re getting into innovative, |
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guess, ideas and new ideas, and you made that comment that we don’t want to be
a guinea pig, and | agree with you more and more.

Commissioner Mourdock: Well-
Commissioner Mosby: | almost like going—

Commissioner Mourdock: | don’t think there is anything that’s been presented here
that would make us a guinea pig, but—

Commissioner Mosby: Well, | don’t see—

Commissioner Mourdock: —my comment of being a guinea pig was being the first
jail that somebody had built.

Commissioner Mosby: Well, and | don’t see any of these operations going on around
the state as | asked, you know, different people. You know, where do you know that
somebody built a private jail and leased it back to the county, but the county is
operating it? They are like, | can’t find one. | mean, | really don’t know.

So, | mean, if you can find one, | am more than glad to look at it, but I'm beginning
to 